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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

MonbpAY, February 6, 1967.
(88)
The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
8.05 p.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cameron (Nanimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
Gilbert, Gray, Irvine, Laflamme, Lambert, Latulippe, Lind, McLean (Charlotte),
Monteith, Wahn—(11).

Also present: Messrs. Grégoire, Lewis and Thompson.

In attendance: The Honourable Mitchell Sharp, Minister of Finance; and Mr.
C. F. Elderkin, Special Adviser, Department of Finance.

The Committee resumed consideration of the banking legislation.

The Chairman stated that the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure had
met informally earlier this day and had agreed that, in view of the controversy
between Mr. James Coyne, President, and Mr. Sinclair Stevens, president,
British International Finance (Canada) Limited, the two gentlemen concerned
should be called to appear before the Committee tomorrow for questioning. The
Committee approved the recommendation of the Sub-Committee.

The Chairman tabled a letter addressed to him from The Canadian Bankers’
Association concerning the views of the Association on the interest ceiling which

they had not had time to present in their last appearance before the Committee
on January 31, 1967.

On motion of Mr. Laflamme, seconded by Mr. Monteith,

Resolved,—That the letter from The Canadian Bankers’ Association be
included in this day’s Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence and that copies be
distributed to the members of the Committee. (See Appendix SS).

The Committee then resumed questioning of the Minister, who was assisted
in answering questions by Mr. Elderkin.

At. 8.55 p.m. the Vice-Chairman took the Chair, and at 9.05 p.m. the
Chairman resumed the Chair.

The questioning continuing, at 10.02 p.m. the Committee adjourned until
11.00 a.m., Tuesday, February 7, 1967.

Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Monpay, February 6, 1967.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. We are now in a position to
begin our meeting.

Before we again call on the Minister, I think there are a few procedural
matters we should deal with. First of all, I have had delivered to me a letter
from Mr. S. T. Paton, President of the Canadian Bankers’ Association, containing
some supplementary comments with respect to their views on the interest
ceiling.

Apparently they felt that it was not convenient late in the evening when
they were completing their testimony to go into the question of the interest
ceiling at the length they had hoped. They have submitted, in effect, a further
memorandum. I would suggest to the Committee we might find it in order if we
circulated this memorandum to the Committee so such members would.have
these further views at this point. It might also be useful when the Minister is
before us to be aware of them. We have some additional copies here and I think
it would be in order to print it. Perhaps, Miss Ballantine could circulate the
memorandum, and when it is circulated I will see if the Committee wishes to
have this printed.

While Miss Ballantine is circulating the memorandum, I am going to report
on our order of business for tomorrow. ‘

After the topic of the Bank of Western Canada was raised in the House this
afternoon I immediately held what I think could be described as an informal
meeting of the steering committee in the house itself. As a result of this meeting
the steering committee and I were in agreement that we should invite
Mr. James Coyne and Mr. Sinclair Stevens, and his group, to appear before us
tomorrow to tell us about the matter that was raised in the house, and was
reported on at some length in the papers on the week end and today as well.
I can report to the Committee that both Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens will be
available to us tomorrow afternoon. They will not be available in the morning,
unfortunately, travel difficulties make it impossible. I think Mr. Coyne will be
able to be with us at 4 o’clock, and Mr. Stevens at any time during the after-
noon.

I would recommend to the Committee that we might agree at this time that
we begin with Mr. Coyne, since he is the one who has made certain allegations,
followed by the Steven’s group. Now we have the Minister of Finance with us
this evening; originally he was to appear before us to continue his testimony on
the banking legislation generally. I have taken the liberty of discussing the
matter of the appearance of Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens, particularly with
respect to the matter of his own comments on this particular issue. It would
appear to me—and Mr. Sharp may have a comment himself—that it would be
more helpful to the Committee, and to the public at large who are interested in
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this subject, if Mr. Sharp were in a position to reserve any comments he may
have on this West Bank question until we have heard from Mr. Coyne and the
Steven’s group, and, I presume, also until he has had a chance to have his officials
make some further inquiries of their own.

That being the case, this evening I would suggest to the Committee we do
limit our questions to the other aspect we had in mind originally to discuss with
Mr. Sharp, with the understanding that we would have him come back to testify
before us, once we, as a Committee, and Mr. Sharp as well, have had an
opportunity to hear what Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens have had to say about the
matter of controversy we have heard about today and on the week end.

: Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your approach to the over-all
picture, but I have one or two minor questions to ask of Mr. Sharp concerning
this affair, which I do not think really would reflect on what is going to be said
by the two witnesses who will be appearing before us tomorrow. I would like to
be in a position to ask Mr. Sharp these questions this evening.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps I should invite some other comments from the
Committee: Mr. Cameron?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): There is one point I had
in mind, Mr. Chairman. Reference was made in the house this afternoon by Mr.
Macaluso to what he wrongly described as an Order in Council which actually
was a Treasury Board Minute which gave the number; and the minister in his
reply made reference to this. Now, I do not know what the protocol of this is, but
is does occur to me that in order that we may estimate the evidence given by
Messrs. Coyne and Stevens, we should have the terms of that agreement before
us if it could be made available.

The CHAIRMAN: I have already spoken to Mr. Elderkin about this, just
before the meeting began, and I have taken the liberty, on behalf of the
Committee, to ask him if copies could be made available in both French and
English to all of us before these gentlemen appear. I gather from what Mr.
Elderkin told me before the meeting that it would be in order and that he is
going to instruct his staff to deal with the matter. Am I correct, Mr. Sharp, in
saying this is in order?

Hon. MiTcHELL SHARP (Minister of Finance): Not only so, Mr. Chairman, but
I tabled it in the House of Commons. ;

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, that is correct.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I was not sure whether
you had tabled it or not; somebody said you had and somebody said you had not.
I was not sure.

Mr. MONTEITH: On January 18.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, that is right.

Mr. SHARP: I made a short statement on holdings, and I asked at the end of
the statement if I might have permission to table the order and permission was
granted.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): That was an Order in
Council, or—
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Mr. SHARP: A Treasury Board—

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): A Treasury Board
minute.

Mr. SHARP: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Just before we began our meeting this evening I spoke
with Mr. Elderkin and asked him to obtain sufficient copies for the Committee
and other interested parties, and to have them distributed to us as soon as
possible tomorrow. That again may be another reason for the Committee with-
holding questions on this issue, until we have had a chance to study this
document as well.

Mr. MONTEITH: cannot quite agree; this document has been available, and
I do not think they are embarrassing questions to Mr. Sharp, I do not mean them
to be, it is just for information. So that I think the Committee would be better
prepared to question the witnesses who may come before us tomorrow, if we
have answers to certain questions which I would like to ask.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes; well, I wish to make clear that my suggestion is not
because I fear the consequences of any questions or answers, but merely to
permit us to discuss this matter in the most orderly fashion. It was my impres-
sion, from an exploratory discussion with the Minister earlier today, that he
himself is most interested in hearing, at first hand, if I may use the phrase, what
these people have to say because this will affect his report, if I may put it that
way, to the Committee and to parliament.

Mr. SHARP: May I suggest, Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Monteith would like to ask
some questions relating to what the law is, questions of this kind, or the
administration, I would certainly be very happy to answer them. If it relates to
what Mr, Coyne said, or what Mr. Stevens may have said, I would have thought
it would have been more orderly to have them here to make their statements,
then we will have a better idea of what it is we are dealing with.

Mr. MonTEITH: I have to disagree with the Minister. My statements are
purely following up some questions in the House of Commons this afternoon. I
leave it on that basis.

Mr. SHARP: May I say, Mr. Chairman, I have no objection to answering any
of the questions.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): To give a further point of
clarification on this document—there may be some misunderstanding some-
where—I was given the number of the Treasury Board minute, but the Treasury
Board officials whom I contacted said they were unable to let me have it; they
had been forbidden to distribute it. Now, they may be confused, though I gave
them the date and I gave them the number.

Mr. SHARP: Well, ordinarily Treasury Board minutes are not available—

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): No, that is what I
thought.

Mr. SHARP: That is quite possible. But, in this particular case we had already
given the Bank of Western Canada the terms of this order. They had published
it. So I had no hesitation whatever in laying it before the House on January 18.
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The CHAIRMAN: May I suggest a compromise approach which might meet the
satisfaction of the Committee. Perhaps we could take a very brief period to have
some questions which we might described as being of a prefatory sort to assist us
in our questioning of Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens. We will have to rely on each
others good will in this if we do not, in effect, try to spend the whole evening
discussing this issue. Perhaps we can take a brief period beginning with Mr.
Monteith and accepting certain supplementaries with the idea that they would be
designed to assist us in our questioning of Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens tomorrow.

Mr. MoNTEITH: This was my intent, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes, well I will recognize you for that purpose.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Well, then, if I may start out Mr. Minister, I understand Mr.
Coyne phoned—apparently it was Friday morning or in that period—and said he
was going to make a statement but gave no indication of what would be in it.

Mr. SHARP: That is right.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Well, that is fine. Now, you did indicate in the house—I am
not awfully sure of this, but I would like clarification on it—that you had had a
discussion with two persons relative to the terms of Treasury Board minute
658534, which was passed on August 3, 1966. Now, I think you said in the house
that one of these individuals was Mr. Stevens and that you would have to check
on who the other one actually was. Have you refreshed your memory in that
respect?

Mr. SHARP: Yes, I have refreshed my memory, and the reason for my
hesitation in the house was that my discussion with this other person was not
about this matter, and I am not quite certain, but my first impression was that I
had said the same to him as I had said to Mr. Stevens, about this Treasury Board
order. But, on reflection, I came to the conclusion that I might not have
mentioned it to him. At any rate, it is of no consequence, because the person that
I wanted to know what my attitude was on this subject was Mr. Stevens, who is
the head of that group of companies.

Mr. MoONTEITH: Yes.

Mr. Suarp: With respect to the other person involved, we were talking
about another matter, and my first recollection was that I did speak to him about
the Treasury Board minute. But I did not do so for purposes of conveying any
information that he could do anything with.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Do you not feel privileged to mention the other person’s
name? »

Mr. SHARP: No, because he was not involved in that sense. We were
discussing another matter altogether.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Well, then, may I ask upon what date you did discuss the
situation with Mr. Stevens.

Mr. SHARP: Today.

Mr. MonTEITH: I beg your pardon?
Mr. SHARP: Today.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Today only?
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Mr. SuARP: Today only. This is the first conversation I have had with Mr.
Stevens.

Mr. MonTEITH: Well, I must apologize Mr. Chairman; I received the impres-
sion during the discussion in the house that there had been a discussion earlier
than this, concerning the possibility of discussing the terms of Treasury Board
minute No. 658534, as to what might have to be done to approach you to consider
the implications in the item 2F.

Mr. SHARP: No. If I have mislead Mr. Monteith or anyone else in the house, I
did not mean to, and I do not think I did.

Mr. MoNTEITH: In other words, you have had no discussion with Mr. Stevens
or this other individual, concerning any possibility of these individuals asking
you what should be done to approach you on the consequences on these clauses?

Mr. SHARP: That is right. Mr. Chairman, the two conversations that I had
were today. Indeed, just to make a point quite clear, there was one thing I might
have said in the house that afterwards I regretted that I had not added, during
the question period—no it was not during the question period, during the debate,
the short debate that took place when Mr. Diefenbaker moved the adjournment
of the house, I read the telegram I had received from Mr. Stevens, saying that he
would be ready to appear before this Committee. I should have added that I was
talking to Mr. Stevens when his telegram arrived.

Mr. MoNTEITH: This morning?

Mr. SHARP: This morning. I may have created the impression that I had not
had any other communication with Mr. Stevens, but when Mr. Stevens called
me, and while he was talking to me his telegram arrived, and he said “Have you
received my telegram?” and I said “I have just received it, it has just been put
on my desk.”

Mr. MonNTEITH: Well, then, am I safe in assuming that you have had no
conversation with Mr. Stevens between August 3, 1966, when this Treasury
Board Minute was passed, and this morning?

Mr. SHARP: So far as I recollect I never talked to Mr. Stevens during that
period, and never about this subject.

Mr. MonTEITH: Well, thank you very much Mr. Sharp: that does clear up a
point. Now, if I could move just one step further; the discussion this morning
with Mr. Stevens revolved around exactly what point, if I might ask that?

Mr. SHARP: Well, Mr. Stevens phoned me to comment on Mr. Coyne’s
statement; and his main purpose in phoning me, I think, was to say that he was
ready to appear before the Committee. He offered me some comments about Mr.
Coyne’s statement, and during the conversation he said: “Have you got my
telegram saying I would like to appear?”, and I said “it has just been put on my
desk.” During that conversation I thought it well, in the light of what Mr. Coyne
had said, to make it clear that the terms of this Treasury Board minute governed
the relationship between the Bank of Western Canada and its preferred share-
holders, and that I would not exercise my discretion except in very exceptional
circumstances, as I said in the house.

Mr. MoNTEITH: And you told him this this morning?
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Mr, SuARP: I told him that this morning, yes.

Mr. MoNTEITH: And there had never been any approach—I am only repeat-
ing, I am not cross-examining, please; I am only repeating for complete clarifica-
tion. You had not discussed this particular point with Mr. Stevens prior to this
morning?

Mr. SHARP: As a matter of fact, I said in the house, and I think it was quite
clear what I said, that this question had not been raised in my mind at all, until
Mr. Coyne made his statement.

Mr. MonTEITH: Well, then, one further question if I may, Mr. Chairman, to
Mr. Elderkin: Mr. Elderkin, in evidence before this Committee when we were
considering the Bank of Western Canada bill before us, you did state, I seem to
recall, that in your estimation there was no reason—how shall I put it—that in
your estimation this was a charter which met all intents and purposes of the
legislation on which we were basing the subject, and so on; that everything
seemed to be completely to your satisfaction at that moment.

Mr. ELDERKIN: That is correct.

Mr. MoNTEITH: May I ask the question then, does it still appear so to you,
in the light of what has happened?

The CHAIRMAN: I think I would like to intervene at this time. Perhaps I
erred on the side of kindliness or courtesy—

Mr. MoNTEITH: I do not think so at all, Mr. Chairman, we are getting to the
point of the discussion.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Well that is really what—

Mr. MoNTEITH: Is there anything wrong with me asking Mr. Elderkin if he
still feels this way?

The CHAIRMAN: No, I do not think so at all. But I am wondering whether or
not we are getting to the position where we now will have to permit every other
member of the Committee to pursue this topic at complete length before hearing
Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens, and having a very complete discussion with Mr.
Sharp, and Mr. Elderkin in the light of what these gentlemen—

Mr. MonTEITH: If you had allowed me to ask my question of Mr. Elderkin,
we would be finished as far as I am concerned.

The CHAIRMAN: Fine, well now that we have that established perhaps Mr.
Elderkin—

Mr. MoNTEITH: I just wondered if Mr. Elderkin felt exactly the same way.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Mr. Monteith, there is nothing that has occurred that has
been any violation of any terms of the charter.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I pass.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, rather than begin a right wheel turn of questions, the
understanding was that we would permit Mr. Monteith particularly to ask some
questions with a view to assisting us and himself in our questioning of Mr. Coyne
and Mr. Stevens tomorrow. I think rather than giving a regular turn of question-
ing I might invite the members to pose any supplementary questions they
consider very important in the light of the basis for raising this topic at this time.
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Mr. THoMPSON: I just have a single question for Mr. Sharp. In the various
interviews that you had with Mr. Stevens in the past, or in any of the evidence
that he has given, to you or to the committee, have you had any reason to be
apprehensive about the financial arrangement and share arrangement of the
Bank of Western Canada, or has this come as a surprise to you?

Mr. SHARP: The particular question about the propriety of the Bank of
Western Canada making any loans to its subsidiaries had never been raised with
me until Mr. Coyne raised it. I had no information that led me to believe that the
bank was contemplating making any loans to any of its preferred shareholders;
so the question had never been raised in the past.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I do not like to interject Mr. Chairman, but may I, just for
clarification purposes ask this: Until Mr. Coyne raised it in his statement?

Mr. SHARP: That is it, in his statement, yes.

Mr. THOMPSON: And you had no pre-warning on this.

Mr. SHARP: I had no warning about this, and of course the statement that I
made today about the exercise of my discretion is the first time that I have ever
made a statement about that subject. I assumed that the order spoke for itself on
the intent of the granting of a certificate.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further supplementary questions of this
kind? There are none, I think therefore that we should take it that the committee
has agreed that further questions to the Minister on this topic we can reserve
until after we have heard from Messrs. Coyne and Stevens and any of their
associates, if they care to be involved in this matter tomorrow.

When the committee adjourned on Thursday evening, we were discussing
the proposed amendment, brought to our attention by the Minister, with respect
to the defining and disclosing of the cost of borrowing. If I am not mistaken
—perhaps Miss Ballantyne will refresh my memory—the last person we heard
from was Mr. Lind; but before we get to that aspect, we have all had a chance to
glance over the letter to me from the Canadian Bankers Association with respect
to their further views on the interest ceiling formula, and that being the case,
could I have your views on whether this should be made a part of our record.

Mr. LAFLAMME: I so move.
Mr. MoNTEITH: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: If I am mistaken, and Mr. Lind has already completed his
questions on the proposed amendment with respect to the cost of borrowing, I
will invite other members who may still have questions on this issue to signify
their desire to me. Are there any further questions on this? If not, I would like to
ask something very quickly, and perhaps Mr. Elderkin can deal with it. Sub-
paragraph 6 of the amendment refers to an express agreement between the bank
and the customer. Do you know if this has been interpreted as needing to be in
writing?

Mr. ELDERKIN: That is right.

The CHAIRMAN: That is the significance of the word “express”.
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Mr. ELpErgIN: That is correct.

The CHAIRMAN: With respect to clause 92(1) (5) (ii), reference to charges,
is that intended to apply to what is known as the compensating balance?

Mr. ELDERKIN: A continuation of that clause, Mr. Chairman, I think covers
the point.

The CHAIRMAN: Is the cost of keeping an account included in the cost of
borrowing, under this clause?

Mr. ELpERKIN: Normally the cost of keeping an account is a subject matter
of service charges which is included in that clause and which in turn is just a
repetition of what is subclause (3) of clause 93 of the bill. It has simply been
moved from one place to another.

The CHAIRMAN: If there are no further questions on the proposed amend-
ment with respect to the cost of borrowing, definition and disclosure, then we
have finished our discussion on the topics the Minister wished to raise with us.
We are now open for a general discussion. Perhaps it may be easier—rather than
trying to limit this discussion to a specific topic—simply to recognize the mem-
bers in turn and permit them to pursue whatever avenues they see fit. Does the
Committee agree that this would be the easiest way to deal with the matter? If
so, then I would be prepared to recognize Mr, Cameron.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I wonder, Mr. Sharp, if
you have had the opportunity to read this supplementary submission by the
Bankers’ Association.

Mr. SHARP: I have had a similar letter, I think, from the Bankers’ Associa-
tion itself but I have not read the letter now before us.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It would be the same one,
I presume.

Mr. SHARP: Yes.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I wonder if you have any
comment on it. I am thinking particularly if you have any comment to make on
their suggestion that we should adopt the proposals made, I think, by Dr.
Neufeld one of our witnesses, about the increase of one per cent in the first year
followed by—first of all, could I ask your comment on the Bankers’ Association’s
suggestion as to the uncertainty of the present formula and whether it is a vahd
objection or not. I would like to have your opinion on that.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chalrman, I have not had the time I would like to have had
to consider the implications of this letter. I have had other distractions in the
meantime of various kinds. I am impressed, however with the practical applica-
tion of the varying ceiling. It has been the intent of the legislation in a general
way to work towards freedom; in other words, the process would consist of two

stages: First of all, a controlled increase in rates followed, I hoped, as interest
rates fell, to freedom which I think is desirable in the interests, particularly, of
the smaller borrowers. I am conscious of the fact that if the ceiling were, in fact,
to come down before it came off that it introduces a rather arbitrary kind of
control that does not have very much purpose. Therefore, in a general
way, I have felt that the Bankers’ Association put forward a valid suggestion
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that wherever the ceiling is fixed, as a result of the first calculation, should
remain the minimum ceiling. Then when the interest rates fall to the trigger
point, the ceiling should be removed altogether. That is the only general com-
ment I would like to make. This, I do not think, is a point of absolutely first rate
importance, but I do believe the Committee should give consideration to the
point raised by the Bankers’ Association because I do not think that we want to
introduce unnecessary complications into the business of making loans and
borrowing money from the banks.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Thank you, that is all.

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): Mr. Sharp, the formula here would rest with the
Bank of Canada rate? Does that have something to do with the Bank of Canada
rate?

Mr. SHARP: No; except in a very indirect way. I should think that the Bank
of Canada rate would move generally with interest rates but the figure is not
related to the Bank of Canada rate.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I was going to say that it seems that the various
nations, including Canada, have come to the conclusion that high interest rates
are not curing the heated economy in the way they should. It seems that the
United States has taken the lead recently and the various interested nations have
gathered together and have decreased the rate by the central banks all around. Is
this going to affect the interest rate that you are going to set up by this formula?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I am very happy to see that steps are being taken
around the world to reduce interest rates because, like you, I believe that
interest rates rose to too high levels throughout the wor}d. I would suggest,
however, in this particular case that as far as the bank rate is concgrned, Canada
moved ahead of the United States because so far as I know, the United States has
not changed the federal reserve official discount rate recently and the Bank of
Canada has reduced the Bank rate from 51 per cent to 5 per cent. In other parts
of the world there have been some reductions but we happen t.o be ahead of the
United States. I say that without knowing whether the Americans are going to
change their rate.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): May I ask a supplemen-
tary?

The CHAIRMAN: Will you yield, doctor, for a supplementary?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It is true, however, is it
not, Mr. Sharp, that in the United States they have attempted to tackle it from
the other end in placing a limit on what may be paid on deposits?

Mr. SHARP: The United States has never had, as you know, a ceiling on
interest rates that may be charged. They have had controls in some jurisdictions
upon the rate that may be paid for deposits.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes.

Mr. SHARP: Indeed, I do not think there are any other big countries that
have a ceiling on interest rates paid by borrowers. Canada is an exception,
whether honourable or otherwise, to that rule. At any rate it is an exception. I
am not sure why the United States adopted that form of regulation. It may have
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something to do with the internal conditions of the United States. Mr. Elderkin
may have much more expert knowledge of the reason for the American policy.

Mr. ELDERKIN: The federal reserve under its powers issued a regulation, the
so-called regulation Q, which governs the rates which may be paid on deposits,
and this has been carried across to not only federal institutions but institutions,
for instance, insured under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. This rate
was kept substantially lower than what one might call world rates for two or
three years, and possibly one of the results that came from that was an outflow
of U.S. funds—a very substantial outflow of funds—into a more lucrative mar-
ket, namely the Euro dollar market. A short time ago—I cannot give you the
exact date—they raised the rate under Schedule Q to permit the American banks
to be more competitive in the world market in the securing of deposits and this
has had quite a substantial effect on repatriating funds.

Mr. SHARP: May I add just this, Mr. Cameron: I do not think if we had had
power to keep a ceiling on interest rates paid by the Canadian chartered banks
that we would ever have had any reason to exercise it. I do not think they have
paid excessive rates.

Mr. MacaLuso: Perhaps we had better put something underneath the floor
instead of a ceiling.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I was wondering if Mr.
Elderkin could tell me does he think that one of the purposes of this was to
affect the rates that would be charged for loans in the United States? Was there
a connection there?

Mr. ELDERKIN: It would have an indirect effect, I think, but I think the
reason for it, if one could guess at it, would be to stop the outflow of United
States dollars into other markets.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): That was the reason for
raising it from 5 per cent to 7 per cent but I was wondering what was their
reason for the original imposition of the 5 per cent?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I think possibly an attempt, in general, to keep interest rates
under control on both sides.

Mr. SHARP: I would have thought—if I may just speculate for a moment
—that it probably was an attempt to prevent competition between institutions for
savings that could have produced undesirable distortions in the availability of
money in various institutions. By keeping a ceiling on the rates that could be
paid on deposits, the flow ofs funds into various kinds of institutions could be
better controlled. I doubt very much whether that had anything more than an
indirect effect upon the rates being charged to borrowers. Certainly it could have
the effect of increasing the profitability of loans and, therefore, I find it difficult
to believe that that could be the primary purpose of the regulations.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I was asking because
there were some suggestions at the time they raised it to 7 per cent that this
was their method of indirectly affecting the interest rates charged. I was curious
to know how that could have that effect.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I do not think the deposit rate was ever raised to 7 per cent.
The deposit rate on certain types of deposits was raised to 5 per cent and on
some others to 5% per cent.
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Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It was raised to 7 per
cent on some of the deposits.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I do not think on the deposit side it ever reached 7 per cent.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): On what could be paid on
deposits.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I may be mistaken on
that.

Mr. ELDERKIN: As the Minister said, certainly one of the very important
_points was to protect the savings and loan associations so that the larger
Institutions could not outbid them for deposits.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. McLean do you have any further questions?

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Yes. As money is international and flows back and
forth, how can we keep a ceiling rate here in Canada if we are going to recognize
money as international. I think I read in the press that apparently, $174 million
had gone down to the United States in American stocks and money flows back
and forth. The Chase Manhattan Bank reduced their borrowing rates to 5% per
cent, but how can we control the rate here in Canada if we are putting a lid on at
6 per cent or 6% per cent or 7 per cent?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, quite obviously a ceiling on the rates charged by
banks does not necessarily affect the whole structure of interest rates as we have
seen. As mortgages have risen very sharply, as the rates in the money markets
have increased, I found it necessary a few months ago to pay what I consider
very high rates on government of Canada borrowings and the fact that the banks
were under a nominal ceiling of 6 per cent did not seem to protect me very much
and I am sure it did not protect very many other people who had to go into the
market to raise money. It is true that there must be a certain relationship
between interest rates in Canada and in the United States, in particular. After
all, Canada is one of the biggest borrowers of capital in the world, and therefore,
our interest rates must be in such a relationship with the United States that we
have the necessary inflow of capital in order to finance our balance of payments
deficit.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): A company as a borrower could go down and
borrow from the Chase Manhattan Bank at 53 per cent. Does this 30 per cent
raise in the States affect the borrowings from Canada?

Mr. SHARP: We are exempted from the interest equalization tax, which is the
tax to which you refer, on long term borrowings in the United States. We
obtained this position as a result of giving undertakings that we would not use
this freedom in order to increase our exchange reserves.

The other question about whether there is unlimited freedom to borrow
from banks in the United States, I leave to Mr. Elderkin who can be much more
brecise than I can.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes, there is unlimited freedom from our side for banks in
the United States.
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Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Well, I was thinking of competition. The Chase
has 5% per cent to borrowers and we have a 6 per cent here. A borrower could go
down and borrowed at 54 per cent from the Chase. Are they subject to this 30
per cent.

Mr. ELDERKIN: No, they are not subject to this. I think, Dr. McLean, that 5%
per cent is their so-called quoted prime rate which is often qualified a bit by
compensating balances.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Yes; I have had experience with that.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And also on the American
dollar.

Mr. McLeEaN (Charlotte): But what I was looking at was the competition
that the Canadian banks would get from the American banks.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, there is such competition today. One of the points
that should be considered, when we get around to the question of foreign
agencies, is whether in fact the establishment of foreign agencies makes very
much difference to the availibility of American dollars to Canadian borrowers.

At the present time, there are Canadian businesses that are financing in the
United States by borrowing from American banks. However, you have to bear in
mind, first of all, that it is in American dollars that you pay whatever the
American bank wants to charge and secondly, you have to repay in American
dollars, so that there is an exchange risk involved. These are the reasons why
Canadian banks continue to do the great bulk of financing of Canadian business.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): But I understand that this 15 per cent that was on
interfered with the borrowing by Canadian customers from American banks.

Mr. SuArp: That is not my understanding, Mr. Chairman. The interest
equalization tax does interfere with the purchase by Americans of outstanding
Canadian securities upon which that tax is payable.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): 1 know some years ago when I was active in
business, it came up with the Chase Manhattan Bank that the change in the law
over there interfered with Canadians Borrowing. I am just asking the question. I
know that previously the American banks were very competitive if you wanted
to borrow against Canadian banks. When this law went into effect it seemed to
throw everything out.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I can assure you that there are salesmen for
American banks going around today competing with Canadian banks for bu-
siness. So far as I know, they are doing this business free of the interest
equalization tax. The United States government, of course, has given some
advice to many people, including banks, to do everything possible to protect the
United States from an undesirable outflow of funds because the United States
has a balance of payments problem. I am pretty sure that the interest equaliza-
tion tax does not apply to those borrowers.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): It was my understanding that the Chase bank had
to account to Ottawa for any interest they received.

The CHAIRMAN: To Ottawa?
Mr. McLeEAN (Charlotte): Yes. They had to report it.
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Mr. SuARP: I do not think so, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Thompson, I gather Dr. McLean has no objection to
your asking a question.

Mr. THoMPSON: This business that you refer to is business being done out of
hotel rooms, in offices?

Mr. Suarp: I think it is being done in the offices of business corporations in
Canada. I do not think that the salesmen for the American banks in Canada have
any shyness about doing their business in smoke filled rooms. They do it quite
openly.

The CuAIRMAN: Dr. McLean, have you completed your questioning; if so, I
will hear Mr. Laflamme followed by Mr. Grégoire.

Mr. LaAFLAMME: Mr. Sharp, regarding the interest rate ceiling, should the
interest rate ceiling be completely removed while chartered banks as we know
legally claim service charges. Are you of the opinion that interest rates would
decrease if the ceiling were completely removed?

Mr. SHARpP: This is a question that ought to be directed more to the
banks than to me; but my impression, and indeed, the reason why the govern-
ment felt that it was in the public interest to move towards a removal of the
ceiling is that there will be no longer just a single rate by banks; that there will
be a greater spread of interest rates, taking into account the nature of the
business that is being done. It seemed to me that this was a desirable freedom so
that the banks would be in a position to give the kind of service to their
customers that they wished to do, being able to take into account the cost of
doing business and the relative risks involved.

(Translation)
Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, if I understand right, we can ask questions
on any subject related to the bill?

The CHAIRMAN: Exactly.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, I would like to know what authority you have, as
Minister of Finance, on the volume of money supply?

(English)

Mr. SuArRP: Mr. Chairman, I think you had better cut me off after the first
hour. I will give a short answer to that question, and say that the government of
Canada accepts the responsibility for monetary policy and that monetary policy
in general is implemented through the operations of the Bank of Canada in the
money market.

There was a time, I gather, under a previous administration when there was
some doubt whether the government was responsible for monetary policy. I will
not be any more specific than that. I believe all these doubts have now been
clarified and I have no hesitation whatever in saying that monetary policy is a
matter of government policy and that I take full responsibility for the actions of
the Bank of Canada and its Governor.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Was it the administration before the last administration? I
remember Walter Harris on more than one occasion— :
25698—2
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Mr. SHARP: La méme chose.

(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Minister, I think you did not quite understand my
question. Maybe it was not properly interpreted. I said: what is your authority,
as Minister of Finance, on the volume of the money supp'y and not the monetary
policy generally—your authority over the volume of the money supply.

(English)

Mr. SHARP: The authority for the operations of the Bank of Canada which
carries out the monetary policy that in turn influences the volume of money is
contained in the Bank of Canada Act. It is now recognized, and indeed, will soon
be formalized by the amendments which will be before us in the Bank of Canada
Act, that these operations which do affect the volume of money are made by the
Bank of Canada and in consultation with the Minister and the government itself
takes responsibility for the actions of the Governor and of the bank.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Then you have full responsibility for the vo'ume of money in
circulation as well as legal tender or credit money.

Mr. SHARP: Well, let me put it this way. The Bank of Canada has authority
to operate in the money market to influence the volume of money and credit. I
would hesitate to say, however, that it has complete control because,—shall I put
it this way—when there is a very great demand for money and credit, the Bank
of Canada has greater control than when there is a deficient demand for money
and credit. It is much easier to put a ceiling on the money supply than it is to
create the demand for money and credit. Al! that the Bank of Canada can do in
order to stimulate the demand for money and credit is to take action that will
result in a plentiful supply of cash, and in that way to influence the level of
interest rates: but the Bank of Canada cannot direct a businessman to go out and
borrow money in order to expand his factory.

(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: If you have authority over the volume of money supply, on
what do you base your decisions to set the money supply at a given level?

(English)

Mr. SHARP: When a Governor of the Bank of England, Lord Norman, was
once asked that question by J. M. Keynes, he said, “I do it by feel and flair” and
I do think that to some extent that it remains a question of judgment. There is
no mathematical formuld by which the money supply can be regulated.

I was asking Mr. Elderkin if he had a copy of the Bank of Canada Act,
because at the beginning of the act is given some direction to the bank on how
they are to exercise their powers, but unfortunately I have not one.

Mr. GREGOIRE: You proceed by feeling on this question of the volume of
money supply. It is a question of feelings.

Mr. SHARP: It is a question of judgment.
Mr. GREGOIRE: Of judgment?
Mr. SHARP: Yes.



v

Feb. 6, 1967 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 2999

~ Mr. GREGOIRE: You quote a former president of the Bank of Great Britain, I
th}nk. There is another economist, Mr. Samuelson, from Harvard University who
said that the economics is a science. How can you reconcile these two definitions
Wwhen you say you proceed by a question of judgment, when the economy is
Supposed to be a question of science, and science is supposed to be based on
statistics?

Mr. SHARP: May I say, Mr. Vice-Chairman, that every time I bring in a
budget in which I am concerned about the fiscal policies of the government, I do
my very best to try to forecast conditions and on that basis to make judgments
about government spending and government taxing. Notwithstanding the great
Progress in economic science, I still find that there is a vast area of uncertainty. I
am always criticized by the Opposition in the House of Commons for exercising
my judgment very badly indeed.

Mr. MonTEITH: Do you mean the judgment is bad or the criticism is bad?

Mr. SHARP: Well, that depends on where you sit.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, I am not talking about a budget which is a
forecast of what is to come but I am talking about the volume of money. I
wonder if you take into consideration when you make your forecast the actual
situation in Canada; I mean the total goods and services available which is, in
fact, what is behind the volume of money. Does it become a question of
Judgment or a question of statistics?

! Mr. SuArp: Every time the Bank of Canada operates in the money market in
its day to day transactions, it is having to make a judgment not only about the
quantity of money and credit available now, but it has to make a judgment on
Whether the existing situation is going to be sufficiently encouraging or dis-
couraging, as the case may be, to influence the course of events in the future.
After all, the most important decisions that are made affecting the volume of
business and the level of employment, are the decisions that are made in the
business sector as to the volume of capital investment. This is one of the big,
powerful influences. So that every day Mr. Rasminsky has to concern himself not
only with whether his policies are consonant with the present situation, but also
Whether they are consonant with the kind of situation that he believes is
developing. His aim, as is the aim of the government in fiscal policy, is the
Mmaintenance of a high and stable level of employment, stability of prices and a
Viable balance of payment situation. Each of these considerations has to be taken
into account in every decision which is made either in the monetary field or in
the fiscal field. I only wish, Mr. Grégoire, that I had a computer that could take
all these factors into account and then could come out with an answer,'npt only
about the present but about the future. I can guarantee you that the Minister of
Finance would stay in power forever and whatever government he belonged to
could go to the people with an unblemished record.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Have you ever thought of
investing in a crystal ball?
Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, I am not asking you questions about the future.

We will discuss this afterwards. I am asking you questions about the a\.fter eﬁfects
of the reports. Do you feel that actually in Canada the money supply is sufficient

for the expansion of Canada.
25698—23
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Mr. SHarp: Shall I put it this way? I believe that during the term that I have
been in office the money supply has been sometimes more than adequate for the
purpose. I have not been concerned about a deficiency of money and credit.
Maybe in the future I will be but up until now I have not been.

Mr. GrEcoIRE: I would just like to ask the Minister to repeat his last
answer. You have not been what?

Mr. SuARP: I have not been concerned about a deficiency of money and
credit. I may be concerned about that in the future but during my year or so in
office I have not been concerned about that problem.

Mr. GREGOIRE: And to what do you compare your satisfaction? Is it to actual
production of Canada, the actual goods produced in Canada?

Mr. SHARP: It is the pressure upon our resources which arises from the
demands upon them. In other words, I have felt that the economy required, for
stability, some restraint otherwise governments and private industry and con-
sumers were going to demand more than could be physically produced at the
time. I know that there are still, or have been even in this year of unprecedented
prosperity and expansion, some unused resources. But those resources have not
been available in the places where they could be used. So that is why I say
during the year that I have been in office I have not been troubled about a
deficiency of money and credit.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, as Minister of Finance, how can you be satisfied
with the volume of money supply compared to the actual goods on the market
when everybody has to borrow to buy those goods. Anybody in Canada who
wants to buy a cow which is already on the market and already produced has to
borrow to buy this cow. It is the same if they want to buy clothing, furniture and
every kind of thing which is actually produced and which are assets in the
country. But even then, everyone has to borrow or go on a finance plan or to go
to the banks to buy those things. How can you be satisfied with the amount of
money in circulation when they do not have enough money to buy what they
have worked for and they still have to borrow when they are producing?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, the whole of our society is built on the foundation
of credit. I am not at all happy that there is as much consumer credit in existence
as there is, but every transaction in production nowadays involves some credit.
Our system would not work very well if this were not so and I am, therefore, not
concerned that there is a great volume of credit being used. This is, I think,
normal, It is healthy and, indeed, unless there continues to be a rising volume of
bank credit, then we would have good reason to be concerned about the future of
Canada.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, I am not talking about the credit. The point I
would like to make is this: Canada produces a lot. The people of Canada are
working very hard to produce things but once it is produced, when it is finished
—when it is for sale, it is a fact that the people of Canada have to borrow or
to go on finance plans to pay for what they have built and what they have
produced. That is the problem; not the question of credit. It is the fact that
they have to borrow to pay for what they have already produced. That is why
I am asking you if you are satisfied with the money supply in circulation in
Canada. ' {2t
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Mr. SHARP: A short answer to that question is that I am satisfied we have not
suffered from a deficiency of money and credit.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Not of credit but of money. Mr. Sharp, when, you yourself, or
the Bank of Canada decides to increase the money supply which is done almost
every year how do you proceed to increase that money supply?

Mr. Suarp: Mr. Chairman, this dissertation on monetary policy is going to
le_ad us far afield, I can see. If it is agreeable to the Committee I will continue the
dissertation.

Mr. GREGOIRE: I do not want a dissertation.

Mr. LarnLaMME: Mr. Chairman, I do not want to raise a point of order but I
would like to tell my hon. friend, Mr. Grégoire, if he persists in questioning in
this field we might all leave here with the sharpest Social Credit theory we have
ever had.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, if you do not wish to answer you are not obliged
to.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Grégoire is a great friend of mine and a
great— i

The CHAIRMAN: —humanitarian.

Mr. SHARP: And a great humanitarian. I would not want him to think that
there is anything personal in this. I had felt that there might be other things that
the Committee also might wish to question me about. I find this conversation
most stimulating because I very seldom have an opportunity of having a discus-
sion with a Social Crediter. I believe those who follow Social Credit might even
benefit from the remarks that I make. However, I am quite willing to forgo the
pleasure of your education, Mr. Grégoire, unless you persist.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, I would like to point out that—

The CHAIRMAN: There is a very simple way of resolving the matter. The
ordinary period of questioning is 20 minutes and Mr. Grégoire.has taken 15
already. Perhaps we should accord him the opportunity of using his last 5
minutes in a profound study of the views he wishes to question the Minister on,
following which we will go on to another matter.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, may I remind you—and I would not like the
last five minutes to be taken off my 20 minutes—that during the committee
studies of the Bank Act revisions in 1944 and 1954 there were lots of questions
and pages and pages of questions were asked on any subject. There were never
any objections on the part of other members of the committee. I wonder why
Mr. Laflamme, my friend, would like to object to the kind of questioning that
has been put to my good friend, the Minister of Finance.

The CHAIRMAN: I think really Mr. Laflamme was merely attempting to
inject a note of levity into our very serious deliberations, since they are
ordinarily very weighty.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I do not mind, but I am inclined to agree with Mr. Grégoire
that in the 1954 hearings we had very far ranging discussions. FEl

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, could I ask a supplementary?



3002 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS Feb.6,1967

The CHAIRMAN: I think that we should in this regard accord Mr. Grégoire
the same opportunity we accord others in telling us if he wishes to yield and if
he does not—

Mr. GREGOIRE: Well, it depends.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): But it has something to do with Mr. Grégoire's
question.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Oh, yes, I am ready to yield.

Mr. McLeEaN (Charlotte): Mr. Sharp, if you would arrange to put all this
money into supply I would like to know how we would get it—

Mr. SHARP: Mr. McLean, I am sorry I did not hear the question.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): If you were going to increase the money supply
as Mr. Grégoire wants you to how would we get it after it is increased?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, there is nothing easier than to facilitate an
inflationary movement in prices. The history of mankind is full of the history of
governments that did not hesitate to depreciate the currency. This has been a
lIong standing method of financing government expenditures. But I thought in
the modern world we had got a little beyond this and that the purpose of our
activities these days was to promote the general welfare and, therefore, to
promote high levels of employment and income. This cannot be done simply by
printing money. That has been tried many times and it has only one outcome. If I
may say so Social Credit seems to me to be a sophisticated form of inflationary
finance put forward most skilfully by people like Mr. Grégoire. I do not mind
discussing this matter with him and I hope that perhaps while he is trying to
influence me I can influence him to recognize the limitations of the purely
monetary approach to economic questions. It is very easy to increase the money
supply—just print the money. But the people of Canada, I do not think, would
be any better off as a result.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, may I ask a supplementary question. Has the
Minister consulted with the Minister without Portfolio—the member for Daven-
port—who voted for debt free money?

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, since Mr. Sharp made a statement on this
question of inflation, I think that the Minister is wi'ling to have a discussion on
this point. I think it is the only opportunity we have. Outside this Committee the
Minister is much too busy to discuss that problem with me. In the house it is
always out of order so we do not have the opportumty to discuss it. Since the
Minister is ready to discuss it I think we should do it in this Committee even if it
is only after all the other members who have questions to ask have asked their
questions. I can see that the Minister does not understand our point. When he
thinks that we want to print money and put money like this on the market that
is not the point at all. We believe there is inflation when there is too much
money in circulation compared to the production of the country. But as long
as there is not enough money to buy the whole production of a country when it is
needed there is no inflation.

Inflation does not come because of money supply increasing, it comes when
you put too much money in circulation compared to production. That is scientific
because you compare two statistics: the statistics of production and the statistics
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of money supply including the speed of circulation of that money supply. That is
statistical and that is why we say economics is a science and that is only a
question of feeling. That is why I question your argument that we would cause
inflation by putting money in circulation like this. The question is to make it a
scientific solution of quantity of money supply compared to the quantity of
production, taking into consideration the velocity of this money circulation in the
country.

I do not think that is what you said a couple of minutes ago. If you want to
discuss this theory with me in this Committee at the time of the Bank Act
revisions, which I think is the proper time, you have to quote exactly what is
Social Credit and not what Yvon Dupuis or other Liberal candidates cried out
loud two elections ago.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, may I remind Mr. Grégoire that I was brought up
in western Canada where the theories of Social Credit were known almost as
well as the theories of J. M. Keynes. It is not by reason of ignorance of the Social
Credit theory that I take exception to his arguments. I think that the Social
Credit theory is based upon a misunderstanding of the nature of our economic
processes and, therefore, I am not arguing in anything except in the same terms
as he is and I suggest to him that the theories that he is putting forward would
not advance the welfare of the people of Canada. I believe that fundamentally

they are inflationary.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, may I ask you a question.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Grégoire, we will let you ask your question and allow
the minister to reply, and then, I think, as the 20 minute period seems to be on
the verge of going by, we should see if there are other members who have
questions they consider equally important to bring forward.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, I am not in a hurry; I will not even ask this
question; I will wait till the next turn and then, if everybody has asked his
questions and if they are satisfied, I will ask the Minister of Finance some
questions. I am not in a hurry; it might be tomorrow.

An hon. MEMBER: Yes, and the day after.

Mr. GREGOIRE: And the day after. The Minister said he is ready and willing
to discuss it. As we have the opportunity once every ten years, and it is the
first time I have with the Minister of Finance, I am willing.

The CHAIRMAN: I hope that this does not mean you will forgo opportunities
usually available during supply motions and budget debates to reflect those
things,

Mr. GREGOIRE: We do not have opportunities on those occasions. A supply
motion is two days and you know that with the situation where I am, I never
have the opportunity to talk in those two days.

Mr. SHARP: May I, Mr. Chairman, now that I have the copy of the Bank of
Canada Act, read the opening words, which will be a partial answer to Mr.
Grégoire’s question. The preamble says:

Whereas it is desirable to establish a central bank in Canada to

regulate credit and currency in the best interests of the economic life of
the nation, to control and protect the external value of the national
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monetary unit and to mitigate by its influence fluctuations in the general
level of production, trade, prices and employment, so far as may be
possible within the scope of monetary action, and generally to promote
the economic and financial welfare of the Dominion—

Mr. GREGOIRE: That I agree with, but what is in the act after that is not the
same. I agree with the preamble. The preambles are always fine, but the
legislation does not necessarily follow.

Mr. LarLamMME: What would be the “after that” that would have to be
changed.

Mr. GREGOIRE: In this act, I think it would have to be article 72, but I will
come to that in the next period.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I had not intended to ask any questions along
this line tonight, but I am quite surprised at one of the answers that Mr. Sharp
has given to Mr. Grégoire, and I would like to ask him one or two questions
about it. Mr. Sharp, you stated that you have not been concerned about a
deficiency in the money supply during the last year. Does that mean that you
consider a tight money situation such as we have had, has been desirable for
Canada?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, this phrase “tight money” may be subject to
some misinterpretation. If members of the Committee had taken the trouble to
look at the increase in the money supply that has taken place during this last
year, I do not think that they would categorize it as tight money. What has
happened is that there has been such a rapid increase in the demand for money
and credit, that notwithstanding the increases in the money supply that have
taken place, interest rates have risen because the demands were even greater
than the increase in the supply that took place. If it had not been for the actions
of the monetary authorities in keeping the increase in the money supply within
limits, then we should have had an even greater increase in prices.

Mr. THoMPSON: But Mr. Sharp, statistics tell us that we are about 22 per
cent behind in building houses, taking just one section of the economy alone.
That was not because the contractors could not build the houses, or because the
people did not want them; that was because there was no money available to
build those houses. Are you saying that this is a good situation.

Mr. SHarp: No. I am saying that if the demand for funds for other purposes
had not risen as rapidly as it has, there would have been more money available
for housing. One of the most unfortunate aspects of the monetary conditions that
have prevailed throughout the world in the last year or so, and the last few
months in particular, has been that housing has been one of the first casualties,
because the nature of housing demand is such that it cannot compete effectively
with the demands of other people who want money for other purposes. This is an
illustration of the principle that I had been putting forward earlier, of the
attempt to do too much too soon. It was not a shortage of money; it was an
excessive demand during this period.

An hon. MEMBER: Or the 11 per cent sales tax.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I will let the interjection stand now, but that is
not the reason.
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Mr. THOMPSON: In this regard for example, our budget for 1965 was just
under $8 billion and the expenditure for 1966 is going to be in the proximity of
$10 billion. With an increase like this in the neighbourhood of 20 per cent on
federal government expenditure alone, which apparently was essential, other-
wise you would never have allowed such expenditure increase, you still say that
you are not ¢oncerned about money supply. I do not find that satisfactory, but be
that as it may, let us take 1965 as an example. The national income for 1965 was
just below $38 billion; that is the money Canadians earned by salaries, divi-
dends, commission, sale of produce, whatever it was. Now the GNP for that year
was just over $52 billion. The market value of consumable goods and services
was somewhere between the two figures. An estimate would put it at about $44
billion. Do you think that this is a good situation, where the national earnings of
Canadians are that much below the production of consumable goods and serv-
ices?

Mr. SHARP: There is something wrong with that particular statistical com-
putation. It would not matter how high production had been; there would still
have been that difference. I think sometimes that Social Crediters in particular
are bemused by these national account figures, and read into them a significance
that is not there.

Mr. THoMPSON: Let me ask this question. Would you not agree that it would
be desirable for the economy if the supply of money in the economy were
adequate to bring the level of the income of Canadians up to the fair market
value of the consumable goods and services produced?

Mr. SHARP: Mr, Chairman, in the national accounts, the value of the gross
national product is exactly equal to the gross national expenditure.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Because we borrow.

Mr. THOMPSON: Because you borrow.

Mr. SHARP: Let us be quite clear about this, so that there is no misunder-
standing, that these two figures are identities.

Mr. THOMPSON: They are identities, because you make up a lack through the
debt system.

Mr. SHARP: No, they are just identities. The sum of all the money that is
paid out in order to produce goods, is exactly equal to the total sum of the value
of the goods themselves. This is an identity; it cannot be anything else. There is
no gap, although sometimes the statisticians make some little errors so something
is added for a balance.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Sharp, do not tell us that the factors which make up
GNP are all consumable goods and services. You know that they are not.

Mr. SHARP: Oh, no, some of them are machinery.

Mr. THOMPSON: They have no relation to it whatever.

Mr. SHARP: The gross national expenditure, the total amount of money
which is spent is exactly equal to the value of the total amount produced. This is
an identity; this is exactly how the national accounts are made up; like double
entry bookkeeping. ;
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Mr. THOMPSON: May I ask you this question. Is the prosperity of the nation,
the well-being of our economy dependent then upon a debt system, as we
operate now, in your opinion? This follows out of what you have said.

Mr. SHARP: I do not think that there is anything wrong with a debt system.
Mr. GREGOIRE: Except the service charges, $1,200 million this year.
An hon. MEMBER: What did you pay for your house?

Mr. SHARP: The debt system is a perfectly normal part of any system; it
would be normal, I think, in a socialist system, perhaps not in a social credit
system. There is nobody in the world that has experimented with one. A few
misguided countries have gone in for socialism, but none for Social Credit.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, it is nice to make light of these things, and if
the economy of Canada were functioning as effectively as it should, we might be
in a position to make light of some of these topics, but I am not sure that it is.
Another thing that disturbs me, Mr. Sharp—you brought on these questions
yourself—is that you talk about depreciating currency. Are you satisfied that the
present deflation of money, owing to the inflation of the cost of living, is a
satisfactory and desirable situation?

Mr. SHARP: No, and I spend a good deal of my time trying to keep these
inflationary tendencies in control, and I get criticized a good deal for trying, but
within limits we have a useful effect. Nothing would please me more than to see
a world economy in which prices did not rise over-all. I am not one of those who
believe that it is necessary to have rising prices in order to have prosperity and
rising production. I believe that we ought always to be aiming at stability of the
general price level; not individual prices, of course.

Mr. THoMPSON: Mr. Sharp, do you believe that governmental expenditure
should not increase faster than the value of the productivity of the economy,
as far as ratio is concerned?

Mr. SHARP: I do not understand the question; I am sorry.

Mr. THoMPSON: I am speaking now about the increase of federal government
expenditure in 1966 over 1965 of between 17 and 20 per cent, where our gross
national profit increase, allowing for the increase in cost, is about 4 per cent. Do
you think that that is a good proportion. You say that you have done everything
that you can to avoid these inflationary measures, and yet you in your first
budget are responsible for increasing the budget up to 17 to 20 per cent over the
year before when the productivity of the nation has increased perhaps 4 per cent.

Mr. SHARP: Fortunately, the productivity increased by about 6% per cent.
Mr. THoMmPSON: Allowing for the increase in the cost.

Mr. SHARP: And the total government expenditure went up relatively faster
than output, because the people of this country, as represented by all of us
sitting around this board, have felt it desirable to extend the scope of
government spending. These are decisions that we make.

Mr. THOMPSON: Do not include everybody in that, please.

Mr. SuArp: At any rate, parliament approved increases in expenditures. We
did not approve everything that every party wanted to do, but we did increase
expenditures, because we felt that the Canadian people wanted these services.
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_ Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes, but when the interest on the debt increased by $150
million or $125 million, do you think the people accept that increase in that
department? And is it not a consequence of your debt system?

Mr. SHARP: I think it is most important that the government should pay
?heir debts, and should pay interest when they borrow money. And I think there
1s a very good argument from time to time for adding to the public debt. I do not
believe that this is going to destroy the country. But I do think that we should
try to avoid increases in debt when the country is in a position to pay cash for
the services that it requires.

Mr. THoMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I do not want to carry on an argument. I
just wanted to get Mr. Sharp’s statements on some of these things and I think we
have them now. That is good enough. It is hopeless.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I have a short supplemen-
tary question, Mr. Sharp. I was rather interested in the connection that Mr.
Thompson saw between government expenditures and the gross national product
and the suggestion that there should be a determined ratio between the two.

Mr. THOMPSON: What is the increase, approximately, in mills?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): This is just the point I
want to come to. Would it not be correct to say, Mr. Sharp, that increases in
government expenditures are in the main efforts to reallocate our resources in
the way in which the government considers is most desirable for our society. Is
this one of the purposes of much of government expenditure?

Mr. SHARP: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would only amend that slightly to say that
parliament rather than government wishes to see that accomplished. That is one
of the functions of government expenditure. The proportion of total government
expenditures by all Canadian governments, provincial, municipal and federal,
has been rising a bit in terms of its proportion of the gross national product, but
it is a much larger gross national product. Even if the proportion has risen a bit
there is still in the hands of Canadians generally more money free of taxes to
spend for their own purposes. I do not believe that small increase in the
broportion of the GNP going to governments is necessarily a bad thing. I think it
does represent some redistribution of incomes in favour of those who need
services that most of us would like to see them have.

Mr. THoMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I would challenge the statement that Mr.
Sharp has just made that there is more money in the hands of Canadians to
spend even after the increase in government expenditure because statistics do
not bear it out. I would like to see you produce it—

Mr. SHARP: I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that if you would like to have some
evidence on this point it can easily be produced.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Even if it were not, Mr.
Sharp, is this not rather irrelevant? Is not the decision on what proportion of the
gross national product is spent on these things a matter of policy, whether or not
it is wise to replace in some instances private expenditure by what I might call
communal expenditure—removing some of the burdens of private expenditure
from individuals and spreading them across the community?

Mr. SHARP: Yes, I agree with that statement.
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Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, even if government expenditures are increasing,
do you not think that Canada could afford to increase the building of houses
which the people of Canada need and are able to build? Do you not think the
Minister of Finance should find a way in which to carry out this construction
when there is such a need for houses? The minister has the potentiality in the
wealth of the country and the manpower is ready and able to build those houses;
therefore, the government of Canada should see that it is done. Do you agree that
this increase in government expenditures should not prevent these homebuilding
projects on a large scale?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, it has not been the increase in government
expenditure that has interfered with the building of houses. It has been the
demands for money both by business and by government that has competed with
the housebuilders for mortgage funds. In the circumstances of this past year, the
housebuilding industry has suffered. The government has recognized this and is
taking steps to adjust it because we believe that a larger supply of housing is
very desirable. We have taken a number of steps—one of them I hope we are
taking in this Bank Act—to make available another source of mortgage finance
on a more widespread basis for the people of Canada.

Mr. LATULIPPE: Sir, you say that it is—

The CHAIRMAN: May I just interrupt here. The next name on my list, Mr.
Latulippe, followed by Mr. Lambert. Before recognizing Mr. Latulippe, I think
we have to clarify one point. As you recall, at the beginning of our meeting we
agreed to hear Messrs. Coyne and Stevens tomorrow afternoon beginning at four
o’clock. It may well be that we will not complete our questioning of the minister
this evening and perhaps we should inquire whether he can be back with us
tomorrow morning at 11 am. with a view to attempting to complete our
discussion.

Mr. SHARP: If the Committee would like to have me I am quite sure I can
arrange my schedule.

The CaairMAN: While it is true we have unique opportunities here, which in
theory should not be limited to discussing these wide ranging matters with the
Minister, at the same time we do have certain obligations to the house and, if it is
a fact that there is some continued intention to attempt to prorogue on the 10th
of March, we have a special obligation to give the house, an opportunity to deal
with this matter before prorogation. I am not saying I am necessarily enthusias-
tic about the March 10 prorogation date but in this regard we are servants of the
house, so we might keep™his in mind with respect to deciding the urgency and
priority of our questions.

Mr. GREGOIRE: May I ask a supplementary question?

(Translation)
The CHAIRMAN: You could ask leave of Mr. Latulippe. . .Mr. Grégoire?

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, you said that these housebuilding projects were
not able to proceed because demands were so high in other fields. I think that is
what you said. Do you think that, if we had had the money, we could have built
those houses in addition to all the other projects that were put forward and
built. Do you not think it is a question of money either than the question of other
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things being buildt? Do you not think we would have been able to do both at the
same time if we had the money, the need and the people to work on them?

(English)

Mr. Suarp: No, I do not think so. Indeed, there were many commercial
brojects that had to be postponed as a result of inability to proceed last year so I
cannot agree with the statement that it would have been possible to do every-
thing we wanted to do.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Was it a lack of raw material?
Mr. SHARP: Labour, raw material, time.

Mr. GREGOIRE: If you need labour, Mr. Minister, may I suggest an address,
the employment office in my constituency. You will find people there who are
willing to work in construction.

Mr. LAMBERT: Are they prepared to go to Edmonton and Calgary?

. Mr. GREGOIRE: Well, we need houses in Quebec too. Quebec is not progress-
Ing as rapidly as other provinces.

Mr. LAMBERT: The demand is as great in other provinces.

‘ Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes, and it is just as great in my province so why should we
go to Alberta when there is a great demand in Quebec?

(Translation)

The CHAIRMAN: I think we should recognize Mr. Latulippe and give him the
opportunity to ask his questions.

Mr. LaturippeE: Mr. Chairman, I wish to thank you for your kindness in
recognizing me. Just a few questions I would like to direct to the Honourable
Minister. My questions concern reserves, cash reserves and secondary reserves.

On this subject Section 59, Chapter XII, of the Chartered Bank Act, men-
tions that Banks are obliged to maintain reserves, according to the Canadian
Bank Act, of no less than 5 per cent of their requirements for deposits in
Canadian dollars. The reserves consist in deposits with the Bank of Canada and
in bank notes held by the Bank:

This appears in the revised Statutes of Canada for 1952, Chapter XII, Page
317.

Now, in 1954, Section 71; This money reserve is raised from 5 to 8 per cent.
And more confusing explanations are given on how to calculate the cash reserve
in relation to the deposits payable in Canadian currency.

In 1967, Clause 72 of Bill C-222 mentions rates of 12 per cent and of 4 per
cent for deposits payable on demand and deposits paid after notice in Canadian
currency. Moreover, sub-clause 2 is sub-divided into two paragraphs and, sub-
clause 3 is also divided in three paragraphs. These require secondary reserves
over and above the four primary reserves at different rates of 12 per cent, 4 per
cent and 8 per cent of the whole for different periods of time.

Why is it, Mr. Minister, why is everything so complicated when it would be
So easy to say we will set a rate of 7 per cent, or 8 per cent or more and stop
complicating things to a point where it is practically impossible to understand.
Why, Mr. Minister, do we not have clearer clauses so that c1t1zens will not be
mixed up with text becoming harder to understand?
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(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, the main purpose of the amendments we are
proposing is to influence the activities of the chartered banks. I think they
understand the regulations very well and that it is not necessary to oversimplify
them for their purposes. The changes that we suggested in the cash ratios are
intended to influence the banks in a particular direction and I believe they are in
the general interest and will result in lending practices and other activities of the
banks that will improve their ability to serve the Canadian people. I do not think
they are overcomplicated, and certainly the banks will understand them very
well indeed.

(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: Banks understand them, but the citizen has a hard time
understanding them. It is not only the banks that should understand them and I
find things are so complicated that one cannot say for sure what the rate will be.

You say it might be 7 per cent, it can go to 8, it could vary. So, why not set a
truly definitive and easily understood rate and mention some figure, but some-
thing that would be clear. These things are getting always harder to understand,
the people are getting mixed up and it is difficult to understand all these clauses.
Now, perhaps, the Minister might bring in an amendment to the Act and say
whether it will be 7 per cent but these rates of whether it is 12 per cent, 4 per
cent or 8 per cent should be removed and the rate of 7 per cent decided on. It
would seem to me clearer and more logical for the people who have difficulty
understanding such matters.

Now, Mr. Minister, what do you understand by cash and what do you
understand by Canadian money? Can you give us a definition?

On many occasions, I have asked to have this definition from people who
appeared before you, and never got an answer. I never could get the definition,
so I am asking you to give us this definition. What is cash and what is Canadian
money? What do you understand by cash, what do you understand by Canadian
money? That is my question.

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, as far as the banks are concerned, they under-
stand cash to be Bank of Canada notes or deposits in the Bank of Canada. From
their point of view that is cash, broadly speaking. As far as I am concerned,
Canadian money has many meanings. It can mean the notes I have in my pocket
or the deposit that I have in the chartered bank; that is all money as far as I am
concerned and it is all Canadian money. Banks understand what cash means.
Cash is what they have and do not earn anything on and they must understand
that very clearly and try to keep the ratio between their cash and earning assets
as low as possible. That is the whole purpose of banking as I understand it.

(Translation)

Mr. LaTurippE: Now, Mr. Minister, you have defined cash and Canadian
money, would it be too indiscreet to ask you the total of the money supply, what
does it amount to in Canada?

(English)
Mr. SHARP: The money supply has been defined by economists in various
ways. It usually consists of the money available to individuals and corporations
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in the form of deposits and cash in their tills or in their pockets. It usually
includes demands and notice deposits; it usually includes comage, and it usually
includes Bank of Canada bills. This is the general way in which the money
Supply is defined. There will be some economists here who will quibble a bit
about the exact definitions but I think in general that is what it is.

Mr. GREGOIRE: The total of Bank of Canada notes, and Canadian dollars
deposited in the banks.

Mr. SuARP: I suppose you could include coinage too, in part.
Mr. GREGOIRE: Do you include deposits in trust companies or a saving bank?

Mr. SHARP: This is one of the reasons why I say the economists might
quibble a bit. Because of the expansion of the activities of these other deposit
taking institutions, some economists might be inclined to include the deposits
that are available in these trust and loan companies as being part of the money
Supply and I would not disagree with that. I would think that that is probably so.

(Translation)

Mr. Laturipre: And now, Mr. Minister, you have defined cash and Canadian
money. Would it be too indiscreet to ask you, what does the money supply
amount to in Canada? We were talking about money supply awhile ago, what
does it amount to in Canada?

(English)

Mr. SuARP: To the extent that people have deposits, wherever they are
located, whether they are in a chartered bank or a trust and loan company or a
caisse populaire, and they can spend them, they can go in and get the money and
Spend it, it is part of the money supply that is available for spending. But as I
say there may be differences of degree as to how accessible some of that money
is, depending upon whether notice has to be given, but apart from those refine-

ments, I think it would all be part of the money supply.

(Translation)

) Mr. LatuLippe: Do the assets of the Caisses Populaires and other financial
Institutions form part of the money supply?

(English)
Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I do not carry these figures around in my head.

(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: We can conclude then, although you did not say it @n‘so
many words, that the total of the money supply would be about 21 billion
dollars. Are my figures accurate?

(English)

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps Mr. Sharp could check on the answer to this
question.
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(Translation)

Mr. LatuLippE: Mr. Chairman, if there only about 3 billion, presently, in
coin and paper money created by the Bank of Canada, could you tell us who
created the other 18 billion that go to make up this money supply of 21 billion?

(English)

Mr. SHARP: The process of credit creation is a familiar one. The banks make
loans. The proceeds are left on deposit with the banks. They become part of the
money supply. That is one way in which they are created. I think it is a familiar
method and I gather it is one of the methods that the Social Crediters always
seize upon as being unnatural.

Mr. GREGOIRE: No, we do not say that. Where is MacIntosh?

(Translation)

Mr. LaturLippE: Would you not agree that if the people’s government has the
power to create the first 3 billion in paper money or coin, they should be able to
use this power to create the other 18 billion required for our national economy?

(English)

Mr. SHARP: A short answer, Mr. Speaker, is because we consider the present
system to be superior to the one in which all the money would be in the form of
Bank of Canada notes or otherwise created by the government itself.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Well, it is not necessary to have all the money in Bank of
Canada notes. As you say, it could be in the form of credit money.

(Translation)

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe.

Mr. LaTtuLippE: I have a few more questions. It won’t take very long.

The CHAIRMAN: You still have seven minutes to ask your interesting ques-
tions.

Mr. LaTurippe: I will change the subject. I will turn to another subject

which also concerns the banking system. The Minister has already alluded to
inner reserves. I would like to ask him whether he has any idea of the amount of

inner reserves in 1963?

(English)
Mr. SHARP: Yes; I am kept informed about inner reserves.

(Translation)

Mr. LaTuLippE: Would it be possible to divulge them? Or would this be
indiscreet?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe, this question could better be asked after the
Act has been passed by Parliament. It will be easy to ask it next year.

Mr. LatuLipPE: Why do you allow banks and other financial institutions or
large corporations to have “indiscreet’ reserves?

The CHAIRMAN: Are you speaking of inner reserves? Reserves must indeed
be discreet. It is the public reserves that are indiscreet. Are you referring to
hidden reserves of financial institutions?
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Mr, LaTuLIppE: If you do not accept the word “indiscreet” then let us say
“hidden”’,

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, the subject of hidden reserves is covered in the
amendments to the Bank Act. We hope to make them less than discreet in the
future by revealing them to the population at large.

(Translation)
Mr, LaTurippe: Could you tell us, Sir, if all large corporations are submitted
to the same regulations? Do they all have inner reserves?

(English)
Mr. Suarp: Mr. Speaker, in so far as the Income Tax Department can
_ manage it, they have to reveal all their reserves and they are permitted to have
reserves only for certain specified purposes, such as, reserves against losses, or
against payment of taxes, or for purposes of adding security to their operations,
and so on. There are many categories of reserves. I think that banks are the only
group of our large corporations that have up until now enjoyed special privi-
leges in reserves.

Mr. ELDERKIN: And insurance and trust companies.

Mr. SHARP: Oh, insurance companies and trust companies, yes; I am sorry. It
has only been financial companies that have had special regulations permitting
Special reserves which have been, I understand, given because of the special
character of the obligation of financial corporations. It is to ensure that these
financial institutions shall always be able to honour their obligations that we
give them some special reserves against these risks.

(Translation)
Mr. LaTtuLippE: Would it be illogical to allow other institutions to have
reserves or accumulate similar reserves?

The CHAIRMAN: I think, Mr. Latulippe, your very interesting question does
not relate to our Parliamentary terms of reference, because we are not dealing
with companies in general but only with financial institutions.

Mr. LaTuLippe: I know, but the other institutions also have rights. They also
have the right to put aside certain reserves to provide for misfortune or certain
accumulating losses, and there are many corporations who make losses by going
bankrupt and they are not allowed to have such reserves. It would seem that
society and the individual are not protected. If you protect some people you must
also protect others. Everyone lives together and if there were no people, if there
were no other companies, there would not be any banks, either. Society is what
keeps the banks going. So I think that indirectly, corporations or institutions in
society should have at least an equivalent reserve they could accumulate to look

after bad losses, or bad periods.

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I am sure it is obvious why financial institutions
have had the privilege of these special reserves. It is because of their relationship
to the public. Banks accept deposits. The public must feel that they will always

25698—3
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get their money back that is on deposit. Insurance companies sell insurance
policies and sometimes have to make payments to policyholders. Trust compa-
nies accept deposits.

These financial institutions stand in a special relationship to the public. In
other words, they are not like a manufacturing company that is turning out
automobiles. Such a company has no responsibility except to turn out an
automobile. But a bank is accepting deposits, paying them out, and there must
always be confidence that the banks will honor their obligations and the people
will be able to get their savings or their deposits back on demand without any
question whatever.

(Translation)
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe, do you have any other questions, because
your time has expired?

Mr. LAaTuLIPPE: I still have some questions, Mr. Chairman, which I will ask
later. But before I pass, I would like to ask the Minister why, if financial
institutions have to have certain reserves to provide for certain anomalies and
things that might come up in business, the private companies should not also
have the right to accumulate some reserves to provide for bad debts, because if
the public is not protected, the banks will not be either. The public certainly has
the right to have some reserves and is more subject to loss than the banks.
According to statistics, the banks lose % of 1 per cent and I know people and
companies who have lost 10, 12 and 15 per cent. I have not known any
companies who lost but 1 per cent. Corporations lose a lot more than the banks
do, that is why I think that they have a right to accumulate certain reserves to
provide for these situations.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe, I would like to bring something to your
attention. I think that it is in order for accountants, even if companies don’t
insist on it, to have certain reserves against losses. Legislation governing corpo-
rations in various provinces, in some cases, requires them to have certain
reserves, so the interesting point you raise is already accepted in the business
world.

(English)

Mr. Sharp, do you feel that I have clarified that aspect.

Mr. SHARP: Yes, you did it very well, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Having received that accolade, perhaps Mr.
Latulippe, your period has expired.
(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: Do I have a few more minutes, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: Only if the group is willing to stay for a few more minutes.
You could perhaps start again after another member of the Committee has asked
his questions, tomorrow morning.

Mr. LATULIPPE: I only have one more question.
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_ The CHAIRMAN: Just one question? This would enable Mr. Latulippe, to
finish and we could start tomorrow morning at 11.00 a.m. with Mr. Lambert who
also has some interesting questions to ask.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe would you like to ask your last question.

Mr. LatuLippi: Could you tell us, Sir, how it is that in a country such as
Canada having extraordinary resources in natural wealth, manpower, and uni-
versity graduates, has to borrow foreign capital to develop these same resources
and make them available to its citizens?

(English)
dl;l[r. SHARP: The short answer is because our savings are not adequate to our
needs.
Mr. GREGOIRE: Or because income tax takes all our savings.
Mr. SHARP: That is a form of compulsory saving.
The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps, we may discuss that aspect of it with Mr. Benson

at some later date.

May I suggest that it will now be in order for this meeting to adjourn until
11 o’clock tomorrow morning when we will continue with the Minister. I think
Mr. Lambert will be first on the list at that time, followed by Mr. Gilbert, with
the understanding that we will reserve any questions we may have on the West
Bank issue until after we have heard from Messrs. Coyne and Stevens in the
afternoon and evening.

This meeting is adjourned.
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APPENDIX «SS»

THE CANADIAN BANKERS’ ASSOCIATION
President’s Office

Toronto 1, Ontario
February 6, 1967

Herb Gray, Esq., M.P.,

Chairman, Standing Committee on
Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs,

Parliament Buildings,

Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Mr. Gray:

We had hoped to be able to discuss Section 91 of Bill C-222 in the same
detail as other sections during our appearance before the Committee last Tues-
day but were forced to curtail our presentation by the fact that it was quite late
in the evening when the item arose. We therefore make this further submission
in writing in the hope that you and your fellow members of the Committee will
consider its contents in the course of your final deliberations on the Bill.

At the outset we would repeat our firmly held conviction that the many
arguments that have been advanced for removal of the ceiling are just as
applicable today as they will be at any time in the future. And all the major
witnesses before your Committee have accepted the principle of ultimate remo-
val. One of the most important among these in our opinion was the Canadian
Federation of Agriculture, which, after sustained opposition over a long period of
years, now supports repeal.

Immediate removal would bring into the scope of bank lending a range of
risks for which credit is either not available at all or is available from other
lenders only at rates perhaps twice the level that would prevail once the banks
were free to compete. To many borrowers the banks would be able to bring
benefits comparable to those they have provided to over 2 million Canadians
through their active participation in the field of personal loans.

Also, the pressure to find revenues from borrowers through other sources
would be relieved immediately. Rising administrative and money costs have
tended to narrow th@ spread between expenses and revenues in the lending
operations of thé banks, and with more advanced costing procedures the banks
are attempting to allocate expenses more fairly between their customers. How-
ever this development need not militate against the objective that the rate of
interest on a loan be as nearly as possible on an ‘“all inclusive” basis. The real
obstacle to this goal is the interest ceiling, and the sooner it is removed the
sooner the goal will be reached.

Turning to the formula for removal of the ceiling, we must state our views
that, while in its conception it is rather ingenious, it has very serious practical
disadvantages.

You will recall that Section 91 of Bill C-222 provides that the ceiling will be
set for six months at a time at a level 1§ per cent above the average of short term

!
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government bond yields calculated in a preceding fixed quarterly period. (91(3)
and (7)). You will also recall that whenever the average of such short term rates
In any period of three month falls below 4% per cent of the ceiling will expire in
the immediately following month. (91(9)).

The effect of this formula is that the ceiling may move upward if short term
rates rise, but it will also move down again as short term rates decline and will
not fully come off until it is back down again approximately to where it is now.

This formula leaves many uncertainties. There is no certainty as to the level
of rates that may be anticipated under it. There is no certainty as to the duration
of the downward adjustment. There is no certainty as to when the ceiling may
eventually come off. It is only reasonable to assume that the banks will be very
reluctant to institute any new lending policies under such completely unpredict-
able circumstances.

There is the added practical difficulty that with the recent decline in short
term bonds rates the initial ceiling is more likely to be 6% per cent or even 6}
per cent, rather than the level of 74 per cent as now calculated.

If a transitional provision is to be retained, we would urge that it embody at
least three features:

1. An initial step that will provide sufficient room for the desired
degree of diversity in bank lending and the desired use of the rate of
interest to the fullest extent as the inclusive cost of the loan to the
borrower. This should be at least 1 per cent.

2. An assured upward progress towards complete removal. This will
permit new policies to be introduced by the banks in a planned and logical
development.

3. The total duration of the transitional period should be certain. A
transitional device should provide a firmer bridge to the future than that
now proposed.

. There are several improvements that could be adopted singly or in combina-
tion to obtain these objectives.

Within the present formula, for example, it could be provided that rather
'Cl}an decline with reducing short term rates the ceiling could remain at the
highest level reached under the formula until the removal device operated. (The
disadvantage of this proposal is that if present short term bond rates persist the
ceiling would be a very low one throughout.) The termination of the transitional
period could also be hastened by raising the present base point to 5 per cent
rather than 4} per cent as we recommended in our hearings. A modification of
this proposal, designed to prevent the ceiling from becoming “stuck” at a low
level over a long period, might be that the ceiling be removed any time after a
year or more if the short term bond yield was then down to 5 per cent measured
as now provided for in Section 91.

An alternative, which recognizes that any formula must have some arbitrary
element in it, would be an adaptation of that proposed by one of your witnesses.
This would be an arbitrary annual increase of possibly 1 per cent in the first
year, followed by increases of 3 per cent for two or three further years,
following which the ceiling would be removed. As a supplement to a fixed
Number of years the removal device now embodied in Section 91 might be left to
Operate to effect earlier repeal if the formula would so provide.
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All of the above is respectfully submitted to assist yourself and your
colleagues in their concluding deliberations on Bill C-222. We would take this
opportunity to express to the Committee our appreciation for the courteous and
attentive hearing of our views in your public sessions and for the further
opportunity of submitting the above comments.

Yours sincerely,

Original signed by
S. T. Paton
President
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ORDER OF REFERENCE
TuESDAY, February 7, 1967.
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bg substituted for those of Messrs. Munro and Macaluso on the Standing Com-
Mittee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs.

LEON-J. RAYMOND,
The Clerk of the House of Commons.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TuUESDAY, February 7, 1967.
(89)
The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
11.05 a.m. this day, the Vice-Chairman, Mr. Laflamme, presiding.

’Members present: Messrs. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
Chrétien, Davis, Flemming, Fulton, Gilbert, Irvine, Laflamme, Lambert, Latu-

lippe, Lind, McLean (Charlotte), Monteith, More (Regina City), Munro—(15).

Also present: Messrs. Baldwin, Grégoire, Macdonald (Rosedale) and
O’Keefe.

In attendance: The Honourable Mitchell Sharp, Minister of Finance; Mr. C.
5% Elderkin, Special Adviser, Department of Finance; Mr. Denis Baribeau, re-

Search assistant.

The Committee resumed consideration of the banking legislation.

The Minister was questioned, and was assisted by Mr. Elderkin.

There being no further questions at this time, the witnesses retired, subject
to recall.

At 12.00 noon the Committee adjourned until 4.00 p.m. this day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(90)

The Committee resumed at 4.10 p.m., the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Messrs. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichdn-The Islands),
t, Gray, Irvine, Laflamme,

McLean (Charlotte), Mon-

Members present:
Chrétien, Coates, Davis, Flemming, Fulton, Gilber
L§mbert, Latulippe, Lind, Macdonald (Rosedale),
teith, More (Regina City), Valade, Wahn—(19).

Also present: Messrs. Aiken, Chatterton, Grégoire, Macaluso, Munro, Rock,
Sherman and Thompson.

In attendance: Messrs. James E. Coyne, President, Bank of Western Canada;
Sinclair M. Stevens, President, British International Fipance (Canada) Limited;

. E. Scott, Inspector General of Banks; and Mr. Baribeau.

Mr. Coyne was called.

On motion of Mr. Laflamme, seconded by Mr. Fulton,

Resolved,—That Treasury Board Minute 658534, concerning the Bank of
Western Canada be included in this day’s Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence,
and copies distributed to the members of the Committee. (See Appendix TT).
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On motion of Mr. Coates, seconded by Mr. Laflamme,

Resolved,—That copies of a statement by Mr. Coyne, issued at Winnipeg on
February 3, 1967, be distributed to members of the Committee and that the
statement be included in this day’s Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence. (See
Appendix UU).

At the request of the Chairman, Mr. Coyne made an opening statement
concerning the relationships of the Bank of Western Canada and British Inter-
national Finance (Canada) Limited, and was questioned.

At 6.00 p.m., the questioning continuing, the Committee adjourned until
8.00 p.m. this day.

EVENING SITTING
(91)
The Committee resumed at 8.05 p.m., the Chairman, Mr, Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Basford, Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The
Islands), Chrétien, Coates, Flemming, Fulton, Gilbert, Gray, Irvine, Lambert,
Latulippe, Lind, Mackasey, Macdonald (Rosedale), McLean (Charlotte), Mon-
teith, More (Reginal City), Valade, Wahn—(19).

Also present: Messrs. Aiken, Grégoire, Lewis, Munro, Otto, Richard and
Thompson.

In atendance: The same as at the afternoon sitting.
Questioning of Mr. Coyne was continued.

After a time, Mr. Coyne was discharged, subject to recall.
Mr. Stevens was called, made a statement and was questioned.

At 11.05 p.m., the Committee adjourned until 3.45 p.m., Wednesday, Feb-
ruary 8, 1967.
Dorothy F. Ballantine,

Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
TuespaY, February 7, 1967.

The VIcE-CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I now see a quorum and I call this
meeting to order.

b It was decided at the adjournment last evening that the first speaker would
e Mr. Lambert. I invite him to address his questions to the Minister.

Mr. LamserT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It had not been my purpose to
continue the fascinating oscillations between Mr. Thompson and Mr. Grégoire
and Mr. Latulippe at the opposite poles with the odd dip in towards Mr. Cameron
somewhere, not in the centre but, I should say, somewhere in, the left sector of
the discussion.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Say that again.

Mr. LaMBERT: This was the nature of the discussion last night but I propose,
Mr. Chairman, something that I would like to be able to do with the Minister
throughout the bill, and that is to proceed from the beginning of the bill to
€xamine certain sections, concerning which prior witnesses—primarily the In-
spector General of Banks and the Governor of the Bank of Canada—indicated
that it was not within their jurisdiction or competence to comment on policy. I
would not want to start examining the policy considerations for the amendments
that have been proposed by the government in this bill.

The VicE-CHAIRMAN: I think this is appropriate, Mr. Lambert.

Mr. LaMBERT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

First of all, with regard to clause 2, the Definitions clause, subclause (1)g,
some difficu'ty was experienced at the time of Mr. Elderkin’s explanations of the
changes as to the definition of a farm. I was wondering whether the Minister
could indicate whether, since Mr. Elderkin’s appearance before the Committee in
OCtOber, there has been any determination of what is meant by a farm. This
refers to subclauses (g) and (h) on page 2. It seem to me that there must have

een some sort of yardstick in the contemplation of the framers of the bill, and of
the amendment that is consequent upon or tied in with subclause (g), as to
what is meant by a farm. Is it two acres? Is it five acres? Is it like the census,
based on a minimum return from the production of agricultural or animal
Products?

Mr. C. F. ELDERKIN (Special Adviser, Department of Finance): If I may
take it just for a moment, Mr. Lambert, I think this problem was put up to Dr.
Ollivier and he gave a rather learned and expansive explanation of what, in his
Opinion, legislation up to date had considered a farm to be. I think his conclusion
Was that he could not go very much farther than that in making a definition.

3023



3024 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS Feb. 7,1967

Mr. LAMBERT: I am faced with the problem that because of the changes in
clause 88(5) it is becoming very important to define what is a farm, and crops
growing or produced upon the farm. For instance, with regard to bee-keeping
referred to in subclause 2(1) (h) is it the keeping of ten hives that would
classify you as a bee farmer for the purposes of this bill? Is it the keeping of two
dairy cows, or 15 head of beef stock that you are raising on, perhaps, an acre
under very intensive farming operation conditions? What is meant by a farm?
This becomes very important under clause 88 (5).

Hon. M. SHARP (Minister of Finance): Mr. Chairman, perhaps Mr. Lambert
could give us an outline of what he considers the practical problems that arise in
this connection. The banks are making loans. Is it that the banks would have
difficulty in deciding what was a farm?

Mr. LamMBERT: No, it might not but, on the other hand, the priorities to be
established or varied by clause 88 (5) refer to crops growing or produced upon
the farm. If a man is a farmer, I presume he has a certain status, or if those
goods are produced on a farm they have a particular status under clause 88 (5).
But if they are not so produced, or if the man is not so operating, then he has not
got that status. Within the terms of this bill, a man’s priorities, his legal rights
and liabilities, are determined by the meanings fixed by the act, not by some-
thing extraneous.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Mr. Lambert, I cannot see any reference in clause 88 (5) to a
farm.

Mr. LAMBERT: Well, it is in connection with priorities granted to—

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes, but there is no reference to a farm. It just says
“products of the soil from land owned or leased”.

Mr. LAMBERT: Yes, but there is also a reference to farm. It is brought in,
otherwise, you would not have that new definition.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It is subclause (1) (¢) of
clause 2.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Oh, yes, I agree back there. I have only reference to clause
88(5) which Mr. Lambert mentioned.

If T might quote Dr. Ollivier, he said that he thought you would get into
more difficulty in trying to define a farm than you would leaving it as it is.

Mr. LAMBERT: I think the minister does appreciate the problem that I am
raising and if it is the decision to leave it in a rather inchoate and uncertain
situation, then that is the decision.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I am inclined to agree that any effort to define a
farm would be even more difficult than operating under the section without a
definition, because if you are going to attempt to define a farm the complications
would be enormous.

Mr. LAMBERT: You see the reason that I also tie it in is under subclause (2)
of clause 2. There is a reference back to subclause (1) (g) of clause 2.

Mr. SHARP: May I ask this question, Mr. Elderkin. Have there been any
problems arising out of having these kind of provisions in the act up until now?
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Mr. ELDERKIN: Not that I have ever heard of.

Mr. LAMBERT: All right then, I will leave it at that.

I proceed, then, to clause 8 and this is the question of the method of incor-
Portation and organization of branches. Bill No. C-102 envisages an entirely dif-
fere'nt system, the issuance of letters patent on approval by the Cabinet and then
subject to a contrary petition signed by a minimum number of members in the
House. Since this was a government decision, and since the Minister of Finance
was then a member of the administration and apparently approved of Bill No.
C‘_l(_)z, would the Minister please indicate the reason for the return to the
original system.

Mr. SHARP: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I am happy to try to respond to Mr.
Lambert’s question.

This was a change of mind on the part of the ministers. I recommended to
my colleagues that we should revert to the present practice of having applica-
tions go before Parliament for charters. In the light of the developments that had
takfln place during succeeding months, it seemed to me that it still remains very
desirable that Parliament should have an opportunity of cross-examining the
sponsors of chartered banks. This is an important privilege granted by Parlia-
m81:1t and I believe that the sponsors of the bank should come forward, show
their capacity, their financial position and their intent and, if I may say so, I
think events in connection with the application for the Bank of Western Canada
is some evidence that this is a salutary proceeding. If anything, my views and
the views of my colleagues are confirmed on this point.

Mr. LaMeerT: In other words, it has now been realized that there have been
far too many long range political implications in the system that is advocated
under Bill No. C-102.

Mr. SHARP: Yes, I feel that the public interest is better served if the sponsors-
of banks are required to appear before Parliament to demonstrate their capacity
to carry on the banking business.

Mr. LamserT: Is it fair to say, then, that the method envisaged in Bill No.
C-102 perhaps was a mistake in the light of circumstances involving both the
Bank of British Columbia and the Bank of Western Canada?

_ Mr. Suare: I am inclined to believe that if the bill had been approved in its
original form there would have been some reason for regret.

Mr. LamsgrT: I agree with the Minister.
I think, Mr. Chairman, I am getting close to the end of my time.

The VicE-CHATRMAN: No, you may go ahead.

Mr. LaMBerT: Clause 10, subclause 4, I think is about the only place in the
bill—and I am subject to correction—where Canadian citizenship is a condition
of the act. So much has been said about Canadian residence that I was wondering
Why. The shareholdings would be quite all right in the hands of Canadian
residents regardless of their citizenship, but when it comes to a matter of
Provisional directors, they must become Canadian citizens. In other words, a
higher degree of Canadianism is required for provisional directors. For Canadian
control we are satisfied with mere residence. I am wondering why there is the
distinction.
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Mr. SHARP: Perhaps just to reinforce the Canadian character of these banks.
The same provision, I understand, is to be found in the bill with relation to
permanent directors, as well as provisional directors covered by clause 10.

Mr. LaAMBERT: Yes, I quite agree with that. If it is the desire to maintain
Canadian control of our chartered banks, then, of course, a great proportion of
the directors, must be Canadian citizens. If the same degree of control is wanted
as to financial control, why not make the same insistence as to shareholders?

Mr. SHARP: This is a question of judgment, Mr. Chairman. The control of the
banking operations certainly ought to be in the hands of Canadians. When it
comes to shareholdings it is very difficult to establish in the first place the
citizenship of corporations because, although they may be Canadian companies,
their ownership may be in the hands of other than Canadians. I believe that as
far as the control of the operations of banks is concerned, this act should do
everything possible to ensure this control is in the hands of Canadians, rather
than just residents who may have other citizenship.

Mr. LAMBERT: I agree with what is required under this clause, but I am
wondering why there is a departure from consistency.

Mr. SHARP: Well, it is much easier to establish the citizenship of a director. It
is very difficult, and would be very cumbersome indeed, to establish the citizen-
ship of a shareholder. Indeed, I doubt whether it would be administratively
possible without causing the greatest confusion.

Mr. LAMBERT: Yet the government comes along and says that there cannot
be more than 25 per cent non-resident holdings. Is there no greater difficulty in
establishing foreign residence than foreign citizenship?

Mr. SHARP: It is very much easier to establish residence than citizenship.

Mr. LAMBERT: I must confess that with the degree of insistence we have on
Canadian banks being Canadian, the mere requirement of residence is meaning-
less.

Mr. SHARP: No, I do not think it is meaningless.

Mr. LAMBERT: But you will agree that mere residence does not mean that
there shall be Canadian control. A man who lives here can be a citizen of any of
the foreign countries, and if it is aimed primarily at Americans, many
Americans live in Canada and have been living here for years. They are still
Americans and, if they own the controlling shares, then the bank is not said to be
Canadian owned or Canadian controlled.

Mr. SHARP: These are practical matters, Mr. Chairman. The government
wants to do everything reasonable to ensure that these banks are essentially
Canadian institutions. It is our judgment that it would be impossible to enforce a
rule of citizenship on shareholdings. It is not impractical or impossible to enforce
this on directorships. The result of this legislation will be that it will be
practically impossible for any of our banks to be dominated by foreign owner-
ship and it will be possible also to insist on the Canadian citizenship of a very
high proportion of the directors. We can only do what is practical in this respect.
We certainly would not want to introduce rules into the Canadian banking
business that cannot be enforced, or that interfere with the relatively free
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exchange of these shares on the stock market. I am sure you would agree, Mr.
Lambert, that in all these matters we have to have workable rules. We know
what our objective is and I believe that, everything considered, the present
amendments to the Bank Act do ensure against our banks being dominated by
other than Canadians.

Mr. Lamsert: Well, you may say there may be difficulties as to individuals
but I am sure that there is no difficulty at all about the establishment of
Ownership of the locum and the citizenship of foreign corporations. One is as
€qual as the—

Mr. SHarp: A foreign corporation is obviously non-resident.

Mr. LAMBERT: Yes.

Mr. SHARP: A Canadian corporation is a Canadian corporation, but it may
alsg be owned by foreigners and, therefore, one cannot define citizenship as
€asily in the corporations as one can in individuals. Even with individuals there

is the question of having to seek out the citizenship of individual shareholders or
Prospective shareholders which is a formidable administrative undertaking.

.Mr. LAMBERT: I think we are heading into a little problem here, Mr.
Chairman. T will yield to anyone who wishes to ask questions.

Mr. IrRviNgE: Mr. Chairman, may I ask a supplementary to something that
Mr. Lambert brought up.
Clause 2(1) (h) reads:
“farm” means land in Canada used for. . .

Various things, and then at the end it reads:
.. .the growing of trees and all tillage of the soil;

Is this not a little ambiguous? Could not this be misconstrued so that a man
OWning, perhaps, a large lot or a unit under the Veterans Land Act cou'd be
considered a farmer? It could be minsconstrued in that sense. I am wondering
Whether the Minister does not think it would be wise to specify some size in
Number of acres, or something of that sort?

Mr. Suarp: Well, Mr. Chairman, as I said earlier, the banks are making
loans and they are dealing with farmers and before granting a loan they will
ascertain whether the man is engaged in farming. This gives some guide to the
Meaning of the word because now it includes bee-keeping, the production of
Mmaple products, the growing of trees and all tillage of the soil but it would be
Impossible, it seems to me, to say it shall not include certain kinds of activities if,
In fact, it is farming that is being carried on. This, again, is a question of decision
by the bank in making a loan and the taking of security. I do not think any
Practical problem has arisen. We have had similar provisions—although more
restrictive—in the act before, and Mr. Elderkin says from his experience that the
banks have not encountered difficulties in making loans to farmers and taking
Security.
> Mr. IrvINE: You do not feel, then, that this term which is pretty sweeping,

all tillage of the soil,” could be misconstrued to include very small holdings like
a backyard garden, as a matter of fact?

Mr. SuARP: I do not imagine that a bank, in making a loan, would regard
that man as a farmer.
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Mr. IrvINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. GILBERT: Mr. Sharp, have you or your officials given any thought to the
classification of loans with regard to the Interest Act? The Bankers’ Association
set forth a list of the different types of loans, such as business loans and
mortgage loans, and I was wondering whether you have given any thought to
imposing upper limits with regard to these types of loans because, as you know,
there is only the one interest rate under the act. That interest rate does not apply
to mortgage loans, it is quite true, but it does apply to business loans and
consumer loans, and I was wondering if you have given any thought to classifying
these types of loans and imposing limits with regard to the type of loan?

Mr. SHARP: There is one practical respect in which there are limits on these
loans and that is under the farm improvement loans and under other special
legislation where the rate is specified.

Mr. GILBERT: That is true.

Mr. SHARP: That has been put in because the government has provided a
guarantee and in return the banks were expected to make these loans at
somewhat less than the current market rate, or at the current market rate
whatever the conditions were at the time. I do not think it would be practical to
place a ceiling on particular loans for the same reason that these special acts I am
speaking about have run into difficulties. If you place a ceiling on a special kind
of loan it might have the effect of discouraging the banks from making those
loans because they would say: “Well, I can get a better return by making my
loans for other purposes that are not subject to a ceiling.” It is the same
argument that has been raised about having a differential monetary policy in
various parts of the country. It has been urged that the Bank of Canada ought to
establish a different rate of interest in, say, the less developed parts of the
country than in others. The chief argument against that, of course, it that this
would discourage the making of loans in that area; and I believe the same sort of
general argument would apply to placing a ceiling on particular kinds of loans.

Mr. GILBERT: At the moment, Mr. Sharp, you have a ceiling with regard to
business loans and consumer loans, and the way that the bank avoids it is by the
use of compensating balances for business loans and service charges for consum-

er loans. Why cannot we be more forthright and be specific about these different
classifications?

Mr. SHARP: Because I hope it is the view of the Committee, as it is of the
government, that thesg ceilings, and so on, are not serving the public interest;
that it would be better if the banks were in a position to adjust their rates to the
requirements of the various kinds of borrowers, and the risks and costs involved.
I think this will result in the banks providing a better service to the public and
enabling those borrowers who are now required to go outside the banking
structure to be able to come to the banks and get accommodation at lower rates.

Mr. GILBERT: Do you think that the new act will avoid compensating
balances with regard to business loans and service charges with regard to
consumer loans?

Mr. SHARP: I would hope that the banks would have less reason to resort to
such practices, but even in the United States, where there is no ceiling on bank
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Interest rates or loans, the banks do employ compensating balances. That is a
matter.‘ of business practice at the banks. I do not know whether it is better to
have it expressed in the interest rate or in some other form. We are taking
measures in this act to require the revelation of the nominal annual rate to
varlops kinds of loans, presumably corporations know what they are doing. They
take into account all the costs when they are deciding whether they are going to
borrow or not, or to which bank they are going to give their business.

(Translation)
Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Minister, you admitted yesterday.
Mr. SuaRP: Continue, please.

Mr. GREGOIRE: The Minister admitted yesterday that in the process of
growth of the money supply and by their share in this growth, chartered banks
a_ctually create this money supply. Mr. Minister, I would like to get an explana-
tion of this monetary system, I am not trying to convince you, I would like to get
a further explanation of the system. When the Bank of Canada decides to
Increase the money supply, say, by $100, it purchases bonds for about $8 and then
this $8 goes into the vaults of the chartered banks, at which time the chartered
banks can multiply it by 124 by creating a credit of $92 to make an increase of
$100. Is this the way the money supply is increased?

(English)

Mr. Suarp: T understand that when the Bank of Canada puts cash into the
hands of the banks they are under great pressure to find some means of
increasing their liabilities, so I hope that when the Bank is increasing the money
supply, the banks respond by making more loans and otherwise increasing the
volume of money and demand in the economy. That is the purpose. Similarly,
when the Bank of Canada contracts the money supply, the banks then have to
withdraw in order to retain a legal ratio between their cash and their liabilities.

Mr. GREGOIRE: In a proportion of twelve to one?

Mr. SHARP: Yes. The banks have their own ideas of what is the proper
Proportion: the law specifies the minimum.

Mr. GrEGOIRE: Then the law specifies the proportion of twelve to one?

Mr. SHARP: A minimum proportion.

(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: Is there anything to prevent the Bank of Canada from
creating 100 percent of this money supply increase, which takes place every
year, and instead of controlling only 8 percent and allowing the creation of the
other 92 percent by the chartered banks? Could not the Bank of Canada,
anticipating public growth, create the whole money supply increase each year
and in the same amount as is the case now?

(English)

~ Mr. Suarp: Well, Mr. Chairman, it would be perfectly possible, I suppose,
for Parliament to require 100 per cent backing of all loans made by thg chartered
banks in the form of cash. It is perfectly possible; I do not recommend it.
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(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, do not savings or trust companies or Caisses
populaires, under their charters, have the same privileges as the chartered banks
in this field of creating credit?

(English)
Mr. SHARP: They are not required by law to have a cash reserve.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But can they operate in making loans before they receive the
deposits like the chartered banks are able to do, as you mentioned yesterday?

Mr. SuArP: I did not say that yesterday. You are using what I should call the
Social Credit shorthand and I would like to disassociate myself from any such
implications—

Mr. GREGOIRE: I would like a record of that, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. SHARP: —without too much hesitation. Perhaps I should have hesitated
longer knowing I was giving the reply to you, Mr. Grégoire.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But you gave it.

Mr. SHARP: Yes, and it is perfectly accurate, but the inference that you are
drawing is not accurate. What I said yesterday was that the banks, with a supply
of cash, are in a position to extend loans safely because they have sufficient cash
to meet any requirements there may be on the part of the public; and those
loans, in turn, are to a large extent—or perhaps fully—deposited in the banks.
That is the way in which the system functions. I have no hesitation in saying
that.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Can the trust companies and the savings banks do the same
kind of operation?

Mr. SHARP: I doubt it very much. These are savings institutions. They collect
deposits from the public and make loans on the basis of these deposits. They are
not in the banking business and they do not have even the privileges that are
given to the banks, nor are they required by law to have a certain cash basis
upon. which they cannot earn anything. Now, it may be that Parliament should
consider whether trust and loan companies should have a cash reserve, but that
is a separate question I hope, in due course, we will direct our attention to.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Now, you say you would not recommend that the chartered
banks have 100 per cent cash reserves?

Mr. SHARP: No. ™

Mr. GREGOIRE: That is not what we would recommend, either. The savings
banks do not have any cash reserves, but when they make loans they have the
deposits first, while the banks make loans and then —and as a natural course—
these loans are deposited in one or another chartered bank. If the Bank of
Canada was creating that money instead of the chartered banks, would not the
government of Canada then, and all other public governments, be entitled to
borrow directly from the Bank of Canada on a debt free system instead of going
to the chartered banks to borrow the money the chartered banks are creating?

Mr. SHARP: In my opinion, Mr. Grégoire, that would not be good public
policy. I would consider it a very inferior type of system and one that would not
serve the public as well as the present system of banking.
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. Mr. GricoIre: But if the Bank of Canada was creating the money supply
Instead of the chartered banks, then the government of Canada would be able to
borrow it free of interest, make some public works with it and naturally, in the
course of events, this money would go back to the chartered banks. But it would
have profitted to Canada because the government would have been able to bor-
row without interest and you would not have the problem today of $1,200 million
to pay in interest on the debt of Canada.

Mr. Suarp: Well, I hope, Mr. Chairman, it is understood that as far as the
money we borrow from Canadians is concerned, this is all in the family. The
government of Canada just owes to its citizens a return to those citizens who
have foregone the spending of that money, and have instead turned it over to the
government for spending. I think it is quite appropriate that such people
should get some compensation for having turned the money over to the
government. As far as foreigners are concerned, I know of no method of Social
Credit that is going to prevent us from paying our debts to our foreigner lenders.
Indeed, I am sure that they would not be at all impressed by the argument which
has been put forward by Mr. Grégoire.

Mr. GREGOIRE: I did not say that at all, Mr. Minister. I said that if the Bank
of Canada created the money instead of the chartered banks, it would allow the
government of Canada to borrow—not from the public and pay interest; that is
not what I said. I said it would allow the government of Canada to borrow this
money created by the Bank of Canada from the Bank of Canada instead of the
chartered banks and to do it without interest.

Mr. SHARP: Yes, but the Bank of Canada is just the public.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes, and this money borrowed by the government of Canada
Would be used for public investments, not for private investments.

Mr. SHARP: But it is quite impossible, by any monetary sleight of hand, for
the government to spend money without placing a burden upon the taxpayers of
the country. If this were possible, every country in the world would have
adopted it e’er now, but they have not—not one of them. The reasons are Very
Practical and indeed, in my judgment, this would result in a loss of confidence in
governments. I believe it is quite proper that when the government asks people
to lend it money—to forego the use of it themselves—they should get some
Compensation for it, and I do not believe this in any way imposes a.handlcap
upon the people of the country. Indeed, I think it is a proper distribution of the
burden of public expenditures.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Minister, you say that it would not be appropriate for the
government to borrow money without imposing a burden on the people of
Canada. The money that the Bank of Canada would be able to lend represents an
increase in the money supply and this increase comes because fche people of
Canada and Canada as a whole have developed. This increase In the money
supply comes from the development of Canada. This is only that part that the

ank of Canada would be able to lend to the government of Canada. It would not
represent a burden then, it would represent the development of the whole of
Canada made by the people of Canada. Would that not be better than a burden,
if the people of Canada can develop the country, and it represents a natural
development of the country? Why impose a second burden on the people of
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Canada and let the chartered banks profit from this development of Canada,
because when the chartered banks increase the money to raise supplies it is
because Canada itself has developed, not the banks. You give the profit of all
this development to the banks and the people of Canada do not profit by it.

Mr. SHARP: I think they do. I cannot agree with the assumptions underlying
your question at all, Mr. Grégoire. Canada has been developing very rapidly and
all the fruits of this development have gone to the people of Canada. The whole
fruits of our increased output have gone to Canadians in one form or another.
You are suggesting, I take it, that those people who have foregone their own use
of the money and turned it over to the government of Canada to be used for
public purposes should not receive compensation. I cannot agree with that.

Mr. GrREGOIRE: I do not say that, sir. I say that every year, because of the
increase in the gross national product, there is an increase in the money supply,
and this increase is created by the chartered banks. If it were created by the
Bank of Canada instead, the Bank of Canada would lend to the government of
Canada instead of the chartered banks.

Mr. SHArRP: All it would do would be to redistribute the burden over the
Canadian people. That is all. To the extent that the government uses resources, it
must be the resources of the people. There are no other resources available. The
system that is now in effect results in a certain distribution of those resources. As
I have been saying recently, I have been inclined to think that interest rates have
been too high and I would like to have seen the redistribution, a bit different. But
we are living in a world of high interest rates from which we cannot divorce
ourselves. I do not believe, Mr. Grégoire, that it would be possible, as I said
before, to alter the physical facts by any monetary sleight of hand, which are
that we have a certain output to dispose of. Our policy should be such as to
maximize that output, but all those benefits inure to the people of Canada and
they do not represent any burden on them.

Mr. GrREGOIRE: This is my last remark on the subject, Mr. Minister. When
there is an increase in the gross national product there is an increase in monetary
supply. This increase, except for 8 per cent, is created by the Bank of Canada,
and 92 per cent by the chartered banks. It is a private institution which will
create the money representing the development of the whole of Canada, and this
increase that they will have created will be lent on the debt system instead
of being created by the Bank of Canada, which is an institution of the people of
Canada, on a debt-free system when it ought to represent the interests or the
development of the whole of the country. That is why I cannot agree with
the system. Every development of our country is represented by a debt while
it should be represented by an asset.

Mr. SHARP: Every development of the country adds to the profit available
for the people. In the course of development, certain financial arrangements are
made between the borrower and the lender. These arrangements are perfectly
proper and natural. The fact that our banking system operates with a cash
reserve is not the vital part of the system. That is the mechanism by which
banks operate and by which the financial system operates. As Mr. Grégoire
probably knows, it began a very long time ago when merchant bankers carried
on operations somewhat different from today but, essentially, the principle is
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the same. The banks must retain a certain amount of cash to meet the needs of
their customers for cash.

That is the essence of the system. And, on the basis of that cash reserve, the
banks engage in the financing of business or of consumption as the case may be.
For that service they make a charge. That is their earning. On the deposits side
hey pay interest, and they have other charges in connection with the operation
of their banks. There is nothing extraordinary about that, and I would have
thopght the fact that this is a universal system which operates well in all
Societies—including, I gather, even the Soviet Union—that it has a great deal to
commend it. I can only repeat again, Mr. Grégoire, that if it were possible to
OPerate in a better way, I am quite sure many countries of the world would have
adopted such a system. The fact that they have not I think, indicates the common
Sense of mankind is on the side of the kind of financial institutions that we have
today. This is not saying that our financial institutions necessarily operate as
they ought to operate. This bank bill is some reflection of the fact that we think

a!; Improvements can be made. I am sure banks themselves are improving
their practices and, I hope, are doing more to become efficient and to make
fewer charges for their services. However, there is competition in the banking
System. I hope there will be more and, in that way, I do not believe the kind of
frharges made represent anything more than the burden that must necessarily be
Imposed upon borrowers when they ask for the use of money in order to
Increase their investments or to finance their consumption.

Mr. GrEGoIRE: Then you would not agree that the Bank of Canada should
Create increase in money supply, instead of the chartered banks?

. Mr. Suare: Well, I believe that the Bank of Canada from time to time should
Increase its note issue.

Mr. GrEcorre: By only 8 per cent and leave the other 92 per cent to the
Chartered banks?

Mr. Suare: It is up to the banks to decide what proportion of cash they feel
PhEy should carry in order to carry on their business. In this Bank Act we have

Insisted that there should be certain minimum cash requirements in order to
Protect the public against the possibility that the banks might not be prudent

€nough, but that is all.
Mr. GrEGoIRE: The point is that you will not agree that the Bank of Canada
should create all increase of money supply instead of what is being done today.
Mr. SuARrP: I consider that a very cumbersome and inferior system.

Mr. GrEgomRe: You would consider it an inferior system if the Bank of
Canada, a public institution, were to create all the increase in money supply?

Mr. SuARP: I would consider it inferior, cumbersome, costly, and generally
Very bad for Canada.
Mr. GrEGomRE: You prefer to see it in the hands of private enterprise?

. Mr. Suarp: I prefer the present system. The present system probably can be
Improved—I hope it can. But I think the system that Mr. Grégoire is putting
for Ward is inferior and would very quickly be abandoned if anybody was stupid
€nough to adopt it.

25700—2
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Mr. GREGOIRE: Then, Mr. Minister, you will just have to continue to increase
the debt and we will continue to pay the interest.

The ViceE-CHAIRMAN: I do not have any other names on my list of speakers.
On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Minister, I thank you for your appearance here
and the great importance of your testimony to the study of this important
legislation.

Mr. FuLToN: Mr. Chairman, are you suggesting that this is the last occasion
on which the Minister will be appearing?

Mr. SHARP: May I say in this connection, Mr. Chairman, that I think you
would want me to appear before you in connection with the Bank of Canada Act
and also in connection with the deposit insurance bill. I am prepared to appear.
May I say, Mr. Chairman, that I hope this Committee will give some priority to
deposit insurance and I suggest that the bill now being referred to the Com-
mittee should be discussed as soon as possible. The Committee will have noticed
that the Ontario government is proposing similar legislation in the form of a
holding operation pending the approval of the federal system. The government
believes that it would be very much in the interests of all concerned for the
federal system to come into effect as quickly as possible. So, I do hope that the
Committee will be able to give some priority to that as soon as they have some
room on the agenda.

Mr. FuLton: We might reserve our position with respect to the Bank of
Western Canada. I think we might well want to ask the Minister some questions
after we have heard what the two disputants have to say.

Mr. CAMERON (Ndnaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I think the understanding
yesterday was that we would hear the Minister after we have heard Mr. Coyne
and Mr. Stevens.

The Vice-CHAIRMAN: If necessary, yes.
The meeting is adjourned until four o’clock this afternoon.

AFTERNOON SITTING

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I would like to call this meeting of the finance
committee to order.

At the present time we are at the concluding stage of our public hearings
with respect to our order of reference from the house, which is to study and
report on the proposed new Bank Act, the proposed amendments to the Bank of
Canada Act and the new Quebec Savings Bank Act.

OQur first witness today is Mr. James Coyne, President of the Bank of
Western Canada, who has made certain public comments which the steering
committee felt should be explored further in this Committee with respect to their
having some possible relevance to our present inquiry. Following Mr. Coyne’s
statement, and any questions which the members may have to pose to him, we
have also invited Mr. Stevens to appear, who is also involved in this particular
issue, to comment with respect to the matters before us.

3
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I think that I have already arranged to distribute to the members of the
Committee the Treasury Board minute with respect to the licence of the Bank of
estern Canada.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, I am wondering whether it is deemed to be a
brecedent that any time the Bank Act is under consideration or there are any
amendments to it, if there is an internal dispute within a chartered bank that
this Committee will provide a forum for airing the dispute.

The CraRMAN: I think you have raised a very good point. As I think the
Members of the Committee will recall, before causing Mr. Coyne and Mr.
tevens to be invited to appear today I consulted informally with those members
of the steering committee who were available in the house after the question
Period and the agreement was that this invitation should be extended. I think,
though, that the point is well taken and I think we should ask Mr. Coyne and Mr.
tevens, and also the members of the Committee with respect to their questions
of these gentlemen, to attempt to relate their comments to what I might descx:ibe
as our legislative purpose. I will certainly be willing to exercise any prerogatives
have as Chairman if I feel that they are departing in a broad way from this
8eneral ambit. I also invite the members of the Committee to bring to my
fittention any occasions on which they feel that our witnesses today are depart-
Ing from our order of reference.

Mr. CameronN (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): May I suggest, Mr.
Chairman, in connection with Mr. Lambert’s statement that we are not merely
Concerned with an internal dispute between these institutions but with the
Telationships between this institution and the Government of Canada because of
the special provisions that were provided for this particular institution. So, for

at reason I think it does come within our purview of deliberation.

The CHAIRMAN: If I interpret Mr. Lambert’s remarks correctly, I would
Fhink that you and Mr. Lambert are in agreement in that regard. I think it is
Incumbent upon all of us here, the members of the Committee, other ?nembers in
attendance and our witnesses to attempt to keep both the presentation and the
Juestioning within the general ambit that both Mr. Cameron and Mr. Lambert
haye outlined. As I say, I would invite the Committee to bring to my attention
any occasions when they feel that there is a departure from our legitimate field
of activity.

Mr. Coyne, as I was about to say, I have taken the liberty of distributing to
the members of the Committee the Treasury Board minute in questior} and also
What 1 understand to be the press release which you issued and which led to
your being here today. I will invite you to make such introductory cpmments as
You see fit, following which I will invite the members of the Committee to pose
Such questions as they deem desirable.

Mr. MacponNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, you made reference to a press
Telease. I do not know about the other members of the Committee, but I do not
have 5 copy of it.

The CramRMAN: I think our clerk is just coming back into the room and I

Will ask her to distribute these. I thought they had been distributed.
25700—23
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Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, you also made mention of the copy of the
Treasury Board minute which was tabled on January 18. Are there copies of that
minute available?

y The CHAIRMAN: Yes, we have copies, and I had assumed that they had been
distributed earlier today.

Now, gentlemen, I think before calling upon Mr. Coyne it would be useful if
we had a motion to make the Treasury Board minute and the press release, if
Mr. Coyne will identify it for us, part of our record. While he is looking at the
press release, I will first invite a motion with regard to the Treasury Board
minute.

Mr. LAFLAMME: I so move.
Mr. FuLton: I second the motion.

(English)

The CHAIRMAN: We are in agreement on the adding of the Treasury Board
minute to our record. :

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Coyne first identifies for us the lengthier page headed, “Statement by
James E. Coyne” and it is dated at Winnipeg, February 3, 1967. Both pages bear
the same date. The statement is the document which begins: “I have resigned—".
The shorther page is the continuation and they are merely stapled together out
of order. So you identify these pages as the statement which led you to being
with us today?

Mr. JamEs E. CoynNE (President, Bank of Western Canada): Yes, I do.

The CHAIRMAN: The committee understands that inadvertently they were
put together in the wrong order. In as much as Mr. Coyne has identified this
document as the statement in regard to the matter that brings him before us, I
would also invite a motion from the Committee that this be printed as part of
our record.

Mr. CoATES: I so move.

Mr. LAFLAMME: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

Now, Mr. Coyne, may I invite you at this time to make such introductory
comments as you see fit.

Mr. CoyNE: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the Committee, I am here
because you asked me to come. I made a public statement on February 3 at about
3.30 or 4 o’clock in the afternoon eastern time and in the last two paragraphs of
the main statement I said:

I feel these matters must be made known to the people of Western
Canada and the rest of the country. I am now convinced that no group of
persons or companies such as this should be permitted to exercise control
over a Canadian financial institution, whether federal or provincial.

I wish to recommend to Parliament that, before the new Bank Act is
finally passed, the prohibition upon voting stock, in excess of 10 per cent
of the total, be put back into force for new banks, just as it is for the older

f
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banks. In other words, the authority given to the Treasury Board or to the
Governor in Couneil to grant exemption to majority shareholders in new
banks should be reversed. In addition, there should be provision that no
American bank shall be entitled to hold any shares in a Canadian bank,
and certainly not any voting shares.

Those are my personal views which I put on record.

I also understand that you have committed to your Committee a bill
respecting deposit insurance. One of the things which has concerned me in the
last few weeks—I have been rushing back and forth between Winnipeg and
Toronto and Ottawa and I have not been able to spend much time on my own
puSil’l'ESS~has been the desirability of getting deposit insurance into operation
Just as soon ag possible because of all the commotion which has been going on in
financia] markets for some time now, and especially since the Prudential Finance
matter came into public view some weeks ago.

My thoughts in respect to all these matters covered the feelings I had as to
the Mmanagement of the BIF companies themselves, the feelings I had as to what
he impact of those and other matters would be on the Bank of Western Canada
and thig broblem of how could matters of this sort be dealt with, if necessary, in
a public forum without further unsettling public confidence in financial institu-
tions which might have no connection whatever with the ones under considera-
tion. For that reason, I wish to say to you that I have indicated to the public
authorities that I consider it very important that this idea of deposit insurance,
Which is 4 very sound one in itself and which I have advocated for ten years or
more, should be brought into force just as soon as you gentlemen can do so.

These are matters on which you may perhaps wish to examine me. I did not
Come here to seek a forum for an internal dispute respecting the affairs of any
Company; I came here because I was requested to do so and I issued my
Statement because, after long and anxious consideration, I felt this was the qnly
Way I could properly serve the public interest and that I had a duty to do this. I

0 not know what you want me to say or how far you want me to go. Thgre are
Many different ramifications and matters involved, some of which have evidently

€en referred to in the Toronto papers this afternoon—although pot kgy. me—and
berhaps the best thing would be if I just say that I am at the disposition of the
Committee, Mr. Chairman.

The CrATRMAN: Mr. Laflamme?

Mr. LarLaMME: When did you resign from the board of directors of British
International Finance (Canada) Ltd?

Mr. Covne: I posted my letter of resignation in Toronto on the night of
Wednesd-ay, February 1.

Mr. LarLaMME: Was it after a meeting of the directors?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. : :
Mr. LarLamme: In the statement that you have made pubhc you said. In
COnnection with the Bank of Western Canada, they have failed to make good
heir subscription for shares to the extent of about $1,500,000, they have at-
tempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own companies contrary to thé
Most explieit statements made . . . As far as I know, the Bank of We;tern Canada

as not yet started its operations. - I8
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Mr. CoyNE: It has hired some people to help it get organized, people who
will be operating the bank when it commences operations.

Do you mean has the bank done anything contrary to our charter? No, I do
not believe so and it will not do anything contrary to the charter as far as I am
concerned.

Mr. LarLaAMME: I have no other questions for the moment, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: On my list I have Mr. Fulton followed by Mr. Thompson,
Mr. Lambert, Mr. Cameron and Mr. Macdonald.

Mr. Furton: I should like to ask you Mr. Coyne, whether the remarks you
made just now with respect to deposit insurance, and your recommendation that
it be brought in as early as possible, are made in your capacity as President of
the Bank of Western Canada and whether we are to assume, therefore, that it is
of particular importance to your institution as such or whether you were merely
expressing a general opinion in the light of your knowledge of the field of the
operation of financial institutions generally?

Mr. CoyNE: The matter is not of any direct or urgent importance for the
Bank of Western Canada except in the sense that it will improve the entire
financial atmosphere that may exist at the time the bank commences operations.
My main concern is for the public interest in this matter because there have been
some shocks to confidence and the more discussion there is of these matters in
public the more desirable it is that as much reassurance as possible be given to
the public. Whenever I have been asked questions tending in that direction I
have done my best to give that assurance, but the best assurance of all, of
course, is for the public authorities to say what they can say.

Mr. FurTon: Is it your feeling as a banker that membership in the system
should be made compulsory for federally-incorporated banks?

Mr. CoyNEe: Yes, I think so; I think it should be all-inclusive.

Mr. FuLTon: In your press statements you say:
In connection with the Bank of Western Canada. . .

I omit one portion, and then you continue:
. . . they have attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own
companies contrary to the most explicit statements made to the Com-
mittees of the Senate and the House of Commons. . .

I take it you have evidence to support that statement?

Mr. CoyNE: I did not bring any documents with me to support it. I am
willing to answer questions about it.

Mr. FuLToN: As I recall the statement was made to the press. This has been
denied. It has been denied that there was any intention—of as explicit a nature,
at least, as you seem to imply here—or any attempt to bring about the transac-
tion to which you refer. That is why I asked about evidence; what position is the
committee in?

Mr. CoyNE: Again, Mr. Chairman, I am prepared to give evidence orally. I
am prepared to say upon what basis I made that public statement.

*.-..,;-w
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Mr. FuLTon: I would think that this is one matter which is within the ambit
?f.our terxps of reference and I would be interested in knowing, because I think
his committee should know if that attempt was made.

Mr. CoyNE: I have been aware for some weeks, and possibly a little longer
than that, that the management of the BIF group were expecting that the bank
Would somehow engage in transactions with them of a character that would help

heir financial position. Without going into all the past history and so on, the
matter did come up at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Bank of
estern Canada on December 16. At that meeting the Chairman of the Board,
Who is also the President of British International Finance (Canada) Ltd., recited
a nu.mber of matters which bore on the fact that his companies were not able to
Obtain financing from other banks in Canada, which he suggested was due to the
fact that the other banks resented his company having sponsored the starting of
& new bank, and that he thought it was a matter for the directors of the new
bank. to decide whether or not they could and would provide the financial
ba"klng to his companies which he could not get elsewhere.

Two propositions were put forward, both of which would have required the
approval of the Minister of Finance in Ottawa if the board of the bank were
Prepared to support them, and he said at that meeting, that he wanted both of
these bropositions to be decided or an opinion of the Board reached at that
Meeting,

i ‘The first proposition was that the bank should be prepared to go to the
Minister of Finance and say they were willing to make a line of credit available
to the British International Finance companies equal to 10 per cent of the capital
and reserves of the bank. This matter came up in such a precise and definite way
that the vice-president of the bank, Mr. W. G. Brown, remarked several times in
the course of the discussion that he thought it was in contravention of that
Section of the Bank Act,—1I think it is section 75—which says that no director
May be present during consideration of a loan to any company of which he is a
director, Notwithstanding that, the discussion went on until it was apparent that

he western directors in particular were hostile to the idea.

A second point that was brought up at the same time was that the ‘pank
should engage in a particular transaction involving the purchase of a portfolio of
finance company paper amounting to about $800,000 from one of the BIF
Companies. I opposed both of these suggestions, I need hardly say, and the other

estern Directors to whom this all came as a considerable surprise, in that form
and s0 on, resisted these suggestions.

At a later stage in the discussion it was, therefore, proposed that not that the
board would themselves go to the Minister of Finance asking for his approval of
transactions of this sort, but that the board would approve an approach to the

inister of Finance by the President of British International Finance, in that
Capacity, not in his capacity as a director of the bank. This proposal, too, was
Tesisted and finally abandoned, and the only minute that was made of the matter
finally was that the President of British International Finance had informed the

Oard that he proposed, in his capacity as President of British International
F Inance, to approach the Minister of Finance for clariﬁcatlor} of the terms of the
easury Board order and of his attitude about matters of this sort. :

This proposal, if it had been accepted in the way in which it originally came
up, would hﬁ\.;e ;;ut this matter squarely on the doorstep of the Minister of
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Finance and the making of the proposal and its approval by the board, if they
had approved it, I felt were directly contrary to statements that I and the
President of British International Finance had made when appearing before
Committees of the two Houses of Parliament.

Mr. FurTon: I take it that the only decision reflected in the minutes of this
day, as you have outlined it, did not contain any authority to pursue the
transaction or to—

Mr. CoyNE: That is right.

Mr. FUuLTON: —approach the Minister with an amendment of the Treasury
Board Minute.

Mr. CoyNE: The board members were very embarrassed by the whole
matter and felt that the best way out was to more or less ignore it, as if it had
never happened, for the time being.

Mr. FuLToNn: It is in the category, then, of a suggestion about which you
have strong views, brought forward by a senior member of the board of
directors—the chairman, you have told us—and discussed in the board, but
rejected.

Mr. CoyNE: That is correct; and not pressed to a vote in consequence of the
opposition which developed.

But that was not the end of the matter. Every time I have been in meeting
with members of the B.LLF. group subsequent to that the same point has been
raised again and again in an endeavour to put pressure on me to agree that
something of this sort should be done.

Mr. FurToN: How many meetings?

Mr. CoyNE: I could not say; I am sorry.

Mr. More: Mr. Chairman, could Mr. Coyne identify the “president”? He
was talking about the “president”. Could he identify him for the record?

The CHAIRMAN: The President of British International Finance?

Mr. CoyNE: Mr. Sinclair Stevens.

Mr. Furton: He is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Bank
of Western Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

At the subsequentmeeting of the board on January 20, Mr. Stevens referred
to the matter again in such a way as to suggest that he had not originally made
any proposal.

In discussing this matter afterwards the western directors told me that they
were completely in disagreement with that second statement.

Mr. FuLTon: You told us that there were a number of meetings at which this
was discussed. Were these official meetings of the Board of Directors, or of
committees of the board, or were they, in the maJor part, informal dlscussmns
between individual directors? . ‘ .

: Mr. CoyNE: If you mean the d1scuss1ons which were carried on by B.I. F
people with me to which I referred, they were certainly not meetings of the
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board; they were largely in Toronto; although mnot entirely, and would arise
Wwhen I ‘was in Toronto. primarily for a discussion of the affairs of the B.LF.
Companies on which I was still a director.

Mr. FurtoN: At how many meetings of the Board of Directors of the bank

Was this matter discussed?
. Mr. CoynE: It was discussed at the meeting of December 16, and referred to
briefly at the meeting of January 20.
. Mr. Furton: How many other of the western directors of the bank are also
directors of the B.LF. group of companies?

Mr. Covne: It depends on a definition there. The two directors from
Alber.ta are directors of a frust company in Alberta which is not, properly
?peaklng, one of the B.L.LF. group, although the B.LF. group have a 30 per cent
Interest in it and an option on further stock.

Two of the directors from Manitoba, not counting myself, have been direc-
tors of a trust company and of a financial company in Winnipeg, which are part
°f_the B.LF. group, but their role there has been inactive for some time, and I
think at least some of them have resigned; I am not sure about that.

The two directors from Saskatchewan and the two directors from Van-
fouver, so far as I know, have not had any connection with companies in the

IF, group; and two of the Winnipeg directors, similarly, have not had any such
Connection,

Mr. FuLToN: Your next statement in the press release continues:

They. ..
—that is, the B.I.F. group and the Wellington financial group—
...are presently engaged in a borrowing operation with American banks
which involves the giving of an option on 10 per cent of the total shares of
the Bank of Western Canada and various arrangements designed to tie the
management and operations of the bank to the operations .of these
American banks, again contrary to statements made when applying for a

charter.

In the same way, Mr. Coyne, could you tell us if you have evidence to
Support that statement? ,

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. In a way, this goes back quite a long time because the
Senior companies in the B.LF. group have been looking for, and endeavouring to
Taise, money by way of loans for some months, partly, no doubt, in order to ful-
fill their subscription to the Bank of Western Canada and partly for other pur-
Poses. In the course of their efforts, or negotiations in that regard, the suggestion
has from time to time, been made to me by Mr. Stevens that his negotiations
With other banks, for example, in the United States, or in Canada, possibly,
Would be aided if the Bank of Western Canada would deposit some of its funds
With those other institutions. This suggestion was first made in fairly ‘definite
form in September in a discussion with me and Mr. Maxwell Bruce, another
director of the bank and of the Wellington Financial Corporation. T said that
that would not be a proper thing for the Bank of Western Canada to do, and, as I
Tecall it, Mr. Bruce agreed with that opinion of mine. ' 83 rTadany
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The idea has been in the air in the course of several discussions later than
that, and it came to a head on Wednesday, February 1. Earlier than that I had
been told that a line of credit had been arranged with some American banks. I
frankly did not believe anything concrete would come of that. I did not believe
any American bank would lend money to Canadian financial institutions, or to
these particular Canadian financial institutions, under the present circumstances,
and in the circumstances of those companies, certainly not if the bank knew
those circumstances and if proper disclosure had been made to them.

In the course of a proposal coming before the meetings of the Boards of
Directors of British International Finance and of the Wellington Financial
Corporation on Wednesday, February 1, it was revealed for the first time to the
directors and to me that these negotiations with a group of New York banks had
been predicated upon the idea that they would be allowed, if they wished, to buy
stocks in the Bank of Western Canada from the B.LF. group and to be put in a
position where they could engage in financial transactions, perhaps, in lending
in Canada and, perhaps, other transactions, with the Bank of Western Canada,
again if they would make credit available, not to the Bank of Western Canada
but to the British International Finance companies.

I asked the man who had been actively engaged in these negotiations in: New
York if he would have been able to obtain a loan from these American banks for
the purposes of British International Finance if he had not, as he thought, been in
a position to offer them some advantages having to do with the Bank of Western
Canada? He replied that he would not have been able to and would have been an
idiot even to try to get a loan from them on the strength of the position of these
companies alone under the present circumstances which, admittedly, were tight
money conditions.

I told him and Mr. Stevens that neither of them had any authority—certainly
not from the Bank of Western Canada, nor even from Wellington Finance or
British International Finance—to make any commitment or to offer any advan-
tages or inducements to this American bank—one in particular—in connection
with the negotiations they were conducting. The man who had been doing the
negotiating said that he had committed Wellington Financial Corporation to
this—that we were committed—by the establishment of a line of credit—which I
believe has not yet been utilized—with a New York bank and that as a condition
of that and as an inducement for that, we were committed to the idea that they
would have an option to buy stock, either in the Bank of Western Canada or, if
they wanted, in British International Finance itself.

Mr. FurLton: 1 tak; it from what you have said that these discussions did not
go on within the board of the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr, CoyNE: This one did not.

Mr. Furton: The facts you have outlined did not come to you in your
capacity as President of the Bank of Western Canada. Is that correct?

Mr. Coy~NE: I was in the unhappy position of having two capacities all
through this. Of course, several people were in that position; but I was made
unhappy by having a dual role. I had to wear two hats until I could decide where
my primary responsibility lay.

Mr. FurTon: Was disclosure of this made to other directors of the Bank of
Western Canada, who were not directors of this other group of companies?
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Mr. Coyne: It was made by me.
Mr. FurTon: At a board meeting?

3 Mr. CoyNE: No; we have not been able to have a board meeting; we cannot
bring the whole board together at very short notice. In any event, I felt I had to
make my own position clear.

One of the things I had to do was to resign from the British Inter-

nati‘onal Finance Companies which my western directors of the bank had been
urging me to do anyhow; and the other was I wanted to make clear to all

concerned that the Bank of Western Canada was not going to be used, and the
American banks should not think that it was going to be used, as a pawn in the
financial plans of the British International Finance companies.

Mr. FULTON: Was the suggestion, as far as you have knowledge of it, that the
Bank of Western Canada should give this stock option, or that the option should
be given by one of the other companies?

Mr. CoyNE: That the option would be given by one of the other companies,
but that the Bank of Western Canada should be induced to enter into banking
relationships with this American bank.

It was said that the Bank of Western Canada would find that this American
bank would participate with it in loans that were too big for it alone to make in
Canada and would provide it with “know-how” and even with staff.

Mr. FurTon: I think, Mr. Chairman, I am having regard to the time, but I
Would like to ask a final question.

With respect to documentary evidence, g
direct conflict of testimony here am I right in taking it from what you have said
that apart from the one minute of the Bank of Western Canada’s board, re_ferred
t0 in my earlier questions, there would be little, if any, documentary evidence
b.Y way of minutes of directors’ meetings that could be produced to this Com-
mittee?

Mr. CoyNE: I will be glad to produce the minutes of the directors’ meetings,
for what they are worth, but I think you are correct in your statement.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Fulton. Mr. Thompson is next on my list.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I would like first to ask Mr. Coyne about
remarks he has already made to Mr. Fulton regarding the discussions within the
British International Finance group about asking the Minister of Finance to
Withdraw the agreement that was drawn up by the Treasury Board on August 3

and which was tabled in the House on January 18.
Do you know if at any time a request was made of the Government of

Canada or of the Minister of Finance that this should be considered, or was the
thing dropped in the discussions of the board of the B.LF. group itself?

Mr. CovNE: You are asking if a request was made for an amendment of the
Tl'easury Board order?

Mr. THOMPSON: Was an approach ever made?
. Mr. Covyne: I discussed this informally with someone in Ottawa and got the
Impression that this was not feasible.

Mr. Coyne, if there should be a
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Mr. THomPsoN: Would you care to say with whom you discussed it?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes; the Inspector General of Banks.

Mr. THoMPSON: As far as you know there was no other approach made
following the difference of opinion that occurred in the board meeting?

Mr. CoyNE: On this particular point?
Mr. THOoMPSON: On this particular point.
Mr. CoyNE: As far as I know, yes.

Mr. THOMPSON: You mentioned, Mr. Coyne, in your own statement that the
British International Finance group had failed to make good their subscription
for shares to the extent of $1.5 million which they had prev1ously agreed to do.
Why did the B.L.F, group not meet this commitment?

Mr. CoyNE: Perhaps I should give you a little history on that. This was one
of several large subscriptions that were arranged nearly three years ago in
anticipation of providing capital for the bank when it was chartered.

This particular subscription was in the name of Canadian Finance and
Investments Limited a company which raised $3 million in capital from the
general public in 1964, with a view to subscribing for $2.25 million worth of
stock in the Bank of Western Canada, and also with a view to investing in other
financial institutions. If there had been no Bank of Western Canada develop at
all, all the funds would have been retained by Canadian Finance and Invest-
ments Limited and used in other types of investments. There was no question
here of trust funds being held for possible return to the shareholders.

In addition to the $3 million raised from the public, British International
Finance subscribed for, or wrote a letter committing themselves to pay for,
$700,000 worth of stock in Canadian Finance and Investments Limited. This was
related a little more closely, in timing at least, to the payment for stock of the
Bank of Western Canada and, therefore, only became a matter of urgent impor-
tance after the charter of the bank was granted.

Since last July, the fact that Canadian Finance and Investments would have
to make this money available to the bank, and that British International Finance
would have to make it available to the extent of $700,000 to Canadian Finance
and Investments, has been one of the matters exercising the mangagement of
British International Finance.

When the time came that the directors of the bank specified the date upon
which share subscriptions were to be paid for—which was at the meeting of
December 16, and the date set was January 3—on that date, or the next day, all
the subscriptions of any consequence were fully paid for with the exception of
this one where the total amount paid in was $800,000 leaving an amount of
$1,450,000 still to come. That has not yet been paid.

_.The matter was to be discussed at the board meeting on January 20, but was
put off, at the request of the Chairman, to the end of the agenda, and finally the
meeting came to a close without a sultable opportumty for further discussion of
that matter.

I.do not regard the position on any one day as being 51gn1ﬁcant in this
regard, but it is now some further period of time since that meeting and



=

> 4

Feb. 7, 1967 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 3045

certainly at the next meéting of the board of the bank it is something that will
have to receive very careful consideration on the basis of legal advice on what
should be done about it.

Mr. THoMmPSON: You mention in your statement that the B.LF. group have
been currently engaged in a borrowing operation with American banks, and that,
as you previously stated today, some of this may have been to assist the B.LF.
organization in meeting their commitment to the Western Bank, or that some of
it may have been intended for other purposes. Do you understand, then, from
that that the B.LF. group is short of cash?

Mr. Covyne: I do not suppose I need to draw a conclusion from it, Mr.
Thompson. The facts are as I have stated them.

Mr. THOMPSON: In other words, there is a financial difficulty in meeting this
Commitment?

Mr. Coyng: There are financial requirements that they have to meet, and
they have been endeavouring to meet them.

_ Mr. Taompson: Do you know, Mr. Coyne, if the British International
F Inance group have been under investigation by the Ontario Securities Com-~
mission or by the Insurance Branch?

Mr. CoyNE: I am a little bothered by your language, Mr. Tho_mpson. It was
stated in the newspapers this afternoon, apparently from Ontax:lo goyernmgnt
Sources, that the Department of Insurance had been having discussions Wl.th
Several trust companies in Ontario. I do not know anything about the Securities

Ommission.

. Mr. THompson: Would you say that these discussi
With with some of the trust companies belonging to

Inance group?

Mr. CoynE: This is what was indicated in the newspaper _this afternoon. I
am not sure if this is strictly germane to what I am dealing with here.

- The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Thompson, since we have Mr. Stevens as our next
Witness, if this could be considered relevant to our inquiry at this time he would
€ a more appropriate person to ask.

Mr. THOMPSON: Probably that is so. I think I will ask these questions of Mr
Stevens as well but Mr. Coyne, up until a week or so ago, has been a member. of
the board of the B.LF. group, too, and I thought he might have some information

about this that would be of assistance to us.
Mr. Coyne, following up a remark you made a few moments ago, would

You identify the trust company in Alberta which two of your directors are
Part of and in which the British International Finance group holds 30 per cent
0f shares and an option on further shares?

Mr. CoynE: Yes; I should say that this is a matter of public record. already;
there is nothing new or remarkable about if. It is the Alberta Fidelity Trust

Ompany of Edmonton, Calgary and Camrose, Alberta, for the management of

Which I have every respect.

Mr. THoMPSON: Would you identify the Winnipeg trust company of which
two of your directors of the Bank of Western Canada are part?

ons, then, have been held
the British International
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Mr. CoyNE: This is the Fort Garry Trust Company, a Manitoba company,
whose shares are in the process of being exchanged by the shareholders for
shares of York Trust in Toronto; so that York Trust is, in effect, and shortly, I
guess, will be legally the sole shareholder of Fort Garry Trust.

Mr. THOMPSON: You have made a good deal of the rift between the west and
the east on the matter of British International Finance Corporation not really
serving the original intentions of the Bank of Western Canada to serve the west.
Do you see a conflict of interest here, at all, as far as the western members of
your board are concerned?

Mr. CoyNE: Every man must answer for himself. I certainly felt that I was
in an ambiguous and difficult position when issues arose which seemed to suggest
a conflict between what the B.I.F companies wanted to do and what I thought the
bank should be doing. It is not just west versus east; that is almost a co-inci-
dence. This bank was set up to be a bank of western Canada and public
statements were made that it would carry on its operations in western Canada
and lend its funds in western Canada, and so on. So that is the western factor.

This is challenged, or upset, if a financial institution, whether in western
Canada or eastern Canada, threatens to use its voting power, through holding of
stock, to secure that certain transactions are done and arrangements entered into
to benefit it, without necessarily being within the ambit of the kind of operation
the Bank of Western Canada was supposed to carry out. And which they could
not do, I may say. They could not wield this influence, or attempt to wield this
influence, if it were provided in the act, once more, that no one could hold more
than 10 per cent of the stock.

Mr. THOMPSON: Could you interpret the resignation of Mr. Stevens as
President of the York Trust and the York Lambton organizations as an attempt
to smooth over those differences that you have been referring to?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think that that was related to the Bank of Western
Canada situation in any way.

Mr. THoMPSON: You mention that you have engaged staff who are presently
occupied in setting up the organization for the opening of your doors for
business. How soon do your plans call for the opening of your first bank?

Mr. CoyNE: Whatever ideas we had a little while ago have been somewhat
delayed by recent developments. We have not yet completed negotiations for
premises for our first branch in Winnipeg. We know where we want to go, and
we are negotiating, but there are certain problems, including legal problems
from the landlord’s point of view, which have delayed things so that we probably
could not, in any event, be ready to open our branch, properly fixed up and with
the changes and improvements we would have to make in the premises, before
May 1.

Mr. THoMPSON: But you had intended to open your first branch in the city of
Winnipeg.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, in the city of Winnipeg; where the head office is.

Mr. THOMPSON: In your October meeting of the board of directors of the
bank you made a very clear statement about your own views and the intention
of the bank serving western Canada, and that it was basically a western bank.
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Even t 3 .
e hat time you stated that it was not to be controlled by any group in the

haveM'z. COYI.\IE: I said that_ I thought it was very important that it should not

tiOnall ; affairs entangl.ed in any way with the affairs of the British Interna-

s b1n§mce companies, and that it was equally important that the public

oy elieve thl§ and should not think that this bank was in some way mixed

St ) and' dominated 'py, these other' financial institutions because we would

the ge. the kmgl of reception we would like to get amongst potential customers if

y did not think it was a genuine bank of western Canada.
o2 Peqple had not been lacking as you know, to say, both in parliament and out
. Par_llamenrj: that the bank was indeed just a front for some other type of
Peration which was contemplated.

3 I began tq realize more and more, as the months went by in the autumn,
W strong this atmosphere of skepticism could be, and was growing to be, in

Western Canada. ,

. Mr THOMPSON: Can I assume, then, from your statement that you had fears
at this was taking place as early as October?

Mr. Coyne: I had fears that we would have difficulty in convincing the
g:rtl’ll{m, and in telling truthfully to the public, that this bank was being run as a
for certain purposes related to its functions as a bank in western Canada,

and not being run in such a way as to serve the purposes of financial institu-

tions. . .
Mr. THoMPSON: Were you aware even at that time—
Mr. COYNE: . ..which were shareholders.

Mr. THOMPSON: Were you aware even at that time that the BIF group were
he benefit of the BIF organiza-

aco?flly using the Bank of Western Canada for t

Mr. CoynE: On February 1 it was indicated to me that discussions in New

gprk to this effect had been going on for some time; I do not know how long. I
ild not realize that this was being done; that attempts were being made to
nterest various American banks, which finally succeeded in the case of one, or
One group of American banks. Various suggestions were in the air that, somehow,
1f, only the bank could assist the group in their present difficulties, it was only

Tight and fair that this should be done.
This matter of the purchase of the fi

me before the meeting of December 16.
Mr., THoMPSON: Just one more question in this regard: I think it was in this
October statement that you mentioned that you felt that the western directors
ad no real interest in furthering the BIF group to the Bank of Western Canada,
and that their intention was basically to develop a bank the primary objective of

Which was to serve western Canada?
Mr. CoynE: I expressed that view on my own behalf.

Mr. THoMPSON: Yes. Did you not feel that the connection that four of your
.weS_terI_) directors had with trust companies that were part of the BIF group was
n.ldlcatlve of the reach that it had even into western Canada through the

directors of the bank at that time?

nance paper portfolio was mentioned to
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Mr. CoyNE: I was not afraid of that because I had every confidence that the
directors concerned would put the interests of the bank first. In addition to that,
two of those directors were connected with a company which really runs itself
with a reasonable degree of independence, which is not dominated by the BIF
group; and the other two were directors of companies which were in the process
of being merged, or wound-up, under a reorganization scheme which the BIF
group were putting forward; and, therefore, their connection there was bound to
terminate within a few months, in any event.

Mr. THOMPSON: I would just like to question you on one more aspect of your
statement.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps you could pose your question and I will permit Mr.
Coyne to answer. The 20-minute period of questioning has just expired, accord-
ing to our clerk.

Mr. THOMPSON: May I just ask one more question?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. THOMPSON: You are very clear, Mr. Coyne, in your statement, that it is

your opinion, regarding the bank legislation that we are now considering, that no
American bank should be permitted to hold any shares in a Canadian bank.

Mr. CoyNE: Voting shares.

Mr. THOMPSON: Then you believe that even paragraphs (a) and (b) of
clause 53(1), which limit the amount of American ownership in any one
Canadian bank to 25 per cent, or to 10 per cent as an individual, are too
generous, do you? _

Mr. CoyNE: I may be unduly influenced by the experience I have just been
through, but I do not think it is desirable. If an American bank wants to be an
investor in some way—a pure investor and nothing else—that is one thing; but if
its only interest is to try to get a connection with a Canadian bank of a kind
which the directors of that bank would not normally enter into with it, and if
that American bank has other connections of its own—for instance, this bank in
New York, with the line of credit made available to the British International
Finance, is, itself, a subsidiary of a finance company, I believe. There are all sorts
of possibilities of a kind that could cause difficulty for the Canadian bank
concerned.

Mr. THOMPSON: Could I ask—

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, I wonder if Mr. Thompson

would permit a supplementary question of Mr. Coyne?
Can Mr. Coyne identify the American bank through which this line of credit

was arranged?
Mr. CoyNE: Well, I am not very anxious to.

Mr. MacpoNaLD (Rosedale): If the Committee felt that it would be helpful
would you then be anxious to?

Mr. CoynNE: Perhaps Mr. Stevens could identify it for you.

The CHAIRMAN: I think I should reserve, for the time being, the question of
the relevance of this particular bit of information.




="

F
eb. 7, 1967 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 3049

Mr. THoMPSON: I have just one last question, Mr. Chairman.
i Actually, Mr_. (_Joyne, what you are recommending to this Committee is that,
P your own opinion, in the case of the Mercantile Bank this 25 per cent
quirement of the present legislation should be reduced to zero?

er Mr. CoyNE: I did not intend to make any recommendations with specific
e I;ienge to the Mercantile Bank, and perhaps I have not phrased my recom-
anél at{on too carefully, or too well. Surely the basic point, that I am making,
ity t‘;Vhlch runs thr'ough all of these questions, is: Let your Canadian banks be
Sl ya bpard of d.lrectors whose only object is the welfare of the institution, as
Ee , and its depositors and its general body of shareho'ders; and do not let any
e ege shfireholder have too much influence, either in electing the board or in how
muciﬁalrg of the bank are carried on. Now, if an American bank obtained very
voting stock it would perhaps be in a position to exercise a lot of influence.
- MI“. THOMP_SON: I think, Mr. Coyne, even if nothing else comes out of your
Pearing here in the sessions today, that certainly your opinion in this regard is
very timely.
o The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Thompson. I recognize Mr. Lambert, fol-
Wed by Mr. Cameron.
s Mr. LA.MBERT: Mr. Coyne, I have re-read the
S Commlttee dealing with the incorporation o
Ot(})lu will recall that at the time we were discussing with you, Mr. Stevens and
exteI‘s seeking the incorporation of this bank the nature of the holdings, or the
o ent of the holdings of the BIF group, it was disclosed by Mr. Stevens and
Jourself that this would ultimately come to 51 per cent. This was clearly
Indicateqd.
"y Mr. CoyNE: Yes; subject to the provision that it was to be re
€riod of time to 10 per cent.
Mr. LAMBERT: Granted; and at that time the Bank Act did not require it.
Mr. CoynE: No; but special provisions were put in our charter.
MI‘..LAMBERT: I will come to that. You will recall that as a result of
gtlestlomng by, I think, the member of York South and Mr. Coates, myself and
al'her s, about the possibility of the control of the Bank of Western Canada being
501,ef1’ated, the sponsors agreed to incorporate what is known as “the group of
$” to clauses of Bill No. C-102 which at that time provided for no holdings in
€Xcess of 25 per cent. On the motion of Mr. Lewis, the member for York South,
IS was reduced to 10 per cent.
a MI‘ COYNE: Yes, this was adopting, in our charter,
thommlttee, clauses which the Minister of Finance had already
W;_ House of Commons would be proposed to be included in th
Ich was not yet in operation. <
Mr. LamBerT: Not quite; they were in the first proposal.

Mr. CoynE: Yes.
b Mr. LamBerT: They were in the first propose
ave been changes in Bill No. C-222.
25700—3

transcript of the proceedings of
f the Bank of Western Canada.

duced over a

when it came before this
given notice in
e new bank act

d Bill No. C-102; and there
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Mr. CoynNE: Yes; but I think the Inspector General of Banks told this
Committee at that time that it was contended that in the next version of the new
bank act these clauses would also be present. In other words, our bank was going
to put in, immediately, clauses which were going to be in effect later for all
banks.

Mr. LAMBERT: Yes; this is so. He expected that this would be done.
Mr. CoyNE: I am not trying to deprive you of credit for these clauses.

Mr. LaMBERT: No, no; there is no question about that. My point is, however,
that I find, shall I say, a rather curious paradox between your statemnt of
February 3 and what you obviously knew and accepted at the time of the
incorporation. As an amendment to the incorporating act there was deliberately
provided for first of all, 25 per cent; then at the request of the Committee there
was a reduction to 10 per cent, and this within the powers of the bank. Under
Bill No. C-222 it is even more extensive, because it is 10 per cent for one hold-
ing, and a maximum of 25 per cent in non-resident holdings. Yet in your state-
ment you feel that there is something wrong in negotiations, or feelers—I do
not know the extent of them—that a 10 per cent interest in the Bank of West-
ern Canada would be sold to a non-resident.

My point is, frankly, that this was not illegal under the charter, and, as a
matter of fact, would be even less illegal under the proposed act.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think it could be less illegal.

Mr. LAMBERT: Well, in so far as it concerns non-residents. I perhaps used
the wrong description.

Mr. CoyNE: If you are saying that I hold somewhat different views now from
what I held a year ago, you are quite correct.

Mr. LaMBERT: I wanted to establish that.

Mr. CoynNE: At the same time, it was discussed in this Committee whether
this group would be likely to sell out their stock to non-residents, and I am
pretty sure the answer given was that there was no such intention.

Mr. LAMBERT: On re-reading the evidence, I have not been able to come
across it in quite those terms; it is possible that it is there. However, I was
seeking to bring out this change of opinion.

That is all, Mr. ‘Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you completed your questioning?

Mr. LAMBERT: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Cameron?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Coyne, I presume that
before the Treasury Board passed its minute of August 3 last year you and your
associates had a meeting with the Minister of Finance.

Mr. CoyNE: With the Inspector General of Banks; not with the Minister of
Finance.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): With the Inspector
General of Banks.
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3 Mr. CoynE: Yes, as I recall. I know we had a meeting with him, but I do not
hink we had a meeting with the Minister of Finance.

Mr. CamERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): What I am interested in
finding out are the means by which the Minister of Finance—because it must
haVe. k?een he—was persuaded that it would be acceptable to make the special
Provision for the divesting period, which you now feel should be rescinded.
Wh'at was the argument that was put forward on the situation as you explained
1t to him at that time?

Mr. CoyNE: Mr. Stevens and I saw the Inspector General of Banks, and I
certainly supported this proposal—and participated in it—that we had said all
along that we felt that it was necessary to have a strong group sponsoring the
bapl;, and that arrangements had been made, indeed, for them to put up $6%
million in capital. We accepted the idea that ultimately this had to be reduced to
not more than 10 per cent of the bank, but obviously this could not be brought
about over night. It needed a period of time in which the bank could get
established and plans could be made by which the group’s holding would either
be reduced in absolute terms, or in proportionate terms, to the 10 per cent figure.
The order that was made reflects that viewpoint which, I presume, was accepta-
ble to the people who made the order.

Cowichan-The Islands): Now, Mr. Coyne, I would
ather more than two years—I
to see me in my office.

3 Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-
ike you to cast your mind back, if you would, r
am not quite sure of the date—to when you came
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
Mr. CamERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-Th
%30311, I and some of my colleagues were holding up the passa
estern Canada bill in the House.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

. Mr. CamEeroN (Nanaimo-Cowich
Talsed with you at the time that it ap

e Islands): At that time, as you may
ge of the Bank of

an-The Islands): As you may remember, I
peared to me that although the claim was

being made that this was going to be a Bank of Western Canada, it was
Impossible to avoid taking note of the fact that the principals, including yqurself,
at that time were all located in the city of Toronto. As I recall it at tl:lat time, in
or }ie_r to re-assure me on this point, you told me that you had approximately $12
million—I would not say subscribed—in prospect of being subscribed in western
Canada,
Mr. CoynE: No, not that amount in western ©
Was subscribed in western Canada.
b Mr. CamERON (N anaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): As I say, my memory may
e faulty but I seem to—
th Mr. Coyne: I think we made that very clear in the first appearance before
le' Senate in February or March of 1964, which was before we saw you. It was
allin the public record as to what these subscriptions were.
Mr. CaAMERON ( Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I may have misunder-
;tood you at that time but I certainly have a rather clear recollection of the
gure of $12 million being— :
25700—33

anada; somewhere over half
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Mr. CoynE: The total capital was $12 million to $13 million, and something
over half of that was subscribed by residents of western Canada.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Now, I see by the
Treasury Board minute that—

Mr. CoynE: Part of the subscription by residents of western Canada was for
shares in British International Finance companies, so it went indirectly to the
bank. About half of the capital was subscribed directly by residents of western
Canada through a trust fund which was set up in Winnipeg and administered by
the Canada Permanent Trust Company.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Part of what sum?

Mr. CoynNE: Of the $13 million. About $6,400,000, I think it was, was
subscribed in that particular way.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Through the BIF.

Mr. CoyNE: No, through a trust fund, which was to be turned over to the
bank in return for shares in the bank. Those subscriptions, except for certain
institutional ones like the western life insurance companies, were limited to 200
shares per person. That was in an effort to get wide distribution in western
Canada and, in fact, I think 5,500 individual subscriptions were received.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Did I understand you
correctly when you said just now that there was another proportion of it that
was subscribed in western Canada to companies in the BIF group?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, more particularly to the capital stock of Canadian Finance
and Investments Limited, which I mentioned earlier.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Which is one of the mem-
bers of that group.

Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Could you tell us, Mr.
Coyne, what the situation now is with regard to direct subscriptions from
western Canada for stock in the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: In the interval the trustee certificates, which were originally
issued before the bank existed, were capable of being bought and sold and
transfers registered, exgept that no transfer of those certificates could be made in
the name of a non-resident. That went on, and I understand—although I have no
direct information—that to some extent the western interest declined and the
eastern interest increased; that is to say, people in other parts of the country
bought some of these certificates from the holders in western Canada by a free
transaction in the stock market.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): So you are not able now
to tell us what, in effect, is the western investment?

Mr. CoyNE: By way of investment, no, I cannot tell you what the figure is.
However, I could find out at some stage.

Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): With regard to the
suggestion, Mr. Coyne, in your statement, which appears at the second page of

————
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those papers which we have been given, you say this:

I wish to recommend to Parliament that, before the new Bank Act is
finally passed, the prohibition upon voting stock, in excess of 10 per cent
of the total, be put back into force for new Banks, just as it is for the
older banks. In other words, the authority given to the Treasury Board or
to the Governor in Council to grant exemption to majority shareholders
in new banks should be reversed.

. Then you mention the American bank. Now, what effect do you think this
will have on your success in financing the Bank of Western Canada if the
Committee and parliament accepts your suggestion?

Mr. CoyNE: I think it would serve to reassure the community where we hope
to operate that the affairs of the bank were being administered by directors who
were elected by the general shareholders and they were not subject to removal
at the instance of some one group holding 51 per cent of the shares.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): You merely suggest that
they should be deprived of their voting power, is that it, or are you suggesting
they should immediately divest themselves of ownership to the extent of 10 per
cent?

Mr. CoynE: Well, that could not be done immediately. I have indeed sug-
gested to them—and the suggestion has come up in discussion—that they would
b? willing to sell some of their stock to westerners if there are v_/estgrners who
Wwould like to buy it. But my suggestion here for public discussion 1s that the
voting privilege be removed.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Thank you,
have for now.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fulton?

erstood correctly, there is a conflict in Mr. Coyne’s
e told Mr. Thompson and Mr.

that is all I

Mr. Furton: If I have und

testimony between what he told me and what he tol
Cameron just now. I would like to get it cleared up, if I may ask a supplemen-

tary question. I thought you had told me, Mr. Coyne, that there was no author%ty
given at any meeting of the board of the Bank of Western Canada to discuss with
the Minister of Finance or officials in Ottawa the proposal which you told us Mr.
Stevens had been pressing on you. There had been no authority given to discuss
this and a rather vague minute was then made about the whole matter.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
Mr. FuLTtoN: I am correct in that understanding?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. FurTon: Then it seemed to me you tol
Cameron, if I heard you correctly, that some time in Fe
Stevens were in Ottawa discussing with Mr. Elderkin,
Banks, a relaxation of the Treasury Board restriction.

Mr. CoynE: No. What I said was that it was last July, I think, we were In
Ottawa discussing with the Inspector General of Banks what Treasury Boar_d
Testriction would be put in and that is the one which allows 10 years for this

d Mr. Thompson and also Mr.
bruary both you and Mr.
the Inspector General of
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reduction in holdings from over 50 per cent down to 10 per cent. That was what

we discussed with him.

Mr. FurToN: There was no discussion either before or after December of
1966 and January and February of 1967 by you with any official in Ottawa of the
relaxation of these provisions which prevented the banks from having financial
transactions with the BIF through the company?

Mr. CoyNE: Other than the one I read about in the newspaper today in
which Mr. Sharp mentioned—perhaps before your Committee—a talk he had
with Mr. Stevens yesterday, I believe.

Mr. FuLToN: There was no discussion by you?
Mr. CoynNE: No.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): May I ask a supplemen-
tary question, Mr. Chairman?

The CBAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I would like to refer you,
Mr. Coyne, to section (f) on the second page of the Treasury Board minute
where there are five provisions outlined of actions which the bank must not take
except with the prior approval of the Minister of Finance. I gather from what
you have said this afternoon, Mr. Coyne, that you very strongly disapprove of
the bank taking any of these actions. I gather that these are part of your dispute
with your associates. I am wondering why this was included, which would give
the Minister of Finance authority to do these things which you have stated you
would not approve of, and I gather you felt it was fairly clearly understood at
the time that it should not be done.

Mr. CoynE: I feel it was understood when we were before parliament that
this would not be done. The actual terms of the Treasury Board order were not
discussed with me. I had no knowledge of this particular clause until I read it in
the Treasury Board order.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): You have no idea at all
why the Minister of Finance would put that in?

Mr. CoynE: Other than the obvious one, to reinforce the assurances that
were given to parliament by this group.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It would be reinforced
still more if the clause ‘“‘except with the prior approval of the Minister of
Finance” had been left out, and you think it should have been left out.

Mr. CoyNE: I think so now. I did not complain about it at the time.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Now, that interests me.
Why did you not complain about this at the time? Did you not disapprove of it at
that time?

Mr. Coyne: Do you mean last August?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes, did you not disap-
prove of these possible actions at that time?

Mr. CoyNE: It did not actually occur to me that the case would ever arise at
that time. It seemed to me that Treasury Board were merely legislating some-
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thi :

th:engr‘i?;mh was already clegr}y undersfcood. Referring to the clause “except with

in there Flijpproval of the Minister of Fl‘nance”, I do not know why that was put

SOInethj‘ erhaps it was just so that it would not be absolutely rigid in case

consid ng came up that had to be done, I do not know. However, I did not really
er the matter at that time at all.

man.Ml‘- CaMEeRON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Thank you,

Mzr. Chair-

The CrATRMAN: I now recognize Mr. Macdonald.

Mr. MacponaLp (Rosedale): Mr. Coyne, referring to your change of mind

wit A
h respect to the regime set up by Treasury Board minute No. 658534, do I

und e
erstand your position to be that your change of mind with regard to that
as your ambiguous and

regi
diigﬁlgﬁ occurred as a result of what you referred to
t position, vis-a-vis the BIF company.

Mr. CoynE: Change of mind with regard to what provision of that order?

the~Mr' MacponaLD (Rosedale): Specifically with regard to the provisions that

Mr. CoyNE: That permit voting to take place?

Mr. MacponaLp (Rosedale): —shares need not be divested immediately, but

Mmay be held for a period of—

Drov?ll-r' CoyNE: The main point that I would say I changed my mi
sion that they would be allowed to be voting stock.

nd on is the

Mr. MacponaLp (Rosedale): I see.

beenMr' CoyNE: Whereas, but for this Tr
blain Zotlng stock. But that was contemp
Statuteil at anything was done that was not co

easury Board order, it would not have
lated in the statute; one cannot com-
ntemplated as a possiblity in the

a0 I\I’Ir. MacponaLp (Rosedale): Referring to your press release of February 3,
under tam referring to the paragraph at the top of jche second page, do I
Dolicj stand that when you refer to a want of confidence In the management and

1es of those companies you are referring specifically to the proposals that

re]
ated to the Bank of Western Canada?
Mr. Coyne: No.

A Mr. MacponaLD (Rosedale): You are not refe
Toader one?

rring specifically to that but to

Mr. Coyne: Yes.

jurislgl'r' _MACDONALD (Rosedale): As a matter of
ry Iction was British International Finance,
St incorporated?

interest, Mr. Coyne, under what
Wellington Financial, and York

but I think British International

Mr. Coyne: I am not absolutely certain
Wellington Financial is a federal

com;ce is an Ontario company. I know that
any and York Trust is an Ontario company-.

Fing
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Mr. MacpoNALD (Roseddle): Reverting to my earlier question, I refer
specifically to the final sentence of your press release, which reads:

No American bank shall be entitled to hold any shares in a Canadian
bank.

Could you tell us specifically the names of the American banks with whom
the BIF group of companies were negotiating?

Mr. CoynNE: I think this question came up a little earlier. I would prefer not
to name names, particularly as the man who can tell you those names is going to
appear here himself.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): That is fine, I will reserve the question. Now, to
develop Mr. Cameron’s line of questioning—and correct me if I mis-state your
evidence of last year—as I understood your reasoning at the time you felt that a
strong group was necessary in the initial years of a bank in order to get it off the
ground.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, and that it was necessary to have a group already there in
order to prevent anybody else from coming in and assuming control. What I did
not give enough value to was the fact that in the new Bank Act the ban on any-
body holding more than 10 per cent would really prevent a new group from
coming in and getting control, and that I should have realized, but did not,
destroyed a good part of the argument in favour of allowing any group to start
off in control.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): Do you feel that the fact that there will not be a
strong group in control, that is to say, that there will not be voting control if
your suggestions are adopted, will that prejudice the future of the Bank of
Western Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: No. I have now seen, (a) that a group of independent directors
are capable of overseeing the affairs of the bank from the start and, (b), that a
group of professional bankers can be brought together who will take on the job
of organizing the bank. I have great confidence in the still rather small group of

men who have been brought together and are engaged in this planning operation

right now.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): In other words, you are confident that manage-
ment, as opposed to,ownership, can get this off the ground.

Mr. CoyNE: I am confident that management, as opposed to ownership,
supervised by an independent board of directors is the right thing, and I am
confident that the British International Finance group have nothing to offer by
way of advice or assistance that will help the bank and that they have attempted
to do things which would be harmful to the bank and that the bank is suffering
from the fact that in the public mind it is so intimately associated with the
British International financial group.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): You say in the third paragraph on the second

page of your press release:
...they have attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own
companies contrary to the most explicit statements made to the Com-
mittees of the Senate and of the House of Commons. . .
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Wi
st::;'gd you by any chance be able to give us chapter and verse the explicit
ments made to this committee last year?

Mr. Coyng: I have a recollection of them, yes.
availM}gi MACDONALD (R_osedale): 1 wonder if you could undertake to make those
minda e to the committee sO that we will know speciﬁcally what you had in

when you made that statement.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. MACDONALD (Rosedale): Similarly, in the final line of that same para-
graph you say:

.. .again contrary to statements made when applying for a charter.

I ?
wonder if you could give us the same undertaking with regard to those

statements.

specil‘f{l[é‘-ICOYNE: I am sorry, I have not been looking t
Horte ally for that point, I was looking for the other point as the major one-.
dess avgl} I know there was a general atmosphere of quegtion}ng in this commit-
is th nd in the Senate Committee two years earlier, on this point. My recollection
to Aat we did our best to assure people that this grouP was not going to sell out
o mericans. Somebody suggested, «Ig this just & front for something and we

wind up seeing some American interests owning the bank?”, and wWe said,

((Deﬁnitely not”.
Mr. MacponaLDp (Rosedale): Thank you, MT. Coyne.

thos;_rhe CHAIRMAN: I now recognize Mr. Monteith..l mig
hedd concerned who have not had a chance to review our
Ok Egs in support of Bill No. c-111, an Act to incorporate Bank of Western
o ’?[‘ha’ that they are proceedings numbers 1, 2 and 3. The dates of the hearings
Manr ursday, February 17, Tuesday, March 1, Thursday, March 3, .and Tuesday,
be ch 8, 1966, and they run from page 1 to page 176 of our proceedmgs. It w';vould
th easy for those interested to check what was said at that time by referring to

ese minutes.

I will now recognize Mr. Monte

Munro, Mr. Wahn and Mr. Coates.
e l\élr. MonTerTH: Mr. Chairman, I have a Vvery sr.:ort quest.ion which T wou1'd
o ask. On page 99 of the proceedings you just mentioned 1 asked this

Question of Mr. Stevens:
I take it that 2,000 people have
for stock totalling 250,000 shares?

Mr. SteveNs: That is correct.

e Canadian Finance have taken a block of

150 Mr. MoNTEITH: 1 understand th
,000 shares, totalling $2,250,000. ;
Now Mr. Coyne, of this latter amount $1,500,000 has not been subscribed?
Mr. Coyng: To be exact, $1,450,000 has not been completed.
% Mr. MonTEITH: I assumed from this question and answer that these funds
ad definitely been allocated. Was 1 right in doing that?

through the hearings

ht say for the interest of
minutes om the initial

ith, and following him on the list T have Mr.

subscribed $3,750,000 to Wellington
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Mr. CoyNE: No, sir. I think we made it quite clear that Canadian Finance
and Investments Limited had certain funds and was to receive a further $700,000
in due course; that it was in the business of investing in financial institutions;
that it had agreed to take up $2,250,000 worth of stock in the Bank of Western
Canada but it did not put those funds in trust for that purpose, as was done in
certain other cases. In the two other cases where that was done the condition, of
the trust was that the money would be paid back if the charter did not ever come
through.

Mr. MonTeITH: That would be that money in Canada Permanent and
Wellington?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, but in the case of Canadian Finance and Investments’
money, if there were no bank charter the money remained as capital of Canadian

Finance and Investments Limited and would be used by them in their operations
and for investments, as was spelled out in the prospectus issued at the time.

Mr. MoNTEITH: So that one could not say that there were funds in Canadian
Finance that had been definitely allocated and used elsewhere?

Mr. CoyNE: No.
Mr. MoNTEITH: Thank you.
The CHAIRMAN: I now recognize Mr. Munro.

Mr. MuNRO: Mr. Chairman, as I understand in the statement given by Mr.
Coyne today, he has given three reasons for his resignation. The first reason is
that they, referring to the BIF' group in particular:

failed to make good their subscription for shares to the extent of about
$1,500,000.

The second reason is that:

They have attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own
companies contrary to the most explicit statements.

The third reason is that:

They are presently engaged in a borrowing operation with American
banks

—and so on, and are selling shares amounting to some 10 per cent. Would you
have taken the actior’ which you have presently taken, Mr. Coyne, for any one
of those three reasons.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know. Those were not the only reasons for my
resignation. Those are the three points having special reference to the Bank of
Western Canada which I itemized in my statement in addition to the fact that
their image is doing a disservice to the Bank of Western Canada. These matters
came up with a bit of a rush in the last four, five or six weeks and I had been
worrying about them and about what I could do and about what the effect of my
resignation from the British International Finance companies would be. I had,
indeed, resigned from most of the companies in that group in the middle of
January but I reserved for further consideration what I would do with respect to
three companies. It was just a question of timing in my mind more than any-
thing else. However, I was simultaneously very concerned about how we were
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going to rescue—as I would put it—the Bank of Western Canada_and its image
and put it in shape to operate on the basis that we had promised people it
would operate.

Mr, Munro: As I understand it, Mr. Coyne, you indicate in the statement
that you are resigning from the boards of directors because you no longer have
confidence in the management Or policies of those companies.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
K Mr. MuNgro: And I take it what led you to this point where you no longer
ave such confidence is for these three reasons?

Mr. CoyNE: I think when I was questioned earlier I said that I had other
Teasons.

Mr. Munro: I take it these would be the three principal——
nk of Western

Mr. CoynNe: These are the reasons which relate to the Ba
Canada.

Mr. MunRro: I see. Do you regard the failure to make good the subscr_iption
foxj shares to the extent of $1,500,000 to be a definite preach of undertaking at
this stage, or do you feel that it is reasonable to assume that they should have
more time to make up this deficiency?

Mr. CoyNE: When you take it in conjunction with the fact that they are
saying they have the voting POWer to control the ba}nk and that other ‘people
must give way to them for that reason, and their voting power depends in part
upon stock which they have not paid for, then I think it becomes Very relevant to

the stand which I have been taking.
to your second reason

Mr. Mungo: 1 think you did state, with reference

Concerning the Bank of Western Canada that you are satisfied by the attempts of
this group to get the bank to provide credit, despite the fact that no formal act
had taken place by the BIF group, that there was no doubt but that they were

going to continue to pressure you and the bank to—

say 1;)’[1‘. CoyNE: What form the next particulall1r'1 approach
Y, but my jud indications was tha :
this kind gf ]pregsﬁrét;é; lese would constantly be told, as we had })een told in
board meetings and elsewhere, that they are the people _who are entitled to hav}e1
he major say on how the bank shall operate, and that it should operate 11 suc
Way as to have connections With the people they .Want the bank to have
Connections with because they also have connections with those people.

Mr. FyuLTon: May I ask a supplementary question?

The CHAIRMAN: If Mr. Munro will yield.
Mr, FuLTon: Has anything been called up on these shares?
i t
Mr. Coyne: I would have to refer to lawyers on this, Mr. Fu}ton. It was no
Quite the same as a normal company subscription where money 15 not due u?tﬁ
called. This was a special form of undertaking given by those concelfned tha'ET 1111 :
Payment would be made on a date to be specified by the board of directors. a

date’ was specified by the poard of directors and notification was given and
Payment was not made.
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Mr. FurToN: How can they vote the shares, then?

Mr. CoynNe: That is something the lawyers will have to look into. I do not
know the situation there.

Mr. Fuvrton: I will not go into the supplementary, but I have in mind
whether you are quite right when you say they are in a position to exercise
control under the circumstances which you now describe.

Mr. CoyNE: Perhaps I should say that they think they are in a position to
exercise control, and say so from time to time.

Mr. FuLToNn: It is a clash of personalities.

Mr. MunNRo: With reference to your third reason, Mr. Coyne, that they are
presently engaged in a borrowing operation which involves giving an option on
10 per cent of the total shares, in terms of specific action taken by this group
what would that action constitute?

Mr. CoyNE: The boards of directors of Wellington Financial Corporation and
British International Finance passed resolutions—against, of course, my dissent-
ing vote—on Wednesday, February 1, favouring in principle a financial operation
which involved securing a line of credit to a subsidiary of these companies in
New York which would be guaranteed by both of these companies, and I think it
was suggested that their obtaining of the money from the subsidiary in New
York would be supported by a pledge of Bank of Western Canada stock. In
addition to that, the real lender in New York had been told he had an option on
stock which he would buy in British International Finance or Bank of Western
Canada up to 10 per cent of the total of the stock in the Bank of Western Canada.
Now, “option” was the word that was used in all those discussions. It did not
specify what the price would be and I do not know whether it would be legally
enforceable.

Mr. Munro: What is the principal source of your objection to this type of
undertaking? Is it because you feel that it was a breach of commitment to
parliament or parliamentary committees or is it because of the interrelationship
that seemed to be evolving with these American interests through lending
arrangements and staff, and so on, that there were more implications than you
had ever anticipated in terms of foreign capital coming in?

Mr. CoyNE: That,is right, yes.

Mr. Mungro: Did both factors contribute to your taking serious objection to
this action? Which is paramount in your mind, this breach of commitment to the
committee or this sort of experience you have had over the last two or three
weeks?

Mr. CoyNE: I cannot specify the order of importance of all these factors. I
think when you take them altogether they are pretty devastating.

Mr. MunNRro: Would your objection be so serious if it had not come to your
knowledge that there were these interrelationships and implications? Would you
then have taken any exception to, say, 10 per cent of the stock being sold to
Americans?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know now. Knowing now what I do know, I would take
objection to anything of that sort, but I think your question is too hypothetical
for me.




s

Feb. 7, 1967 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 3061

Mr. WAHN: Mr. Coyne, I would just like to clear my own mind with regard
t°. those portions of your statement with which this Committee should be
Pr}marjly concerned. Looking at your statement of February 3, you say in the
thirq baragraph that the BIF group:

-« .have failed to make good their subscription for shares to the extent of
about $1,500,000,. . .

Am I correct in assuming that this is not a matter for our consideration,
really; this is a problem for you in the Bank of Western Canada and it has no
Televance to anything that we are considering?

Mr. CoyNE: Well, of course, that is for you to say rather than me.

Mr. WanN: Let me put it this way. How do you see that that is relevant to
our considerations? I can see that the Bank of Western Canada would be very
Concerned if a large subscriber failed to pay up in accordance with his subscrip-
tion, but 1 find it difficult to see how this Committee is concerned.

Mr. Covyne: Well, sir, I have not said that this Committee ha§ to be
oncerned in the matter at all. That is a matter for other people to decide.

Mr. WAHN: You cannot give me any reason why you think this Committee
should be concerned about this particular part of your statement?

Mr. CoynE: I can only say that part of the presentation made to parliament
Was that these total funds would be forthcoming to finance the bank in its initial

‘Capital.

Mr. WanN: From that point of view you feel that the rep?esentat'ion made to
th.e Committee has not been fulfilled. I can see from that point of view that we
Might be concerned. Did they, in fact, undertake to subscribe a specified amount?

Mr. CovyNE: Yes.
Mr. WAHN: Which they have not done.
Mr. CoyNE: That is right.

Mr. WaHN: You also state in the third paragraph:
.. .they have attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own
Ccompanies contrary to the most explicit statements made to the Com-
mittees of the Senate and of the House of Commons, . . .
Could you give us your recollection of those explicit statements? What did
they undertake—
Mr. Coyne: I can give you my recollection of it. I also have the record here
of extracts from the hearings of the Committee on that particular point.

Mr. WanN: Perhaps it would be useful to get those for our own reference,

Mr, Chairman.

« The CHAIRMAN: Yes. Mr. Coyne has just handed me a document entitled
Bank of Western Canada, Extracts from Senate and Commons Committees’
€arings” and this seems to deal with your question. I wonder what would be

Most convenient to you, Mr. Wahn, with respect to your line of questioning?
houlq 1 invite Mr. Coyne to read this and have it copied over the supper

Adjournment, or—

Mr. WagN: I think it might be helpful, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. LaMBeRT: This is on page 171 of our minutes.

The CHAIRMAN: There are also some references to the Senate hearings which
we may not have before us.

An hon. MEMBER: I move they be read now.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. CoyNE: These are only the extracts I happen to have made personally.

Mr. MAcDONALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, on this point I think what we
should hear is what Mr. Coyne thinks is important about what was said in this
committee and not so much about what may be in the general record.

Mr. CoyNE: Well, that is what I have extracted from the record.

The CHAIRMAN: Having heard the views of the Committee, I think I should
suggest to Mr. Wahn that he invite Mr. Coyne to read these extracts which he
has compiled on this particular point that was raised.

Mr. MoNTEITH: You suggested, Mr. Chairman, that you might have copies
made during the dinner hour.

The CHAIRMAN: I will ask the Clerk to attempt to do so if the Xerox machine
is open. Will you proceed now, Mr. Coyne.

Mr. CoyNE: The first reference I have is the Senate Banking and Commerce
Committee Proceedings No. 1 of March 18, 1964. On pages 37 and 38 Mr. Stevens
said:

It would not be our intention should we receive a charter to have
other companies in our group borrow funds from the new bank. In fact,
prior to announcing our intention to apply for a bank charter, we spoke to
each of the existing banks with which we deal and gave and received
assurances from them that in the event we received a charter, our group’s
existing banking arrangements would be maintained.

And further at page 40 of the same reference, Mr. Coyne said:

At this point I should like to state as Mr. Stevens has done without
qualification that we do not intend to use the funds of this bank to make
loans to other institutions, such as York Trust, Wellington Financial,
British International Finance, Canadian First Mortgage Corporation, or
Simcoe Acceptance, with which some of the organizers of this bank
are connected.

These companies all have established banking connections which they
expect to maintain, and in any case the size of loan that could be made
available by the Bank of Western Canada would be of no interest to them.
Similarly as regards the financial institutions in Western Canada with
which we are connected—in their case, they will no doubt do some of
their regular banking business with the bank, but will not look to it
as a source of funds to be used in their own operations.

And then in this Committee of the House of Commons on February 17, 1966,
Proceedings No. 1, on page 35 Mr. Horner asked: c
Do you intend to build up your banking business by deposits from the
general public?
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Mr. Coyne: Yes.
.Mr. Horner (Acadia): And with connections with a few large com-
panies such as trust companies or loan companies?
geneM? COY_NE: No, we expect to depend entirely on the deposits of the
e ral public. We will have some connections with trust companies, as do
; e other banks. In Western Canada all—
should not have said “all”, but that is the way it reads. I shall continue:
;all_ our people are already associated with two local trust companies, the
Ca? in Winnipeg, the Eort Garry Trust, and the one in Edmonton and
comgary‘, the'A‘lber’ga Fidelity. I would expect those would be the trust
& panies with which we would have closest contacts, but we would not
o I'; ﬁnstance contemplate lending money to them or have them lend money
g e bank. It would be just a normal business relationship.
n March 3, 1966, Proceedings No. 2, Mr. Basford asked at page 90:
. Is there not a danger that the money raised by way of deposit in the
ank qf Western Canada could be used to assist the British International
group in Ontario?
It reads rather strangely now:
Mr: Coyne: I do not know what you mean by danger. I can give you a
gategorlc-al assurance that it will not. I was asked that question in the
enate and I said there was no such intention.
Then on March 8, 1966, Proceedings No. 3, Mr. Stevens said at page 171:
~The other point I would like to mention, Mr. Horner, in connection
with your suggestion that there be some interrelationship between our
other trust companies and the Bank of Western Canada is this. I think, as
was mf;ntlt_)ned in evidence earlier, there certainly is no proposal or
suggestion in our mind that the Bank of Western Canada, in fact, would,
become the banker to the group. I can assure you this will not happen.

ot Mr. WaHN: Would you tell us, Mr. Coyne, what company of the group in

did apply to the bank for credit?

e Mr. CoynE: The proposal did not specify. I took it to relate primarily to the
P company and any subsidiary to which it might wish to direct the funds.

e Mr. WAHN: Was there any formal application made for a loan by any
ember of the BIF group?

- Mr. CO?!NE: There was a proposal which the

comrd rr_leetmg asking the board to approve the i

b anlf:.ames be established equal to 10 per cent of t

Mr. WanN: I just want to make sure that I understand this.
L8 Mr. Coyng: There is a difference between establishing a line of credit and
ually following it up by lending money.

by ‘Mr. WanN: You were correct in thinking that the proposal was

edit with the Bank of Western Canada equal to 10 per cent of the —

president of BIF put before the
dea that a line of credit to his
he capital and reserves of the

for a line of
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Mr. CoyNE: —capital and reserves of the bank.
Mr., WaHN: Of the Bank of Western Canada?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes. This would amount to roughly $1,300,000.

Mr. WanN: In favour of the BIF group. That proposal was made at a
directors’ meeting of the BIF'?

Mr. CoyNE: No, of the bank. We are now talking about this specific proposal.
Mr. WaeN: Was this proposal put to the board of the bank or to you?

Mr. CoynNE: The proposal was put to the board of the bank by the chairman
of the board, who is president of British International Finance.

Mr. WAHN: You are referring to Mr. Stevens. When was this meeting of the
board held?

Mr. CoyNE: On December 16, 1966.

Mr. WanBN: What did the board do?

Mr. CoyNE: I went over this at some length earlier, Mr. Wahn.

Mr. WanN: Yes, I know. I am just trying to—

Mr. CoyNE: The western directors in particular said they did not like the
idea. Various suggestions were made that it was out of order because of a certain
provision in the Bank Act and that we could not consider it while we only had
$13 million of capital, although possibly some day, after we had a lot of deposits,
a much smaller amount could be considered in some way.

Mr. WAHN: Was it turned down?

Mr. CoyNE: There was so much opposition to it that it was withdrawn.

Mr. WanN: Was it put to the board in writing?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

Mr. WannN: Was it a formal proposition or was it just a discussion or
exploration of possibilities?

Mr. CoyNE: It was not a formal motion. It was a matter, though, which the
chairman said he wished to have dealt with and settled at that meeting.

Mr. WaeN: WouM it be fair to say that Mr. Stevens was just exploring the
views of the board with regard to such a loan?

Mr. CoyNE: It would not be fair to suggest that he was not recommending it
and asking for it. He was definitely recommending it and asking for it.

Mr. WaHN: Although there was no formal loan application?

Mr. CoyNE: If it had met with the approval of the individual directors I
suppose it would then have had to take the form of a formal resolution of some
sort which, as you know, would be subject to approaching the Minister of
Finance for his approval of it.

Mr. WAHN: This was at a meeting of the board of directors of the Bank of
Western Canada? 3

Mr. CoynNE: Yes.
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Mr. Wann: At which Mr. Stevens was acting as the chairman of the board of
the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. Coyng: Yes. T g

M. : Di from the BIF group or any member o
-the BIF g :;ls asD cli(lis‘iﬁzt Igzgrfstillisc (;)r:cfposal which origgmated with Mr. Stevens
‘R his tapacity as chairman of the bank?

Mr. CoynE: His broposal was supported by one or more directors who were
there gz Tepresentatives of the BIF group.

Mr. Wany: There was no written proposal from any member of the BIF
8Toup as sych?

Mr. Coyne: I do not think so.

Mr, WAHN: It was only raised, then, by members of the BIF group who alio
happeneq to be members of the board of the Bank of Western Canada, namely

L. StEVens and his associates? : k=

Mr., Coyng: By directors of BIF companies who are also directors o

Bank of Western Canada.

. Mr. Wany: Is there anything in the charter of the Bank of We;:iel:; (;ir;aii
Ylhlch would prevent it from providing credit to these compan
em?

Mr. Coyne: Only the usual limitations on the size of a loan that can be made
to any Company with which a director is associated. :
Mr. WanN: Would that have been infringed by this particular— -
Mr. Coyng: I do not know; I am not at all sure that it would. Of coll‘lgsz,s ;{
the Provisions of the Bank Act were to be fully carried out, olllfce azn?ld I131ave
€Came 5 definite proposal the six BIF dil*ector§, and even myself, w
had to retire from the room while it was dealt with. -
anyu11/[1-. WAHN: In your view would ths proposal for such a loan be contrary to
ing in the Treasury Board minute? . N
. Mr, Coy¥NE: Not technically because it was made subject to going to the
Mlnister of Finance to secure his approval.

; to the

Mr. Wann: So that the proposal, although it may have ?Eg:nf&%gsarzv ot

Statements made to the Committees that sat in the Housetﬁere any"thixig b
Actually i, violation of the charter as issued, nor was

- ; ?
Treasury Board minute which prevented it from being made.. el
Mr., COYNE: There is nothing in the Treasury Board H;I?uteszilfit) xfsr(\e;r’hich
You from applying for the Minister of Finance’s apprqval Ok 415 e SN £
are illega] without his approval and which, if ente.re‘d 1pto w1tho;t Z ; lfpof the;
ave the automatic effect of terminating the voting rights of the s
Peop]e concer
ned. : o
3 Mr. Wany: Was there any discussion at this l?)oard meeting of the possibility
0 3 Al ;
Setting the approval of the Minister of Finance? . 5
. Mr. Coyng: Yes. Do you mean discussion about the likelihood of his granting
it - s
2570H
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Mr. WAHN: Yes.

Mr. CoyNE: Oh, I do not know about that. It was desired that the approval of
the board be obtained first and have the authorization of the board to approach
the Minister of Finance for his approval.

Mr. WaHN: I shall now refer to the next statement.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Wahn, as you are beginning a separate phase of your
questioning and it is now six o’clock, perhaps it might be convenient to recess
until eight, at which time you can complete your—

Mr. Linp: I have a supplementary question, Mr. Chairman, to that asked by
Mr. Wahn.

The CHAIRMAN: I will accept it.

Mr. LinD: Are there any records of the board meeting of December 16 where
this proposal for accommodation or line of credit was put forth?

Mr. CoynE: I do not believe there is a minute of the board meeting express-
ed in those terms. I think the final minutes, which we all felt was the best way
to deal with it, recorded that the President of British International Finance had
informed the board that he proposed, in his capacity as the President of the
British International Finance, to approach the Minister of Finance for clarifica-
tion of the terms of the Treasury Board order, and an indication of the circum=
stances under which he might give his approval to transactions of this character.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you. I think it is convenient now to recess this
meeting until eight o’clock.

EVENING SITTING

The CHAIRMAN: Well, gentlemen, I think we are in a position to resume our
meeting. When we recessed for supper Mr, Wahn had the floor and I recognize
him again.

Mr. WanN: Mr. Coyne, when we recessed we were talking about the direc-
tors meeting of December 16 at which a proposal had been made for a loan to the
BIF group of approximately $1,500,000. Did you have any reason to believe that
loan was being requested for the purpose of paying up the subscription of the
BIF group for th& shares of the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. Coy~NE: No, I do not think it was explicitly tied to that purpose.
Mr. WaHN: Did you think that was the purpose?

Mr. CoyNE: It was not as definite as that. The idea was to have the board
agree in principle that there should be a line of credit and then go to the Minister
of Finance to see if he would approve it. What use would be made of the line of
credit and to what purpose the funds would be put would be for later develop-
ment.

Mr. WanN: Did you know at that time that they might have some difficulty
in coming up with the one million odd dollars they needed to meet their sub-
scription price?

Mr. CoynNE: I knew they had been making various efforts to find funds fol'
that purpose as well as for other purposes. :
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Mr. Wany: Did you say, Mr. Coyne, that this proposal was introduced again
at a boarq meeting of the Bank of Western Canada held on J anuary 20?

Mr. Coyng: It was mentioned.

Mr. Wany: Was it mentioned formally or just in passing?

Mr. Coyng: It was mentioned by the chairman, and perhaps by others; I
tannot reca]) exactly.

Mr. WAHN: What suggestion was made?

b The chairman made a remark to the effect that what had

happened at the December 16 meeting had been merely a form of inquiry on his
Part and not 5 proposal.

Mr. Wann: 1t Wwas not a proposal; it was an exploratory effort?

Mr. Coyne: That is what he said then. !

. Mr. Wapy: If you thought the proposal made on December 16 was in direct
Vlola.tiOn of solemn and sacred pledges given by Mr. Stevens and. yourself t(z
al‘hamentary Committee, why did you not resign, or make a pu;)hc statemen

OF warn the Committee on December 16 rather than on February 17

Mr, CoYNE: What Committee?

Mr. WanN: Well, this Committee, _
Mr. Coyng: I did speak to the board of the Bank of Western Canada abqut it,
Making that argument, but there were many problems that I had_to c!eal w1§h in
Varioyg Capacities, I dic’i not feel on that occasion that I should resign immediate-
Y from thege other boards. :
Mr. Wany: It would be fair to assume—on our part at any rate—thdat ;1;11;:e
the Proposa] or exploratory investigation had been rejected by the _boartho’c thi
a0k of Western Canada you felt, in your best judgment at that time, tha i
Matter yag not sufficiently important to issue a pu_bhc statement “}Ilarrll)mgd “
Public, the government or this Committee. You look it up only with the boar
® Bank of Western Canada. . o)
Mr. Coyng: The fact is that I did not resign from these other companies un
February ],

Mr, WAHN: Yes. I think we are entitled to draw a fair conclusion that—

; titled to hear me
Mr, CoyNE: No, I do not think you are. I thmk, AL 3
Xhen I'say that th(:;re were a number of things which va::ﬁigll]s&u\; 21:5 (Iir;:e::,tegg
Ueh, including th in which the BIF companies, o s : 1
Bere being managed and the way in which they were seeking a5 1 v
ank of Western Canada, and I felt it my duty to stay thez;;e_ a;nl :Zsign at that
:-he best Outcome in all of these situations rather than immediately
Ime,

Mr. WamN: I think that is an indication that you did not _thintlf Wﬁ;ty};f:xi'
been done was sufficiently important to justify an 1m}fneglat:dl_' Z::g;lfbi‘i):and i
Part, or the issui ic statement to warn the Canadi

2 ssuing of a public sta ¢ : . of

Mittee that there was something wrong with the aﬁ;urs of this group
“Mpanies in their dealings with the Bank of Western Canada.
25700\45
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Mr. CoyNE: I had to consider various conflicting possibilities and try to
figure out the best think to do in the circumstances, including having further
talks with the western directors of the bank.

Mr. WanN: Do you have any reason to believe, when Mr. Stevens and you
assured the Committee several years ago that there was no intent to finance the
BIF companies through the Bank of Western Canada, that the statement made at
that time was false?

Mr. CoyNE: No, I have no reason to believe that.

Mr. WAHN: You must have believed the statement made was true at that
time; otherwise you would not have gone along with Mr. Stevens.

Mr. CoyNE: That is right.

Mr. WaHN: Now, two years later, the circumstances have changed and,
perhaps, Mr. Stevens’ ideas have changed as well. In other words, you are not
suggesting that any false statements were made to this Committee at the time of
application for its charter.

Mr. CoyNE: No, I am not suggesting that.

Mr. WasN: With respect to the third point in your statement, you say that
the BIF group:
—are presently engaged in a borrowing operation with American banks
which involves the giving of an option on 10 per cent of the total shares of
the Bank of Western Canada and various arrangements designed to tie the
management and operations of the Bank to the operations of these
Americans banks again contrary to statements made when applying for a
charter.

Which one of those things are—or are they all-—contrary to the statements
which were made when applying for a charter?

Mr CoynNE: There are chiefly two things perhaps. In the first place, although
I cannot quote chapter and verse, my own recollection of proceedings before this
Committee and the Senate Committee is that some people wondered whether
there was any chance this group was either fronting for a group of American
banks or somebody else, or might later sell out to a non-resident, and we
endeavoured to assure the committees that was not so; we had no such intention
and would not do it.

Mr. WAHN: Was there any suggestion at that time that under no circum-
stances should any shares of the bank be sold to non-residents? For example,
under the present bill it is contemplated that up to 10 per cent of the stock can
be held by non-residents.

Mr. CoyNE: It is open to non-residents to buy shares on the open market,
and there was no suggestion at that time that this should be prevented. However,
in our presentation we laid a great deal of stress, particularly before the Senate
Committee, on the fact that the original subscription certificates which were sold
almost entirely in western Canada were not transferable to non-residents at all.

Mr. WanN: I understood you to say that undertaking was carried out.
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
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Ws M}‘- WaAHN: Wpuld you go so far as to say some undertaking or commitment
sell given to Parliament or to the Committee that the BIF group would never
giveany of its shares to non-residents? 1 can understand that they would have
gathn a commitment not to sell control of the company, but we are talking here I
er, about a 10 per cent interest.
Mr. Coyng: This is @& situation which has arisen before they have even

finished paying for the shares they were acquiring. That is rather different,

perhaps, to waiting for five or ten years, OT something of that sort. I do not say
ave to have freedom

tge(;'_e was a commitment never to sell their shares. They h

ispose of investments.

th Mr. Wann: Do you believe the statements made by Mr. Stevens were true at
e time he made them?

Mr. CovyNE: Yes.
Mr. Wany: They were not false at that time?

Mr. Coyng: I do not think so. :
he Bank of Western Canada Act and the

e Mr. WanN: And now we have t 3
easury Board Minute g s Comaas. governing documents relating to

the operations of the Bank of Western Canada.
pONSOrsS of the bank from the

st Mr. CoynE: 1 do not think they absolve the S
atements they made.

Mr. Was: Not even if made in g0od faith at the time?
e time, but the

Mr. CoyNE: Of course not. They were made in good faith at the

i;ct that something was put into the Act or the Treasury Board Minute does not
ean that they are now free to do anything they like, governed only by those

Provisi ; p T
visions instead of by their original agsurances.

Mr. WanN: Are you suggesting that what is said in the course of a Com-

mittee inquiry is binding and definite in the future, nO matter how the circum-

Stances may change?
Mr. CoynE: I do not know about that but certainly, in the spirit in which I

m, Rt
ade those assurances, I consider them binding-

Mr. WanN: What did you teel was the specific thing which violated the .spirit
liament? Was it the

?)ifth-e commitments given by you and Mr. Stevens to par .
ering of an option of not more than 10 per cent of the shares to American

i ’ ;
Nterests, or was it the management arrangements; just what was e

Mr. Covyne: It was the whole complex. It was all part of the same picture
and I do not think you can pick out individual elements of it and say, that would
ave existed without the other elements.

as going to make in answer to your

que '5hat brings me to the second point T W . '

b fs ion and that is a proposal which involved telling American banks even
se e they asked—going around offering it to them—that '.chey could have.
vgemal privileges and special arrangements of some sort with the Bank of
estern Canada provided they did something, not just for the Bank of Western

(& S
anada, but for this particular group of majority stock holders.
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Mr. WaHN: You could very well consider that rather irregular. When did
you first hear of these negotiations with the Americans?

Mr. CoyNE: Negotiations of some sort—the idea that a loan might be ob-
tained by these companies from American banks and/or Canadian banks—were
talked about from time to time over the last six months, but this particular
feature of it and the tie-in with the Bank of Western Canada were not made
known to me until Wednesday, February 1.

Mr. WanN: This particular feature was tied in with the Bank of Western
Canada. What was that? Do you mean the sale of the 10 per cent interest?

Mr. CoynE: Yes, and the other arrangements which were contemplated as I
have outlined.

Mr. MACKASEY: Can I ask a question here, Mr. Wahn?
The CHAIRMAN: If Mr. Wahn will yield.

Mr. MACKASEY: I am trying to get it precisely as you said, Mr. Coyne,
something particular for these major shareholders. Are you stating the reason
these people have approached American interests to turn over 10 per cent of the
shares of the western bank is, not to help the western bank, but to obtain funds
for the B.L.F. group?

Mr. CoynE: Yes, that is right.
Mr. MACKASEY: Thank you.

Mr. WaHN: Just to be sure I heard you correctly, Mr. Coyne, did you say
that prior to February 1 you had no knowledge of information that the BIF
group was thinking of selling some shares in the Bank of Western Canada to
American interests?

Mr. CoyNE: That is correct.

Mr. WaHN: And for entering into any management arrangement with them?
You heard this for the first time on February 1.

Mr. CoyNE: No, nothing in the nature of an arrangement connected with
financing in this way. We had been told by several people in the BIF group that
they thought the way the Bank of Western Canda should operate was to make
connections with some American banks they would name for us, with a view to
showing us how to run a bank in Canada, suggestions which I did not think were
very well founded.

Mr. WaHN: I can see why you might take exception to that as President and
the responsible operating officer of the bank.

Mr. CoyNE: From the management point of view we want to have relations
with American banks, and for some purposes we have to have relations with
American banks, but we want to choose them for ourselves for the maximum
advantage of the Bank of Western Canada and, in many cases, they will be
western American banks operating in the part of the United States nearest to our
field operations.

Mr. WaHN: There is a policy difference here. Is there anything in this
proposal which you heard of on February 1 which is contrary to the charter of
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the
Prop:%:né( of Westefn Canada or to the Treasury Board Minute, or even to the
ed new banking bill on which this Committee is spending so much time?
Ownl\fr" CovNE 3 Everybody who has to consider that matter will have to form his
fam ]p;lmon of it, but I would say that when you are forbidden to borrow from a
with ’s ut you seek to have that bank make some arrangement to your advantage
it domebody else who is going to lend to you, you are trying to go in by the
oor where you are forbidden to g0 in by the front door.
SiIan;/érl. WanN: I am not sure I follow that, Mr. Coyne. It is too involved for a
awyer. I wonder if I could ask you to restate that.

e tM% COYNE:. When you are forbidden, or not allowed, or it is improper for
o borrow directly by going in the front door,—

Mr. WamN: Who is “for you? The BIF group?

bankN-[{' CoyNE: The BIF group. Then it is not a desirable thing, or something the
arOunld self or the sponsors of the bank should be proud of, to say that we will go
sk to the back door and make some other kind of arrangement based upon
mer;erlol‘ motive, which is to have the bank do something for the benefit of
f65 thlcan banks in order that those American banks, in turn, will do something

e benefit of the BIF; namely, lend them money:
exeml\l/{}‘. Wann: It is quite apparent that as long as you axe president and chief
couly ];Ve officer of the Bank of Western Canada, no such irregular transaction

e carried out. Is that right?

that l\vgr- COYN;: It had already bee
ere making this arrangement with the

Mr. Wann: So long as you are president and ¢

u g
ygubfi the mfiJOrlty of the board of western directors
0, no irregular transaction can be carried out. If the other directors are

isrlﬁ;ﬁ;ed and you find yourself in a minority and you think the transaction is
55 ar, then your duty, I presume, is to resign and this would be a resignation
e \;iden.t and director of the Bank of Western Canada. This 1S what puzzles
Ta.ns y did yf)u decide to resign? If you felt thgt there Wa; a real danger of this
the Ba°t10n going through, why did you not resign as President and director of

b5 an]?: Of Western Canda, rather than just making a pu‘plif: statement and
DuzerGSIgnlng as director of these other two companies? This is the thing that
€s me, quite frankly.

% Mr. Coyng: I dare say it would have suited
ne that, Mr. Wahn.
ko Mr. Wann: But that is not quite an answer foty
erence, one way or the other.

Mr. Coyne: I am not finished with my answer yet. I was also a director and
the BIF companies that apparently was

Mmakj

arrl-:mg these approaches to these American banks and entering into these

atnlgements, and I could not let those American banks or anybody else think
was going along with that sort of thing, or approving of it, or staying on a

0 y
ard which would do such a thing.

n made. I was also a director of the companies
se American banks.

hief executive officer, backed
who hold the same views as

some people very nicely if I had

question because I have no
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I told the directors of those companies that there were three good reasons
why they should not enter into any such transaction. In the first place, it was
their duty as directors not to borrow money which they had no reason to believe
they could pay back. In the second place, it was their duty as directors of that
company not to borrow money from someone to whom they had not made
disclosure of relevant facts which, if disclosed, would have resulted in no loan
being made. In the third place, if there was an ulterior purpose behind it which
had only come to light, they were very wrong to be doing it in that way.

For all those reasons, after all the rest of the things I had been through and
the trouble we have had with these people in the last few months, that was the
final point at which I said, I shall resign and resign immediately.

Mr. WaHN: This is what triggered your resignation, in other words?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
Mr. WaHN: The rest is just background, really.

Mr. CoYNE: When you say it is just background, do you mean it does not
count; that it is of no importance?

Mr. WansN: No, it was a cumulative effect. This was the straw that precipi-
tated your resignation. When you decided to resign and issue a statement like
this, did you consider the effect it would have on financial institutions forming
part of the BIF group and on public confidence? I gather you feel that their
assets exceed their liabilities. Nevertheless, this type of thing, I would think, is
bound to affect the confidence of the public in the financial institutions within
this particular group.

Mr. CoyNE: Mr. Wahn, do you suggest that a director should never resign in
those circumstances?

Mr. WaHN: No, I do not suggest that. You did consider the damage that
would be done to the companies?

Mr, CoynNE: I did not know whether my resignation would do any damage.
Certainly it would not do as much damage as would be done by the transactions
that were being entered into and the knowledge that would ultimately become
public about them.

Mr. WAHN: The nature of the public statement is what did the damage, not
the mere resignation.

Mr. CoyNE: It was the nature of the facts behind the public statement that
did the damage, if there was any damage.

Mr. WanHN: Let us put it this way: you must have known, with your
background, that great damage would be done to these companies and to public
confidence in them as a result of what you did.

Mr. CoynNE: I was not worried so much about what would happen to the
particular companies immediately concerned because I considered it a duty—and
I feel that all the directors had a duty—not to countenance the sort of thing that
was being done. I was rather disturbed about the possibility that other innocent
companies, even companies within the group, might be adversely affected by the
repercussions of this matter. I gave a great deal of careful thought to it and had
been doing for some time. i
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damaNéz ‘zﬂgﬁ?g:bUnder these circumstgnces and knowing, I think, that great
Wwith Mr. Stevens?? done, what efforts did you make to resolve your differences

" th;‘(-)gogNE. I 'have been making efforts for six months to see whether I could
Proposin gt to hlr_n the objections I had to the kind of transactions he was
e gd 0 enter 1nt_o and the kind of management he was providing. I just had
any mo;le e Hat a certain stgge that there was no use trying to get through to him
ot g e knew my views perfectly well; he had heard them over and over

draw'lr‘lhf CHATRMAN: Mr. Wahn, Mr. Coyne’s use of the word “conclude” has
§ 0 my attention a note from the Clerk, who is keeping track of the time,

Indicati

icating that your period of questioning has expired.
Mr. WanN: May I ask one final question?
The CHATRMAN: Yes.

Mr. WanN: You recommend to this

pri i
Wﬁ?clﬁ importance, Mr. Coyne—that we s
would permit new banks to have more than 10 per cent held in single

Own, 3 35 ; A
ership for a limited period of time. It is very difficult to get a new chartered
or eight after 100 years. Do you not

rtered banks if no group were
more than 10 per cent of the

Committee—and this is a matter of
hould consider deleting the provision

bermi

stog{l}_;tted to own, for a limited period of time,

i é\dr. Covne: That 15 fiot ‘what T said, Mr. Wahn, 1 did pot =y that it should

that ti allowed to own the stock. I said the Act should be worded in such a way
ey would not be able to exercise voting control.

Mr. WanN: Well, whichever it is.

Mr. Coyne: I think it is rather different.
Bee Mﬁ‘ WaHN: Would you say, then, that it would not inhibit the formation of
st CC arterfed banks if you put a provision in the Act that no one person could

1se voting control over more than 10 per cent of the stock?
teredl\gr' CoyNE: It might inhibit some people from proposing to start a char-
ank. I hope it would not prevent other people from doing so.

Mr. WanN: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

The CHARMAN: I now recognize Mr. Coates.

li\ff CoaTgs: First of all, I would like to get a coub
r. Coyne on some questions that have been answered. When Mr. Munro

W :

ise questioning you on your press statement, you said that there were those

cOme reasons and other reasons for your resigning from the directorships of
Panies in the BIF group. I wonder whether you would mind giving the other

1
€asons to the Committee.
Whe*;l;lhe CHAIRMAN: Could I interrupt t
er or not they feel that matters no

an
Dug to the banking system generally
Pose of this Committee at this time?

1le of further explanations

nce of the Committee on

Bank of Western Canada
ral legislative

o ask the guida
t related to the
are included in the gene
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Mr. CoaTes: Mr. Chairman, on the point of order, we have been sitting here
now for two and a half hours and during that two and a half hour period there
has been a byplay back and forth between the Bank of Western Canada and the
BIF group of companies. After that period of time are you asking for a point of
order on it?

The CrAIRMAN: No, but up until now we have not gone into the area which
covers what I gather to be some reasons Mr. Coyne had for resigning from
positions he has held on the board of the BIF group of companies which are
unconnected with the relationship between these companies and the Bank of
Western Canada. If I misunderstood what Mr. Coyne had to say in that regard,
that is a different matter. But I understood him to say that his resignation from
the board he was on for the BIF group arose out of two sets of reasons; one set
linked with the operations of the Bank of Western Canada and the links of the
bank with the BIF group, and another set having to do principally with the BIF
group itself. It is with respect to questions dealing with the latter set of reasons
that I am raising a question at this time. Mr. Coyne, did I interpret your earlier
remarks correctly?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: I invite some comment from the Committee on whether we
are straying further afield than we should at this time with respect to the second
set of reasons.

Mr. LAMBERT: The Bank of Western Canada is now impossible.
Mr. FurTon: I think your point is well made, Mr. Chairman,

The CHAIRMAN: I have invited comments from the Committee and I have
noted those from Mr. Fulton and Mr. Lambert. I would be happy to accept
others, but these seem to support the view I have taken. I am not saying that in
another context those questions might not be useful, but I suggest perhaps you
may want to limit your questions to the area of the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. MACKASEY: On a point of information Mr. Chairman, what did Mr.
Coates ask that deviates from what you think should be the line of procedure
this evening?

The CHAIRMAN‘:‘ When we began our hearings earlier today, several mem-
bers—I cite principally Mr. Lambert and Mr. Cameron—made comments in-
dicating that in their view the questioning should relate to the order of reference
of the House of Commons which puts this legislation before us. As I summarize
what they had to say and add my own view as Chairman, the questions should
relate to the legislative purpose of studying and reporting on the various bills
referred to us by the House. The Committee seemed to be in agreement with
that. I indicated I would try to keep the questioning within that ambit, although
I realized the difficulties and I would not attempt to analyse every last sentence
or clause. This is the basis for my interjection at this time..

Now, to carry on a bit further, I think Mr. Coyne made clear this warning
that he resigned from the BIF group of companies for two separate sets of
reasons; one arising out of the links of the BIF group with the Bank of Western
Canada; the other set relating strictly to the BIF group itself. I understood Mr.
Coates desired to ask questions about the latter group of reasons—and if I am
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my view that insofar as

ot
istaken I should be happy to apologize——but it is
ncerned, we are straying

g"ﬁit?ns relating to the second group of reasons, are co

urther than we should.

had i’%‘t S;)ATES: Perhaps I had a misunderstanding from what Mr. Coyne said. I

tioned b 1\Sllumed that the others reosons referred to when he was being ques-

Toldl toya r. Munro were not as§0c1ated with the Bank of Western Canada. Am

Fr s dSSl{me that the reasons 1 the press rele i
ed with the Bank of Western Canada and the other reason

Mr. Coyne: My first paragraph indicated I have resigned from the boards of

these companies
as I no_longer have confidence i
companies.

The second paragraph read:

i) In particular, in their relations with the Bank 0

and so on. The third paragraph gave further amplificatio
ond paragraph.

and g{r- CoaTrs: Yes, but I am asking you now whether these are the reasons,
ere are no other reasons, for your resigning from the boards of directors of
he Bank of Western Canada is

the tget

Conie companies insofar as your association with t
erned. Is that correct?

nies . C_OYNEt I think I would have resigned from the
even if I had not been connected with the Bank of We

like to continue?

n the management 0T policies of those

f Western Canada
n of what was in the

poards of these compa-
stern Canada.

The CuatrMAaN: Mr. Coates, would you
PEm Mr. CoaTrs: A statement you made when being questioned by Mr. Wahn
com ks _the effect that in dealing with the United States banks, one of these

panies had no reason to believe the loan which they were endeavouring to

secure could be paid back.
to Mr. CoynE: They had 1o idea at the time how they would obtain the funds
pay off that new debt when it came due. They did have assets which they
1d have started endeavouring to

co
SeﬁlshendeaVOUr to sell and probably they shou
ose assets a good many months ago- But at the time they were proposing t0

b
orrow they did not know whether they could or could not sell those assets.
Mr. Coates: Was this company vork Trust and Savings Corporation?

Mr. Coyne: No.
iy Mr. Coates: I now have 2 little different line of questioning Mr. Coyne. T0
r knowledge have any actions been taken by anyone to remove you as

Presi
esident of the Bank of Western Canada?
jons taken except the suggestion

maer. CoyNE: No, I do not know of any act
e to me by one of the directors of the BIF that someone Who knew more

ab ¢ i :
geﬁut banking than I did and wWas superior in status 1o the banking world to our
oth eral manager should probably g0 in there as president and I should take some
er position.
Mr. CoaTes: When was this suggested to you?
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Mr. CoynNE: I do not know if it was on February 1 or a little earlier than
that; I cannot recall.

Mr. CoaTEs: It was after the December 16 meeting?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
Mr. CoaTes: It was possibly two days prior to your resignation?

Mr. CoyNE: I am afraid I would have to conjure my recollection on that.
There were so many of these discussions and that particular one is perhaps, not
terribly important. I cannot put the date on it; it was very recent.

Mr. CoaTEs: Do you mind identifying the individual?

Mr. CoyNE: No, it was Mr. Bell.

Mr. CoaTEs: It was Mr. Bell and this was the only indication you had?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. CoaTEs: I would now like to refer to your initial statement with regard
to deposit insurance provisions under the Bank Act. I believe when some one
asked if they had any reference to the Bank of Western Canada, you replied that
they did not.

Mr. CoyNE: In this way, Mr. Coates: I think deposit insurance is a good thing
and that all banks should come under it. It is a particularly good thing for new
banks and small banks, not so much to insure their own deposits, but to insure
the deposits of other financial institutions; if they got into trouble, there might
be adverse consequences which would affect the Bank of Western Canada
because the new bank was a small bank; the ripples spread out.

Mr. CoaTes: In 1965 the province of Ontario came to the rescue of depositors
of British Mortgage and Trust by guaranteeing something like $3 million in loans
if they were needed. In view of your position as chairman of another BIF
company, the York Trust and Savings, which is also a trust company of the
province of Ontario, do you have any knowledge of any provincial guarantee or
intervention at this,time of similar nature?

The CHAIRMAN: May I interrupt again at this time? Perhaps, Mr. Coates, you
might indicate how this relates to the subject matter of inquiry at this time?

Mr. CoaTEs: In view of the fact that Mr. Coyne is chairman of the York
Trust and Savings Corporation—and you still are chairman of that corporation?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

Mr. CoATES: You resigned from that company earlier?

Mr. CoyNE: No, at the same time.

Mr. CoATES: At the same time. It was not stated in the press release.

Mr. CoyNE: It is not stated, no.

Mr. CoAaTES: But you did this on February 3, as well?

Mr. CoyNE: February 1.

Mr. CoATEs: I see. Was this one of the reasons why you resigned from York?
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Th i :
N yeo SHAIRMAN. I feel I must intrude again. You want Mr. Coyne to indicate
Senings angere asking before, whether the problems with York Trust and
resigning 1 tl:i};ﬁ{ %ﬁye?nment of Ontario and so on, Were the reasons for his
] is a . :
S it Le roing int;s. an area which the Committee seems to agree 1s not one
Mr. y : J
might dOCﬁYNE. I think I shou.ld just say, to prevent misunderstanding where it
el 0?rm, that by the time I resigned from York Trust they had a new
Bolisics s whom I strongly approve, and from what I have seen I think the
Tl e a1Is1 applying th_ere are very good. I did not resign from York Trust
i) y apprehension about their management or their policies from that
o
Wheth}éi CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Coates. Mr. Lind, I was not clear before
Setlee e i yolu merely had a supplementary question or whether you wished to
gular turn. If so, this would be the time when you would be recognized.
to ask a supplementary. There were no

min&\ﬁ:' Linp: Mr. Chairman, I wished
s of the December 16 meeting when the request for accommodation was

T
Dresented by the BIF group. Is that right?
Mr. Coyne: There were minutes of the meeting but the minutes did not

Tecord that request.
Mr. Linp: What was the amount of this accommodation, $1.3 million?
s based on 10 per cent of the

bankl}/[r' C‘OYNE: Apparently, yes. The figure wa
s capital and reserves.
Mr. Linp: What did you understand this $1.3 million was to be used for?
Specil\f/ih' QOS{NE: 1 have dealt with that question already, sir. There was nothing
¢ said in that connection.
to purchase the $1,450,000

WOrt11V1[r' LInD: Was there any chance of it being used
of shares outstanding on this pledge?

e was always & chance. I am not sure whether or
h to meet the date which was being
ified in any way what the funds

8 liVIVI; CoynNE: I suppose ther

N :ﬁﬂd have come to pass quickly enoug

Would at purpose. I do not think it was spec
be used for if they were drawn-

Mr. Linp: Thank you very much.
Mr. Munro: May I ask a supplementary question?

fOl‘oT}'le CrATRMAN: Yes, I will accept your supplementary question at this time
'owing which I will recognize Mr. Mackasey, Mr. More, Mr. McLean followed

by Mr. Grégoire.
Tk Mr. MUNRO: Mr. Coyne, in answer to questions by Mr. Wahn, 1 believe, you
itede talking about the BIF doing something indirectly which they are prohib-
from doing directly. You talked about the porrowing of money from United
I do not believe you ever

St

m::;:_s banks, or interests in the United States.

muc'}i‘med the amount involved. Did you ever have any information of just how
money this group intended to porrow from across the border?

Mr. CoynE: Yes.
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Mr. MuNro: How much was that?

Mr. CoyNE: I am not sure whether it is appropriate for me to answer that.
The CHAIRMAN: This borrowing was to be by the BIF group?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, for their purposes.

Mr. MuNRO: It is my understanding that they indicated they would be
prepared to give a stock option to these same interests for 10 per cent.

Mr. CoynNE: The total line of credit in question was to be $2.5 million.
Mr. MuNRro: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: I now recognize Mr. Mackasey.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman and Mr. Coyne, my questions will be very
brief and I apologize if I repeat some of the questions that were asked today. I
could not be here this afternoon and I apologized in advance. Just to clarify in
my own mind the statement which you issued on February 3, I might read it
back to you. Referring to these particular groups it reads:

They are presently engaged in a borrowing operation with American
banks which invo ves the giving of an option on 10 per cent of the total
shares of the Bank of Western Canada and various arrangements designed
to tie in the management and operations of the Bank to the operations of
these American banks, again contrary to statements made when applying
for a charter.

In other words, they were doing this for their own particular benefit and not for
any particular benefit of the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, that was my feeling on the subject.

Mr. MACKASEY: As late as March 8, 1966, Mr. Stevens said before the
Committee—and I will read this little paragraph to you:

The other point I would like to mention, Mr. Horner, in connection
with your suggestion that there be some interrelationship between our
other trust companies and the Bank of Western Canada, is this. I think, as
was mentioned in evidence earlier, there certainly is no proposal or
suggestion in our mind that the Bank of Western Canada, in fact, would
become the banker to the group. I can assure you this will not happen.

This was stated by Mr. Stevens on March 8, 1966. In your opinion Mr. Stevens
and his group have been acting directly contrary to this statement?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, they have been making suggestions and urging me and the
bank to do things of the sort which, in my opinion, contravene those assurances.

Mr. Mackasey: This next question will be c'ear to you only when you read
back what you said earlier in answer to Mr. Wahn. At the time, Mr. Wahn, in
asking a question, mentioned that you had the support of the majority of the
western directors. It referred to irregular transactions. Am I not correct in
saying that you would not be a party to any irregular transation whether you
had the support of the majority or not?

Mr. CoyNE: That is true; on the other hand, I certainly hope and desire to
have time to see that there was a majority of people who thoroughly understood
the situation so that it could be dealt with effectively then and in the future.
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Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Coyne, this, again, is probably a question that has been

asked i :
tonigh:_nany times, but I would like to get the answer SO that I can study it

You resigned on the 1st of February?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
Mr. MACKASEY: When did you first think of resigning from the BIF group?

movi\g‘r-frCOYNE: I do not know. The matter came up in several different ways. 1
up of thOmBToronto to Winnipeg Jast June mam}y in anticipation of the setting
B € ank. of We_stern Canada although 1'f the charter had not passed
i o ent I still, I think, would have St_ayed_m Winnipeg. There obviously
these m‘:‘as a possible .conﬁict between holding dlrectoyships on the bank and on
TesAleen J(I)I‘ Shareholdmg companies and that at sometime that would have to be
after th. ndeed, in the Bank Act, it says that you must resign vyithin two years
°0nnect'e d?y on which the ceiling on bank loan rates 1S abolished. What the
X v lon 1s, I do not know, but at some stage in the future everybody will have
ign, either from the bank or from these other companies.

u may have resigned for Very normal legiti-
9

- Mr. MackasEy: Therefore, YO

e reasons under normal circumstances

B Mr_- (?OYNE: At some time I would have. On the other hand, I did not want to

Precipitate about that for the reason that was being suggested by Mr. Wahn.

1 th'Mr' Mackasgy: In your statement there are two paragraphs, one which

th ink was read earlier and which says that you no longer have confidence in

tee management or policies of those companies, which 1S only of passing in-

W;?'St to us. Would you have resigned strictly on the substance in paragraph 48

ich I will read to you:

In particular, in their relations with the Bank of Western Canada (in

which they have voting control through stock holdings), they appear

to have forsaken principle for expediency, and their image is doing a
disservice to the Bank of Western Canada.

g Mr. Coyng: With the amplification given in th
uld have been sufficient to make me resign.

Mr. Mackasgy: Thank you, Mr- Chairman.
GréTf}e Cramman: I now recognize Mr- More, followed by Mr. McLean, Mr.
goire and also Mr. Latulippe-
y of the questions I had in mind have been

Mr. MORE: i
B g: Mr. Chairman, man

5 I would like to clarify, if I can the reason for Mr. Coyne
s the date for resigning his connections with the BIF group.
As T understood it, Mr. Coyne, YoU had been aware for some six months of

t .
heir exploring the American market for finance?
Mr. CoynE: Yes.

ab Mr. .MORE: This in itself did not disturb you? There W
out this group seeking funds in this manner at this time?

e third paragraph, yes, that

' choice of February

as nothing abnormal
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Mr. CoyNE: So long as it did not involve the Bank of Western Canada;
however, the situation was changing in many ways, as well.

Mr. MoRre: But as long as it did not involve the Bank of Western Canada the
seeking of these funds by this group was a perfectly legitimate, normal business
operation?

Mr. CoyNE: I would have said so, under normal circumstances.

Mr. More: I would like to leave that at the moment and proceed to other
points.

In answer to some questions from Mr. Wahn and others you talked about
actions of the management of the BIF that occurred during a period, being
unacceptable to you. I do not want to ask you for the reasons. I want to make
the point, though, that although you were aware of these situations you still
remained in your positions with these companies until February 1. This is
correct?

Mr. CoyNE: This is correct; but, of course, the situation was changing in
many ways all during that period. If you were to ask why did I not resign a
week before, a month before, or two months before, or somebody else were to
ask why I did not wait because I did damage by resigning even on February 1st,
or why I did not wait for a week, a month, or six months, my answer would
be that I am a human being and I had to make a very difficult decision. I did
not want to rush into it, but when the time came I felt I had to make it.

Mr. More: Mr. Coyne, I know my questions are not exactly yes and no
questions; your are not exactly anticipating, but you are enlarging on your
answers to the questions I have put.

The point I want to make is that these things are admitted, and you agree
that I have put the case properly, but the fact is that, as I understand your
evidence and your press release, what brought about you resignation was not
these things at all because you had not resigned on account of them, but the fact
that you finally learned in that the negotiations for the money from the banks
in the States they had given an Sption on Western Bank shares to these banks. It
was this that prompted you to choose that time to resign, was it not?

Mr. CoyNE: You have put a long question and statement and I cannot give a
Yes or No answer.

Mr. More: I wanted to make the statement clear.

Mr. CoyNE: First, I would like to say that there was a cumulative effect. of
quite a number of developments, and, secondly, as you have said, the final
development which occurred on February 1st was such that I felt, “I cannot stay
any longer. There may be reasons why I should stay on under some circum-
stances, but this is too much. I must leave now.” It was not just the one thing
you picked out, but the whole business of the fact that they had been canvassing
American banks and offering them this kind of special arrangement with the
Bank of Western Canada, which had only come to fruition, apparently, very
recently.

= . e —
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nt that they have obtained the

Mr. More: Do I understand from your stateme
hares of the Bank of Western

.lle of credi an i i
it i i
Can ? d that it is with the optlon on the s

Mr. Coyne: So said the man who was neg

l1):;1 alf of the companies, and who came to the mee

otiating this in New York on
ting of the boards on February

that negotiations for the line

Mr. MoRre: You were informed on February 1st
t involved an option by the

of credit had been concluded and that the agreemen
group to this bank—

WoulM r. COYNE: And other suggestions a .
d participate in various kinds of transactio

bout how the Bank of Western Canada
ns with the American banks.

frankly did not believe that, in fact,
a0y loan would develop from that, because I did not believe any bank in New
faork or elsewhere would make a loan under those circumsta.nces if it kngw the
tthS-.It was not until February st that I learned what special reason might be
I at, in fact, had led these banks, as the man from New York said, to provide a
ine of credit.
o Mr. MoRrg: Would it be fair to ask, Mr. Coyne, if, during the per@od of six
atOchs or so when things were building up and these events were taking place,
any time these events were of such a hature as to involve the integrity of the
€Posits or the moneys invested by the general public in these companies?

Mr. CoynE: I am not sure that I understand that.

Mr. Mogre: In a statement with regard to York Trust

c 5 ! ¥
Onfidence in the new management and their policies.

Mr. CoynE: Yes.
qua Mr. More: During the period ¥
Irel and your disagreements wit
group in regard to unmentione

N
:;l:e of this Committee at no time were they of such
of confidence in their ability to meet their obligations an

€ general public who had invested in them?

Mr. Coyne: I h i i inion thes
: : ave said that in my opinion
€ a large surplus of assets over liabilities, and these assets are sound assets.

ihere could have been other questions on whether they were being maintained
0n Sufficiently liquid condition and whether at any gl'ven rpt_)ment they were
perating from day to day in the right way, but the basic position was as I have

S
tated, and it still is.

Mr. Morg: Therefore if their posi
Were not of a nature such as to cause you to

Mr. Coyng: Insofar as you are relating it to a pa

st
ance, you are right.
% The Cramrman: Mr. More, I actually plaf:ed a limit
8 asking this type of question, and I think in fairness t
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interject at this point. I allowed the question to be answered because I felt that
if it were left hanging in the air there might be drawn some inferences which
ought not to be drawn. As I said, in fairness to Mr. Coates, I think we should
perhaps try to relate our questions more directly to the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. More: I was just trying to elicit whether Mr. Coyne’s resignation, was,
in fact, because of the interference with, or the apparent play of the BIF group
on, the policies and development of the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. CoynE: That is what appeared to me to operate most strongly on my
mind, and to make it necessary for me to say that my primary responsibility was
to the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. More: This is the point I was trying to make. I did not want to get into
the other matter to any extent.

Now, Mr. Coyne, I would like to deal with the $1,450,000, that has not been
paid in subscriptions that were made, I take it, some three years ago. The intent
was made in regard to these subscriptions; is this not so?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes; I think a letter was written at that time.

Mr. Moge: And during the course of negotiations was any letter of renewed
intent given by this company in regard to this subscription?

Mr. CoynE: That was done in September of 1966, I think.
Mr. Mogre: In September 1966, they indicated by letter their intention—

Mr. CoyNE: There was no bank to which to address the original letter, and if
I am right in my recollection it was sent to the auditors who certified some
figures in relation to the prospectus that was being put out; but after the bank
received its charter the major subscribers, I believe, all signed a letter of
subscription addressed to the bank.

Mr. MoRre: And the defaulters were included in that group?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes; a separate letter was sent by that company.

Mr. More: Am I right Th saying that by public subscription they got $3
million which was not tied to this subscription but which was raised so that they
could meet this subscription when it became due?

Mr. CoyneE: If it became due.

Mr. More: If it became due; and the reason, perhaps, why it has not beel
paid is because during lengthy time involved in negotiations they had invested
this money and they are not now in a liquid position in which they can meet this
subcription? [Is that right?

Mr. CoyNE: That is correct; plus the fact that $700,000 of the liquid positio?
they would need to meet that subscription was to be paid to them by British
International Finance.

Mr. More: And this has not been paid by the British International Finance
either?

Mr. CoynNE: I believe that must be correct.
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Mr. More: To what extent does the non-payment of th}s subscripgonkir:’;
hibit your proceeding with the bringing about of the operation of the Ban
Western Canada?

As I remember the evidence, you said quite proudly that no group’ had liveil’;
received a charter with subscriptions in the amount that you had, 289 Itta t;er
that the subscription of this $1,450,000 is still larger by far, than _mo.sb‘ to 2,
banks have when they get their charters. How much is this going to inhibit you.
Why is the matter of the demand for this payment at once of uch g SUEE

Mr. Coyne: If it is merely a matter of statistics, of whgth_er we can ﬁet asll(;:rllg'
on $11,500,000 instead of $13,000,000, of course we can.. Still it is a sn}:'a er .
1t is a sum that was promised that was not paid; apd it is an indica 1911fl tmhav}é
mind, of certain attitudes which did not take the kind of steps that mig

een taken to acquire liquid funds. i
Mr. More (Regina City): Was your resignation on Fet;xr'llll{argrf lwzgtern
Prompted by the backing of the western directors of the B
Canada? Did they make a request to you to resign?

7 : : t
Mr. CoynE: Individually they have been telling me for some little time tha

i i hat
they thought I should resign from the other companies and establish the fact tha

blic, or
Was representative only of the general shareholders, or ;011'; 5‘]331:2' Elolfniﬂestern
Whatever way you want to look at it, and only a director 0

Canada and not of i
the BIF companies.
Gov-
Mr. MoRre (Regina City): What was the date of the approv al by the
€rnor in Council of your bank in Eastern Canada.

(LYY iness?
Mr. Coyne: You mean the certificate entitling us to commence busines
Mr. More (Regina City): Yes.

Mr. CoyNE: It was dated December 8.

~Mr. More (Regina City): And in fact within two
Tesigned from these conflicting positions?

months of that you had

Mr. CoynE: Yes.

Mr. MoRe (Regina City): I would like now to turn to your remarks about

i i the
Osit insurance. I am wondering if they Were not misleading, at least to

Dl{blic if not to the Committee, in that you mentioned the desirability of having

i t
1S legislation quickly because of the collapse of Prudentlal.ulllo gfizgaf;:)igegf
that the present proposed bill would in any way COVer
Udential?

Mr. CovynE: No; what I meant was that the collapse of Prudtzntxal, 22;1;%‘1111 }1’1;
Was not g ﬁduciary,institution such as a trust company.or'a morf gdage1 P haci
1 Bistered and specially inspected and so on under provincial or fe efra o 1é o
ad an unsettling effect on general public sentiment and a number ok'p ipnstitu-
€Xpressed the fear that this effect would spread and that deposn—fc;l 1nagnswer »
1O0S might be affected by it. It semed to me that the best possible il
hat kind of potential danger would be to have the public authorities s

; sitors,
Promptly that deposit insurance, or some form of guarantee of depo

oint
35 going to be a fact and indeed was informally tobe accepted from that p

25700~5§
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on; and that this would allay any possible public alarm and mean that things
would be done in an orderly fashion.

Mr. More (Regina City): Do you feel that there is a public lack of confi-
dence in our present chartered banks and in our large trust and loan companies?

Mr. CoyNE: No, sir, I am referring only to the thoughts expressed by other
people in various places—that there was a possible danger of a spreading of
this feeling of unrest. I am not saying that I was talking this way.

Mr. More (Regina City): Do you feel that the proposed umbrella of the act
is large enough in scope?

Mr. CoyNE: I have spent a good part of my life thinking in terms of
deposit-taking institutions and I really have not given much thought to bringing
in other types of institutions.

The CHAIRMAN: I now recognize Dr. Meclean.
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Coyne, banking has a great deal to do with confidence, has it not?

Mr. CoynNE: Yes, I think so.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Take, for instance, the City and District Savings
Bank. It had a run on it the other day. Everyone knows that it is quite solid.
These things can happen?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): When you and Mr. Stevens appeared before our

Committee, you apparently had confidence in Mr. Stevens and the companies
that he represented at that time.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Apparently this confidence has deteriorated over
the months, and you now find that you can no longer go along with him.

»

Mr. CoynNE: Yes.

Mr. McLeEAN (Charlotte): On March 3, I quoted to you what Mr. Graham
Towers said at the 119th Annual Meeting of the Canada Life Assurance Com-
pany:

To my mind, some of the most interesting features of the economic
scene in 1965 are to be found in the field of credit, both domestic and
international. ‘

In Canada, bank deposits—the major component of the money sup-
ply—rose by 2 billion and 92 million dollars or 13 per cent in the year
ended 30th November last.

Then he goes on to say:

The offset for the increased deposits in recent times has been, in the
main, bank loans.

Further, he says:

To the extent that business activity is supported by unsound exten-
sion of credit, there is obviously a day of reckoning to be faced.
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Do you not think that when you appeared here previously that was true,
and that there was a day of reckoning? The day of reckoning is a little Iat_e now.
Do you not think that you should at that time have faced the day of reckoning.

Mr. CoyNE: Perhaps a wiser man would have Mr. McLean, I can only say
that at that time I felt that things were going to be all right.

Mr. McLEAN ( Charlotte): That is the reason for my quoting that. I thought
that the day of reckoning was coming.

Mr. CoyNE: That was eleven months ago?

Mr. MacDoNALD (Prince): On what page is that?

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): It is page 116 of March 3, 1966.

Mr. Towers goes on to say:

Of course, the whole object of the exercise was to suggest that we
should try to profit in the future from the lessons of the past, and also to
point out that the world is in a much better position to deal with such
problems than it was thirty-six years ago. But to a generation of lenders,
and borrowers, who have never had their fingers seriously burnt until

very recently, it is hard to get such a message across.
When I was trying to put this message across everything looked lovely.

. Mr. CovnE: Sir, I am not sure that we discussed it at that point, but I think I
did mention then in this Committee that I thought deposit insurance was a
desirable thing.

. Mr. McLEaN (Charlotte): I think a lot of concerns in Canada need deposit
Insurance.

Mr. CoyNE: The public needs it.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): The public needs it; but the Bank of Western
Canada is not a going concern yet, so they do not need it, do they?

Mr. CoynE: I am thinking now of the public interest 'and the er_zv1ronmgnt
Within which the Bank of Western Canada will be operating when it opens its
doors.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Were you thinking of the companies that y‘;g
have been associated with when you mentioned that you thought that we shou

ave compulsory insurance?

Mr. CoyNE: Sir, I first started to advocate that about 10 years ago, before I
Was associated with any of these companies.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Again you say:

We took special precautions to meet the argument th_at a new bank
might fall under the domination of foreign interest and might sell out to
foreigners. You took special precautions, but they were not good enough,
It still happened, did it not? \ |

Mr. CoyNE: Yes; whatever happened, happened; you are making the point,
not I,
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): It seems to me that the Committee must conclude

that you were taken in a bit.
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Mr. CoyNE: Do I have to make any comment on that?
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Coyne, do you have any comment in reply to Dr.
McLean’s question? If not, I will invite him to proceed to his next one.

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): I was just bringing out that it was a lack of
confidence on Mr. Coyne’s part, gradually developed over the months, that led to
this situation; but when Mr. Coyne appeared here the financial situation was
plainly to be seen by someone who was wise enough to look at it. We were in a
period when this was going to happen. I think that Mr. Coyne, being a financial
man of the first water, should have seen those things at that time.

Mr. CoyNE: We had already had the Atlantic Acceptance and British
Mortgage affairs a year earlier.
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): It says here that Mr. Towers said:

 While all the facts behind the failure of Atlantic Acceptance and the
related difficulties of other companies are not yet known, it is obvious that
their lending and investment policies were unsound.

Mr. CoyNE: They were worse than that; they were dishonest.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Yes.

Mr. CoyNE: There is no suggestion here that there is dishonesty involved in
any of the present situations.

Mr. McLeEAN (Charlotte): This situation is merely a development of what
was plain to some people at the time that the Western Bank charter was granted.

The CHAIRMAN: I now recognize Mr. Grégoire.

(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Coyne, do you not have the support of the majority of
West bank directors?

(English)
Mr. CoynE: I think so, yes. »

(Translation)
Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Coyne, you say there were $13 million worth of shares
subscribed and paid up in Westbank, is this so, subscribed and paid?

(English)
Mr. CoyNE: Thirteen million dollars.

(Translation)
Mr. GREGOIRE: Subscribed?

(English)
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

(Translation)
Mr. GREGOIRE: Of the $13 million of shares subscribed, how many of them
are paid up? r

/‘""\‘
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(English)
Mr. CoyNE: One million and a half are not paid.

(Translation)
Mr. GREGOIRE: Not paid, a million and a half worth of shares. And the only
amount not paid is the amount subseribed by BIF?

(English)
Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

(Translation)

Mr. GRrEGOIRE: Mr. Coyne, supposing you gave the required notice and
Succeeeded in having this $1,450,000 worth of shares subscribed and not paid up,
declared non-voting shares. In other words if the normal voting right was
withdrawn from the shares, BIF would no longer have a majority?

(English)

Mr. CoyNE: This is a matter for the lawyers. We have not yet received an
opinion on the subject.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But you have asked for one?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Suppose they say that they cannot vote. The BIF group
would no longer be the majority shareholder in the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: They would still be very large, of course. They would still have
40 per cent or something of that order.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But they would no longer be the majority shareholder?

Mr. CoyNE: Not in total; but at a given meeting of shareholders they might
be in the majority.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Would you be able to take control of the bank in that way?

Mr. CoynE: I?
Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes.

Mr. CoyNE: No. ;
Mr. GREGOIRE: If you have a majority of directors supporting you would
there be a mathematical possibility that you could take over the bank?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not understand the phrase “take over the bank”.

(Translation)
Mr. GREGOIRE: The complete control, I believe, as you said.

(English)

Mr. CoyNE: May I say this; that the management of the bank is entrusted by
statute to the board of directors, whoever they may be from time to time, and
the board of directors can be changed by the shareholders once a year, or more
frequently if they wish. This is done at a meeting of shareholders. And what
happens depends on how the vote goes at that meeting. Now, if a great many
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shareholders did not come to meetings and a great many shareholders did not
send in proxies for voting, the people who had 40 per cent all in one hand would
be in a very strong position.

(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: But, what I would like to know, Mr. Coyne—since you have
stated that you have the support of the majority of the directors of Westbank—
if the $1,500,000 of shares were declared non-voting shares, would this give you
a mathematical possibility, with what you know of the other shareholders, to
take over the control of Westbank?

(English)

Mr. CoyNE: The bank is controlled by the board of directors, and they now
exist. The only question you raise is whether, at some shareholders’ meeting, a
change might or might not be made in the Board of Directors.

Mr. GREGOIRE: May I put it in English, Mr. Coyne? With the support help of
all the shareholders, or the directors, if an amount equal to $1,450,000 were not
voted, with the support you now have would that make it possible for you and
your group to take over the control of the bank?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not like the words “possible to take over the control of the
bank”. The directors now control the bank, and it is only a question of how,
within the board of directors, decisions are taken.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Then, if the board of directors now controls the bank, and
you have the majority of supporters, why does this situation exist? If there is a
request for a loan by branches of the BIF group you just have to refuse it and
there would be no problems. What was the problem at this point.

Mr. CoyNE: You would have a very unhappy life, Mr. Grégoire, if you were
president of a bank and a solid group of shareholders sold 40 per cent of the
shares and were constantly pressing you to do things their way. You would
never know but that at the next meeting of shareholders they might be
in the majority. a

Mr. GREGOIRE: That is exactly why I asked you. Suppose the $1 million
shares are declared non-voting shares. Can you and the group supporting you
take over control and appoint a board of directors of your choice?

Mr. Coy~NE: I do not know. That wou'd depend on how the remaining
shareholders voted.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Then you do not have to have the majority of them?

Mr. CoyNE: There are 5,000 of them and I do not know how they would vote,
All T have said is that a majority of the present board of directors has said that it
supports the action I have taken in resigning from the BIF companies and issuing
a public statement about it.

Mr. More (Regina City): Mr. Grégoire, can I ask one supplementary?
Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes. j

Mr. More (Regina City): Mr. Coyne, can the directors of the bank be
changed at other than an annual meeting?

,""\~
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Mr, CoynNE: I think so, if another shareholder’s meeting is called for that
burpose and with notice given and notice calling the meeting.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Is it on a question of principle that you talk about this
$1,500,000, or does the bank really need it?

Mr. CoynE: It is a question of principle, yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: It did not cause a policy of tight money in the Bank of
Western Canada?

Mr. CoynNE: No.

Mr. GrEGOIRE: Following that, Mr. Coyne, you resigned from the British
International Finance (Canada) Ltd?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Is that a Canadian company?

Mr. CoyYNE: Yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Were you president of it?

Mr. CoyNE: No; just a director.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Are there any British interests in the company?

Mr. CoyNE: No, I do not believe so.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But it is called British International Finance. Is this better
for financing—

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Grégoire, I think that we are now straying into an
area—

Mr. GREGOIRE: That was just going through my mind because _I read the
nhame of the company, Mr. Chairman. If I ever go into finance I will call the
company “British”, too, if it will mean that I will do better. ' :

Mr. CoyNE: I may say that the name of this company came be‘fo're you in this
Committee, and before the House of Commons report reached thls.comm1ttee,
and before the Senate and their committee, several years ago, at a tlm.e when' I
was not a director of the company. The company has existed for some time. I did
not go on the board of that particular company until a year ago. :

Mr. GREGOIRE: You resigned from this company and from the York Trust?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. { :
Mr. GREGOIRE: Was this because you were dissatisfied with the operations of
the company?

. : ifically mentioned the British International Finance
com;\;lflycacziN?h:V \;’lé’llgnsgpti Finas;lcial Corporation Limited in my statement, I
did not make any statement about York Trust. :

Mr. GREGOIRE: Because you were dissatisfied with the way it was going?

Mr, CoyNE: Yes.
i i i f the Govern-
Mr. GrREGOIRE: When you were dissatisfied Wlth the p.ohcy o
ment of Canada and the way it was going you did not resign frO{n the Bank of
Canada. I would like to know what changed your course of action.
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Mr. CoynE: Because I was potentially held responsible for the affairs of this
company. I was not held responsible for the actions of the Government of
Canada.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But you were held responsible for the actions of the Bank of
Canada.

Mr. CoyNE: Oh, for the Bank of Canada? I was in accord with the policy
followed by the Bank of Canada.

Mr. GREGOIRE: The bank’s money policy?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Grégoire, some arms of our Parliament explored this
issue at some length a few years ago.

Mr. GREGOIRE: I was not there at that time, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: No; but I do not think that is justification for reviewing the
whole issue at this point.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Now, I will take the second reason which you mention here
where you say:
...they have attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own
companies contrary to the most explicit statements made to the commit-
tees of the Senate and of the House of Commons.
In view of the fact that the Treasury Board had passed a regulation that this
could be done provided you had the consent of the Minister of Finance, could
that have been done without the consent of the Minister of Finance?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: If the consent of the Minister of Finance is given, in view of
the fact that Parliament gave the Minister of Finance the right to approve of
Westbank granting loans to these BIF companies, was this not above and beyond
the undertakings entered into with the Senate and House Committees, since the
whole Parliament gave the Minister of Finance the right to make that rule?

(English)

Mr. CoyNE: No, not at all. I do not think that absolved the directors of the
bank of their responsibility, or of their duty, in any way. It was just that if they
did decide that they wanted to do a certain thing it would require the further
approval of the Minister of Finance. But the first thing he would ask would be.
“What decision have you taken and what responsibility are you taking in the
matter?”

Mr. GREGOIRE: But this would be contrary to the statements made to the
committees of the Senate and of the House of Commons, because the whole of
Parliament gives the Minister of Finance the permission to consent.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes; but they did not expect him to consent to something that
ran counter to an assurance, I am sure. Conceivably they thought that an
extraordinary situation might arise some day in which Minister should have
ultimate power of exemption. Now, I do not know what that would be. As far as
I am concerned nothing has arisen that would have justified that.

/
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Mr. MACKASEY: May I ask Mr. Coyne if he is aware of the statement of the
Minister of Finance in the House of Commons yesterday, or the day before, on
what actions he would have taken if the request had come to him?

Mr. CoyNE: I have only seen the newspaper account,

Mr. MACKASEY: Do you not take the trouble to read Hansard?

Mr. CoyNE: I have not seen Hansard.
Mr. MACKASEY: Have you any doubt in your mind on what he would do?

Mr. CoyNE: I have no doubt in my mind about his being a man of his word,
no.

Mr. MACKASEY: Nor have I. Thank you, sir.
Mr. GREGOIRE: Well, Mr. Coyne, I understood from your testimony that you

felt that you were being personally engaged before the committee of the Senate
and of the House of Commons because of statements you had made before those

committees?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But afterwards the whole of Parliament gave the Minister of
Finance the permission to consent to such loans by the Bank of Western Canada
to the BIF group.

Mr. CoynE: Not really, no; Parliament did not do that.

Mr. GREGOIRE: They gave permission to the Minister of Finance to adopt
Some rules.

Mr. CoyNE: Parliament did not. Parliament gave permission to the Treasury
Board to lay down terms and conditions under which someone mlgh‘t hold more
than 10 per cent of the stock of a new bank and, secoqdly uqder \_;vhlch_ someone
holding more than 10 per cent of the stock might exercise voting rights in respect
of it.

The Treasury Board order saying that certain things should not be done
unless the Minister of Finance approved was completely unknown to me. I wou}d
have had no intention of doing any of those things at all, in any case, and I did
not know that this was going to be in the Treasury Board order; and I am quite
Sure that Parliament did not, either.

The CHATRMAN: You are not suggesting, Mr. Coyne, that the Tr S Board
order goes beyond the scope of the legislation under which it was issued?

Mr. CoynE: No, of course not. I an inclined to say that it was a work of
Supererogation.

The CHATRMAN: I think that perhaps you might elaborate on what you
actually have in mind. :

\ ibility that lay on me

Mr. CoynE: Well, as far as I am concerned the responsibili i
and on the other mémbers of the board to ob;erve the assurances given to
P_arliament was an absolute responsibility and did not need reinforcing by any
direction to that effect from the Treasury Board.

Mr. GrEGOIRE: But you agree that the Treasury Board—
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Mr. CoyNE: And since the Treasury Board did then reinforce it, I do not
think that that absolved me of my own responsibility, or that it absolved the
Board of Directors either.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But you agree that the Treasury Board had a right to pass
such an order?

Mr. CoynNE: I presume so. I do challenge the legality of it.

Mr. GREGOIRE: And it was passed in accordance with decision of Parliament.
Do you still feel the same responsibility towards the Committee of the House of
Commons?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, I do.
Mr. GREGOIRE: But the Treasury Board order came after.

Mr. CoynE: The treasury Board order did not absolve me of my responsibil-
ity. All it said was that if I exercised my responsibility in a certain way that was
not good enough; that it also had to be referred to the Minister of Finance.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes; so the order of the Treasury Board gave the Bank of
Western Canada the right to consent to some loans to the BIF group, provided
they had the permission of the Minister of Finance?

Mr. CoyNE: No, sir. They put it the other way round. They said that the
Bank shall not make such loans except with the permission of the Minister.

Mr. GREGOIRE: They could make them if they had the permission.

Mr. CoyNE: Insofar as the law was concerned. That is what the Treasury
Board order was doing—laying down the law. I am speaking about
responsibility.

Mr. MACKASEY: May I ask a supplementary question? Are you happy now
that this was stressed in the Treasury Board, in view of the circumstances? Was
this not a wise safeguard on the part of the government or Parliament.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not questior'the wisdom or otherwise of it. All I say is that
I am not going to use that as the excuse for saying that I will pass the buck to the
Minister of Finance.

Mr. MACKASEY: But you may not be there next week.
Mr. CoyNE: Quite so.

Mr. MACKASEY: In other words, this is a wise precaution?
Mr. Coyne: It could be.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But the fact that this order of the Treasury Board is there
does not mean that you are absolved of all responsibility towards the Committee.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think it absolves me of responsibility at all.

Mr. GREGOIRE: I am surprised; because I think that if the Treasury Board
passed such an order it was because they had the right from Parliament to do it.
Nobody in Parliament, not even members of the Committee who were in
Parliament, questioned the right of the Treasury Board to pass that.
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Mr. CoyNE: I have not questioned that. Let us suppose there is a law that
says a thing must not be done unless both A and B consent to it. The fact that B

has to consent to it does not absolve A of his responsibility.
Mr. GREGOIRE: No; but if he consents—
Mr. CoyNE: Then he has carried out his responsibility surely.
Mr. GREGOIRE: And you had the majority of the Board of Directors.
Mr. LEwis: He has to make the first decision.

Mr. GrEGOIRE: Now, in the last paragraph you say:

—there should be provision that no American bank shall be entitled to

hold any shares in a Canadian bank, and certainly not any voting shares.
So that you would agree with the decision of the Minister of Finance that the
First National City Bank should not have more than 25 per cent of the Mer-
cantile Bank, and even that it not have a single share in that bank?

Mr. CoynE: No; I am not thinking of that special situation which is very
much before Parliament. I am not presuming to speak on that. I am stating a
general principle here which was born out of my experience.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes; but you say:

—there should be provision that no American bank shall be entitled to
hold any shares in a Canadian bank—

Mr. CoyNE: Yes; well, I probably made too sweeping a statement; because
I did not intend to be saying anything one way or the other about the Mercantile
situation.

Mr. GREGOIRE: You would not include the Mercantile bank in this?

Mr. CoyNE: I would prefer not to say anything about it.

Mr. GREGOIRE: You suggest something to the Committee, but now you are
not ready to say anything about it?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes; well, I am sorry, I would prefer not to make any commgnt
on the special situation which you have before you in relation to the Mercantile

Bank.

Mr. GREGOIRE: That is all, sir.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Grégoire. This exchange between yourself
and Mr. Coyne may give rise to some interesting speculation because there was
some suggestion, either by yourself or by Mr. Coyne, about what you might
do if you were ever president of a bank, and so on and so forth. This could lead
;to some very interesting pictures in the imaginations of those present.

I would now like to recognize Mr. Latulippe.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, I would like to raise a point of procedure.
Perhaps you could advise me on this. I am not clear about an answer by Mr.
Coyne to a question posed by Mr. McLean. How can I rectify my possible
misconception of the answer?

The CHAIRMAN: You may want to seek an opportunity
tary question. This leads to another topic that perhaps we mi

to ask a supplemen-
ght discuss before I
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recognize Mr. Latulippe. You may seek an opportunity for a second
round of questions. Perhaps we ought to spend a moment or two on that before
recognizing Mr. Latulippe on the general issue.

There are at least two other people besides Mr. Latulippe who have indicat-
ed that they wish to ask some questions and who have not had an opportunity to
do so. In addition to yourself there is at least one other person who has already
indicated that he wishes to have a second round of questioning. However, we
have another witness, Mr. Stevens, who has not as yet had an opportunity to say
anything to us about this particular question we have been looking into today. I
think we may want to consider just when and how we are going to proceed.

I raise this at this time because very strongly uppermost in my mind, as I
am sure it is in the minds of many other members of the Committee, is the fact
that we are under some obligation to the House, and therefore to the Canadian
people, to deal with the deposit insurance bill, which was referred to us at the
end of last week, and also to complete our clause-by-clause consideration of the
Bank Act, especially in view of the fact that I understand the Government is still
proposing that the House prorogue on March 10.

In spite of the fact that we may think that we are doing some important
work in this committee, we obviously still have to give the House and the Senate
some oportunity to consider these two pieces of legislation. I am sure they will
want to take some reasonable time for that purpose. Therefore, without making
any specific suggestions, I may want to commend to the members of the commit-
tee and other members present, a course of restraint in asking further questions
of Mr. Coyne, particularly if they cover areas that have already been touched
on; and of course, of using the same restraint in questioning Mr. Stevens when
his opportunity comes.

Secondly, I think we should give some immediate consideration to the
possibility of sitting tomorrow and Thursday and Friday morning although not
necessarily on this issue alone; I would not recommend that. By so doing, we will
know where we are going, perhaps with a view to beginning our clause-by-
clause consideration of the legisla&ion in question at the beginning of next week.

It is my understanding that some of the opposition group particularly wish
to take a few days to consider possible amendments before beginning clause-by-
clause consideration of the banking legislation. At the moment we are not
behind schedule, and that, of course, is why I and the steering committee will-
ingly gave Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens the opportunity to appear before us
today. At the same time, we have to keep in mind our general obligations.

I would just like to commend to the Committee for consideration, though
we do not usually do it, that we sit tomorrow afternoon at 3.45 p.m. with a view
to completing our questioning of Mr. Stevens. On Thursday morning we could
hear the Minister; firstly, on any further comments he may have with respect to
the Bank of Western Canada, and, secondly, to testify before us on the deposit
insurance bill.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Chairman, I feel very strongly that we should hear Mr.
Stevens as soon as possible. Although Mr. Coyne has said that there is no
question about the liquidity of these companies, and so on, I think probably all
the publicity that there has been recently will not do them any good. I think we
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§hould, as a consequence, give Mr. Stevens his opportunity on the witness stand
Just as soon as we possibly can.

Mr. FuLToN: Perhaps we could sit an extra hour tonight and get the press
straightened away. I am sure we are.

The CHAIRMAN: I certainly would be most willing to so recommend. We
have done it on other occasions.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, I would like to support what Mr.
Monteith said. It may well be that after we hear Mr. Stevens the situation may
not be improved, but apart altogether from the dispute that may exist between
these two individuals, there are a great many others who have got a very direct
financial interest in these particular companies.

We have heard a rather damning one side of the case from Mr. Coyne. I
think we should, before business opens tomorrow morning, give Mr. Stevens an
opportunity at least to respond so that there can be a more balanced judgment
on the part of not only this committee but of the investing public generally.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it your suggestion that we suspend further questioning of
Mr. Coyne for the time being and proceed immediately to hearing Mr. Stevens?

Mr. MAcDONALD (Rosedale): Well, we have only got so much time left Mr.
Chairman. That seems to be a statesman-like suggestion on your part.

The CHATRMAN: With that description of it I will have to stick by it rather
strongly, if the Committee is in agreement.

Mr. FULTON: There is just one other thing that I think should be cleared up.
I understood Mr. Coyne to say that no part of his resignation from 3{01‘1{_ '}‘rust
an_d those companies had anything to do with any doubts about their liquidity. I
think we should have that clear on the record for Mr. Coyne as well.

Mr. CoyNE: That was not the phrase used in previous questions, or t}le
actual phrase that I used. I said that I was satisfied that they had a substantial
surplus of assets over liabilities, and that their assets were sound.

Mr. MACKASEY: There is one question which has been bothering me. You
said that this whole thing was not dishonest. How would you describe it?

The CHATRMAN: Well, Mr. Mackasey—
Mr. MACKASEY: This is important, before we get to Mr. Stevens.
The CHAIRMAN: I am not saying your question is not relevant or important.

However, I interrupted Mr. Latulippe to deal with what I thought was an
Important matter of procedure. Before considering your supplementary question

I think we should reach agreement on what we propose to do.
Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, excuse me, when you look at the angle from
which Mr. Fulton put it—the question of the liabilities of the companies—there
is still a sentence here which is strongly phrased, where Mr. Coyne says: A
—as I no longer have confidence in the management or policies of those
companies.
this has not been explained.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Grégoire, in the first place, I th
agreement with my suggestion that we were straying somew.

ink the committee was in
hat from our terms
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of reference in trying to go into detail on the operations and management of the
BIF group.

Secondly, I suppose Mr. Coyne would suggest that his first paragraph is
governed, or limited to a large degree, by the further explanations in the balance
of the statement.

Have I interpreted your analysis of your statement of your previous re-
marks with some success?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know that you ought always to be interpreting my
remarks. I would rather that my remarks stood on their own language, Mr.
Chairman, with all respect.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, that is fair enough. Of course, we do not have facilities
to have the transcript of what you say before us as you are saying it.

Mr. GILBERT: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that we stand Mr. Coyne down,
subject to recall after Mr. Stevens has given his evidence, and that we sit tonight
until 11.00 p.m.

The CHAIRMAN: I presume that Mr. Latulippe and Mr. Basford and our other
colleagues would—

(Translation)

I would like to explain to Mr. Latulippe, that, to be fair to our witnesses, and
particularly to Mr. Stevens, it might be advisable to stop our questioning of Mr.
Coyne for the time being and give Mr. Stevens the opportunity to make a
statement right now so that the Committee and the public might have a better
idea of the whole problem.

Mr. Laturippi: Is Mr. Coyne to return tomorrow?

The CHAIRMAN: Maybe not tomorrow, but on another day as soon as the
Committee will have decided. You will then have an opportunity to ask your
questions, followed by Mr. Basford and Mr. Aiken. There are also others who
have not had an opportunity to start their questioning.

-

(English)

Mr. Basrorp: Mr. Chairman, my questions related only to determining
what Mr. Fulton has just determined, that the assets of York Trust exceeded its
liabilities, so I am quite in favour of standing Mr. Coyne.

The CHAIRMAN: I gather that the consensus of the Committee is that we
excuse Mr. Coyne for the time being, subject to recall, and that we invite Mr.
Stevens to make a presentation to us at this time.

Thank you, Mr. Coyne.

Mr. More: Mr. Chairman, are we deciding now that we are going to sit until
11.00 p.m.?

The CrAIRMAN: Well let us go to 10.30 p.m. and see how we are progressing,
we can then decide about continuing until 11.00 p.m.

Mr. Stevens, perhaps you could move over. It will be easier for the Com~
mittee if you are in the centre.
Mr. Stevens, you may begin.
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1,}.4; SINCLAIR STEVI.SNS (Chairman of The Bank of Western Canada) :
i dank you, Mr. Chalr'man. I particularly appreciate that the Committee has
o wed me thxs opportunity, before the evening has run on any longer, to have
Serigﬁsoriﬁlmti{ to speak to you concerning what we regard as unbelievably

allegations which have been thrown against our roup, namely th
BIF-Wellington group of companies. g e

Torolntﬁrslt heard of these allegations when press reporters telephoned me in
e o. I was startled beyond belief to hear the tone of the statements which
re attributed to Mr. Coyne at that time.

Now, my position is somewhat different, perhaps, from that of Mr. Coyne, in

thi 1

olfllstlf‘:rsrf)ecé, that, on hearing these allegations, our immediate reaction was one

depositoin 0u§ concern for the shareholders in our companies, and for the

it s and the other people who are connected with them, including the
yees, who, we felt, had been put in a position that was totally unfair and

uncalled for.

We have had many meetings of our boards and of our executives to discuss

th :
m:ntt?ne %f ‘the allegations that Mr. Coyne has levelled against us. As Mr. Sharp
g oned 1n the House, I personally contacted Mr. Sharp, and prior to actually
ing him by telephone I sent a telegram stating:
I am sorry I missed speaking with you at the Park Plaza yester-

Sh
He was in Toronto over the weekend,

... and I was unable to contact you by telepho

to. assure you that my associates and myself are more than willing to meet
with you personally or to appear before any committee or other group
that you may feel desirable to clarify or contradict statements which are

attributed to Mr. Coyne in the press.
ne of immediately

cOmiNOW, I would emphasize that our first response was O

uncaﬁg to Ottawa and trying to clear this issue which we feel was totally

fit 1 ed. for. We have indicated that at no time did we object if Mr. Coyne saw
o resign from our boards, such as Wellington or BIF and, in fact he resigned

f ; :
rom various boards—not only BIF pboards—over the past months for his own
s the Timed Investment Fund,

fﬁzszrllal reasons. I am referring to boards, such a
tio bert.a Fidelity Trust, the Lambton Loan and Investment, and the Interna-
nal Savings. On all occasions his resignations did not result in press releases.
bEenAﬁ-far as we are concerned the serious aspect of Mr. Coyne’s action has pot
out— 18 reSlgngtlon from the board. I think if he personally felt after b?mg
tha t?tEd~ unammous}y on those boards on issues which he had argued against,
dous] e WlShgd to resign; that, of course, was his privilege. But we were tremen-
the ¢ y surprised to hear that he had gone to the press and made a statement in
orm he did concerning this subject.
ised—and I would emphasize this—that this was
ed immediately following a meeting—there was
during the meeting itself. But it was a joint
at which Mr. Bell, to whom Mr. Coyne has
who was Mr. Coyne, that in his opinion it

ne this morning. But I wish

doneWe were particularly surpt

No § and his resignation tender

BIF ndlC&fclon of a resignation

S ~-Wellington directors meeting
erred today, said to the chairman,
25700—6
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was unrealistic to assume that the BIF group having something around $6
million to be invested in the Bank of Western Canada, would not insist upon
having an important say in the policy decisions in relation to the operation of the
Bank.

Mr. Bell went on to say, however, that he wanted the chairman—that is, Mr.
Coyne—+to understand clearly that in making this statement it was to be under-
stood there was no intention of the BIF group trying to obtain any banking
accommodation from the Bank of western Canada in the foreseeable future.

Now, this was the February 1 meeting at which the banking resolutions
which Mr. Coyne has referred to, were dealt with and at which Mr. Coyne cast
the only negative vote against those resolutions. I am pointing out that it was
clearly stated at this meeting that our group had no intention of borrowing or
seeking banking accommodation from the Bank of Western Canada. Incidentally,
there was no dissent at the meeting at all. In other words, there was no
qualification of that statement.

We feel that the statements made by Mr. Coyne—and I certainly feel that
most of you will agree having read the press—have caused as even the New
York Times says:

“The Canadian financial community has been rocked over the weekend by
the allegations of Mr. Coyne.”

I think this is terribly unfortunate. I think it is unfortunate for the reasons 1
have given in relation to the BIF company, to the Wellington company and to
our group in total.

During our discussions in Toronto, and realizing the possible gravity and
serious consequences that might arise from Mr. Coyne’s statement, I entered into
a voting trust agreement with respect to the common shares that I hold in British
International Finance (Canada) Limited. The agreement, if you like,—this is my
signed statement,. . .

Mr. MACKASEY: What is the date of it?

Mr. STEVENS: Today. The agreement is signed by myself and it reads: I wish
to advise that I will transfer the voting rights to all of the common shares of
British International Finance (Canada ) Limited, which I personally control, in
favour of an operating committee to be composed of five members, three of
whom are to be Don Ross, who is our principal underwriter associated with Ross
Knowles & Co. Limited; John Deacon, the Chairman of the Toronto Stock
Exchange; George Dickson, a director on one of our companies and Executive
Vice-President of Canada Packers—if they accept, and I understand they will
accept—and two other members to be mutually agreed upon. Now, this action
has been taken in order to try to minimize whatever impression is being created
through the press reports and allegations that have been thrown out concerning
the competence of the management of the BIF group.

I say this in two senses: First of all, I personally seem to be singled out for
the brunt of the allegations and, in the second place, I believe some suggestion
was raised in the House of Commons concerning my voting control in the BIF
group of companies. So, I am simply mentioning to the Committee that we feel
this is of a sufficiently serious nature that at all costs we have to minimize the
possible effect of this concerning our entire group.

i

(
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Having said that, I would like to emphasize that we feel Mr. Coyne’s
Statements are totally uncalled for and that whatever personal feelings he may
have concerning our dealings with the Bank of Western Canada in no sense cpuld
juStify the type of attitude that he has taken and the press release—especially
the form and terms of the press release—which as I have mentioned, was
released totally without our knowledge. The first I heard that there had even
been a statement was when Dow Jones phoned me in Toronto and said that they
understood Mr. Coyne had resigned from two of our boards.

I say this, particularly bearing in mind, as most of you gentlemen probably
have already done, some of the comments that have been made by MI:. Coyne
before this Committee or the Senate Committee. I find it startling to sit at the
Same Committee table today—February 7—and hear Mr. Coyne state x_;vhat he:
has stated, and yet, on March 3rd, 1966, before this very Committee he said:

I am associated with them ( meaning the BIF group) because they are
competent, sincere people who are able to get things done. I do pot think
you will get banks established in any other way than by having some
nucleus group who have to be originators, the controllers, and the organ-
izers, and who will put a lot of time into it in the first instance.

For ordinary commercial purposes, someone has to organize a com-
bany and someone has to control it in the early stages; and every other
bank I know of was started in that way.

Now that, gentlemen, was March 3 of last year.

I can mention many other references during the hearing of a similar nature,
Where M. Coyne was indicating why he felt it was advantageous to have our
8roup aid in the sponsorship of the bill incorporating the Bank of Western
Canaga,

I know there is an earlier quote, for example, as far back as May 6, 1964,
When My, Coyne said: .

I thought that there was real value to our bank, to our community
and to the interests of Canada in making sure that a sufficient volume of
stock was closely held in strong hands of people experienced in the
financial world, who had made a success of their own businesses, and who
Were strongly pro-Canadian.

Now, believe me, there is absolutely no change in our position, and that
Statement could be made today as easily as it was made in May, 1964. Mr.

Airman, I do not think, that I should go through all these quotations, but I
Would like to stress that I feel there has been a tremendous change in Mr.
Oyne’s thinking with respect to our group. I feel that for whatever pers.on_al
feelings he may have, I am sorry. But, on the other hand, I feel that it is,
Derhaps’ rash to have made press releases in the form that have been made anﬁ
ave stirred up the controversy which has ensued as a result of Mr. Coyne’s
€ments over the past few days.

I now mention in a more general tone that the Bank of erstern
Canac‘tﬂ~élnd, perhaps, you will recall that some of Mr. Coyne’_s .ea.rher testimony
“Onfirmeq this—was, in fact, the idea of the BIF group. The original press rele;se
Concerning the concept of the Bank of Western Canada was issued on December

» 1963, wWe stated in part in this press release that:
25700\(5&
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to sponsor the new bank as original shareholders, a number of Winnipeg
and other western Canadian businessmen are joining with a Toronto
group, chiefly those who have been associated with the York Trust and
Savings Corporation and Wellington Financial Corporation Limited. All
interested parties are Canadians, and no foreign or non-resident partici-
pation of any kind is involved.

That was true, and it is still true. No foreign or non-resident participation of any
kind is involved in the Bank of Western Canada.

The Toronto participants are expected to provide organizing facilities
and experience in the operation of deposit receiving and investing institu-
tions in the financial field generally.

That Toronto group, of course, being the BIF group.

It is intended, however, that western Canadians will have an oppor-
tunity to acquire a majority of the shares and provide a majority of the
directors.

Both things were done. As you will recall, shares were widely distributed
throughout western Canada. As far as the directors are concerned, we always
felt that two-thirds of the directors should come from western Canada and
one-third from our group. At the present time, as has been stated, eleven of the
directors are resident in western Canada and six are resident in Toronto.

I believe that Mr. Coyne’s statements have touched to quite an extent on the
fact that he feels that we have not lived up to our commitment to this Committee
or to the Senate Committee with respect to two, or possibly three, different
points. One point is the question that he feels that we have—I believe his
wording is: “attempted to borrow from the Bank of Western Canada for the
purposes of our companies.” Our position in this respect is that we have not, in
our opinion, attempted to borrow from the Bank of Western Canada. As suggest-
ed by certain members of the Committee there has been discussion concerning
this subject, both in Committee and at the December 16 meeting to which Mr.
Coyne refers. But I should, perhaps, if I may have your indulgence, go into this
subject in some depth because I feel it is important that it be clarified so there
will be no misunderstandings.

First, I will mention that in referring to Mr. Coyne’s quotations from the
various Committee hearings touching on this subject, I draw your attention to
the fact that in virtually every quotation reference is made to the fact that our
group expects to maintain satisfactory lines of credit with their existing banks.
For example, the following is stated in the March 18 quotation which Mr. Coyne
has distributed to you:

—we spoke to each of the existing banks with which we deal and gave
and received assurances from them that in the event we received a
charter, our group’s existing banking arrangements would be maintained.

There are similar references both in Mr. Coyne’s statements and in mine in most
of these instances where we referred to the subject, that BIF group companies
would not look to the Bank of Western Canada as their banker. In this connec-
tion, too, I point out that in my submission to the Senate I drew attention to the
fact that we had certain fears concerning what repercussions we might feel as a
group upon venturing into the position of asking for a charter in Canada for a
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new bank. It was the first time in more than 40 years that a Canadian group had
got together and proposed such a venture. In that submission I made this com-
ment which if I may read it, states:

In summary then we have no grievance with any of the existing
banks in Canada. In fact, we have excellent banking arrangements with
most of these banks with respect to the various companies in our group.
We feel that our Canadian banks are providing an excellent service to the
people of Canada, but we also feel that there is room for one more bank in
Canada and more particularly, one having its head office in the centre of
that vast area stretching from Bay Street to the Pacific Ocean.

Before making our intentions known with respect to our proposed
bank, our group was most hesitant and cautious as to the outcome or
repercussions which might result when our intentions were announced. In
spite of these feelings, we finally determined to attempt to do what we
had been assured was impossible, namely, to obtain a charter for a bank
in Canada.

Again, at the same hearing, I believe, Mr. Coyne stated:

At this point I should like to state—without qualification that we do
not intend to use the funds of this bank to make loans to other institu-
tions, such as York Trust, Wellington Financial, British International
Finance,—

And he mentioned some other rompanies—
—with which some of the organizers of this bank are connected.

These companies all have established banking connections which they
expect to maintain—

And I would emphasize “expect to maintain”—
—and in any case the size of loan that could be made available by the
Bank of Western Canada would be of no interest to them.

Then the comment goes on:
—Similarly as regards the financial institutions in Western Canada with
which we are connected—

—hamely certain of the trust companies—

—in their case, they will no doubt d
business with the bank, but will not loo

used in their own operations.

Now, with that background and without giving you repetitive quotations, all

of which, I suggest, have the same tone, I would mention that the December 16
Meeting referred to by Mr. Coyne was, in fact, a two-day meeting. I believe wo
€gan on Friday and ran over until Saturday. In fact, we had two full days of
Iscussion among the directors, all of whom, incidentally, were virtually new tc
thﬁ* bank and to the concept and the thinking that had gone on prior to that time
With respect to the Bank of Western Canada. In the morning of the Saturday
Session I spent something like 24 hours explaining to the board the original
Concept of the bank; the fact that our group had promoted the idea; that we had
endeavoured to secure partners in western Canada who would share in the
OWnership of the bank; the fact that Mr. Coyne had approached.certal‘n in-
ividuals in the Winnipeg area who he expected would participate with us in the

o some of their regular banking
k to it as a source of funds to be
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bank but this did not materialize; the fact that we, after making the press release
that I have mentioned, found that there was a ground swell of enthusiasm for the
bank which resulted in our being able to raise the funds which were raised for
this bank. I related these facts to the directors in order that they would be
acquainted with the general background surrounding the formation of the Bank
of Western Canada. I mentioned the concepts that we had in mind and pointed
out that in our mind—and I read from the minutes of that directors’ meeting:
Mr. Stevens, the Chairman, then advised the Directors that he would
like to briefly summarize the history of the incorporation of the Bank and
comment upon certain of the effect and results that had been occasioned
by the incorporation of the Bank. He advised that in his opinion the basic
objectives of the bank should be as follows:
1. The bank should be a sound bank.

2. That the bank should run on a profitable basis with a minimum 10
per cent per annum return on capital as a target;
This would be slightly better, or quite a bit better, I guess, Mr. Paton, then the
existing Canadian bank rates.
3. The bank should be aggressive in fields not fully covered or
serviced by the present chartered banks;

4. The bank should be a western-oriented Bank so long as it is run on
a sound, profitable and aggressive basis.

Now, I would emphasize that at no time had we argued against the idea of the
bank being a truly western institution. This was our original concept; it was our
thinking from the beginning, as I have mentioned in the previous comments.
Now, during this discussion I went at some length into the actual credit position
of certain of our companies during the period that the bank had been under
consideration. On touching on these points, I would mention that I do not mean
to say that these lines of credit or loans to which I refer diminished or declined
only because our group was proposing to form a new bank in Canada. In other
words, I want to make it clear that I am not suggesting this is the only reason; it
could be for other reasons. I do state though, because I have first-hand knowl-
edge, that it was a definite factor in the declining credit facilities which our
group experienced during the peridt to which I am referring.

I have been told by certain bankers that their files have been labelled to
indicate we are now a banking institution and that loan accommodation we had
received previously was subsequently labelled ‘“pre-bank facility”. I asked the
chap when he mentioned this to me: “What do you mean by ‘pre-bank’?” He said
the feeling was that we would use the facility of the bank only until we had our
own bank incorporated. I stated that this, of course, was untrue. The chap I was
talking to agreed, but said it was an attitude that was growing within his bank
and something he felt we should be cognizant of; we could not expect the type of
accommodation from that bank that we have had in earlier years.

In making these statements I would mention that our credit facility at one
time, for example, had been on the basis of $300,000 worth of capital. We were
able to secure a line of credit of $900,000. For example, in the 1964 period our
credits from Canadian chartered banks ran as high as $5 million within our
group. During the 1965 period the credits went down to $1.9. They went up on a
temporary six-month deal—which, incidentally, cost us 8 per cent—to $13,900,-
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000. During 1966 these lines have fallen from $2 million until, at the present
time, I believe, we are borrowing less than $150,000 from our bankers in Canada
and that $150,000 is in the Wellington Financial Corporation which has assets of
something over $10 million.

I mention this because it was part of the background that I related to the
directors of the Bank of Western Canada at the Saturday morning meeting. Our
group feel that to some extent the Bank of Western Canada has caused us to lose
considerable in the way of lines of credit and other facilities with existing
Canadian banks. During this same period, however, we have been able to secure
lines of credit and loans from various American banks and some European
banks. So, I would suggest that it is not a question of credit worthiness; there
seem to be other reasons which could have had a bearing.

Now, I stress again, in relation to Mr. Coyne’s comments concerning the
credit facility to which he referred on the February 1 meeting of Wellington
Financial, that these credit facilities have been utilized by our group for some
time, and the specific credit to which he is referring was a new line of credit we
had asked for and which had been granted. But the bank concerned had already
given us considerable credit in the past and with absolutely no reference to the
Bank of Western Canada. At one time the Bank of Western Canada would not
even have been incorporated when this bank were affording us lines of credit
and loans. I am referring to the specific bank that Mr. Coyne is referring to. I
would also like to state that several American banks and foreign banks have
extended us lines of credit during this period.

In pointing this out to the directors of the Bank of Western Canada, I stated
that it would only be fair to tell them, as Chairman of the Board, that certain of
the directors on the bank had informed me they had been notified by their
respective banks that upon being appointed to our board their lines of credit
were in jeopardy; that in certain cases they had been discontinued or lowered
or, at least, a request had been made that if it could be refinanced the bank
would be much happier. In one case a director was told that a legal opinion had
been sought of whether, in fact, the bank that he was dealing with could lend to
him on his personal account, now that he was a director of another bank. The
legal opinion, of course, confimed that there was nothing wrong with it. But the
manager indicated by innuendo, at least in the mind of this gentlemen, that they
would be very pleased if he would shift his account in view of the fact he had
joined the board of the Bank of Western Canada.

Now, I felt an obligation to explain to the directors of the Bank of Western
Canada that this type of situation existed. I then related it to our group and
pointed out the diminishing lines of credit and loans which our group had
experienced during this period. This, then, brought me to what I regarded at the
time as a clarification of the Treasury Board order touching on this subject of
our group borrowing from the Bank of Western Canada.

As has been indicated, section (f) of the Treasury Board order states:
—that the bank—
—meaning the Bank of Western Canada—

—during the period in which the preferred subscribers hold in the aggre-
gate more than ten per cent of the shares of the Bank issued and
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outstanding, shall not, directly or indirectly, except with the prior ap-
proval of the Minister of Finance,—
and in very general terms—really any transaction touchmg on the Bank of
Western Canada of a loan, or of a guarantee nature, or the sale of assets or
anything like this.

In reviewing this I pointed out that we, in our group, possibly had been put
in the worst of all possible worlds as it was clear that we could not deal—and we
understood we could not deal—with the Bank of Western Canada; existing
banks, for their own good reasons, were not extending us the lines of credit that
we had once enjoyed; and that we had little recourse but to go to American or
other foreign banks for credit facilities. I mentioned, however, that I felt, as a
group and, speaking especially as president of the British International Group,
that I had an obligation to go to the Minister of Finance and ask for a clarifica-
tion of what was meant by the words “except with the prior approval of the
Minister of Finance.” This was discussed at the meeting and the minutes that
actually record this state:

He reviewed—
meaning myself—
He reviewed the provisions of the Treasury Board order given at the

time that the Bank was authorized to accept subscriptions from B.ILF.
group in excess of 10 per cent of the issued capital of the bank.

After discussion, the Secretary was directed to record that Mr,
Stevens proposed in his capacity as President of the British International
Finance (Canada) Limited to ask the Minister of Finance for clarification
of the terms of the Treasury Board order in relation to whether and in
what circumstances the Minister of Finance might be prepared to approve
transactions betwen the Bank and the B.I.F. group of companies.

Mr. MACKASEY: The western bank?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, the western bank. Now, that is the only reference to this
subject in the minutes. The discussions which Mr. Coyne has referred to were, as
suggested by Mr. Wahn, I believe, purely exploratory in nature. It was pointed
out, in similar situations in the United States, the requirement is that by law a
bank cannot lend to any customer, more than 10 per cent of paid up capital and
reserve. It was suggested that the Minister, if he were approached, might say
that this would be a reasonable guideline with respect to any dealings with our
group.

Mr. LEwis: Who suggested that?

Mr. STEVENS: I do not know whether I suggested it or somebody else, but
during the meeting it came up for discussion. If you like, I will take the blame
for suggesting it. I am not too sure, but I know it was discussed at the meeting.
Some of the directors felt that would be too high a limit. Others felt it could only
be put on a specific deal basis; in other words, if there were a specific transaction
to be considered—the sale of assets or something like that—this, perhaps, would
be the only basis on which the Minister would give such consent.

But, I would emphasize that the tone of this meeting, in my view, was
simply one of clarification in explaining the position with respect to our group in
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the formation of the bank, our credit facilities and future position that we might
find ourselves in, including the directors of the Bank of Western Canada.

During this discussion, I also touched on the fact that Fort Garry Trust in
Winnipeg, for example, clears with one of our competing banks. Now, as you
know, Mr. Chairman, before this Committee, on behalf of 12 trust companies, the
point was raised that we feel somewhat precarious in the trust company field
with respect to this clearing arrangement through chartered banks, in that we
compete with chartered banks—I am speaking in the trust field—and the only
way we can clear our cheques is through those chartered banks. Now, in
Winnipeg, Fort Garry Trust does clear through one of the banks. It is a very
profitable account; we have no loan accommodation; but, technically speaking on
the strict wording of the Treasury Board order, I do not think the Fort Garry
Trust account should be shifted to the Bank of Western Canada without consent
of the Minister of Finance.

This, I would point out, is something that was certainly contemplated by Mr.
Coyne in the earlier quotation that I mentioned, in that the trust companies in
western Canada might quite conceivably deal with the Bank of Western Canada.
So, at the board meeting on December 16 I was simply clarifying the position in
relation to the Treasury Board order and, specifically, item (f). There was
definitely no application made to the board of any formal or informal nature;
there were no specific funds requested. In fact, as Mr. Coyne indicated, the point
was even raised for clarification that if we were really applying for a loan we
would have to absent ourselves from the meeting which is the requirement
under the Bank Act. The statement certainly was made by myself that we were
not applying for a loan. We were simply trying to familiarize the directors with
the situation and to advise them that I, as president of B.LF., may feel that I
have to go to the Minister of Finance and at least ask for clarification on the
point.

Mr. MACKASEY: You are talking about directors. Do you mean the directors
of the western bank or the B.LF. group?

Mr. STEVENS: Directors of the western bank.

Now, during the same meeting we referred to the fact—and this was with
more specific reference to the position of directors on the Bank of Western
Canada—that the Porter commission report brought out that about 30 per cent of
the banks’ authorized lines of credit of $100,000 or more at the end of 1962 were
to directors, the firms or corporations of which they were officers or directors, or
were guaranteed by them. However, this is a reflection of the wide business
interest of the 270 directors of our existing chartered banks. In other words, 30
per cent of the lines of credit of over $100,000 that were expended by Canadian
chartered banks at the end of 1962 were, in fact, to directors or to firms in which
directors of the bank were associated. If that is still in effect—and I have no
reason to believe it to be otherwise—it means that today each director of a
Canadian chartered bank, if he has his proper allotment, should have $10
million of line of credit available for himself or for a company in which he is
associated.

We brought out this point to indicate that we, in the Bank of Western
Canada, cannot allow ourselves to get into a too isolated or limited position, or
we would find it difficult to compete effectively and to win directors on to the
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board of the Bank of Western Canada in view of the position that directors are
relative to the other existing banks. So, just to summarize on this question of
our borrowing from the Bank of Western Canada, I would like to stress that
what Mr. Coyne is referring to are discussions concerning whether loans could or
should be made; the effect of the Treasury Board ruling; but at no time was any
actual application made or any pressure brought to bear on the board in the
sense of saying that we require a certain loan and expect the board to automati-
cally fall in line, or anything whatsoever along that line. And as I have stated, at
the February 1 meeting—later that evening Mr. Coyne resigned—it was specifi-
cally stated that our group did not intend to apply to the Bank of Western
Canada for credit facilities in the foreseeable future.

This, then, brings me to the question of the bank accommodation that we
secured in the United States and which Mr. Coyne has taken exception to. This
accommodation was given to us as the result of a letter which was addressed to
the bank and dated January 19, 1967 which I would like to read to the Com-
mittee, if I may Mr. Chairman. It states:

Gentlemen:
You already have corporate documentation from British International
Finance (Canada) Ltd. and Wellington Financial Corporation Limited.

In connection with the above, please credit the respective accounts
with the amounts of the enclosed checks.

There were two nominal cheques put in, one of $5,000 and one of $10,000,
one to be credited to the B.I.F. account and one to the Wellington account.

In regard to our discussions, we hereby request you to establish a
loan line for up to $2,500,000 for ourselves. Of this amount we visualize
the use of $1,500,000 in the immediate future. We may call on the balance
of $1,000,000 later on, and this second amount of $1,000,000 will, of course,
be subject to negotiation at that time. We are therefore discussing for the
present a total of $1,500,000.

Upon your advice, Wellington Overseas Corporation (which is our
New York corporation) will issue its notes to yourselves which notes will
be guaranteed for payment by the aforementioned organizations, British
International Finance (Canada) Limited and Wellington Financial Corp.
Limited and endorsed jointly and severally.

The maturity should be for ‘c‘me year.

We are enclosing herewith financial statements of British Interna-
tional Finance (Canada) Limited and Wellington Financial Corporation
Limited which, together those you already have for Wellington Overseas
Corporation should complete your files.

Mr. Sinclair Stevens, President of both British International Finance

(Canada) Limited and Wellington Financial Corporation Limited advises

the statements of these organizations, as at the close of 1966, will be in

line with the enclosed reports and will not have any significant changes,

excepting that the net worth of these companies will be substantially
higher.

The reference that we are making there is to the fact that partly as a result

of the mergers which have gone in our group and the actual consummation of the

~
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Bank of Western Canada, the net worth of the Wellington—B.LF. group is up
about $5 million or $6 million since the end of 1965.

We thank you, very much for your consideration and for your co-
operation.

With best regards, I am,
(Signed)
Sincerely yours

Wm. John Mindlin.
President.

That was the letter in which we requested the credit facility from the New
York Bank. They approved the credit and during the discussions the point was
raised, as it had been raised from time to time, that this bank would be
particularly interested in working with our B.L.F. group in its general activities.
By that they meant they liked the international activity we were in, including
the fact that we have an office in London, England; we have activity in the
Bahamas; we are in the mutual fund business which this bank hopes to get into
and they like the association with the Canadian group.

Mr. GREGOIRE: What is the name of this bank?

Mr. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman, I would ask you for a ruling on that point. I
have no objections to giving the name. My only reservation is that I feel the
nature of this discussion is such that the fewer names that get pulled in the
better. As I mentioned, the New York Times is already running stories on this
controversy, and I am fearful that banking facilities which we have in the United
States, which we enjoy and continue to enjoy, may feel some embarrassment if
their names get drawn into the discussions.

The CHAIRMAN: I think the best approach to take would be for me to reserve
any decision on this point at this time, and to invite comments from the
Committee at a later stage if the discussion arises again. The reason I say that we
should not get into it at this time is to give Mr. Stevens an opportunity to
complete his initial statement.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, there is only one thing I wanted to know. Was
it the First National City Bank?

Mr. STEVENS: No. I should have mentioned that it is definitely not the first
National City Bank of New York.

The CHAIRMAN: I will reserve a decision on this point until after you have
completed your statement. I would invite you to proceed.

Mr. STEVENS: The other point that I would mention too, is that the letter I
have referred to is in reference to only one New York bank. We deal with
several New York banks and also with banks in the Midwest and in the far west
of the United States. Again, I feel that introducing their names may cause them
some embarrassment.

Mr. MoRE (Regina City): I have a supplementary question. This letter refers
to the line of credit that was referred to by Mr. Coyne.
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Mr. STeEVENS: That is right. The point that Mr. Coyne refers to, as I
understand it, is that during the oral discussions—and I would emphasize
this—between Mr. Mindlin, our New York representative, and the bank con-
cerned, the point was raised that we would be willing to give a first refusal on a
block of BIF shares or Bank of Western shares up to the statutory limit of 10 per
cent in the event that such shares were to be sold to a non-resident. It was
nothing more, in effect, than a gentlemen’s agreement. Now, when I say that, in
banking language, it would be a firm agreement in the sense that that bank
would be very disappointed, to say the least, if the shares were sold to another
non-resident without giving them the opportunity to purchase them. It was a
first refusal basis on a 10 per cent block of the Bank of Western Canada. It was
not in the written request for the loan but was simply something that was
referred to in oral discussions during the consideration of the loan which was
eventually granted to our group. As far as I know, the facility is still available
along with the other New York facilities which I have referred to.

When this matter was drawn up and referred to at the Wellington-B.LF.
meeting on February 1st, Mr. Coyne was quite adamant in his opposition to us
entering into the line of credit or the loan arrangement as described.

Mr. LEwis: When you say “as described”, does that include the loan of credit
and the gentlemen’s agreement?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. During the meeting, as Mr. Coyne has mentioned, a
resolution was moved and passed unanimously with the exception of Mr. Coyne’s
dissenting vote, that we accept the loan arrangement in principle but that we go
to the New York bank and clarify the understanding with respect to the first-
refusal arrangement and any other misunderstandings that there may be con-
cerning the affairs of any of our companies.

Mr. MAcCKRASEY: What was the date of all this, Mr. Stevens?
Mr. STEVENS: February the first.
Mr. MackaASEY: And this was a meeting of the B.LLF. group.

Mr. STEVENS: It was a joint meeting of the B.I.F. board and the Wellington
board.

Mr. MACKASEY: Not the bank?

Mr. STEVENS: No, because it was a loan to be jointly and severally guaran-
teed by those two companies. So, in short, we felt that while we had agreed in
principle to the loan arrangement, any misunderstandings that might exist—and
we were simply activated by the type of attitude that Mr. Coyne has indicated
—would be clarified if we met with that bank and made sure that there was no
misunderstanding concerning the first-refusal arrangement or in respect to
anything else concerning a financial nature in our own organization.

As it has resulted, the meeting was not proceeded with because subsequent-
ly we received Mr. Coyne’s resignation, but the bank in question is having its
two senior representatives visit with us in Toronto this week, at our request, in
order to go over this matter fully and make sure that, in fact, there is no
misunderstanding of any nature whatsoever.

In touching on this matter, I would have to give you some background
concerning the American bank situation or the foreign bank situation generally.

-
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During our discussions in the Bank of Western Canada the point has often been
made, and I think it is generally agreed, that we can co-operate and get
tremendous assistance from certain American banks, especially those in the
midwest and the far western part of the United States. You have situations
where you have American bank holding companies which control perhaps 50 or
70 banks under their jurisdiction. These banks have very similar problems to the
problems that the Bank of Western Canada will experience in its opening period.
For example, I am thinking of two bank holding company institutions in the
Minneapolis area. They control banks in the seven states immediately south of
Winnipeg, and we felt that the knowledge, the know-how and the assistance of
those banks in getting our bank off and running in Winnipeg would be very
beneficial. Now I should mention to you that we have already been dealing
through our New York office with one of those bank holding companies and it
has been an extremely good, profitable relationship on both sides. I do not feel
that there has been any serious opposition to the suggestion of having this
co-operation with the American banks. I believe that in the development of the
Bank of Western Canada a great deal of facility can be acquired through the
participation loan process working with this type of American bank. When I
say this, I mention it advisedly because these banks literally have approached
us and said that they would like to be able to work with Canadian banks in a
participation loan fashion and extend credit to customers that they feel are
credit worthy in the Canadian field.

For example, only a week ago I had a visit in Toronto from an official of one
of the Buffalo banks. He said he had a customer in Toronto whom he felt was
creditworthy. They were prepared to take up to 75 per cent of his loan accom-
modation. They were unable to get the two Toronto banks that they had
approached to share the deal with them and that he had come in, to use his
words, “in a spirit of complete frustration” in that they would like to accommo-
date their customer but they could not find a Canadian bank who would work
with them and he wondered would we be interested, if we were active in
Winnipeg, in taking such a participation loan if a similar situation arose there.
I said my understanding—certainly speaking personally—was that we certainly
would be interested in working with such a participation deal.

In fact, during the formative period of our bank we had representatives go
down into three areas of the United States, the eastern states, the midwestern
states, and the California western states and visit a total of about ten American
banks to receive information, co-operation and ideas from these banks concern-
ing how they could work with the Bank of Western Canada in facilitating our
activity in the Canadian west. We got a tremendous response from all of these
banks. I am talking here about BIF personnel. In the case of the Bank of Western
Canada itself, I know, and presumably to Mr. Coyne’s knowledge, that the
general manager went into the Chicago area and similarly visited a bank in
Chicago 'and worked out a tentative arrangement concerning that bank’s partici-
pation and association with the Bank of Western Canada in the event that the
bank got activated.

Mr. MoRE: With Mr. Coyne’s knowledge?

Mr. STEVENS: I can presume so because I have a memo from the general
manager in which he mentions that he has visited with this bank. He was very
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pleased with his reception and that he would like Mr. Coyne and myself to visit
with the President of the bank and take the matter on further.

I am mentioning this as background to the fact that we in the BIF group do
not feel that if we should see fit to sell a block of the Bank of Western Canada to
an American banking concern that objection should be taken to it in the sense
that Mr. Coyne has taken objection. We feel that such a share ownership would
be probably a way to weld a good link with an American banking concern. The
bank that we have in mind is a large bank; it has assets of well over a billion
dollars; they have know-how and they have indicated every interest in co-
operating, but there is absolutely no suggestion on any part of these American
banks that I am referring to that they would take control or in any way interfere
with the management of the Bank of Western Canada. I wou'd also emphasize
that many of these banks are already dealing with our group and that they have
dealt with our group prior to the Bank of Western Canada even being chartered.
So I do not feel that it can be assumed that the only reason that they deal with
our group is the Bank of Western Canada being in the background.

The CHAIRMAN: What size block are you referring o?

Mr. STEVENS: Well, the limit would be 10 per cent. The 10 per cent factor is
the limit in our existing Bank Act. The Bank of Western Canada is limited to a
10 per cent portion. The revised act would be up to 25 per cent, I believe.

Mr. MAckASEY: Mr. Stevens, for a clarification, is that not precisely what
Mr. Coyne said in his statement?

Mr. STEVENS: I beg your pardon.
Mr. MACKASEY: Is this not precisely what Mr Coyne said in his statement?
Mr. STEVENS: I am sorry.

Mr. MAckASEY: What you have just described, the option of 10 per cent of
the shares to an American, is precisely what Mr. Coyne is accusing you of.

Mr. STEVENS: I think it is a question of degree. We simply say that during
oral discussions a first refusal was indicated in the event we wished to sell to a
non-resident. I think option is a stronger word, and I do not want to toy with
words, but I am simply saying that the important thing, as far as we were
concerned, was the credit facility and that the share ownership is something that
we feel, if it was consummated, should not be objected to; but on the other hand
it was not the key point in the credit facility.

The question has also been raised by Mr. Coyne concerning the $1.5 million
or $1,450,000 which has not been paid into the Bank of Western Canada. On this
point, I must admit matters get very confused.

The CHAIRMAN: Order, please.

Mr. STEVENS: —because, as Mr. Coyne has stated, there is still an unpaid
portion of our subscription in the amount of $1,450,000. This amount, in my
opinion, will be paid. In fact, at the date of the meeting in which the matter was
being discussed the funds were available.

Mr. MoNTEITH: That was on February 1.
Mr. STEVENS: No; the directors’ meeting on January 20.
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As Mr. Coyne has mentioned, early on the agenda of that meeting there was
reference to payment in of unpaid capital. That was moved to later in the
meeting and, as he has said, it came up at the final part of the meeting. During
this meeting a fairly lively discussion ensued on this point, in that Mr. Coyne felt
that my shifting of the question of the unpaid shares to later on the agenda
indicated that perhaps we wanted to hear policy matters discussed first, or in
some way we were, in effect, holding a lever over the directors to first of all
decide policy before we wou'd put the $1,450,000 in. I said that I did not feel that
that was certainly our thinking, but at the same time we were concerned as to
what was to be the future policy and method of operation of the Bank of
Western, Canada.

Mr. MACKASEY: What date were you worrying about policy?

Mr. STEVENS: We had been worrying ever since July 15 when we received
our charter. I am now up to the January 20 meeting, at which time certain of the
directors felt—and I hesitate to call them eastern directors because I feel that
perhaps this east-west question is overdone—as Mr. Bell stated at the Well-
ington meeting on February 1 to which I referred, that, having the size of
investment in the bank that we had, we should have an important say in the
policy decisions in relation to the operation of the bank. In actual fact, we visited
Winnipeg one day early, hoping to have an opportunity to discuss at some length
the policy with respect to the Bank of Western Canada. We felt that we could
not get down to the specifics that we would have liked to concerning the number
of branches to be opened and when they might be opened—the hard core policy
matters as to how the bank in fact would operate. In saying this, let there be no
doubt in anyone’s mind: we are not arguing against the idea of a Western Bank,
but we want a successful, profitable, effective Western Bank and we think that is
the only type of bank that the west deserves and should have. I could refer to
resolutions, for example, where we moved that branches be opened in the west
at a quicker rate. We would like to be open in Vancouver and places like that,
but it is essential to have the policy decided and then action taken.

During this meeting Mr. Coyne outlined his thinking at that date. He stated
that the staff of the bank were quite pressed with organizational matters and
that they had not been able to arrive at any too definitive decisions, but that he
would indicate, as I understood it, his thinking at that time. During the discus-
sion the impression was certainly left, I feel, that one of the chief drawbacks to
the future of the Bank of Western Canada was in fact the association with the
eastern interests and, in particular, the BIF group. This startled me greatly in
that some of the directors—I think there were two in number—said that they
felt that this image was such that it was difficult to sell the Western Bank as a
western bank. I pointed out, and other directors pointed out, that certainly it had
always been known by the originators of the bank that the BIF group would
have an important interest in the bank, but they said that they felt some means
should be worked out to ensure that this factor could be minimized. I was very
startled to hear a suggestion that we should put all our shares in a voting trust
and that the voting trust should be administered or run by Winnipeg people or

people in the west. This was news to me. Having that amount of money at stake,
we felt that to suggest, we give up the voting power on the money and leave
policy matters entirely to the directors on the board who, I think in most
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instances, had qualifying shares, was expecting a tremendous move on our part
and one which would be very imprudent for us to do in respect-to our respective
companies. It was suggested, perhaps in jesture, that I should move to Winnipeg
myself in order to try to give more of a western image. I stated that I had no
particular objection to moving, but if I was to move then perhaps I would go
further west than Winnipeg. In fact, before this is over I may end up moving
west.

However, during the discussion we felt that we were left in the odd position
of directors telling us that we in effect were the chief liability in ensuring that
the bank would get off to a proper running start in western Canada. We offered
at the meeting to sell a substantial portion of our holdings to any western group
that wished to purchase it and, in fact, we asked one of the directors specifically
to seek out possible purchasers for, say, 10 or 20 per cent. We said this in the
sense that we felt that if it would better the future of the Bank of Western
Canada, we would have no hesitation in selling say, 10 or 20 or possibly even 30
per cent of our holdings in the Bank of Western Canada to a partner or a group
of partners who would be acceptable to us in the sense that they could work

properly with us.
Mr. FuLToNn: You are holding approximately 51 per cent.
Mr. STEVENS: About 50 per cent.

Mr. MAackASEY: Is this the first time it was suggested to you that you put
your shares in a voting trust?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MACKASEY: It was the first time.

Mr. STEVENS: When I say that I do not mean that there was necessarily, to
my knowledge, any organized thinking behind it; it was just that a director said:
Well, maybe that would be a help to you.

The CuAaiRMAN: I do not like to interrupt, Mr. Stevens, but it is now five
minutes to eleven and I think we should decide, firstly, whether you are in a
position to conclude your remarks shortly. I gather you are dealing with one of
the final points that you had in mind with regard to shares subscription.
Secondly, there may be one or two questions which members may consider vital
with respect to shareholder or depositor confidence in your other institutions that
have not already been asked and, for that reason, they might be asked tonight.

Mr. STEVENS: If T may just finish this point, Mr. Chairman, I will not go on
any longer with my general discussion.

Mr. BAsForp: Mr. Chairman, I do not know how much longer Mr. Stevens
would require to conclude his statement but, if possible, I think he should be
allowed to conclude it.

The CHAIRMAN: I am certainly not objecting to it.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, if you are going to allow any questions it is
going to be very difficult to decide who should be allowed to ask questions and
what questions should be allowed. I think that we should conclude with Mr.
Stevens’ statement and leave the questions until tomorrow.
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Mr. FurTon: Just as a suggestion, he might like to end up with some further
reference to the position of his other companies.

Mr. THoMPSON: Let him complete his statement.

The CHAIRMAN: I was attempting to take into account the energy level of all
those present.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Perhaps we could leave even short questions for clarification
and so on until later.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. Mr. Stevens, would you proceed.

Mr. STEVENS: We found ourselves in what we regarded as a very odd
position. We have 17 men on the board and 11 of them are from western Canada.
We feel we did right in this connection. Certain of the 11 members made the
suggestions which I indicated and, when we stated that we would be willing to
sell a bloc of our shares, one of the directors said: “Well, of course you would
sell at market.” Well, the market is $12 a share and this would mean that
whatever bloc we were selling we would be taking an immediate $3 loss for our
effort. I am only indicating the rather startled impression that we were left with
at this board meeting to hear that the chief liability in trying to sell the bank in
the west was our association, and then to be told that if we were going to sell a
bloc of our shares that possibly the price we would be willing to accept would be
market. He is certainly going the wrong way in the financial business. On this
point—and this takes me back to one of the earlier hearings—Mr. Elderkin was
asked by Mr. Horner whether he thought there was anything wrong with a
group having 50 per cent in a bank. As stated on page 126 of the hearing on
March 3, Mr. Elderkin said:

...I think there is room for more banks in Canada.

And then on page 128 Mr. Horner asked Mr. Elderkin:

Do you feel in the establishment of a new bank...a group...must
own a 50 per cent share. . .

Mr. Elderkin replied:

Well, I do not know about 50 per cent, but I think it is very essential
that you must have a management group. . .to start off.

Mr. Horner then asked:

You do not think this is giving that particular group a chance to make
a tidy sum., . .through the sale of shares?
Mr. Elderkin replied:
They might make a tidy loss.

At that time I think Mr. Elderkin was very accurate in his anticipation in
that I am not sure that we could sell our shares certainly at a tidy profit as
indicated at that time by Mr. Horner.

In short, with respect to the $1,450,000, we feel that the money will even-
tually and certainly be paid into the Bank of Western Canada. We do feel,
though, that the air must and should be cleared concerning the real future for
this bank. Having said that, I would like to emphasize that I think it would be
almost a tragedy if the Bank of Western Canada is not proceeded with in the
original concept and if it is not allowed to develop as a sound, profitable and
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strong bank, serving primarily western Canadians, as we originally indicated
was our intention. That intention certainly has not changed "as far as we are
concerned. We feel that if this matter is left to the board, matters can be
reconciled and worked out. We feel that any issues which have been raised have,
in our mind, been greatly overstated. There has certainly been no intention on
our part to do anything of the nature which has been indicated and, in fact, the
reverse, at almost any cost, has been our wish. We have sincerely tried to make
sure that this bank gets off to a good start and we still feel that the board can
work out the differences which have arisen. We are only sorry that these
differences have through the press, been made public because, I would empha-
size, in our opinion there has been absolutely nothing done to date which
contravenes the act incorporating us, the Treasury Board order or the spirit of
any testimony given before this Committee or the Senate Committee in Ottawa.

Mr. Chairman, I have only one other comment to make at this time but
perhaps I might have something further to say tomorrow, if that is acceptable.

My other comment—and this is the only comment that I can say with
assurance that Mr. Coyne and I have complete agreement on—in that in the
Globe and Muail or possibly a Toronto Star report, Mr. Coyne touched on the fact
that he hoped there was no suggestion of insecurity in the companies concerned
in our group, especially the trust companies, and that in his opinion the assets of
those companies certainly exceeded the liabilities. I would certainly agree with
Mr. Coyne on that, and I am only sorry that there has been any suggestion raised
by innuendo, inference or otherwise to the contrary, because I do not feel that
such a suggestion is justified or warranted in any way.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): May I ask one question?
Some hon. MEMBERS: No.

Mr. MAcDONALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, I think this is a critical question.
My question is with reference to the liquidity of the assets, apart altogether from
a balance sheet. Are you in a position to meet your liabilities as they fall due.

The CHAIRMAN: Order. First of all, Mr. Fulton, I think, when I interrupted
Mr. Stevens at five to eleven, in effect suggested, picking up the thought that I
was going to express, that Mr. Stevens be allowed to add such further comment
as he saw fit regarding the position of the companies of the BIF group in so far as
they pertained to the interest of their shareholders and depositors, it was my
suggestion originally that perhaps we might accept one or two questions along
those lines, but I might ask the Committee now whether they feel this is opening
the door to us continuing on into the dawn.

Mr. MACKASEY: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman, if this Committee is
really sincere in not doing injustice to companies outside the Bank of Western
Canada, then Don Macdonald’s question is extremely pertinent, and I would
gladly withdraw any questions I have in view of Don’s question. The fundamen-
tal point here is that innocent people should not be hurt, no matter what time it
is.

The cHAIRMAN: I think that the fairest approach to this would be to permit
Don Macdonald’s question with the understanding that it be limited to the
particular aspect that Mr. Fulton raised and that I touched on—
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Mr. THoMPSON: This question could leave more doubt and we would have to
go on and question for a couple of hours.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, I suggest it would be irresponsi-
ble to leave it at this point.

Mr. CHAIRMAN: No, I would be responsible.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): You certainly would be and I suggest that you
might think about your own position.

Mr. THOMPSON: Is Mr. Stevens satisfied to leave it at this point?

Mr. STEVENS: I have no objection to answering the question, if you want an
answer.

The CHAIRMAN: I think the time we are taking to debate this aspect could
have been time enough to have this question asked and answered. It was my
original suggestion that we permit a question of this type and allow Mr. Stevens
to answer it.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I shall rephrase my question with respect to the
liquidity assets. Do your companies—I refer to the BIF group—and particularly
the deposit-taking institutions expect to be in a position to meet their current
liabilities as they fall due?

Mr. STEVENS: There is absolutely no doubt on that question. In fact, I think
if you disected our deposit-taking institutions, as you refer to them, you would
find that they have potential liquidity greater than most institutions in similar
fields.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): And that includes liabilities payable on de-
mand.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, gentlemen, before we adjourn we are going to have to
decide whether we want to meet tomorrow afternoon after the orders of the day
or whether we want to continue Thursday morning.

An hon. MEMBER: When is the next meeting?

The CHAIRMAN: Ordinarily we meet on Thursday, but I would suggest to the
Committee that because of our obligations to the House we might consider
meeting tomorrow to complete our hearings with Mr. Stevens and Mr. Coyne,
and then we will have the minister with us Thursday morning. This, of course, is
not necessarily a precedent for our further schedules, but I think we do have an
obligation to the House to get on with the matters referred to us. I suggest if we
are agreed on this we adjourn until 3.45 tomorrow afternoon.
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APPENDIX “TT”

EXTRACT from the minutes of a meeting of the Honourable the Treasury Board,
held at Ottawa, on August 3, 1966.

T.B. 658534
TREASURY BOARD

The Board, pursuant to section 9, of An Act to Incorporate Bank of Western
Canada, orders as follows:

1. The acceptance of subscriptions for shares of the capital stock of the Bank
of Western Canada without regard to the provisions of section 6 of the Act is
hereby approved subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth in this

Order.

2. (1) The acceptance by the Bank of subscriptions for shares of the capital
stock of the Bank by residents within the meaning of section 5 of the Act shall be
in accordance with and subject to the following terms and conditions, namely:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

that the bank shall not accept a subscription for a share of the capital
stock of the Bank in circumstances where if the subscription were a
transfer of the share the Bank would be required under section 6
of the Act to refuse to allow the transfer to be made or recorded,
except in the case of an offer to subscribe for shares by preferred
subscribers on the initial offering of shares and as provided by sub-
section (2) of this section;

that on the initial offering of shares the Bank shall not accept a
subscription for a share of the capital stock of the Bank by a pre-
ferred subscriber if, as a result of the acceptance by the Bank of such
a subscription, the aggregate par value of the shares to be held in the
name or right of or for the use or benefit of preferred subscribers
would exceed four million seven hundred and fifteen thousand ($4,-
715,000) dollars; s

that on the initial offering of shares the aggregate par value of all
shares to be offered for subscription on such initial offering shall not
be less than eight million six hundred and fifty thousand ($8,650,000)
dollars;

that all moneys received upon the subscription for shares of the Bank
on the initial offering of such shares shall be deposited in a chartered
bank until a certificate permitting the Bank to commence business is
issued in accordance with the Bank Act, and no disbursements shall
be made from such moneys except as authorized by paragraph (c) of
subsection (1) of section 13 or by subsection (2) of section 15 of the
Bank Act;

that the shares of the Bank that are held in the names or right of or
for the use or benefit of preferred subscribers in any number in

f
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(€9)

excess of ten per cent of the total number of issued and outstanding
shares of the Bank shall be disposed of absolutely by such persons
before the first day of January 1977, unless the Governor in Council
on the application of the Bank made before the first day of January’
1975, extends the time for such disposal to a later date; ’

that the Bank, during the period in which the preferred subscribers
hold in the aggregate more than ten per cent of the shares of the
Bank issued and outstanding, shall not, directly or indirectly, except
with the prior approval of the Minister of Finance,
(i) make a loan or advance to or deposit with,
(ii) guarantee a loan or advance to or deposit with,
(iii) purchase the securities or shares of, or make a loan or advance on
the securities or shares of,
(iv) purchase any assets from, or
(v) assume any liabilities of,
any of the preferred subscribers whether or not they are then share-
holders of the Bank.

4

(2) A subscription for shares of the capital stock of the Bank by an

individual who is an associate of a preferred subscriber but who is not himself a
preferred subscriber may be accepted by the bank, and may be voted by that

individual, as if he were not so associated with a preferred subscriber.

(3) In the case of a subscription pursuant to an offer under section 36 of the

Bank Act, the Bank may, for the purposes of any subscription by any subscriber,
count as shares issued and outstanding all the shares included in the offering.

3. The voting rights pertaining to any shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held in the name or right of or for the use or benefit of preferred subscribers
shall be exercised by or on behalf of the holder thereof in accordance with and

subject to the following terms and conditions, namely:

(a) that the voting rights pertaining to such shares shall not be exercised

in person or by proxy if any of the terms or conditions of this Order
are violated; and

(b) that the voting rights pertaining to such shares may only be exer-

cised, in person or by proxy, so long as the percentage of such shares
held in the name or right of or for the use or benefit of preferred
subscribers does not exceed either.

(i) the percentage that the number of shares subscribed for by the
preferred subscriber after the closing of the stock books of the
Bank on the initial offering of shares is of the total number of
shares subscribed for at that time by all the subsecribers for such
shares, or

(ii) the smallest percentage (not being ten per cent or less) that the
number of shares held in the name or right of or for the use or
benefit of preferred subscribers at any time after the first issue of
shares is of the total number of shares of the Bank issued and
outstanding.



3118 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS Feb.7,1967

4. In this Order,
(a) “Act” means An Act to incorporate Bank of Western Canada;

(b) “associate” in relation to any subscriber or shareholder means
(i) any person who would, under subsection (2) of section 5 of the
Act, be deemed to be a shareholder associated with the subscri-
ber if both the subscriber and such person were then sharehold-
ers of the Bank, and
(ii) any shareholder of the Bank associated with a shareholder within
the meaning of subsection (2) of section 5 of the Act;

(c) “Bank” means the Bank of Western Canada; and

(d) “preferred subscriber’” means the following persons, namely:
(i) Wellington Financial Corporation Limited,

(ii) Canadian Finance and Investments Limited,

(iii) York Trust and Savings Corporation,

(iv) any corporation that after the date of this Order acquires, by
amalgamation, merger, arrangement or otherwise, the assets of
any or all of the corporations named in subparagraphs (i) to
(iii),

(v) any corporation that is an associate of any of the corporations
described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv) of this paragraph, and

(vi) any individual who is an associate of any of the corporations
described in subparagraphs (i) to (v), if the total par value of
the shares subscribed for or held by such individual exceeds five
thousand ($5,000) dollars.

5. This Order may be cited as the Bank of Western Canada Subscription
Order, 1966.

(signed) “C. J. Mackenzie”
Assistant Secretary

I, C. J. Mackenzie, Assistant Secretary of the Treasury Board of
the Government of Canada, hereby certify that this is a true copy
of a document of the Government of Canada, the original of which
is in my custody.

(Signed) “C. J. Mackenzie”, Assistant
Secretary of the Treasury Board
Dated at Ottawa,
Canada, this 8th
day of August, 1966
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APPENDIX “UU"

Statement by James E. Coyne
Winnipeg, February 3, 1967.

I have resigned from the boards of directors of British International Finance
(Canada) Limited and The Wellington Financial Corporation Ltd. as I no longer
have confidence in the management or policies of those companies.

In particular, in their relations with the Bank of Western Canada (in which
they have voting control through stock holdings), they appear to have forsaken
principle for expediency, and their image is doing a disservice to the Bank of
Western Canada.

In connection with the Bank of Western Canada, they have failed to make
good their subscription for shares to the extent of about $1,500,000, they have
attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own companies contrary to
the most explicit statements made to the Committees of the Senate and of the
House of Commons, and they are presently engaged in a borrowing operation
with American banks which involves the giving of an option on 10% of the total
shares of the Bank of Western Canada and various arrangements designed to tie
the management and operations of the Bank to the operations of these American
banks, again contrary to statements made when applying for a charter.

I feel these matters must be made known to the people of Western Canada
and the rest of the country. I am now convinced that no group of persons or
companies such as this should be permitted to exercise control over a Canadian
financial institution, whether federal or provincial.

I wish to recommend to Parliament that, before the new Bank Act is finally
passed, the prohibition upon voting stock, in excess of 109 of the total, be put
back into force for new Banks, just as it is for the older banks. In other words,
the authority given to the Treasury Board or to the Governor in Council to grant
exemption to majority shareholders in new banks should be reversed. In addi-
tion, there should be provision that no American bank shall be entitled to hold
any shares in a Canadian bank, and certainly not any voting shares.

At 11:30 this morning, I read an article in The Financial Post issue of
February 4, 1967, attributing certain statements to Mr. Sinclair Stevens, Presi-
dent of British International Finance (Canada) Limited. The statements are put
in quotation marks and the article is signed by the paper’s correspondent.

The statements are such that I must completely dissociate myself from them
and state that I would, on that account alone, have to resign from the boards of
directors of the companies in Mr. Stevens’ group if I had not already sent in my
resignation the night of February 1st.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

WEDNESDAY, February 8, 1967.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Munro be substituted for that of Mr.
Cashin on the Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs.

Attest.

LEON-J. RAYMOND,
The Clerk of the House of Commons.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, February 8, 1967.
(92)

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
3:50 p.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Basford, Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The
Islands), Chrétien, Coates, Flemming, Fulton, Gray, Latulippe, Leboe, Lind,
Mackasey, Macdonald (Rosedale), McLean (Charlotte), Monteith, More (Regina
City), Wahn—(16).

Also present: Messrs. Ballard, Caouette, Grégoire, Lewis, Munro, Régimbal,
Ryan, Sherman, Thompson.

In attendance: Messrs. Sinclair M. Stevens, President, British International
Finance (Canada) Limited; James E. Coyne, President, Bank of Western
Canada; W. E. Scott, Inspector General of Banks.

Questioning of Mr. Stevens begun at the meeting of February 7th, was
continued.

At 6:21 p.m., on motion of Mr. Monteith, the Committee adjourned until
11:00 a.m., Thursday, February 9, 1967.

THURSDAY, February 9, 1967.
(93)

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
11:05 a.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
Chrétien, Davis, Flemming, Fulton, Gilbert, Gray, Irvine, Laflamme, Latulippe,
Leboe, Lind, Mackasey, Macdonald (Rosedale), McLean (Charlotte), Monteith,
More (Regina City)—(17)

Also present: Messrs. Beer, Grégoire, Ryan, Sherman, Thompson.

In attendance: Messrs. James E. Coyne, President, Bank of Western Can-
ada; Sinclair M. Stevens, President, British International Finance (Canada)
Limited; The Hon. Mitchell Sharp, Minister of Finance; W. E. Scott, Inspector
General of Banks.

Mr. Coyne was recalled, made a statement and was questioned.

Mr. Stevens made a brief statement clarifying a point raised earlier.

The Chairman thanked Messrs. Coyne and Stevens, who were permitted to
withdraw.
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Mr. Sharp was called and questioned.

The questioning having been concluded, at 12.40 p.m. the Committee ad-

journed until 3:45. p.m. this day at which time the Committee will commence
consideration of Bill C-261.

Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.

i s ———
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

WEDNESDAY, February 8, 1967.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I think we are in a position to begin our
meeting.

When we recessed last evening Mr. Stevens had completed his introductory
statement and I believe we permitted Mr. Macdonald to ask a clarifying ques-
tion. I think it would now be in order for us to begin a round of questioning of
Mr. Stevens. You will recall we asked Mr. Coyne to stand down so that we could
have Mr. Stevens’ introductory statement during the same hearing. To start the
round of questioning, as he asked a question yesterday evening, I will first
recognize Mr. Macdonald.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, I will defer to other members
as I had the opportunity of questioning last night.

The CHAIRMAN: Fine. I will recognize Mr. More and I will deal with other
members as they catch my eye. Are you prepared to begin, Mr. More?

Mr. More: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would like to ask Mr. Stevens, in view of
the statement he made about his so-called representations at two meetings of
the Bank of Western Canada on December 16 and January 20, were all the
directors of the bank present at both those meetings?

Mr. SINCLAIR M. STEVENS (The Chairman, Bank of Western Canada): I could
not say, Mr. More, that all directors were present. I think I could probably tell
you how many were present.

Mr. More: You have 17 directors?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, and at the January 20th meeting there were 12 shown as
being present; at the December 16th meeting there were 13 present.

Mr. Morg: Could you indicate if the absentees were members of your group
of companies or if other directors at large could have been supported?

Mr. STEVENS: This gets into a kind of confusing situation. I think Mr. Coyne
referred to the fact, for example, that Peter Lougheed and Leslie Bodie are both
directors of the Alberta Fidelity Trust. We have a one-third interest in Alberta
Fidelity and I remember in a Globe and Mail article they referred to those two
directors as being BIF group people. I see that both those people were absent
from that January 20 meeting. Rex Nesbitt was absent; he is a director of one
or two of our companies, but I think when people refer to the BIF group they
usually mean those who are still resident in Toronto.

| Mr. MoRrg: Could we do it this way, perhaps; there are only five or six names
in each case and if you indicated who were absent we can decide in our own

minds on their relationship.
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Mr. STEVENS: At the January 20 meeting Peter Lougheed, Mark Collins,
Rex Nesbitt, Mr. Thomas and Mr. Bodie were absent. I think that would be
right.

Mr. More: What about the December 16 meeting?
Mr. STEVENS: How many did I say were present at that meeting?
Mr. More: You said there were 13 present, so there were four absentees.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. There were two subsequently elected. The meeting began
with 13 and then there were two elected, namely Mr. Chiapetta and Mr. Shanski.

Mr. More: There were only two absent, then?

Mr. STEVENS: I think there would only be two absent and those two would
have been Mr. Nesbitt and I think Mr. Lougheed.

Mr. More: Your statement last night indicated that this matter was dis-
cussed on the basis of providing information to the directors and examining the
position you were in because of the order issued by Treasury Board. I might say
it sounded plausible and reasonable but on the basis of the fact that indications
are that all the western directors support Mr. Coyne’s position, would there not
be a general indication to those of us hearing evidence that perhaps, indeed, your
statement and your presentation went further than you have indicated?

Mr. STEVENS: I do not feel, in fairness, that it did. In fact, a matter that I did
not mention yesterday was that prior to the December 16 meeting there had
been a discussion in Toronto on December 13 of this same subject, at which I
outlined the general facts that I mentioned briefly to you yesterday concerning
the group’s position and the effect of the Treasury Board order and the fact that
maybe we should seek clarification of this—

Mr. More: Was the December 13 meeting a fully—

Mr. STEVENS: Oh no, this was a meeting at which Mr. Coyne was in
attendance as well as Mr. Bell, Mr. Bruce, Mr. Thomas and myself.

Mr. Mogre: In other words, a meeting amongst your group rather than the
Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. STeEVENS: That is right. I mentioned at the time that I thought that I
would raise this point at the coming direcfors’ meeting on December 16 and I had
the impression that Mr. Coyne had no particular objection to it and I think he
felt at that point that it was a matter that possibly should be clarified with the
Minister of Finance.

Mr. Mogre: I want to go to the basic reasons that you gave for your move to
examine this situation and to suggest that perhaps your future needs might
involve the Bank of Western Canada as a restriction of your companies’ previ-
ously negotiated lines of credit with chartered banks in Canada. As I recall it, I
think you said that the change of attitude by the banks with whom you had these
lines of credit led not only to a reduction in lines of credit for your companies,
but also a reduction in lines of credit to directors and companies of directors
connected with the board of the Bank of Western Canada. Am I misstating this in
any way?

Mr. STEVENS: No, I think that is generally true.
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Mr. MoRE: This certainly is—I do not know whether “accusation” is the
proper word to use or not—a matter of great interest to me as a member of the
Committee dealing with bank revisions and I feel it is unfair to leave it in this
general manner without identifying and producing some evidence to back up
your statement, Mr. Stevens. Are you prepared to do this in any way?

Mr. STEVENS: I think in fairness to the directors who told me this—and
they told it to me as Chairman of the Board—I do not want to put them in a
more awkward position than they are in at present, but I mentioned that point
simply to repeat what I had already repeated to the board of directors at the
time of the December 16 meeting, and that was that certain of the directors had
felt some repercussions on becoming directors of the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. MoRE: So your statement that you had personal knowledge of this—I
remember this and I think I would say this is a quote from the statement you
made last night—is only based on conversation and not on any real evidence
which you can produce?

Mr. STEVENS: If you mean could I produce a letter from a bank addressed to
one of our directors stating that whatever credit facility was available it is no
longer available in view of the fact that you are now a director of the Bank of
Western Canada, I cannot do that. I am simply stating that the directors
concerned came to me and said that they had gained the impression—mind you,
I think that banks are very reluctant to put anything in writing—

Mr. MoORE: Are trust companies?

Mr. STEVENS: That they had gained the impression from their respective
banks that their existing credit arrangements were no longer as attractive to the
particular bank, and in some degree they were either lessened or, I think in one
case, comp'etely cut off. The thing that is very nebulous, of course, in this type of
arrangement is that a bank naturally will not state too positively that they are
cutting off anybody’s credit for the reason that he is a director of another bank,
and in fairness to the banks it may be that in each instance there was some other
reason that caused them to take this action. But having said that I would have to
also say that in the minds of these directors the fact that they had joined our
board was at least part of the reason why their credits had been lessened.

Mr. MoRg: This is not very much in the way of evidence. Would you not say
that perhaps other companies who had no connection with your group or the
Bank of Western Canada have had the same problems in the present climate
that you have had?

Mr. STEVENS: When, I was referring to this yesterday I believe I said that I
would not like it to be said that the lessening of credits in our group was only
due to the formation of the Bank of Western Canada. There has been tight
money and I think banks generally have tried to cut back on many accounts.

Mr. MoRre: Your statement, rather than being based on evidence, is based on
innuendo, is it not, that the Bank of Western Canada indeed was a factor in the
cut-back of credit? This is your statement as I interpret it.

Mr. STEVENS: In the cases with which I am connected it is definitely a factor
in the cut-back of credit.

Mr. MoRrg: This was stated to you personally in your dealings with the bank
concerned? : :
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Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. More: What bank was it? I ask the Committee to consider that as long
as we are left without the knowledge of whom you deal with that charges are
being made which reflect on eight chartered banks, and I suggest it is very
relevant to your evidence and your argument.

Mr. MoNTEITH: May I ask a supplementary question, Mr. Chairman? How
many banks did your group of BIF companies deal with, shall we say, back in
1964 when you had a $5 million line of credit or in 1965 when you had it even as
high as $13.9 million at one stage?

Mr. STEVENS: I think I can give you that information. We dealt with four
Canadian banks.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Four Canadian banks.

Mr. STEVENS: To a lesser extent there were two other banks involved, but
the main banks would be four and then to a lesser extent two others, so there
would be six in total.

Mr. More: I asked a question, Mr. Chairman, and—

The CHAIRMAN: All right. I think, unless Mr. Stevens is prepared to answer
immediately, I will first invite any comments that the members of the Committee
may have as to why this information should or should not be requested from Mr.
Stevens. Are there any comments one way or the other?

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, on a point of information so that I can make
up my mind, first of all would it be illegal under our Bank Act for a chartered
bank to reduce the credit of BIF?

Some hon. MEMBERS: No, not at all.
Mr. MACKASEY: I know the answer but I want to get it from the Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think I am in a position to give a legal opinion,
although I am almost tempted to do so, but I presume that if the loans are
payable on demand, they are call loans then the arrangements could be changed
at any time.

Mr. MackaseY: The point is that if these Canadian chartered banks had
reduced Mr. Stevens credit down to—I Jfhink he mentioned $150,000 last eve-
ning—they were within their legitimate legal rights to do so. What purpose
would then be served in divulging the names of these particular banks?

The CHAIRMAN: I suppose it would be interesting to some members of the
Committee, at least, to know,—

Mr. MACKASEY: Just to satisfy curiosity.
The CHAIRMAN: —aside from the legality, what the motives were.

Mr. MONTEITH: In no instance, Mr. Chairman, during our total discussions of
the Bank Act thus far have we mentioned specific banks in specific cases.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other comments from members of the
Committee?

Mr. CAoUETTE: I think that by naming those banks it would enable us to ask
more questions of the banks concerned. I believe it would be in the public and
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the general interest, and also of interest to the Committee, to know with which
of those banks—the four main banks and the two others—the BIF group dealt.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further comments from members of the
Committee? I will recognize you, Mr. Grégoire.

(Translation)

Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I was wondering whether after the
testimony of Mr. Stevens the other chartered banks of which mention has been
made would also testify in this regard?

The CHAIRMAN: It would be up to the Committee to decide whether we wish
to ask other witnesses to come or the same witnesses to testify.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Now, Mr. Chairman, there is also an important point involved
here. Indeed I think this is the essence of the matter. When the Bank of Western
Canada was being established and in other circumstances, particularly when we
were discussing the Mercantile Bank, the Canadian Bankers’ Association, i.e. the
chartered banks stated in their evidence that not only they did not fear competi-
tion, but that they desired it that a new bank would provide more competition in
the banking field. Would this not be a contradiction which perhaps might come
out of this discussion?

(English)

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, there are only eight chartered banks and last
night Mr. Stevens said that he was not doing any business with the Mercantile
Bank. The only one I can think of beyond that and it would be too small to do
business even with his empire, is the Provincial Bank, so it is pretty obvious—

The CHAIRMAN: The Provincial Bank may want to quarrel with that state-
ment, I do not know, but I think that you are being very helpful in that regard,
Mr. Mackasey. Perhaps I should ask if there are other comments from those who
have not offered any yet and wish to do so. Mr. Wahn?

Mr. WaHN: Mr. Chairman, I can see that for perfectly good reasons it might
be embarrasing to the witness to have to give the name of a specific bank. I do
not think it will help our inquiries very much because I do not believe that any
banker would admit that he had cut down the line of credit of a director because
the director was associated with a newly-incorporated bank. These things are
just not done that way.

The CHAIRMAN: I just want to interject here, Mr. Wahn. I thought that the
matter I was going to have to determine, with respect to an answer, was with
regard to Mr. Stevens’ direct contact with banks relating to changes or limita-
tions on lines of credit. I do not think at this point Mr. More was pressing for
the names of the banks that had been in touch with directors of the Bank of
Western Canada. Am I right in that, Mr. More?

Mr. Morg: That is right.

Mr. SHERMAN: The same thing would apply to Mr. Stevens, who is a director
and one of the initiators of the bank.

Mr. McCLEAVE: Mr. Chairman, I do not think it would help us in any way to
know the names of the particular banks. There are only a few of them and we
can pretty nearly guess.
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Mr. CoAaTes: I do not think we should have to guess. Is it not fair to ask Mr.
Stevens what bank he did business with? I think this should be available to the
Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: I will render a decision as soon as I give Mr. Stevens an
opportunity to speak.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Could I say a word? I
think perhaps we should explore it a little bit further. I am sure every member
of the Committee is dying to know the name of that bank, but nevertheless—

Mr. More: I am not going to die about it.
Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I am glad to hear that,

Mr. More. Obviously, Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Stevens does give the name of the
bank some Committee member is going to ask that bank to appear.

Mr. MACKRASEY: Is it one bank or six banks, Mr. Cameron?
An hon. MEMBER: Four.
Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Will one bank or six, or

whatever. I think Mr. Stevens confined it to one bank on which I gather he had
specific information, direct contact with one bank. Was that it?

Mr. STEVENS: Uh-huh.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Then certainly some
member of the Committee is going to suggest that we have that bank before us
and like other members of the Committee, I cannot see that bank saying that,
even though the reason for the curtailment of credit may well have been the
connection with the Westbank, and it is difficult to see.how that bank could
come on the stand without suggesting by implication that there was some other
reason for cutting off credit which might or might not be justified.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Might I suggest this solution, and I am only suggesting this
because I think Mr. Cameron has a very valid point. Why could we not could
deal with them as A, B, C and D? Tt does not give us any indication but we may
get a different approach from different banks.

Mr. More: Mr. Chairman, I am not goint to press the point for the single
bank. My view is that if Mr. Stevens’ statement is backed by any evidence, then
it indicates to me an action in restraint of competition, which they have stated
they desire by presently operating banks and which I think, regardless of the
statements made about what the bank might or might not say, the members
could conclude from their own experience what was the true state of affairs. I
think you indicated, Mr. Stevens, that the major part of your business was with
four banks, and then you added two more. Perhaps it would not be wrong to ask
that you name the four banks and we will leave it at that, if that is a.ceptable to
the Committee, I would accept that as an answer to the question.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you have any comments, Mr. Stevens, before I attempt
to render a ruling in this regard?

Mr. STEVENS: No, other than—
Mr. MACKASEY: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman.

0
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The CHAIRMAN: Let us first hear from Mr. Stevens. He may say something
that will assist us in determining this matter and then I will recognize you, Mr.
Mackasey.

Mr. SteEVENS: I feel I should clarify one point. It was suggested that
obviously we did not deal with the Mercantile Bank and I made that clear
yesterday. What I tried to make clear was that the American bank that was
referred to was not the first National City Bank

The CHAIRMAN: The bank that was interested in possibly buying shares of
the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: That is right, but I did not mean to infer that we were not
dealing with the Mercantile Bank in one way or the other in Canada, as far as
our ordinary business needs were concerned.

Mr. MAcCRASEY: My point of order, Mr. Chairman, is that I am confused
because I have heard two different statements from Mr. Stevens. At least, I think
I have. In one case he was refused by one bank, in which case that bank certainly
had a legitimate right and, secondly, I was then led to believe by Mr. Stevens
that he was refused by four banks and subsequently by two others, which would
give strength to Mr. More’s argument of collusion or restraint. I would like to
know which it is. Who refused you a line of credit, Mr, Stevens?

The CHAIRMAN: I think I had better determine the matter right now. In the
first place, it would seem to me that while problems could be created both for
Mr. Stevens by divulging the information and for the banks by having their
names mentioned, at the same time by alluding in even general terms to the
situation is in effect inviting questions which would lead to the divulging of the
names of the institutions in question. I think Mr. More has rased a point which
would indicate the relevance of this information in relation to the general
inquiry we are carrying out on behalf of parliament. I might also add that, of
course, in appearing here as far as certain legal consequences of statements are
concerned, there is a certain immunity granted to Mr. Stevens, although I do not
know whether that immunity would extend to the maintenance of his banking
relations. That is another matter.

Mr. STEVENS: That is what I am worried about.

The CHAIRMAN: As I was about to say, Mr. Stevens, this was a matter which
you had to take into account when you gave us in general terms certain
information regarding the limiting of your banking connections. Inasmuch as
you have, in effect,—although you may not have realized it—just given us the
name of one of the banks with which I gather you may have been dealing,
namely the Mercantile, if I understood you correctly, I would therefore rule for
a start at least that it would be in order for Mr. More to ask, and for you to
answer a question as to the names of the four banks you have alluded to
principally.

Mr. MACKASEY: Are there four banks or one bank? I do not know.

Mr. More: He indicated four. I will go from the first position and ask Mr.
Stevens to name the four banks with whom the major part of his lines of credit
were arranged.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. The Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce; The Bank of
Nova Scotia; The Mercantile Bank of Canada; The Toronto-Dominion Bank
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and, to a much lesser extent, The Royal Bank of Canada and the Banque Cana-
dienne Nationale. Recently, I think, we have had one account with the Bank
of Montreal. I suppose we are really dealing with all seven, with the exception
of the Provincial Bank.

Mr. MACKASEY: Which is probably the best of them all. Size does not mean
everything.

Mr. STEVENS: Maybe we should try it.
The CHAIRMAN: You may have to.

Mr. More: This becomes very interesting. I only asked for four and I now
have seven.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I thought you had only
asked for one.

Mr. More: That was the original question. Are you sure that the eighth bank
is not involved some place? Are you positive about that?

The CHAIRMAN: That is what makes these Committee hearings so interest-
ing.
Mr. STEVENS: I do not think we are.

Mr. More: I am perhaps speaking with a tongue in cheek and you may want
to rule. Could I ask you generally if your lines of credit with all these banks
have been—I think I am fairly interpreting your statement—arbitrarily reduced
since you became interested in forming the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: I would not like to put it that strongly in that I am simply
stating that I believe, from conversations with bankers and during negotiations,
that the Bank of Western Canada has definitely been a factor in the thinking of
these banks concerning their future attitude to our banking needs, but I would
emphasize that it is merely “a” factor. I think there are other factors. The trust
companies are quite aggressive and they are competing directly in some in-
stances with the banks. In banking language I think it is also very true to say
that the tight money situation is one in which I think they tend to grade their
credits in order of desirability. One of the least desirable credits would be a
semi-competitor, as compared with somebody who was in no way competing
with them. »

Mr. More: I will not press this matter any further, Mr. Chairman. I wanted
to try to clarify and move from the basis of innuendo to something of substance.
I do not know whether I have accomplished that or not.

In your statement you indicated that in the tight money situation, or in your
problems with obtaining lines of credit, you did obtain from a Canadian chart-
ered bank a line of credit for which you paid 8 per cent. I would like you to
explain how it came about that you paid 8 per cent. My understanding is that
compensatory balances and charges bring it up from 6 per cent to something
over 7 per cent, but I have never heard of it reaching 8 per cent. If I did not
misunderstand, you made the flat statement that this loan from a Canadian
chartered bank which was made during a period within the last two years, had
cost you 8 per cent. Could you explain that?

Mr. STEVENS: Will I have to name the bank?
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Mr. Moge: I have not asked for that yet. I will listen to your explanation.

Mr. STEVENS: It was simply done by the process of a sale and repurchase
agreement.

The CHAIRMAN: Could you expand on the technique involved in that for us?

Mr. STEVENS: Certain securities were sold to the bank on the basis that if we
wished to re-purchase them we could do so, and in repurchasing the effective
return to the bank would be 8 per cent.

Mr. Morg: Is this sort of a discounting basis? Is this a bank procedure in
connection with commercial loans? I understood it was with consumer loans but
this would be a commercial loan?

Mr. STEVENS: No, it is different from the approach used in the consumer
loans in that it is a process that is often used, I think, among investment dealers
where you buy, for example, a bond at a certain price on the understanding that
it can be repurchased by the seller at a higher price in order that the institution
that originally did the buying—

Mr. MACKASEY: It would be better to call it a pawn shop technique rather
than sale and purchase because of the similarity, if I recall, from the olden days.

Mr. STEVENS: I think it is quite a legitimate transaction. The point I was
making, though, is that it gave the bank an effective 8 per cent return.

Mr. MoRg: It was not an unusual transaction between groups of companies
of your nature and banks?

Mr. STEVENS: It is the only time we have had to do it.

Mr. MORE: What was the amount of the funds and in what amount was this
transaction?

Mr. STEVENS: This is getting pretty specific.

The CHAIRMAN: I am wondering, Mr. More, to what extent we should be
probing into the internal operations of the companies involved and their rela-
tionships with their banking connections. It is one thing to talk about the
technique of borrowing or financing, but you may feel it is another to deal with
amounts.

Mr. Moge: I just wanted an indication of the scope.
Mr. STEVENS: It was a large loan.

Mr. MoRe: It was a large loan.

Mr. STEVENS: Over $1 million.

Mr. More: I will be satisfied with that answer. Now then, Mr. Stevens, I just
want to finish up with this question. The directors who reported to you that their
lines of credit had been reduced or cancelled because of their connection with the
Bank of Western Canada, were they directors connected with your group of
companies or where there some directors outside your group of companies that
were involved?

Mr. STEVENS: Certainly from my s.tandpoint. they were all outside our group
of companies in the sense that any act}ve BIF directors were not included in the
group to which I am referring. Sometimes I feel that it I merely shake a man’s
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hand he is referred to as a BIF man. If a person is a director of Alberta Fidelity,
for example, the fact that we own a third of that company to my mind does not
mean that that is a BIF company, and if that director is the one in question I
think it is unfair to say that he is a BIF man.

Mr. More: Could I put it a little differently. Were the directors resident in
the east?

Mr. STEVENS: No, I think there were three resident in the west and one in
the east.

Mr. MoRre: How many directors do you have in the west?
Mr. STEVENS: Eleven.

Mr. Morg: I did some telephoning last night and I could not verify your
statement. I got a flat denial that they had been affected in any way, shape or
form because of their activity in this matter.

The other statement I want to refer to is the statement you made that banks
with whom you had lines of credit had files tabbed, “Pre-Bank of Western
Canada”, “A.D. Bank of Western Canada”, or something. Did this knowledge
come to you directly through dealing with the bank or have you secured an
employee from this bank who gave you this information?

Mr. STEVENS: No, it came directly from dealing with the bank.
Mr. MoRre: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I am finished.

The CHAIRMAN: I recognize Mr. Thompson followed by Mr Flemming, Mr.
Monteith and Mr. Lind.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Stevens, Mr. Coyne said in very forceful language that
you were not just asking for money from U.S. banks but that you were actually
travelling about offering shares in the Bank of Western Canada to U.S. banks,
not for any particular benefit or privilege, I think he said, for the Bank of
Western Canada but for special privileges for the BIF group of companies. He
also stated that you were going in by the back door where you are forbidden by
regulation or legislation from entering by the front door. Then in your statement
you referred to the fact that you had offered Bank of Western Canada shares to
different American banks. How can you,compare that with the statement which
you made on March 3 last year when you appeared before this Committee?

I will read from your own testimony:
On that point I would say that the sellmg off of some of our shares is
always a possibility.
The CHAIRMAN: What is the page number?
Mr. THOMPSON: Page 115.

I would say it is extremely unlikely that we would be selling off shares to
any large degree in the next five years, and I could say fairly safely
within ten years.

What is it that has caused you to adopt a course of action—which you have

yourself admitted and to which Mr. Coyne referred—that is so contrary to this
very definite statement which you made on March 3, 1966?
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Mr. StevENS: I believe, Mr. Thompson, this was in reference to the general
discussion that was taking place during that part of the hearing which was
concerned with how we would come down to the 10 per cent level, which we
were required to do under the Treasury Board order. In direct answer to your
question I would say that there really has been no change in our thinking, in that
as far as we are concerned the sale of a block of our holdings in the Bank of
Western Canada is something that we know we have to meet at some stage. The
point I was making here was that we anticipated we would hold shares for
possibly five years before we would sell them but, on the other hand, I qualified
that by saying that the selling off of some of our shares was always a possibility.
The thing that has prompted us to consider the sale of any Bank of Western
Canada shares is that in discussing the future of the Bank of Western Canada
we ran into—I think I referred to this at least in part yesterday—a very strong
opinion from some of the western directors that the preponderance of control in
the BIF group was detrimental to the image of having western Canadians accept
the Bank of Western Canada as a truly western institution in the sense that it is
intended to be as far as we are concerned. I believe Mr. Coyne was quite definite
on this specific point in that he felt it was becoming extremely difficult to sell
the Bank of Western Canada image with the BIF position as predominant as it
was. Consequently at our directors meeting we proposed that we would certainly
be interested in negotiating if there was a western group that wished to buy a
portion of our shares and if a proper deal could be worked out. Now, tied in with
the same thinking, the more we have explored the future of the Bank of Western
Canada the more we—referring to myself and the BIF associates—feel that it
would be an advantage to the development of the Bank of Western Canada if
they did have a banking partner participant in the sense that the know-how and
the knowledge and the possibility of participation in loans that such a bank could
generate to the Bank of Western Canada—

Mr. THOMPSON: You are now referring to an American bank when you say
that?

Mr. STEVENS: Probably an American bank but possibly any foreign bank.
When I say “probably’” I mean there is a 99 per cent probability it would be an
American bank. This idea has partly grown from the fact that during the fall of
last year we had some of our people go down into the eastern, central and
western sections of the United States and they met with banking concerns to
discuss where they might be willing to co-operate with the Bank of Western
Canada in getting us established and running. During these conversations, and I
would emphasize that this has never been a big point, the possibility of a possible
equity participation arose, from time to time, but the only thing of a definite
nature that arose was the New York transaction which was referred to yester-
day. When T say definite I mean on a first refusal basis, but that is the furthest it
has ever gotten in any type of serious conversation. Now, there again I would
mention that the proposition involving the New York bank is one in which
initially the New York bank stated that they felt they would probably be inter-
ested in buying an interest in the central BIF company, and the first refusal sim-
ply refers to the fact that the New York bank have a first refusal in the event
that we wish to sell shares either in the BIF concern or in the Bank of Western
Canada. The thinking behind it is more along the lines of developing the

25702—2
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association with the bank in New York than it is in the idea of their buying the
equity in the Bank of Western Canada. In fact, last evening I came across the
letter that had initially been sent to that bank, and it was not asking for any line
of credit but was simply referring to the possibility of an association with our
BIF group, and I thought it was interesting to note that while the letter, I think,
was ten pages long, the Bank of Western Canada was referred to on less than a
page. The main points that we were talking to the New York bank were on 90
per cent other than the Bank of Western Canada. In other words, in that letter
we were describing our full group, all our trust operations, our operations in
international fields, our methods of growth, and this type of thing. The reference
to the Bank of Western Canada took less than a page.

Mr. THOoMPSON: You said last night, I think, that you had approached
probably ten different banks in the three areas of the United States and you
asked them if they would be willing to co-operate in participating in the bank of
Western Canada. Were you then offering them shares in the Bank of Western
Canada or shares in the BIF group, or both?

Mr. STEVENS: No. In most instances when we approached these banks there
was no discussion of any equity participation with respect to those banks. The
discussions were more along the lines of working out corresponding banking
relationships. The American banks are quite co-operative in giving you adminis-
trative manuals and information on procedures and establishing reciprocal ar-
rangements with banks. They are particularly interested in developing and
cultivating connections with any bank in Canada, as they have already done with
the other eight. Our bank, as it is the ninth, it is only natural that in their own
area they would be quite desirous of making early relationships with a new bank
in Canada.

Mr. THompsoN: Did you feel that any of these initiatives on your part
contravened the agreement made with the Treasury Board in their minute No.
658534, dated August 3, 1966? Do you feel that you were contravening any of
those requirements that were specified in that Treasury Board regulation?

Mr. STEVENS: I do not know in what way you would feel that we were
contravening. Are you referring to a specific section, Mr. Thompson?

Mr. THOMPSON: Specifically, you were not to make any loans with any of the
BIF companies. The bank was not to guarantee any liabilities of any of the BIF
companies. It was not to purchase any assets from the BIF companies. None of
these points were contravened, in your opinion?

Mr. STEVENS: No, definitely not. For example, as has already been brought
out, the BIF group deal with the Mercantile Bank. Now, the Bank of Western
Canada opened their first account with the Mercantile Bank. The two things are
unrelated. The association that we would have with the American bank need
not have any more relationship than in the case referred to with respect to the
Mercantile Bank.

Mr. THOMPSON: At the December 16 directors’ meeting I believe a resolution
was proposed that certain actions be taken and it was suggested at that time that
you go to the Minister of Finance to ask for his approval on this. I believe that
you or Mr. Coyne said that this was opposed by certain directors of the bank?

il
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Mr. STEVENS: It certainly never arrived at anything close to the resolution
stage. The discussion that Mr. Coyne referred to was simply a discussion. It was a
review in similar terms to that which I reviewed last night as the position of our
group, the effect of the Treasury Board order and the fact that we were
specifically prohibited from doing these various things without the consent of the
Minister of Finance. There was no proposition put forward of a definite nature
that we would like a line of credit or a loan of X amount. During the discussion
this was made quite clear, as Mr. Coyne brought out by his reference to the fact
that one of the directors said, “If you are actually applying for a loan under the
Bank Act you will have to absent yourselves during the discussion”, and I
remember it was made clear that we certainly were not applying for a loan. All
we were doing was trying to familiarize the directors with the situation leading
up to the formation of the bank, our group position and the relevant portions of
the Treasury Board order.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Stevens, why did the BIF group not meet their commit-
ments with the Bank of Western Canada by putting another $1.45 million into
the bank? What was your reason for not meeting your commitment in this
regard?

Mr. STeEVENS: I think I touched on that to some extent last night. I would say
the reason was partly one of disappointment in the failure of definite policies
with respect to the Bank of Western Canada’s future activities in that we were
concerned by the fact that the bank was not being developed, from a policy
standpoint, in a precise way to the extent that we would like to have seen. We
had several discussions at previous meetings, including the December 16 meet-
ing, and it seemed at that time—and still is in my opinion—to be quite
indefinite from a policy standpoint, what kind of a bank we were going to have
in the Bank of Western Canada. This was one influence on us.

The second influence was the fact that the directors of the bank—I think it
was two or three of the western directors in particular—indicated that they felt
that our participation in the bank was one of the most negative features in trying
to convey the genuine western impression in the western provinces. As I men-
tioned last night, this put us in the odd position where we were still putting up
more money and there was some suggestion that we should be selling our shares.
One director even suggested that we should sell them at market, which I think
would be $3 a share less than what we paid for them. One other suggestion was
that we should put all our shares into a voting trust. From our standpoint this
caused us to draw back. Another point was that while funds were available on
the date in question, they were credit funds which we were using to put in. In
other words, they were Wellington Financial Corporation assets which amounted
to something like $10 or $11 million. When we put these funds into the Bank of
Western Canada it will require a loan to be made against our assets. So, we are
in the position, if we are going to sell these shares—as the western directors
would like us to—where we are really warehousing them in the meantime by
obtaining credit and carrying the shares until they are sold to some other buyer.

Mr. THomMmPSOoN: You stated last night that you had established a line of
credit for some $24 million, $14 million of which you had either drawn or it was
available for drawing. Was that money intended to meet your obhgatlons to the
Bank of Canada?

25702—23
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Mr. STeveNs: Well, in part. I do not know that you could definitely earmark
it. I know there is quite a difference between the two amounts. However, we do
have other American lines as well and the total lines would be somewhere
around $3% to $4 million. I do not know that you could actually earmark the $13
million,-but I think it would be fair to say that part of the $1} million would
probably be used in the purchase of the remaining Bank of Western Canada
shares. I hope there is no misunderstanding there. We still fully expect that these
shares will be taken up and paid for, it is just we are in a bit of a quandary
at the present time.

Mr. FuLToN: You naturally have some internal problems to settle first.
Mr. STEVENS: Yes.
Mr. GREGOIRE: You have the money in hand.

Mr. STEVENS: No, we do not have it in hand but we have available credits.
‘We can have the money if required.

Mr. MACKASEY: This commitment is an internal commitment?

The CHAIRMAN: Order, please. Are you willing to yield the floor, Mr.
Thompson? Go ahead, Mr. Thompson.

Mr. THOMPSON: You then specifically refute the charge that Mr. Coyne made
that you were using the Bank of Western Canada for the direct benefit of your
group of BIF companies as a tool rather than those intentions which you stated
over and over again when you appeared before the Committee in 1965 and 1966?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, completely. We have been dealing with various American
banks and, as I said yesterday, certain United Kingdom banks, and we feel that
these contacts are contacts in the sense that they have been dealing with the BIF
group or companies within the BIF group. I think Mr. Coyne made the comment
to one of our people that he felt that any bank that we were dealing with, the
Bank of Western Canada more or less automatically would not deal with them.
We feel that this is taking the extreme approach in the sense that if you put it the
reverse way, I do not know what would happen if the Bank of Western Canada
started dealing with a bank and then we opened an account with them. I do not
think this was ever intended in that the g.ssociations that you build with banks
are something that generally, if you have friendly associations, you tend to
cultivate and you do not, for example, in the same city deliberately use two
separate banks just as a matter of policy. I should clarify the point that the type
of thing that is perhaps by innuendo inferred is that, for example, the Bank of
Western Canada would put money on deposit with a bank on the understanding
that that bank in turn would loan it to us. That was not involved in any of these
credit arrangements to which I have been referring. There is no understanding
of that nature whatsoever.

Mr. THOMPSON: In your differences of opinion—

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Thompson, I just want to bring to your attention the
fact that 20 minutes has elapsed since you began your questioning, so I will allow
you to ask this question and Mr. Stevens to answer, but then I think we should
pass on to the next person on the list.



Feb. 8,1967 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 3139

Mr. THOMPSON: In your differences of opinion with Mr. Coyne, particularly
at the January and February 1 board meetings, did he at any time in your
discussions state that he contemplated reporting your intended actions or the
possibility of such actions—with which he took such strong disagreement—to the
Inspector General of Banks, the Governor of the Bank of Canada or the Minister
of Finance?

Mr. STEVENS: I cannot recall that he ever said anything like that, no.

Mr. THOMPSON: The thing that is disturbing, I think, at least to myself, is
that several times you have stated that you were startled at his statement to the
press and that under no circumstances had you done this, and yet Mr. Coyne’s
testimony is just as firm on the opposite side. There does not seem to be a
coming together of these two opinions as to what really was your intention. I
think we will leave it at that.

Mr. FLEMMING: Mr. Chairman, my questions are based on Mr. Coyne’s
statement dated February 3, and they have been partly covered by Mr.
Thompson. The third paragraph of the statement refers to the connection be-
tween British International Finance and The Wellington Financial Corporation
with the Bank of Western Canada, and it seems to me that that is very pertinent
to this Committee. He gives three specific reasons for his resignation, I take it.
Firstly, he states:

. . .they have failed to make good their subscription for shares to the
extent of about $1,500,000,. . .

I take it, Mr. Stevens, from the answer you gave Mr. Thompson that part of
the funds you were endeavouring to secure in New York were going to be used
for this purpose. Do you consider that you were in default of that $1} million?

Mr. STEVENS: As Mr. Coyne mentioned, this is a rather nebulous area, I
think, in that under the Bank Act they appear to contemplate that you subscribe
for shares and, as was indicated, the understanding was that the shares would be
paid for at a certain date, but technically there is a provision that the directors
are to call the shares. There has never really been a call made and I am not too
sure just what position you could say we are in, but to clarify the point, we
certainly have no intention of reneging on putting in the money or in some way
not completing the subscription or obligation. It is more a question, as Mr. Fulton
indicated, of trying to clear the air and not getting into a position where we are
simply carrying shares—which requires credit—not knowing exactly whether
we are going to sell them or keep them.

Mr. FLEMMING: Then I take it you do not consider that you were in default?

Mr. STEVENS: In the very technical legal sense that is right, we would not be
in default.

Mr. FLEMMING: The second point Mr. Coyne made in his statement was:

. . .they have attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own
companies contrary to the most explicit statements made to the Com-
mittees of the Senate and of the House of Commons. . .

I take it from your answer to Mr. Thompson that you refute this; you do not

agree.
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Mr. STEVENS: No. There is one thing that I think I should explain which I
did not touch on last night. In Mr. Coyne’s testimony I think he referred to two
things; firstly, the fact that he understood we were considering a line of credit up
to 10 per cent of capital, and I think I did touch on that last night—

Mr. FLEMMING: That was the third reason. I am only on the second.

Mr. STEVENS: Secondly, the idea of buying Consumer Finance paper from
one of our companies. The matter that he was referring to there is something
that has been considered, and I would have to state very definitely that if this
was done it would certainly come under the Treasury Board order and it would
require the consent of the Minister of Finance. There is no doubt about that and
there has never been any misunderstanding that way. However, those of you who
were on this Committee when I appeared a few weeks ago on behalf of the 12
trust companies will remember that we mentioned that the trust companies feel
that they are at some disadvantage with respect to the making of consumer loans
to their customers in that under the charter of the trust and loan companies they
are unable to make such loans, but in the case of our companies we have set up a
separate company called Simcoe Plan Loans, which works through the trust
companies as agent.

This is something that was set up in our thinking for two purposes, and
I think this is the difference between Mr. Coyne’s understanding and our
understanding. The first purpose was to give a better service to our trust
company customers. We wanted to be able to give our customers the same
consumer loan facility that they could get at the chartered banks. The second
purpose was because we felt that in anticipation of the Bank of Western
Canada being formed that the formation of staff and the building up of a
consumer loan portfolio would give the bank a very good start when they were
incorporated if they wished to buy the portfolio. This, of course, would be
subject to analysis by the Consumer Loan people and to meeting their satisfac-
tion. On this particular point Mr. Coyne’s first reaction, as I recall it, was that he
felt it was up to the professional bankers who would subsequently be hired as to
whether they had any interest in acquiring this portfolio.

I did discuss it then with Mr. Bernard, who was hired to head the consumer
loan division of the Bank of Western Canada—we intend to make consumer
loans in the bank—and with Mr. Cutts, the general manager of the bank. Mr.
Bernard’s response was very, very enthuslastic and he turned to Mr. Cutts and
said, “I hope you have first refusal on the takeover of this portfolio because it
gives me a nucleus to work on immediately and indirectly it gives me the
advantage of working through the trust branches in getting consumer loan
activity going, which I feel will be a big advantage in running my consumer loan
division as compared with having to start with just one branch and building from
that point”. When he said that he hoped that we had a first refusal, I remember
that I smiled because I knew that Mr. Coyne’s reaction to it at that point was
rather negative. This was subsequently raised and, as I recall, Mr. Coyne felt
that in spite of what the consumer loan man might have felt it should not be
purchased from our group. This in turn is the second point to which Mr. Coyne
referred. It is not a loan to us; it is simply a question of whether the portfolio
would be purchased from us and that Westbank would continue to make these
consumer loans through our trust companies acting as agent. Incidentally, there
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is one chartered bank that is now negotiating with a trust company to do this
very thing and this bank may, in turn, do the same thing through our trust
companies. It was our feeling that it was too bad that our own associated bank
was not taking the opportunity if this other bank felt that it was desirable
business.

Mr. FLEMMING: All right, Mr. Stevens. Then you acknowledge that you were
talking the matter over with the Bank of Western Canada relative to taking over
a portfolio of consumer credit items, if you like?

Mr. STEVENS: That is right.

Mr. FLEMMING: What do you think of the statement by Mr. Coyne that this
was:

.. .contrary to the most explicit statements made to the Committees of the
Senate and the House of Commons. . .
Do you agree that that is justified?

Mr. STEVENS: I do not think it was contrary to—
Mr. FLEMMING: In other words, you do not agree with it?
Mr. STEVENS: I do not agree with Mr. Coyne’s statement.

Mr. FLEMMING: That is what I mean. The third reason given by Mr. Coyne is
that you were:
...presently engaged in a borrowing operation with American banks
which involves the giving of an option on 10 per cent of the total shares of
the Bank of Western Canada. ..
I think you explained this last night, but would you mind reiterating your
explanation of the 10 per cent matter with the American banks.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. Mr. Coyne is referring to our negotiations with the New
York bank and, as I say, we deal with several New York banks, but the specific
bank that he is referring to is the one in which a line of credit of $24 million had
been requested, and I think I read the letter last night requesting the line of
credit and pointing out that it was to be jointly and severally guaranteed by
British International Finance and The Wellington Financial Corporation. During
the oral discussion as to whether this bank would give us the line of credit the
point was raised that in view of the fact that we had discussed equity participa-
tion from time to time and, as I say, primarily in our BIF group, would it be
possible to have what I referred to last night as a gentleman’s agreement to the
effect that if we wished to sell up to 10 per cent—which would be the legal limit,
although I guess technically there is no legal limit—of the BIF group or of the
Bank of Western Canada that this bank would have the first right to purchase
those shares. This was agreed to through a type of gentleman’s agreement. There
was nothing put in writing on it. As I understand it, it was a point which raised
during the oral negotiation for this loan but it was never put into written form.
Subsequently the bank confirmed that the line of credit had been granted and I
think it was the reference to this first refusal to which Mr. Coyne took exception.
In my opinion, I can see nothing wrong with this particular bank wishing to buy
the shares.

Mr. FLEMMING: Mr. Stevens, you do not agree that there was any option, is
that right?
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Mr. STEVENS: I do not agree that there was an option in what I—
Mr. FLEMMING: At least in the legal sense of the word. '

Mr. STEVENS: In the legal sense of the word. For example, shares were not
identified, price was not identified, payment date was not identified or term of
option. It was simply an understanding that if we were going to sell we would
offer it to them.

Mr. FLEMMING: Yes, that is quite understandable. Now, what is your com-
ment about Mr. Coyne’s statement that there were various arrangements or, in
other words, that your company was:

...engaged in a borrowing operation with American banks which
involves the giving of an option on 10 per cent of the total shares of the
Bank of Western Canada and various arrangements designed to tie the
management and operations of the Bank to the operations of these
American banks,. ..

What is your comment about that?
Mr. STEVENS: I do not know what he is referring to in that particular part.
Mr. FLEMMING: In other words, you deny it?

Mr. STEVENS: Certainly to the best of my knowledge there is no commitment
that way at all. Is that the last—

Mr. FLEMMING: This is the latter part of the third paragraph. It reads:
. .and various arrangements designed to tie the management and opera-
tions of the Bank to the operations of these American banks,.. .
Now, in my opinion this is quite serious from the point of view of the Banking
Committee.

Mr. STEVENS: No, I do not know what he is referring to there. Incidentally, I
do not think Mr. Coyne was involved in these negotiations at all.

Mr. FLEMMING: Do you deny that there was any tie? The word “tie” is used.
Do you deny that there was any tie?

Mr. STEVENS: Completely. In fact, I do not understand why the reference is
there. It says:
.. .to tie the management and operations of the Bank to the operations of
these American banks,. ..
I cannot think what the reference would refer to other than the possible
suggestion that if this bank had a 10 per cent interest in the bank it would mean
that it would become the correspondent bank for the Bank of Western Canada in
New York or the other types of arrangements which we had to make with some
New York bank would be restricted to this bank.
Again, there is certainly no agreement—

Mr. FLEMMING: Was a definite tie discussed?

Mr. STEVENS: In the sense that I think Mr. Coyne means here there was
definitely no tie, no sort or ironclad agreement such as if you want to do business
in New York this is the bank you would have to see.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, I have asked permission from Mr. Flemming
to ask a supplementary question. May I refresh Mr. Stevens’ memory on what
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Mr. Coyne said last evening in reply to a direct question from me. Mr. Coyne
said that what he objected to was the use by BIF of Western shares with
American interests, not for the best interests of the Western bank but for the
best interests of BIF. Would you like to comment on that?

Mr. STEVENS: Well, I feel that comment is unfair in that, as I mentioned last
night, we had been dealing with these New York banks even prior to the
incorporation of the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. FLEMMING: It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that what we are concerned
about is the relationship with the Bank of Western Canada rather than BIF. BIF
can borrow hundreds of millions in the United States; I do not care. The more
they borrow the better I will be satisfied as far as that goes, but when certain
representations are made with respect to the Bank of Western Canada, then I
think it becomes a matter about which this Committee should take cognizance.
The last line of the same paragraph reads:

...again contrary to statements made when applying for a charter.
Now, in the light of your answers, Mr. Stevens, I presume that you do not
acknowledge that there was anything said at any time that was contrary to the
statements which were made when the charter was applied for by yourself and
Mr. Coyne?

Mr. STEVENS: Oh, no. I could not agree more with what you say, in that I do
not acknowledge that there was anything done which was contrary to the
statements made when applying for the charter.

Mr. FLEMMING: Do you consider that 10 per cent of the shares of a bank
give it effective control?

Mr. STEVENS: Well, in this particular situation certainly not because we
carry on holding 40 per cent.

Mr. FLEMMING: Mr. Stevens, I am just about finished but there are a couple
of questions—

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Flemming, the clerk has just informed me that your
twenty minutes has elapsed.

Mr. FLEMMING: May I ask one more question, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps you could pick the most important one.

Mr. FLEmMMING: Last night Mr. Stevens was asked the name of the bank that
he had been negotiating with in connection with the matter and he expressed
some reluctance—and I can fully appreciate it—about divulging the name of the
American bank. I do not think that bankers or individuals or companies whant
their business broadcast on the front page of the newspapers all the time, so I
sympathize with that point of view. Mr. Stevens, this is my question. Would you
be willing to give the name of the bank to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of
this Committee privately?

Mr. STEVENS: No, I have no objection to that at all.
Mr. FLEMMING: You would have no objection to that.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And we will worm it out
of you.



3144 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS Feb. 8, 1967

Mr. FLEMMING: That may be the general idea, Mr. Chairman. I think I will
worm it out of you.

Mr. STEVENS: The chief reason for my reluctance to mention it is exactly the
reason that you have raised, Mr. Flemming. We feel that this is a very happy
banking relationship as far as our group is concerned and I think it would be
unfortunate if their name appeared on the front page of the paper, as you say, in
something that they have absolutely no control over.

Mr. FLEMMING: Well, I do not want my name on the front page of the paper.
I am sure that the banks that loan me money do not want theirs on either. Well,
Mr. Chairman, thank you.

Mr. FurtoN: They would be very proud of that.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, the next name on my list is Mr. Monteith. I
should draw the attention of the Committee to the fact that my list at the
moment reads as follows: Mr. Monteith, Mr. Lind, Mr. McLean, Mr. Cameron,
Mr. Mackasey, Mr. Fulton, Mr. Sherman and Mr. Ballard. It is now seven
minutes after five, and while I see no reason why we should not try to sit some-
what past six, I might suggest that the Committee consider that we should
attempt to take less than the ordinary period of twenty minutes. Rather than
lengthen the time perhaps we might try to reduce the period of questioning to
approximately ten minutes so that we can accommodate all the members.

Mr. MonTEITH: I would be very happy to try, Mr. Chairman, but I think you
might well have started the reduction at the start of the meeting.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, I think you are quite right and I am probably at fault
for not realizing there would be so much interest. I should point out that when
the meeting began there were only three names on my list and the other people
exhibited their interest as the first three people were asking their questions. It is
unfortunate there was this unusual shyness on the part of those attending this
meeting, and if I had realized at the outset there was going to be this interest I
would have made the suggestion earlier. However, I am sure we will be able to
get along without unduly limiting anyone.

Mr. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, is the Committee planning to sit tomorrow
morning?

The CHAIRMAN: We are planning to sit tomorrow morning but it was my
impression that the Committee had decided at least tentatively yesterday even-
ing that we would hear the Minister tomorrow morning, firstly on this Bank of
Western Canada issue and then because of the urgency of the matter we would
begin our hearings on the deposit insurance bill and hear from the Minister and
his officials on that matter with the hope that the Committee—particularly if the
minority in opposition parties are in agreement—might at the beginning of next
week begin our clause by clause consideration of the banking legislation. As I
said yesterday, we have to keep our primary purpose in mind at this time in our
responsibility to parliament. Mr. Monteith?

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Chairman, I would like to continue along the line of Mr.
More’s questioning because I think it is most relevant at the moment to the study
of the Bank Act. I am not going to ask you the name of any one particular bank,
Mr. Stevens, but I am wondering if you can think of one which we can call bank
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“A” and with which your group of companies has been dealing for a consider-
able number of years. You have not had any difficulty over those years with
your lines of credit and your requirements other than the ordinary bank and
client relationship?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, that is right.

Mr. MoNTEITH: This relationship continued and was still in force during the
Senate hearings in 1964 concerning the formation of the Bank of Western
Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MoNTEITH: The relationship still existed in March of 1966, when you
appeared before the Banking Committee of the House of Commons?

Mr. STEVENS: It had badly deteriorated.

Mr. MoNTEITH: It had started to deteriorate at that time?

Mr. STEVENS: Oh, yes.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Now, this is a year ago. In other words, this was last March?
Mr. STEVENS: That is right.

Mr. MONTEITH: Because, if I am not mistaken, you made statements to our
Committee last March to the effect that you did not countenance a situation
where you would be short of credit with your ordinary banking institutions.

Mr. STEVENS: I do not remember that precisely. I can tell you, though, that
in the period to which you are referring we still had total lines—

Mr. MONTEITH: You went up to $13.9 million in 1965?

Mr. STEVENS: That is right, and in, March of 1966 we had approximately $1.5
million.

Mr. MONTEITH: Right at the moment you are less than $150,000?
Mr. STEVENS: That is right.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Now, let us get back to bank “A”, whom you had been
dealing with for a number of years. As of the date of the Senate hearings in 1964
there had been no deterioration in your situation, although you now say that in
March of 1966 there was some deterioration?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, in the sense—was that in March of 19647

The CHAIRMAN: March of 1964 was the date of the Senate Banking Com-
mittee proceedings, when you made your initial application.

Mr. STEVENS: During that period our credit with the banks ranged from
somewhere around $2 million to a high point in October of $5 million. The point I
was making, Mr. Monteith, was that the credit facility that we had from some of
these banks was quite extensive in relation to the size of our net worth and total
assets, but as our size and total assets and net worth grew, the credit facility
diminished.

Mr. MonTEITH: Did it diminish from a percentage standpoint or just dimin-
ish in volume?

Mr. STEVENS: It diminished both ways, with the exception of the fact that
during the middle part of 1965, we shot up, which was partly due to this special
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deal that I have referred to, but there had been a general lessening of the credit
facility over that period which was aggravated by the tight money situation that
came in, I think, in the middle of 1965.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Have you tried to get accommodation, over and above the
figure of approximately $150,000 which you have now, with the Canadian banks
in the last year which has been definitely refused?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. Definitely refused.
Mr. MoNTEITH: Definitely refused. On good security?
Mr. STEVENS: Yes. In fact, I would think on unquestioned security.

Mr. MoNTEITH: And were you told that the reason was your connection with
the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: You are referring to bank “A”?
Mr. MONTEITH: Yes.
Mr. STEVENS: Yes, I learned from two sources that the bank complicated our

previous banking relationship in the minds of the senior executives of bank “A”
and that it was an influence in our banking relationship.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I was of the opinion that when we were hearing your
application before the Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs Committee of the
House of Commons last March that evidence was given to the effect that your
banking arrangements were sufficient so that you would never have to consider
borrowing money from the Bank of Western Canada. Could this over-all state-
ment have included your borrowing powers in the United States and in Britain?

Mr. STEVENS: No. I think at that time we were thinking more with respect to
Canadian banks, but it was also during that period that we started to cultivate
the American and British lines. I felt, realizing that our Canadian lines could
diminish for one reason or another, that we were only prudent in developing
outside lines.

Mr. MonTEITH: Well, do you feel the fact that you were interested in the
Bank of Western Canada very definitely and concretely had the affect of limiting
your credit with any Canadian bank?

Mr. STEVENS: I think it had an influence and, as I mentioned, in relation to
your bank “A” I was told that they started to refer to our account as a pre-bank
account, meaning that—

Mr. MoNTEITH: Pre-bank of Western Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, that is right. From another source in the same bank I
learned about two years ago, I think, that our file, what they call a history file,
made a notation of the Bank of Western Canada and referred to the fact that
we were proposing to be a banking institution.

Mr. MoNTEITH: How long had you dealt with bank “A”?
Mr. STEVENS: I would think over five years anyway. BIF was formed in 1960

and I think it would be fairly soon thereafter that we started to deal with this
bank.
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Mr. MoNTEITH: In the arrangement you had which cost you a total of 8 per
cent back in 1965, which Mr. More also referred to, I am assuming the effective
rate of interest would be 6 per cent, but the supplementary factor being able to
buy back these securities, and so on, meant an effective rate of 8 per cent?

Mr. STEVENS: No. The way the deal was worked was that we were asked to
sell the securities to the bank to give them on the coupon an effective 7 per cent
return. In the event that we wished to buy them back, we bought them back at a
price that in effect raised the rate to 8 per cent. In other words, they bought
securities to yield themselves 7 per cent and if we bought them back they got an
effective rate of 8 per cent.

Mr. MoNTEITH: On the U.S. accommodation which you have recently ar-
ranged, I think you said in your letter that you were enclosing two cheques, one
for $5,000 and one for $10,000. Were these simply to open accounts? They were
not considered to be compensating balances in any manner?

Mr. STEVENS: No. In fact, the line of credit had a term of six months with the
understanding that it would roll for a further six months and the rate was 6%
per cent with no free balance required.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I think that is all at the moment, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Linp: Mr. Stevens, did I hear you say in answer to Mr. Monteith that
British International Finance (Canada) Limited was first formed in 19607

Mr. STEVENS: I think that is right.

Mr. Linp: That was when you originated. From 1960 to 1965 you built a line
of credit accommodation with the banks up to $5 million?

Mr. STEVENS: Well, it jumped up and down. On one specific deal I remember
we were able to have a line of $12 million, and that was in 1963. On one specific
deal bank “A” gave us a credit of $12 million. Certainly during that period we
felt we enjoyed excellent banking accommodation.

Mr. LiNp: When you started British International Finance (Canada) Limited
did you take finance notes, or of what was your paper composed?

Mr. STEVENS: No. British International Finance has never been in the
finance paper business, the consumer loans. It is a name that conveys that
impression but it has never been active in the consumer loan field.

Mr. Linp: Then following along, you said last night that you were up to $5
million and then you went down to $1.5 million. Did that happen at the time of
the collapse of Atlantic Acceptance Corporation?

Mr. STEVENS: No, not really. During 1964 the high point was about $5
million. At the beginning of 1965 that fell off at one time to as low as $1.1
million. These volumes fluctuate. Then it went up to $3.9 million, and then
worked its way up to the high point of $13.9 million and then it came down. For
example, in January of 1966 it was $2 million and has gone steadily down from
that point to less than $150,000. Speaking of this $150,000, the bank would like
that paid.

Mr. Linp: Now, this high of $13.9 million, was that all with bank “A” or
with Canadian banks?
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Mr. STEVENS: I am afraid I missed that.
Mr. Linp: Was the $13.9 million all with Canadian banks.
Mr. STevENS: Oh, yes. There were no American banks involved there.

Mr. Linp: When did they cut this $13.9 million back? Was it after you
received your approval from the Treasury Board?

Mr. STEVENS: No. That was reduced in December of 1965.

Mr. LinD: They reduced it in December of 1965. Was there any finance paper
involved at any time in this line of credit?

Mr. STEVENS: There is one line of credit that does involve finance paper but
it is a relatively small line which has always been run with the Mercantile Bank
in connection with the Simcoe Plan loans that I referred to, and that, inciden-
tally is a line of credit with which we have not had any particular difficulty. It is
very much to our satisfaction.

Mr. Linp: If I remember correctly, yesterday Mr. Coyne mentioned a
$700,000 line of credit that he was asked for by the BIF group from the Bank of
Western Canada. Was there any finance paper involved in this?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. Linp: At no time was there any finance paper involved in the credit
asked for from the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: I am a little confused, I think, about your reference. The only
finance paper that we have in our group are the Simcoe Plan loans that I
referred to and that is a separate company that has a portfolio of, I think,
$800,000 or $900,000. That portfolio is financed mainly by our equities, but we do
have a line of credit involved with that paper with the Mercantile Bank. As I
say, that line of credit has never given us any particular trouble but that
portfolio, to perhaps clarify what you are referring to, was the portfolio of
$800,000 or $900,000 that we discussed selling to the Bank of Western Canada,
with a view to giving the bank the nucleus business and then allowing them to
carry on in the same method as we are presently employing.

Mr. Linp: May I ask if all this paper is in good shape and not too much in
arrears? -

Mr. STEVENS: It is good stock.

Mr. Linp: Then why would the Bank of Western Canada refuse this? There

is no doubt you are probably putting up 10 or 20 per cent extra to cover this line
of credit.

Mr. STEVENS: No, I cannot understand why the Bank of Western Canada
would refuse to buy it and, in fact, it could well be that it will be sold to another
bank.

Mr. Linp: Was this one of the points that you and Mr. Coyne had a
difference of opinion upon?

Mr. STEVENS: I think he had a different opinion on it in two ways. First of
all, the fact that it was a BIF asset, I do not think he liked that feeling and, in
the second place, the eastern connection, the fact that the loans were made

-
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in the east. On that particular point we mentioned that we felt that sufficient
deposits could be generated in the east to certainly cover any moneys that
were involved and, for that matter, if they wished they could always take over
the portfolio and allow it to run down. Meanwhile, they could use the nucleus
to cover their overhead and staff salaries. In other words, when you start with
a consumer loan division in a Bank or in any other place you need approxi-
mately $800,000 or $900,000 to cover the overhead of the staff that you require
from the day you open your door. The advantage is that you have these loans
that you can give them to work on and it is immediately at least a break-even
proposition.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Lind, I think I should interrupt you at this time in line
with my suggestion that we restrict somewhat the ordinary period of question-
ing. I believe, according to the note made by the Clerk, you started shortly after
ten past five, so perhaps I could recognize Dr. McLean at this time.

Mr. Linp: Well now, wait a minute. Are we not still getting twenty minutes
each? I did not hear anything about this.

The CHAIRMAN: Just before Mr. Monteith began his questioning I brought
to the attention of the Committee the fact that we had quite an extensive list and
rather limited time. Last night the Committee in effect appeared to agree that we
would have the Minister before us tomorrow, and with the extensive list before
us today that perhaps we would limit our period of questioning to a time less
than the ordinary twenty minutes.

Mr. Linp: Well, I did not understand that, Mr. Chairman. You let others go
on a little longer.

The CHAIRMAN: I also attempted to limit Mr. Monteith but he was kind
enought to moderate his questions and although I cannot see what he has written
down, I can see he has some extensive notes which I am sure he would have
used as the basis for questions if time had permitted. In any event, if I did
recognize you at ten after five, it is now five thirty, and I do not claim to be too
strong in mathematics but it would appear that you have had just about twenty
minutes anyway.

Mr. Linp: May I ask one more question on a different subject?

The CHATRMAN: Mr. Monteith would then have a legitimate complaint that I
did not permit him to operate in the same way. As I say, I could have been
criticized by him already for being somewhat lax in departing from my own
suggestion that we try to limit our questions to the area of ten minutes, It is just
about five thirty now.

Mr. LinDp: Well when will we have a chance to question Mr. Stevens further?

The CHAIRMAN: Well, that will be a decision for the Committee as to how
long we want to go today and if we want to have these gentlemen back another
time. Perhaps I could recognize Mr. McLean at this time.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Well, Mr. Chairman and Mr. Stevens, I do not
have very many questions. I was rather intrigued to hear Mr. Stevens say that he
was not getting the proper treatment from our Canadian banks. In my long
banking experience I have never experienced anything like that. You say, Mr.
Stevens, that you had borrowed $13 million at one time in Canada and you have
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reduced it to $150,000 at the present time. Was that $13 million in loans
transferred to the American banks? Did you get the $13 million from the
American banks to pay the $13 million off?

Mr. STEVENS: No, it was retired largely by ourselves through the generation
of deposit money in our own trust on loan operations.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Well then, you really brought it down through
cash flow?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): You have stated again and again that the trouble
between you and Mr. Coyne was on policy. The policy of Mr. Coyne would be
that of the professional banker and he would want to carry on banking on
professional lines. Was this a policy with which you disagreed?

Mr. STEVENS: Well, I guess it depends on how you define professional
banking. I would say that the disagreement certainly was not on the question of
professional banking in that we have pushed very strongly to have senior high
level banking executives hired to run the bank. Now, Mr. Coyne has indicat-
ed—and certainly this is not recorded in the minutes—that as president of the
bank he feels that he should be regarded as a part-time president who, in effect,
intercedes between the general manager and the board of directors, but not a
full-time operating head of the bank. Well now, from our standpoint I believe
Mr. Coyne did refer to the fact that Mr. Bell had raised the point that he thought
that a more senior banking executive should perhaps be hired.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): You want to replace Mr. Coyne?

Mr. STEVENS: No, not necessarily, because banks have very convenient titles;
for example, they have chief general managers and general managers. A chief
general manager would be somebody that would be senior to a general manager
but not senior to the president.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Well, it is on policy that you disagree?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. On questions of policy there is certainly no suggestion on
our side that we want to do anything of a reckless or unsound nature. It is more
a question of the type of banking that is gothg to be carried on and we feel that
the bank should not become a relatively savings type operation or almost like an
investment trust type of an operation, but it should be an aggressive, worth-
while commercial bank. We have advanced the thought that the unit banking
concept is a good concept and could play a tremendous role in certain of these
western Canadian cities.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Your answers are so long, Mr. Stevens, that they
get me confused.

Mr. STEVENS: I am sorry.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): They certainly take up the time. Now, you have
stated that you were willing to sell 10 per cent. Does that mean 10 per cent of the
total capitalization or does it mean 20 per cent of your shares?

Mr. STEVENS: Twenty per cent of our shares.
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Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): You were going to dispose of 20 per cent of your
shares to an American bank, although you told this committee that you had
taken every precaution against doing this?

Mr. STEVENS: I think you are referring to the reference to the formation of
the bank and we pointed out—

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I read a little while ago that you were taking
every precaution that shares would not fall into American hands or into
American banks or into the hands of foreigners, and yet you were willing to
dispose—

The CHAIRMAN: What is your reference, Dr. McLean?

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): I beg your pardon?

The CHAIRMAN: What are you referring to specifically ?

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Well, it is in the record here somewhere.
Mr. STEVENS: If I can recall that, Dr. McLean, properly—

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): It says:

...we took special precautions to meet the argument that a new bank
might fall under the domination...

The CHAIRMAN: You appear to be quoting from the initial statement of Mr.
Coyne in the March 1 hearings—

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): That is right, but they were both hand in hand at
that time.

The CHAIRMAN: That is right.

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): So now you are willing to dispose of 20 per cent
of your shares?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. Well, if I could just clarify that. I think the history—
Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): No, I just wanted to know if you were, that is all.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. McLean, your quotation was part of an entire para-
graph.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): This was a general statement, but it is a statement
that was made before the committee.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. Well, if I could clarify it. This went through, I think,
three stages. In the initial solicitation of subscribers for the bank we had a 100
per cent prohibition against any non-resident participation. Now, this was in
anticipation of not knowing what the new Bank Act would actually provide for.
The revision of the Bank Act, as it first came in, allowed for a 25 per cent
participation. We proposed that in our original bil! and that got cut down to 10
per cent, at the suggestion of Mr. Lambert, I believe, at the committee hearing.

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): I think you stated that you had 14,000 sharehold-
ers, and of that 14,000 you only had 29 non-resident. Does that still stand, 29
non-resident and 14,000 shareholders?

Mr. STEVENS: I cannot tell you specifically but I can tell you generally that
there has certainly been no large non-resident buying.
25702—3
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Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Now, with reference to your allegation that the
banks were not treating you right. In respect to this $13 million that you had
borrowed you named six banks. Does that $13 million cover the six banks?

Mr. STEVENS: No, that includes four of the banks.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Four banks, so I am two out. I do not know, but
probably the Mercantile and National are out.

Mr. STEVENS: No, the Mercantile is in there.
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): The Mercantile is still in and the National is out.
Mr. STEVENS: The National is out.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Now, with respect to this hook-up with the
American bank, would that be that the American bank would participate with
the Bank of Western Canada in purchasing this consumer paper? Was there
anything like that in your mind when you went down there.

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Well what was in your mind when you went to
these American banks, because a Canadian bank generally has an agent or
somebody in New York on the other side.

Mr. STEVENS: That is the easiest relationship. You mean a correspondent
relationship?
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Correspondent yes.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. Well, that is certainly one step but you can develop your
association far beyond that point, and what we would like to do is to take
advantage of the fact that some of these American banks would like to partici-
pate in Canadian bank loans, and if we can cultivate that kind of business it
means that instead of only loaning our own funds we would have many further
millions of dollars that could be loaned, especially in western Canada.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I think you said that an American bank came up
to Toronto and they could not get participation by a Canadian bank for 25 per
cent of the loan. Now, was this what you had in mind, that ten American banks
would came up here and they would get loans and the Bank of Western Canada
would be a participant in those loans? Is that the policy that you and Mr. Coyne
disagreed on?

Mr. STEVENS: The Bank of Western Canada would have what I think they
call the carriage of the loan. They would process it and be able to deal with the
customer, but the loan in turn would be shared by one or more other banks,
which is a procedure that is very customary in the United States.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): You have in mind more or less adopting the
American usage, or whatever it was, is that it?

Mr. STEVENS: That would be right. Now, there is at least one other Canadian
bank that has indicated an interest in doing this with us too.

Mr. McLeEaN (Charlotte): But was this the policy that and Mr. Coyne
disagreed on?

Mr. STEVENS: When you say disagreement, I do not know that Mr. Coyne
was exactly opposed to it. It is more a difference of emphasis. For instance, he
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has emphasized more the idea of raising deposit money in Winnipeg for example,
and loaning the deposit money out to the Winnipeg people. Well, we feel that,
of course, is one function but we would like to do more than that in order to
get the bank up to a more substantial institution.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Now, you have blamed the Canadian banks for
not making loans to you, and I quoted Mr. Towers when he spoke to the Canada
Life Assurance Company last year, and in January he spoke again and he said:

the efforts of some industrial countries to overcome their international
deficits and of others to combat domestic inflation have naturally had
world wide repercussions. One by-product of the relative scarcity of
loanable funds and high rates of interest is to put weaker borrowers in a
precarious and sometimes untenable position. Such a situation usually
brings to life a deterioration in the quality of credit to which I referred at
our meeting last year.

Now, would you not say that it was this that caused the Canadian banks not
to grant you credit rather than your association with the Western Bank?

Mr. STEVENS: I certainly do not feel that that would be the paramount
reason, because the type of situation that I am referring to is where security, of
either a Government of Canada nature or a Government of Canada agency
guarantee type of security could be given. Security in the sense that you are
referring to there would be unquestioned.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): But this world situation of deterioration of credit,
is that not something that has a bearing on your case?

Mr. STEVENS: If you mean the deterioration of credit in the sense of tight
money, I would certainly have to agree with that.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. McLean, I think perhaps at this time we should grant
the floor to Mr. Cameron.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Stevens, as I am sure
you are well aware by now, one of the complaints—I will not use the word
“charge”—made by Mr. Coyne, which is set out in the memorandum he
provided, is that they, meaning you and your associates in the BIF group, have:

...attempted to get the Bank to provide credit to their own companies
contrary to the most explicit statements made to the committees of the
Senate and of the House of Commons.

Now, did I understand you correctly when you said that was not strictly correct?
Mr. STEVENS: That is right.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Now, this afternoon you
spoke of two meetings and I would like to get this clear. You spoke of a meeting
between you and your associates on December 13, which I think was a meeting
of the BIF board, is that right?

Mr. STEVENS: What date was that again?
Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): December 13.

Mr. STEVENS: No, no, that was just an informal meeting of the people that I
mentioned.

25702—3}
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Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I see. It was not a board
meeting?
Mr. STEVENS: No, no, it was not a board meeting, just a discussion.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Then there was a meeting
of the board of directors of the Bank of Western Canada on December 16?

Mr. STEVENS: That is right.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And at that meeting, you
told us this afternoon, you raised the question of meeting the Minister of Finance
and getting him to clarify the situation with regard to borrowing. Now, would I
be right in assuming that when you used the word “clarify’’ you really meant to
meet the Minister of Finance and see whether or not he was prepared to exercise
the discretionary powers which he has under 2.(1)(f) of the Treasury Board
minute? You wanted to have them approach the Minister to see if he would
exercise that power, is that right? That is what you meant by “clarify”?

Mr. STEVENS: By “clarify” we meant that we would like to understand
better under what circumstances, if any, would consent be granted to do any one
of these items. The easiest example would be the one I mentioned, where Fort
Garry Trust presently have their clearing arrangements with a branch of one of
the Winnipeg banks. Well now, strictly speaking, under this wording I do not
think that we could shift that account to the Bank of Western Canada in spite of
the fact it is not a borrowing account. So, what we were hoping to determine was
just what relationship would the Minister consent to, if any, with respect to our
group companies, but there were no loan amounts discussed or there were no
propositions put forward in the sense of saying that we want to apply for a
$500,000 line of credit. Now, the reference to the 10 per cent of capital was
simply a reference to what is the practice in the United States. Unlike Canada,
where there is no limit on what a Canadian bank can lend to any concern, in the
United States the legal limit on a loan is 10 per cent to any one concern.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I gathered from your
remarks this afternoon that your suggestions of getting the Minister to clarify
the position arose in the context of a discussion of a situation in which your
group of companies found themselves due to the curtailment of your line of
credit with the chartered banks. Is that not gorrect?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Then, can we assume
anything else than that you had in mind asking the Minister if he was prepared
to exercise his authority here in order to overcome your difficulties?

Mr. STEVENS: I do not think that was the inference in the sense that we
genuinely wanted clarification on the point. Now, if the Minister came back and
stated—and I think this is possibly what you are referring to—that he could see
no objection to some kind of a rule of thumb that as long as we did not borrow
over a certain limit in the aggregate that it would be acceptable to him, I think
that would have generally surprised us in the sense that we would not have
contemplated the Minister saying that, although it possibly would have been the
reaction that he would have had. But, more specifically, we were in the position
where we felt we had almost the worst of both worlds in that the Canadian
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banks for their own good reasons—be it the Bank of Western Canada or
otherwise—were not giving us the accommodation that we had once enjoyed and
our own bank was shut off from us. The only access that we had was, possibly, to
foreign banks and in reviewing the whole situation it seemed to be a very
natural thing to say: “The specific prohibitions should be clarified so that we can
understand.” For example, can any of our trust companies have dealings with
the Bank of Western Canada, of even a clearing nature? The important point I
am trying to make, Mr. Cameron, is that nothing of a specific nature was
advanced in the sense of saying that we intended to go to the Minister and ask
for a specific approval for a line of credit, or something like that. It was more to
get clarification. The simple plan loan matter though, if it had been proceeded
with, would have been something to present to the Minister as a definite
proposal: Had he any objection to our purchasing—and “our” being the Bank of
Western Canada—those assets?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I really do not see what

clarification you required. It is set out here quite plainly that the bank:

—shall not, directly or indirectly, except with the prior approval of the

Minister of Finance,

(i) make a loan or advance to or deposit with,

(ii) guarantee a loan or advance to or deposit with,

(iii) purchase the securities or shares of, or make a loan or advance on

the securities or shares of,

(iv) purchase any assets from, or

(v) assume any liabilities of,

any of the preferred subscribers whether or not they are then sharehold-

ers of the Bank.
Now, it seems to me that is quite clear and the only thing you could get the
Minister. It did not need any clarification, did it? He had the power to do these
me you could not have had any other purpose in suggesting approaching the
Minister. It did not need any clarification, did it? He had the power to do these
things and it was one or other of these things you wanted him to do, I gather.

Mr. STEVENS: I do not know whether we are turning on words but the
simple fact—and I think this was raised yesterday—is why were the words
“—except with the prior approval of the Minister of Finance” put in?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I have not a clue; I won-
dered myself why they were put in.

Mr. STEVENS: I would think it is reasonable—speaking as a BIF person—to
say that I should inquire from the Minister under what circumstances would he
give approval.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes, I think it is quite
reasonable. So, therefore, this was your purpose in going to the Minister—to find
out if he would be prepared to do it? I am not suggesting there is anything
wrong in doing that.

Mr. STEVENS: If he would be prepared to do something, but we did mot
intend to put anything specifically before him other than in a discussion sense.
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For example, the Simcoe plan—If he had felt that was a deal which would be
acceptable to the Bank of Western Canada we could have talked specifically
about that.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): You would hope that you
would reach some conclusion with the Minister that he would agree to exercise
the power to exempt you from one or other of these provisions.

Mr. STEVENS: What we were really looking for were guidelines; what was

contemplated in the clause: “—except with the prior approval of the Minister of
Finance.”

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Stevens, tell me this:
If you had had your meeting with the Minister and had succeeded in persuading
him that the situation was such that he should exercise his discretion and permit
the Bank of Western Canada either to make a loan or an advance—or all the
various other things which are outlined here—to your companies, would you
consider, as Mr. Coyne suggests, that was contrary to the most explicit state-
ments made to the committees of the Senate and the House of Commons?

Mr. STEVENS: No, I do not feel so.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): May I quote some of your
own evidence to you, Mr. Stevens, from March 8, 1966, in which you were
answering Mr. Horner, the member for Acadia, and you had this to say on page
) i

The other point I would like to mention, Mr. Horner, in connection
with your suggestion that there may be some interrelationship between
our other trust companies and the Bank of Western Canada, is this—I
think, as was mentioned in evidence earlier, there certainly is no pro-
posal or suggestion in our mind that the Bank of Western Canada, in
fact, would become the banker to the group. I can assure you this will
not happen.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Well, why would it not happen? What guaran-
tee or assurance can you give us that it will not happen?

And this is your reply, Mr. Stevens.

Mr. STEVENS: I would say one of the very obvious reasons is that we
need banking connections in our group. The Bank of Western Canada is
not one which would be of help to us. As I mentioned, we deal presently
with six of the eight chartered banks in Canada, and we wish to keep this
relationship established—

and you mention a number of the banks—

—is a valuable one for any group to maintain, and the fact we would have
a bank in the west would in no way mean that we would try or, indeed,
want to sever our present relationship with existing banks.

Mr. HOrRNER (Acadia): You mentioned that you dealt with six of the
eight banks; do you mean that you borrow money from six of the eight
present banks?

Mr. STEVENS: We are not borrowing from very many now. By dealing
with them, I mean they handle our clearing privileges or our general
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accounts, and I would say at the present time we certainly have much
more money on deposit with the existing banks.

Mr. HOorRNER (Acadia): But, that is because of this $13 million.

Mr. STEVENS: No; we have more money on deposit with existing
banks than we borrow from them and our borrowings from existing banks
are quite small.

Now, Mr. Stevens, if that was the case in March, 1966, why have you now
reached the position where, because the banks insist on keeping your borrowings
quite small, you have to consider approaching the Minister of Finance. What
change has taken place?

Mr. STEVENS: No change. In fact, the statement that you have just read, I
would say, is still the position we are in. We in no way want the Bank of
Western Canada to become “banker to the group”. To say, “banker to the
group” would mean that the Bank of Western Canada would be our main
banker. But, on the other hand, I think it is reasonable to say that while we want
to maintain banking relationships with as many banks in Canada as possible, is it
not at least possible to use your own bank—the bank you are associated with—if
the Minister has no objection? For example, the matter of clearing, to me, is the
clearest example. It seems odd, if you have no loan requirement, that as far as
your clearing arrangement in Fort Garry Trust is concerned you continue to give
the benefit of that business to a competing bank instead of your own bank in the
same city. It was that type of thing which we wanted clarified.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): What did you mean when
you said: “The Bank of Western Canada is not one which would be of help to
us.”

Mr. STEVENS: I think that also is a reference to the point that Mr. Coyne had
touched on in his testimony. It would not be of help to us in the size of loans that
the bank could make if there were no restriction. In other words, when we are
discussing the size of loans that we have been talking about today—up to $13
million, or $5 million and this type of thing—the Bank of Western Canada could
never prudently handle that type of loan.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Would you define for me
what you meant when you said: ‘“—our borrowings from existing banks are
quite small.”

Mr. STEVENS: I will just tell you how much they were at that date, which
was March 8, 1966. The total borrowings of our group on that date were $1.4
million and our total assets were probably about $110 million to $120 million at
that time.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Subsequent to the time
when you gave this evidence your borrowing from the banks increased sharply?

Mr. STEVENS: Oh, no, they went down.
Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): They went down?

Mr. STEVENS: Oh, yes. You see, this is last year’s figure—almost a year ago. I
will tell you how they have gone down. In March they were $1,461,000; they
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went down to $1,300,000 the following month; by October they were down to
$628,000 and, as I say, they have continued to fall until now they are something
below $150,000.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Well, then, Mr. Stevens,
in the light of that would you explain to me again why, according to your
evidence, the fact that the chartered banks were curtailing your loans made
it necessary in that context to consider—and I think there is no question
about it; you admit it yourself—the possibility that the Minister of Finance
would give his approval to giving you exemptions from section 2 (1) (f) of the
Treasury Board minute of August 3. It does not seem to track somehow. You are
telling me that you, yourself, or somebody, reduced your loans in the banks very
sharply. . .

Mr. STEVENS: That is correct.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): ...between this date—
March, 8, 1966,—and the present date, or the time on December 16 when the
question of approaching the Minister came up. I still fail to understand how your
situation on December 16 made it desirable for you to bring up the question of
approaching the Minister of Finance, because it was in the context of not having
sufficient bank accommodation that you brought it up.

Mr. STEVENS: I would suggest that we wanted clarification concerning the
Treasury Board provision in two respects. One was in the general sense of under
what circumstances would the Minister of Finance consent to any one of those
deals. But there was no specific loan nor any specific accommodation in mind.
The second possible reason that we would go to the Minister of Finance would
be on the Simcoe plan purchase of assets. In other words, if the bank officials
said that they were interested in purchasing assets we would then have to go to
the Minister and say: “Is this the type of thing that was contemplated under
section (f)?”

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I do not see why you
would have to do that. It says perfectly plainly in subparagraph (IV):

purchase any assets from—
It is already set out.

Mr. STEVENS: No, what I mean is that if we went with the Simcoe plan
proposal is that the type of thing the Minister would consent to?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Would you again explain
to me why you thought it might be necessary to get the Minister to assent if,
according to your own evidence, you, yourself had sharply reduced your borrow-
ings from the banks from a time when you said: “our borrowings from existing
banks are quite small”’? Then, apparently, you made them even smaller.

Mr. STEVENS: No, we did not necessarily make them smaller. I think,
perhaps, I can answer your question in this way, Mr. Cameron, You have a
portfolio of consumer loans in Simcoe. This is an $800,000 or $900,000 portfolio.
Before that could be sold into the Bank of Western Canada it would, first of all,
have to be reviewed by the consumer loan people and an agreement reached on
price, terms and this type of thing, but before any deal could be consummated
under the provisions of this Treasury Board order, we would have to go to the

/-\‘
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Minister of Finance and ask for his consent. This is what we were discussing; the
fact that the consent contemplated here presumably has to be clarified. For
instance, you might go to the Minister with this type of proposition and he
would say no, that is not what we had in mind.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Cameron, I think perhaps we should give the floor to
Mr. Mackasey, followed by Mr. Fulton.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Stevens, on what date were you going to approach the
Minister for clarification?

Mr. STEVENS: No date was set.

Mr. MACKASEY: Have you ever approached the Minister?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. MACKASEY: You never went through with it.

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. MACKASEY: Are you aware of the date on which this regulation of
Treasury Board was set down?

Mr. STEVENS: It was August 3, 1966.

Mr. MACKRASEY: Why did you wait so long for clarification?

Mr. STEVENS: That is a good question. As far as we were concerned, the first
time this came up was in either late November or early December, in the general
discussions of our relationship to the Bank of Western Canada. The point was
raised that there seemed to be some provision here to allow certain transactions

and it was then that we started our discussion of whether we should get
clarification.

Mr. MACKASEY: Could I submit, Mr. Stevens, that somewhere along the line
your normal source of credit was cut off, or reduced to $150,000? Surely this
must have curtailed your general operations?

Mr. STEVENS: As far as the Canadian banks were concerned—
Mr. MACKASEY: I apologize for interrupting, but I am trying to put a lot of

questions in ten minutes. Am I right in saying that very recently—certainly
since March 1966—jyour normal source of credit in Canada has been reduced

substantially?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, that is correct.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Coyne was a director of the BIF group at that time. Was
he not also aware of this?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes completely.

Mr. MACKASEY: Had you convinced Mr. Coyne that it was a legitimate
argument that the chartered banks were cutting down your credit in Canada
because of the western bank, what do you think Mr. Coyne’s reaction would have
been? Do you think it would have been one of silence? Is this the pattern he is
noted for? Or would he not have hollered at this type of discrimination?

Mr. STEVENS: There were various discussions of a private nature.
Mr. MACKASEY: With Mr. Coyne?
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Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MACKASEY: And you made him aware that you felt that your relation-
ship with the western bank, was the cause of the curtailment of credit to the BIF
group?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, this came up at several meetings.
Mr. MackAsSEY: Did Mr. Coyne agree with your definition of the problems?
Mr. STEVENS: I could not say categorically that he did agree.

Mr. MACKASEY: Well he must have expressed an opinion either that you
were being discriminated against—and what did he do about it as a director—or
you were not being discriminated against.

Mr. STEVENS: I cannot say definitely whether he agreed. I think he agreed
that it was an influence. You are in a nebulous field; I do not think that anybody,
including myself, could say that was the only reason.

Mr. MAackASEY: Last night you did paint a rather glowing picture of
American banks’ willingness to finance, as you mentioned, in the west, the
mid-west and so forth. If this were true, then why did you find it necessary to
contemplate approaching Mr. Sharp to find ways and means of obtaining finance
from the western bank?

Mr. STEVENS: As I mentioned, this largely turns on the question of the
Simcoe plan loan portfolio and what other accommodations, such as this clearing
facility, the minister would consent to.

Mr. MACKRASEY: Last night you mentioned several times that you had several
meetings fairly recently—I think as late as December—to construct the policy of
your bank. It seems odd to me, not being a banker or even a lawyer, that you
have got this far for over two years without determining the policy of the bank.
Has the original policy of the bank changed? Is this really what you meant?

Mr. STeEVENS: I would not say so. I think this was partly due to a greater
division between Mr. Coyne’s thinking and our thinking than we originally
thought existed. It was a kind of gap that seemed to grow over these latter
months. Certainly, we pressed many times to try to get policy much more
definitive.

Mr. MackASEY: I have just two more questions. I know Mr. Fulton also has
some questions to ask.

I will now come back to the sale and repurchase technique because I intend
to speak to Mr. Sharp about it tomorrow when he is here. I gather it differs, in a
sense, from the normal banking practice in that you sell outright, at least
temporarily, certain assets to the bank. Am I right?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, that it right.

Mr. MACKASEY: Are there any provisions in this loan for an expiry date by
which you can buy these assets back?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MACKASEY: Do you have assets at the present moment in this particular
circumstance?

0
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Mr. STEVENS: With a chartered bank?

Mr. MACKASEY: Yes.

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. MACKASEY: So you did exercise your option to buy back these particular

assets.
Mr. STEVENS: That is correct.

Mr. MAcCKASEY: Mr. Coyne stated in his evidence and I am only going by
memory—that he was first informed by someone at the meeting of February 1—I
use someone because I do not know who that person is—that shares belonging to
the BIF group had been pledged—that is his word—to American banking insti-
tutions in return for financial assistance to the BIF group.

Mr. STEVENS: First of all I would have to clarify that there was no pledging
of the bank shares required at all. The only relationship was one of giving us
first refusal. When Mr. Coyne says that he first heard of it on February 1 I do not
deny that may be so, but to the best of my recollection there was also a very
casual discussion concerning any American participation following a Lambton
Loan and Investment Company board meeting in Sarnia. I mentioned to Mr.
Coyne that I had been talking to some banks and there was a possibility of an
equity participation and I asked him whether there was any particular objection.
I do not want to emphasize the point too much because I did not bring it up in a
decisive way, but I did think that Mr. Coyne, judging from his reaction, had no
objection provided it was within the 10 per cent limit.

Mr. MAckASEY: I would like to make my own point clear, Mr. Stevens. As
long as your charter does include the provision of 10 per cent of the shares
eventually getting into American hands, I think the battle between you and Mr.
Coyne as to how they get there, either by selling 20 per cent of yours or some
other way, is strictly an internal matter which is only a matter of interest to us.

I would like to come back just for a second to this loan and repurchase
action. You did complete the cycle, but what concers me here a little if other
people are using this technique, is that once you sell these assets to a bank and
something happens to the trust group or another group, such as a bankruptcy or
something, are these assets not detached from the general assets of this par-
ticular group?

Mr. STEVENS: Well, you have cash in lieu of this.

Mr. MACKASEY: Yes, you have, but I do not want to use you because I do not
want to create any false impressions. Let us say group A approaches a bank with
this type of sale and repurchase technique—and perhaps our Bank Act should
prevent this. You receive cash and in return you turn over assets to the bank. If
something happens to group A before they have had a chance to redeem them at
this premium interest, what happens to the general over-all balance sheet of the
group that has gone into bankruptcy? In other words, has not the bank now
assumed a preferred position as far as these assets are concerned?

Mr. STEVENS: No. They have bought the assets—
Mr. MACKASEY: Some of the assets.

Mr. STEVENS: —and given cash. If the bankrupt company went under—
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Mr. MACKASEY: You would hope the cash is still there for the general
creditors.

Mr. STEVENS: That is right.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you completed your questioning?

Mr. MACKASEY: I would like to say I have, Mr. Chairman, but in deference to
Mr. Fulton I will pass on.

Mr. FurtoN: Thank you. I have, I think, only five questions. First, Mr.
Stevens, you have told us about the reduction in your credit with the chartered
banks and your estimation of the reason for that reduction. Did you report this
fact and your opinion about the conduct and attitude of, say, bank A, or any of
the other banks to the Inspector General of Banks at any time?

Mr. STEVENS: Not formally. We had discussions with certain of the senior
departmental officials in Ottawa when informal comments were made, but this
situation was never pointed out in a written form and I cannot really tell you
whether anything was ever mentioned to the Inspector General of Banks.

Mr. FuLToN: You would not be able to say whether your reports were made
in such a way that they would come to the attention of the Inspector.

Mr. STEVENS: No, definitely they would not, because this was only conversa-
tion with the people involved. Of course, the conversation could have been
related to—

Mr. Fuuton: Did you ever take any steps with a view to bringing this

situation, which must have been galling to you, to the attention of the Inspector
General of Banks?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. FurtoN: This series of discussions that have created these hearings of
this Committee appear to have gone on at least from December 13 to February 1,
during which time considerable differences as to policy, at least, between you
and perhaps your group on the one hand and Mr. Coyne and his group on the
other, became apparent. Mr. Coyne told us yesterday that he objected, and in his
press release he has given, in summary form, reasons for his very strong
objection to the policy and, indeed, to the propriety of what you were doing. Did
you ever receive a letter from Mr. Coyne ouatlining his concern in a formal way,
or summarizing his position, or his criticisms during all this period?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. Furton: You received no formal statement of Mr. Coyne’s position?

Mr. STEVENS: Do you mean, no formal written statement?

Mr. FuLTon: Yes, a formal written statement.

Mr. STEVENS: No; we only had discussions.

Mr. FurtoN: Did these discussions reveal sharp differences of opinion and
approach?

Mr. STEVENS: I would say they revealed more differences of approach than
opinion. So many times you would feel you were both stating the same thing, one
putting it one way and the other putting it another way.
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Mr. FurLton: I am really asking whether you had ever received a formal
statement, written or unwritten, from Mr. Coyne of his views on the propriety of
what in his view, was being suggested?

Mr. STEVENS: With reference to—

Mr. FurtoN: With reference to the things he summarized in his press
release.

Mr. STEVENS: In the language that you have put it, I would say no.

Mr. Furton: Did you ever receive from the Inspector of Banks any written
or unwritten intimation of disapproval of the conduct of the Bank of Western
Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. FuLToN: What has been happening here and what we have been
inquiring into, Mr. Stevens, is really a fight among the directors to decide who is
going to control, determine and direct policy of the bank, is it not?

Mr. STEVENS: In my opinion that is all it amounts to.

Mr. FuLToN: What are we here for? Do you not think we ought to send you
£0§ne to settle your differences and decide what the policy of the bank is going to

e?

Mr. SteVENS: I would be more than pleased if you would.

Mr. GrEGOIRE: I agree with that, Mr. Chairman. This is a discussion for
nothing.

Mr. MAcCkASEY: I disagree. I think we should hear Mr. Coyne tomorrow
and then we can form that conclusion.

Mr. GrREGOIRE: We heard Mr. Coyne yesterday.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sherman is the only other name on my list and I think

we should deal with our procedure before deciding whether to give Mx:. Sherman
an opportunity at this time, as he is not a formal member of the Committee.

We did indicate to Mr. Coyne that he would be subject to our recall and it
may be that some members of the Committee are interested in hearing from
him further and others may not. He may wish to say something himself. At the
same time, I do not want to keep sounding like the same old record, but I am
continuously conscious of our obligation to the House with respect to the legisla-
tion referred to us, and I am wondering whether the best thing to 510 might not
be to attempt to sit to seven o’clock and give Mr. Coyne some brief right of reply.
After all, gentlemen, our principal purpose here, if I may say so, is not to provide
a forum for this type of disagreement, it is only to look at ‘the public policy
aspects of it, if there are any. In that regard, if I may be permitted to I'nake that
sort of comment, we may want to try to use the opportgn?ty we have given these
gentlemen to appear before us to supplement our existing mforma'tlon on the
operations of the banking industry and return to our direct consideration of
legislation tomorrow morning. What is the reaction of the Committee to what I
have just said?.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, if you want mine, I would have felt a lot
more useful today if we could have the transcript of what Mr. Stevens said last
evening, because he spoke lengthily and eloquently.
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The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mackasey, we have to recognize that we are dealing
with a system of supporting services that has not yet caught up to the burden
of work imposed on it.

Mr. MACKASEY: I am not criticizing you, Mr. Chairman; you asked my
opinion and I am trying to state it.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, I do not disagree with you at all. I agree with you 100
per cent.

Mr. MACKASEY: I do not know why we could not have photostats of Mr.
Stevens transcript, because I know this is available. If someone wants to go and
get the blues and photostat them we could all know what is going on.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, assuming that the tapes have been typed up—that is a
big assumption. I am not certain that this has been carried out yet. I did, in fact,
indicate to our Clerk that I hoped that she would see that the tapes were typed
up as soon as possible; whether they have been typed up as yet, I do not know. I
have not discussed the matter with her.

Mr. MAckASEY: This leads me back to the format you agreed upon last
evening, that Mr. Coyne would temporarily cease his evidence so that Mr.
Stevens could make his statement, in order to rectify any unintentional harm
that might have been done to his groups in the public eyes. We followed the
second step, and the third step we agreed to was to permit Mr. Coyne to come
back in the way of rebuttal if one is necessary. We all agree here, I think, that
we do not want to be a sounding board for private problems, but we also have a
duty to make sure that the charter granted through this Committee is being
respected, and so I do not think we can just pass it over lightly.

The CHAIRMAN: One reason we want to hear the Minister tomorrow is to get
his reaction in the light of the evidence that we have taken—at least in part—
in assistance to the Minister.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, how can he have a reaction? He was not here.

The CHAIRMAN: The Inspector General of Banking, Mr. Scott, has been in
attendance with representatives of his department and it may be that the
Minister’s parliamentary secretary has been in attendance at times during the
afternoon, and I am sure he is in a position to give a rather complete report on
what has gone on here. What we really have to decide is to what extent we wish
to give these gentlemen, who have given us some very interesting testimony, the
opportunity to continue to use the time of the Committee in the light of what—

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question, because I think it is a
little silly for us to kill ourselves over this sort of thing and this is what we have
been doing over the last few weeks. I am not blaming you. However, could I ask,
are both Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens going to be greatly inconvenienced by
remaining over until tomorrow morning?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Coyne?
Mr. CoyNE: I am agreeable to remaining over until tomorrow.

Mr. MonTEITH: Well, under those conditions, I think we should hear Mr.
Coyne first thing tomorrow morning at 11 o’clock. Is there one night off a week?
It is now twenty minutes past six. I move we adjourn.
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The CHAIRMAN: This is a motion that is not discussable. All those in favour
of the motion? Perhaps we might reserve the motion for just a moment. Mr.
Stevens, you have a statement?

Mr. CoyNE: On a point of clarification, the bank in New York that we have
referred to has apparently been identified by the press in New York, and they
have issued a press release that I think I should read to you concerning this
Wwhole matter.

The Meadow Brook National Bank has had discussions with officials of the
Bank of Western Canada, as well as officers of the British International
Finance (Canada) Limited, over a period of several months. These discus-
sions have covered a broad range of subjects aimed at establishing a close
business relationship with the bank and the British International Finance
(Canada) Limited group. The conversations that took place were normal
and customary within the framework of international banking. Except for
the approval of a standard loan request to the BIF group no other
commitments were made between the parties involved. Meadow Brook
National Bank became interested in developing a banking relationship
with the Bank of Western Canada when it was announced that Mr.
Stevens and Mr. Coyne were not only active in the bank’s formation, but
were to participate as officers and directors.

Now, that is the bank’s press release concerning this whole matter.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I move we adjourn.
The CHATRMAN: You have heard the motion for adjournment.

An hon. MEMBER: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.
The CHAIRMAN: The meeting is adjourned until 11 o’clock tomorrow morn-
ing,
THURSDAY, February 9, 1967.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we are in a position to resume our meeting.

Before we adjourned last evening Mr. Stevens was answering questions and
before recognizing Mr. Sherman I had interrupted the proceedings to discuss our
agenda. Mr. Sherman was to be the last one to ask questions of Mr. Stevens
before giving Mr. Coyne a chance to complete his own appearance before us. I
think out of courtesy to Mr. Sherman we should ask him whether his questions

are intended for Mr. Stevens or Mr. Coyne.

Mr. SHERMAN: They were intended for Mr. Stevens, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps as a courtesy to you, Mr. Sherman, we should give
you a brief period to place these questions, with the understanding that you will
be the last questioner of Mr. Stevens.

Mr. SHERMAN: I appreciate that, Mr. Chairman and members of the Com-
mittee. My questions are brief and will only take two or three minutes at the

most, I believe.
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Mr. Stevens, you made reference yesterday to policy differences with some
of the bank’s western Canadian directors—differences between yourself and
your supporters on the board of directors and western Canadian directors. You
mentioned that some directors had expressed the feeling that BIF presence was a
negative factor in promoting the bank in western Canada and that some direc-
tors in fact had thought the parent company should sell some of its shares.

Were there any discussions between you and Mr. Coyne or between you and
some of _these directors with a view to correcting this so-called negative factor
and to give BIF more of a western image, more of a western presence?

Mr. SiNncLAIR M. STEVENS (President, British International Finance (Can-
ada) Limited): Yes, there were two or three suggestions made. I think I men-
tioned two of them already. One suggestion was a voting trust arrangement,
which would be the assigning of the voting rights to the Bank of Western Canada
shares that we owned to a western committee, and allow this committee—to be
named; there were no names mentioned—to have the right to vote these shares.

Another was that we could se'l a portion of our western interests, with a
view to strengthening the western image, and we indicated that such a sale
would be acceptable to us if we could find a partner that we felt had the same
basic concept for the future of the bank as we did, which would be a sound,
profitable, aggressive western bank.

A third suggestion—I think I maybe mentioned this too—was that I person-
ally move west because, being Chairman of the board, it would perhaps create
more of a western image.

There was the suggestion too that perhaps the head office of BIF could be
moved west; in other words, we are situated in Toronto and that it may appear
better if we moved the head office of BIF to some western centre.

As far as we were concerned—we listened to all these points—the chief
suggestion that we felt was very worthwhile to try to work on was the idea of
bringing in a western partner who would own a block of the Bank of Western
Canada shares. There were discussions to the degree that I know at least one
director has approached certain western people with a view to interesting them
in acquiring such a bock but to date I have pot heard that there is any interest.

Mr. SHERMAN: This was the second part of my question, to which I was
leading, Mr. Stevens. In other words, there were some efforts made to sell BIF
shares in western Canada.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. One of our directors specifically phoned. I know of one
possible buyer and possibly a second buyer. I think his main area of operation is
in Alberta. We felt that this group might be interested in buying an interest in
the bank, but they came back and said no, they would not be interested. I believe
the principal person in the group is already a bank director and he fe't that in
view of his present bank connections that would at least be one reason that they
would not be interested in buying a portion of the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. SHERMAN: In an attempt to resolve this conflict and confrontation is a
continuing effort of a concerted nature being made to sell BIF shares in western:
Canada?
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Mr. STEVENS: Yes, we have left our offer open. We are willing to negotiate
with any group in the west who would like to buy a portion of our shares in the
Bank of Western Canada. There have been no prices discussed. The suggestion
that was raised at the Board meeting of our selling at a market level which
would be, for example, a $3 loss, I think would be a very hard thing for us to
swa'low. We, I think, would expect that a partner would come in at at least the
issue price, which would be $15, to ensure that at least we did not take a loss for
having tried to develop the bank to the present point.

Mr. SHERMAN: Will the criterion be financial or philosophical?

Mr. STeEVENS: Well, financial, of course, will be very important, but by
philosophical I would say that we would hope that the partner would be one who
would feel that the Bank of Western Canada should be a very active, important
western institution. There are different ideas in banking. As I mentioned, there is
a savings banking type of approach but, as far as our group is concerned, we do
not feel that the savings bank approach is really the answer. That is something
more akin to what the trust companies are doing at the present time, and we
would like a truly commercial active bank in the west to try to do the service
that I think can be done out there.

Mr. SHERMAN: Thank you, Mr. Stevens. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: We have completed our questioning of Mr. Stevens and we
will now give Mr. Coyne an opportunity to complete his appearance before us.
We invited Mr. Stevens to make a statement on Tuesday evening. We are about
to begin a second round of questioning, and the first name I have on my list is Mr.
Fulton. Mr. Fulton, I leave it to you and Mr. Coyne whether you want to begin
asking questions immediately or whether you wish to invite Mr. Coyne to make
any initial comments he may have at this stage.

Mr. FurToN: I am in your hands, Mr. Chairman, whichever is agreeable.

The CHAIRMAN: If you have some initial comments, Mr. Coyne, I would
ask you to proceed, and then Mr. Fulton will begin the round of questioning.

Mr. JamESs F. CoyNe (President of the Bank of Western Canada): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. I do not think I will be very long. There are four points on
which I wanted to comment.

The first has to do with the overdue payment on the subscription of $2.25
million originally made by Canadian Finance and Investments Limited and
subsequently taken over as a liability by the Wellington Financial Corporation.
This subscription was part of the original financing arrangement for the bank
and was reported to committees of the Senate and the House of Commons as
part of the capital which would be available when the bank charter was
granted.

Mr. Stevens answered some questions by Mr. Thompson as to why the
remainder of the money had not been paid and indicated three reasons, all of
which seem to suggest that the non-payment was a deliberate policy on the part
of the Wellington Financial Corporation and not involuntary. I should say that
$250,000 out of the total subscription of $2.25 million was paid in September and
a further $550,000 was paid on January 4th, 1967 making a total of $800,000,
which left $1,450,000 still to be paid.

25702—4
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The first reason given by Mr. Stevens as to why the payment had not been
made was that two of his associates were disappointed in the policies or lack of
definite policies on the part of the bank. A second influence on their thinking, he
said, was that some directors indicated to them that the BIF association with the
bank was a negative factor and that it would be better if they sold some of their
stock. He said that this caused them to draw back.

The third reason, which may seem somewhat the same as the second, was
that they would have to use credit funds to make the payment and that they
would have to borrow it against their assets, so that they would really only be
warehousing the Bank of Western Canada shares until they were sold.

As I have said, this relates to a payment on a subscription which was part of
the basic financing of the bank. Statements were made in prospectuses to the
Senate and House of Commons committees that these subscriptions were being
made and that the funds would be available. The subscription was then made
formally in writing by the Canadian Finance and Investments Limited in, I
think, September, 1966. It was a written subscription, addressed to the bank,
after it had obtained its charter and was on the same terms as all other
subscriptions, namely, that the money would be paid at a date to be fixed by the
Board of Directors. That date was fixed at a meeting of the board of Directors in
Winnipeg on December 15th and 16th, 1966 on a motion which, I think, was
carried unanimously. All the other subscriptions of any consequence were paid
in full on the due date of January 3rd. There was a partial payment of $550,000
made on the Wellington subscription, as it then was, on January 4th, and it was
indicated that more would be paid later.

The suggestion that a subscriber, and particularly a charter member and
promoter of a company, should not indeed have to put in money at the same time
as other shareholders because he is not happy about some of the policies of the
company, is quite an unusual one. So far as the suggestion that the BIF people
would be asked to sell some of their stock is concerned, I do not believe that
came up for consideration until the January 20th meeting of the Board of
Directors or actually on January 19th, the day before, in an informal discussion
in a group known as the Executive Advisory Committee of the Board. By that
time the payment was two weeks overdue.

The second point that I would like "to comment on is with regard to the
request made at the meeting of December 16th, that loan facilities be made
available by the bank to the BIF group. I believe my account of those discussions
was correct and it is the account you would get from any of the independent
directors. I spoke to Mr. Brown of Vancouver on the telephone Tuesday night
and told him Mr. Stevens’ description of the discussion and he corroborated my
description of them.

Mr. Stevens mentioned to you the other day, as I did, the fact that during
the discussion on December 16th, Mr. Brown raised an objection, saying that it
was improper under section 75 of the Bank Act, if I have the section number
correct, for the BIF directors to be present while a loan to their company was
being discussed. Mr. Stevens suggested that the fact the discussion continued
shows it was not a discussion of a loan. The fact is that Mr. Brown renewed his
objection several times at intervals throughout the discussion. There can be no
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doubt that the independent directors understood it to be a request for a loan in a
Specific amount, or a line of credit in a specific amount, namely, $1,300,000. They
resisted that request; they spoke against it, and in the end the proposal in its
original form was withdrawn. I may say that subsequently in Toronto Mr.
Stevens and others in the BIF group pressed the whole idea on me several times
in the strongest terms, saying that the BIF group controlled the bank and was
entitled to get credit from its own bank, as Mr. Stevens said yesterday.

The third point I wish to comment on has to do with negotiations with the
Meadow Brook National Bank of West Hampstead, New York and other
American banks. Mr. Stevens indicated that his group had had negotiations and
lines of credit with New York banks before, with banks in the midwest and far
west of the United States and with banks in England. So far as I know, there was
never any borrowing done by British International Finance or Wellington Fi-
nancial from American or British banks for use in Canada. There may have been
loans by foreign banks to other BIF subsidiaries operating outside Canada, such
as Wellington Overseas Corporation in New York which buys South American

paper for resale to the United Sates banks.

The Meadow Brook deal was the first one, so far as I have ever heard,
designed to raise funds for BIF and Wellington Finance for use in Canada, and
this loan could not have been obtained if it were not for the correlative hookup
they were promised with Bank of Western Canada operations and with Bank of
Western Canada stock. Mr. William Mindlin, who was identified by Mr. Stevens
on Tuesday night as his agent for these negotiations in New York, attended the
directors meeting of BIF and Wellington in Toronto on February 1st and said:
(1) He had been trying for months to interest American banks in becoming
associated with Bank of Western Canada as an inducement to them to lend

money to British International Finance. (2) He could not have obtained a loan
from any American bank on the credit of BIF or Wellington Financial alone. He

would have been an idiot—that is his exact phrase—he said, to even try,
knowing the current position of affairs and the tight money situation.

Mr. MACKASEY: Could you speak more slowly, Mr. Coyne, please.

Mr. CoynE: Yes, I will try.

Thirdly, Mr. Mindlin had committed—his words—BIF and Wellington to the
deal, and included an option—his word and a word which he used again and
again—on stock in Bank of Western Canada held by Wellington Financial Cor-
poration amounting to 10 per cent of the total shares of the Bank of Western
Canada; and also an understanding that the American bank would be allowed to
Participate in large loans by the Bank of Western Canada, and in other ways be
associated with the management of the Bank of Western Canada.

This is to some extent corroborated by the press release issued yesterday by
the Meadow Brook National Bank, when they said that they had been holding
discussions for some months with officials of the Bank of Western Canada with a
view to various types of association. I subsequently sent them a telegram saying
that I did not know of any official of the Bank of Western Canada who had been
discussing matters with them, other than perhaps Mr. Stevens who, as Chairman
of the Board, had no authority to enter into such discussions or to use the name of
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the Bank of Western Canada. I wish to say, gentlemen, I believe that if these
facts about the participation of this American bank in the affairs of the Bank of
Western Canada had been declared to this Committee or to the Senate Com-
mittee in 1966 or in 1964, you would not have granted a charter to the Bank of
Western Canada.

) The fourth point I wish to deal with is a question of control of the bank and
its policy. We told Parliament that there would be a majority of directors from
western Canada. I said that and Mr. Stevens said that. Mr. Stevens has subse-
quently referred here and in public statements to these western directors as
having only $7,500 worth of stock, suggesting, apparently, that for that reason
they are not to be expected to exercise their own judgment but are to be
expected to yield to the views of the BIF group. That I consider to be also in
contravention of the assurances given to Parliament that this bank was to be
controlled and managed by a board of directors consisting of a majority from
western Canada.

Mr. Stevens says that British International Finance “should have an impor-
tant say’ in the policies and management of the bank. They should, of course,
have an opportunity to express their views, to explain them, and to argue the
case for them; but the constant suggestion that others must give way because the
British International Finance group controls, for the time being, over 50 per cent
of the stock, is a very different thing and not in accordance, I suggest, with the
indications given to Parliament.

The policies of the bank were outlined in some detail to Parliament before
the charter was granted and also in public statements by myself and others. I
have not changed my views. I outlined those views again at some length at the
first meeting of the Board of Directors of the Bank of Western Canada last
October. There is no doubt, I should think, as to what those policies are. There
has only been an attempt by the British International Finance group to put on a
power play to get a change in those policies for their own advantage, contrary to
the statements previously made to Parliament and to the public.

Gentlemen, I feel that this is a very important public matter, not just a
private matter. I believe the people of western Canada are not going to regard
this matter as a private fight between two,_groups of directors as to the policy or
the control of the policy of an unimportant private corporation, of no concern to
the public interest. This bank holds a franchise granted by you gentlemen and
your colleagues for a definite declared purpose, on the strength of statements
made, assurances given, and questions answered. It is for you to decide what
further action, if any, you wish to take in these matters to ensure that those
statements, assurances and answers are indeed fulfilled. You could perhaps take
action in the course of your considerations of the Bank Act and of the deposit
insurance corporation act to prevent the exercise of concentrated voting power
in the hands of one man or group of men who are not just voting their own
stock, which are very minor holdings in the bank, but stock for which funds
were supplied by the general public on very definite understandings as to how
this institution would be run.

An independent board of directors, acting conscientiously as trustees for the
whole body of shareholders and depositors and borrowers, would seem to me to
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be the best way to assure that the original declared character of the Bank of
Western Canada will be maintained and that special interests will not be allowed
to dominate it.

Mr. FurtoN: Mr. Coyne, with regard to the payment of subscriptions, which
has formed a part of your evidence both on Tuesday and today, there are
Provisions in the Bank Act itself which cover a situation arising when there is
non-payment of calls on shares or on subscriptions.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. Furron: Have any of these been instituted?

Mr. CoynE: I believe I dealt with that in reply to a question the other day,
Mr. Fulton. The subscriptions in this case are not quite the same as an ordinary
tSfpe of subscription where nothing is paid in until calls are made by the
directors. In this case all the subscriptions were intended to be fully paid and all
Were fully paid, with this exception, on a date which was fixed in accordance
With subscription agreements. Whether it is open to the bank to make calls in the
ordinary way or whether we must proceed upon a factual indebtedness of the
Subscriber, I think, is a matter on which we have to consult the lawyers.

. Mr. FuLTon: Yes, but that is a matter which lies within the authority of the
directors to determine.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. Furton: If they are in default then you can have a declaration so made
and then the normal consequences follow.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. That is right.

Mr. FurTon: But this surely is a matter which is internal, to the gx.tc_ent_ at
least that the directors have to decide on legal advice or on their own initiative
Wwhat to do.

Mr. CoynNE: All these matters are internal in the sense that somebody has to

take action on them, but I think they have considerable relevance to the public
Interest and to statements that were made in order to induce Parliament to

Provide a charter.
~ Mr. Furton: Yes, but the first question to be determined in this respect, sir,
1s whether there has been a default, and that has not been determined.

Mr. CoyNE: Oh, I cannot think that there is any doubt whatever about that.

Mr. Furton: If that is the view, I find it odd that this matter is being
rehearsed before this Committee instead of very immediate and pressing steps
being taken in accordance with what the Bank Act provides to remedy that
default or to have the consequences of that default applied.

Mr. CoyNE: The matter was put on the agenda for the Board of Directors
Meeting on January 20th. It was deferred to the end of the agenda at the request
of Mr. Stevens, for reasons which he has outlined, and in fact was never reached.
The board meeting had to adjourn rather hastily late in the day to enable people
to catch their plane home.

Mr. Furton: Well, I am tempted to make a comment that perhaps the
Mmatter was not regarded as all that important if the directors felt it more
important to catch their planes and go home. .
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Mr. CoyNE: Well, it was the eastern directors who had to catch their planes.
Mr. FuLToN: Where was the meeting held?

Mr. CoyNE: In Winnipeg.

Mr. FuLToN: I see. All the western directors stayed in Winnipeg, did they?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, until their planes—they were leaving two or three hours
later.

The CHAIRMAN: They had to catch a plane too.

Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. FuLTON: And are not western directors in the majority on the board?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. FuLTON: And they allowed the meeting to adjourn—

Mr. CoynNE: Well, they had some comments to make about it after.

Mr. FuLToN: —so that the eastern directors could catch their plane.

Mr. CoyNE: They had some comments to make about it afterwards, Mr.
Fulton, but this bank has not—

Mr. FurTon: I am talking about what was done, not what was said.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, but we did not start to hold meetings of the Board of
Directors on the basis of having battle lines drawn between two opposing armies.
Everybody was still hoping that a reasonable outcome could be reached on all
these matters.

Mr. FuLton: And I am sure that this Committee and the general public
hopes so too.

Mr. Coyne, I understand that you have no documentary evidence of the
submission, by Mr. Stevens or anyone else, of any improper proposals, contrary
to the statements made to the Senate or House Committees?

Mr. CoyNE: I have stated all the evidence that I have, I think, Mr. Fulton.
There was no exchange of writs or formal legal complaints, if that is what you
mean.

Mr. Furton: And no documentary evidence, really, of any sort of the
submission of any improper proposal—I am using “improper” in the sense of
being contrary to the assurances that were e made.

Mr. CoyNE: I am not sure what you mean by documentary evidence.

Mr. FuLTon: Minutes of meetings, a letter embodying a proposal, or any
other documents that would support the statements you have made.

Mr. CoyNE: Other than the statements I myself have made in writing, no.

Mr. FurLToN: And no other members of the group of western directors,
although I think you told us that four of them also had possible identity of
interest with the BIF group, have also considered it as yet, at any rate, necessary
to resign from their directorships in the BIF group?

Mr. CoyNE: I believe that they have or have started to. One man told him
that he had resigned from his connection with a BIF company and Mr. Stevens
had asked him to delay it.
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Mr. FurtoN: What other?
WereMr. CoynE: That is all I .know about it. I do not know where he st.ands.. They
Febr not on the two companies from which I made this particular resignation on
a oélary 1: None of them were directors either of British International Finance
& Welhngton Financial, which were the two companies engaged in the
rowing operation when they made these proposals to the American banks.

ev‘er' EULTON: In the course of your evidence, and indeed Mr. Stevens’
th1 ence, it appears that these differences of opinion—I will refer to them as
at—had been developing at least from December 13 until matters came to a
€ad on February 1 and 3.
Mr. CoynE: Yes.

Mr. Furron: Mi
thisdey hh? N: Might they have,

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

- Mr. Furton: In your view,
pol'e it, that it was a difference of opinion as
icy but that it involved things which, if they were done,
Positively improper?
Mr. CoyNE: That was what developed proba

:nd since then all these various things which have
head.

o Mr. Furton: Mr. Stevens told us yesterday that he had'

o tir’ any memorandum or piece of writing outlining your posl

Whi ese matters and your feeling as to the impropriety of proce
ich you say had been suggested. Is that correct?

@ Mr. CoyNE: That is certainly correct. I am not in the habit of writing let
People when I want to tell them what I think of their proposals.

o Mr. FuLToN: You did not consider, as President of the Bank of Western
aa{lada, that if you felt that there was emerging a line of action which was being
ctively advocated by a fellow director who was also Chairman of your board,
You should, in writing and in ample time, give warning of the consequences if it
Were pursued, and your position with respect to what you regarded as an

Mproper suggestion or course of action?

Mr. CoynE: I made my views Very well know.
Occasions in the most forceful language. I was not concerned with the building
Up of a file for the records, if that is what you mean, Mr. Fulton.

Mr. FurTon: No, I do not mean that. I would regard that the ordinary
Proper step for a president to take, who feels that improper conduct is being
Suggested, would be either to resign then and say, “I must resign if this is
?Ursued any further,” or to write a letter stating his position in an attempt

Ormally to prevent any repetition of what he regards as improper suggestions.

Mr. Coyng: Let us take the incidents, one by one. With regard to the

meeting on December 16, where the proposal was made for a line of credit of
13 million, that was the first time that that proposal in that form was made. I

indeed, been developing for a longer period

on the basis of your evidence, you felt not only, I
to the matter of ordinary routine
would be, in fact,

bly on and after December 13,
been described to you came to

never received a
tion with respect
eding in the way

ters

n to Mr. Stevens on several
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certainly made my views known in the presence of 15 directors of the bank.
Similarly, when I first heard about the transaction with Meadow Brook involving
the Bank of Western Canada at a meeting on February 1, I certainly made my
views know at a meeting of about 20 directors—15 anyhow—of Wellington and
British International Finance, and that night wrote out my resignation.

Mr. FuLTON: Between the 13th or 16th of December and the 1st of February,
I think you told us there had been a number of other either meetings of the
board or informal gatherings of several members at which, you told us, these
same matters had been discussed.

Mr. CoynNE: Yes. I do not think I mentioned any other meetings of boards of
directors; they would be meetings with the group of people associated with
British International Finance’s affairs.

Mr. Furton: I think you told us that these matters, particularly the rela-
tionship between B.L.F. and the Bank of Western Canada, had been discussed?

Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. FuLToN: Proposals which you felt were improper and contrary to the
assurances given to Parliamentary committees?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, and which I felt would greatly damage the ability of the
bank to do business with the people of western Canada. I thought that was a
matter which the parties concerned should give a great deal of attention to.

Mr. Furton: You did not deem it appropriate or necessary to state your
views in writing at any time until you made your resignation?

Mr. CoyNE: I did not state my views in writing, as far as I recall.

Mr. LeEBoE: I have a supplementary question, Mr. Chairman. Would these
matters not be in the recorded minutes of the meeting?

Mr. CoyNE: I think that at that time on December 16, everybody was so
embarrassed by what was happening that they rather hoped it would not be
recorded in the minutes in so far as no formal business was transacted.

Mr. LEBOE: Thank you.

Mr. Furron: I think that adds a point to my view, that it is rather extraordi-
nary that Mr. Coyne, finding it not in tle minutes and taking this very strong
view about the impropriety of it, did not fcllow what I think would have been
the normal course, writing a letter.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fulton, I think Mr. Laflamme may want to ask a
supplementary question.

Mr. LAFrLAMME: Yes, it is supplementary to the one asked by Mr. Leboe. Mr.
Coyne, is it not the responsibility of the secretary of the Board of Directors of
any bank to register the minutes of any discussions which took place?

Mr. CoyNE: He must, of course, record in the minutes, which are then
presented to the board at the next meeting for approval, any business that is
transacted. I believe in most companies there is considerable latitude as to
whether or not reports of discussions will be entered in the minutes. I think
usually they are not.
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Mr. LarLamMme: Do you agree, then, that this discussion was informal?
Mr. CovynE: No, sir. It did not lead to a formal action, a vote or a resolution.

_Mr. Furton: I think we had it in evidence earlier that the discussions, of
Which Mr., Coyne gave his version, were not recorded in the minutes and, in fact,
We had the actual minutes of that meeting read to us in whole or in part. It is
Partly on that basis that I say, first, there is no documentary evidence of
Improper suggestions. I asked Mr. Coyne why, if it was not recorded anywhere
and he takes this strong view of the impropriety of the suggestions in accordance
With his version, he did not take the step of writing and saying that these
Suggestions were made and “I must say that in my view they are improper and I
Want to record very strongly my attitude toward them.”

Mr. CoynE: I was already spending half my time in these discussions trying
to resist these suggestions and if I had started on that course at that time, Mr.
Fulton, I would have had to spend the rest of my time writing letters about it. I
do not think that is a very business-like way to go about these things.

Mr. Furton: All that we have at the moment is your testimony and your
Version against Mr. Stevens’ testimony and his version and impression of the
diScussions, and no minutes and no writing to support your suggestion that what
You regard as improper suggestions were actually made.

) Mr. CoynE: Up to now, I and Mr. Stevens are the only people you have
Invited to attend here.

Mr. MackASEY: May I ask a supplementary question?
Mr. FurTon: That is all I have.

Mr. Mackasey: Although there were no minutes kept, as far as you are
Concerned, this conversation or these suggestions were made in front of 15

directors?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes, of whom at least seven have discussed it subsequently with
Me and corroborated their views.

Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Coyne, I notice tpat
you are laying great stress on Mr. Stevens’ dealings with American banking
Interests and I find it rather difficult to understand your concern in this matter
When I refer to the evidence of March 3, 1966, when there was considerable
discussion as to whether or not it would be possible for the control of the Bank of
Western Canada to fall into foreign hands Your Parliamentary Agent, Mr. E.
Gordon Blair, had this to say on page 111 of March 3, 1966:

This whole matter of the shareholdings in the company is dealt with
in clause 5 of the proposed bill, and the main effect of this clause—and I
think I can summarize it—is that the non-resident shareholdings in the
company in the aggregate amount cannot total more than 10 per cent.
Then, there is in subsection 8 of the clause a definition of non-resident
which not only includes a natural person who is not a resident of Canada
but also any corporation which is by any means whatsoever under the
control of a non-resident of Canada. So, to the fullest extent possible
provision has been made here for prohibitions against transfers of shares
which would have the effect of transferring more than 10 per cent of the
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share capital of this company to non-resident natural persons or to
corporations which are controlled by non-residents.

Mr. Coyne, I do not see any record here suggesting that you disagree with
this viewpoint of Mr. Blair’s that a 10 per cent transfer to foreign ownership
would be acceptable and proper.

Mr. CoyNE: No. This clause was put in to limit foreign ownership to that
percentage or, as it will be under the new Bank Act, perhaps 25 per cent, which
will supersede our charter. That will operate through all time and will apply to
all non-residents. Up to that time we had been very careful to assure Parliament
that we were not interested in bringing non-residents into the bank, although we
recognized some provision would be made that in due course they could buy
shares in the open market. But we took special precautions, as was quoted
yesterday, that no non-resident would be associated with it prior to incorpora-
tion. I am sure we left the impression with this Committee that our group were
not in the least interested in bringing in non-residents either as owners of stock
or of sharing the control or of participating in the management or operations of
the bank. I think that to have this happen before the stock has even been fully
paid for, before the bank has even opened its doors—to serve some special
purpose, whatever it was of the BIF group—was a very surprising thing, indeed,
and one which, if you had been told about it a year ago, you would certainly
have had something to say.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I do not notice that any-
body on the Committee objected to Mr. Blair’s summation of the position—

Mr. CoynNE: No.
Mr. CAMERON: —that it would be permissible to sell 10 per cent of the stock.

Mr. CoyNE: It would be permissible for non-residents to acquire, which is a
different thing, perhaps, than for the organizing group to go out and sell it to
them.

The CHAIRMAN: Where else would they get it?

Mr. CoyNE: The shares have been traded on the market in large volume for
two or three years now.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): They could only come on
the market if they were sold by those who own them.

Mr. CoynNE: Which would include the general body of shareholders, of
course.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes.

Mr. CoynE: I am sorry; the Trustee Subscription Certificates could not be
sold to non-residents. Once the general body of shareholders get shares in the
bank in place of those Trustee Certificates, then they can be sold to anyone.
When the transfers are presented to the Board of Directors for approval they
have to see that not more than 10 per cent goes into the hands of non-residents. I
may say that if 10 per cent goes into the hands of one non-resident as the result
of a sale by one group, then no other resident could sell shares to any non-resi-

dent so long as this clause applies.
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Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Could I ask a supplementary question? If Mr.
St.evens sold 20 per cent of his shares to this bank in the United States and he
still retained 30 per cent, would that not give him control up to the time that the
Stock was distributed?

Mr. CovynE: He was talking of selling 10 per cent of the bank’s stock and
Would then retain 40 per cent.

Mr. McLEeAN (Charlotte): He has to tell 20 per cent of his because he owns
only 50 per cent.

Mr. CoynE: That is so, but the 20 per cent is not deducted from the 50
p}?‘ cent. What is deducted from the 50 per cent is 10 per cent of the bank’s
Shares,

. Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Yes, but does the American bank, together with
his stock, not control the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, according to that.
_ Mr. McLEaN (Charlotte): And he is in agreement with the bank in the
United States that they would take control?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes—well, together they would.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Yes.

Mr. CaMmERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, if I may
Complete this. The substance of Mr. Coyne’s charge is that these negotiations, if
they were negotiations, with American banks were in contravention of assur-
ances given to the Banking Committee, but the only assurance I see is the
assurance that the bill will limit any such transfer to 10 per cent.

. Mr. Coyne: I am sorry. That is not the only reference; that is the legal
Situation, and the clause that was being brought in by amendment of the
bill—angd 1 am sorry but I cannot give you chapter and verse; I am relying only
On my memory that this matter was raised in the Senate Committee and, I
believe, in this Committee too.

The CHAIRMAN: It would be very helpful if you could give us references.

Mr. CoyNE: I am sorry, I cannot, because I have not been able to go back and
Tead through the whole thing.

The CHAIRMAN: It is a factor, sir, if I may—

Mr. CoyNE: I leave it to the recollection of the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: It is a factor, sir, that a group, represented by yourself and
Mr. Stevens, asked this Committee to incorporate in the bill amendments which
Would make it quite possible and permissible for 10 per cent of the shares of
the Bank of Western Canada to be held by non-residents. Is that not a fact?

Mr. CoyNE: May I just put it slightly differently? But for that clause,
non-residents could have bought all the stock in the bank. The purpose of that
clause was to limit and severely restrict the amount of non-resident holdings that
there must be, and I think it was given, and this clause was proposed by us, to
Meet the concern expressed by some members of the Senate and the House of
Commons that there was this danger of non-resident control of the bank.
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Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Then, Mr. Coyne, I must
ask you this question. If you feel so strongly about the possibility of 10 per cent
falling into foreign hands, why did you not propose a clause in the bill that
would prohibit all non-resident holdings? It does seem to me that when you

mention 10 per cent, the implication is quite clear that you would accept that
as acceptable.

Mr. CoynE: I never contemplated that it would be 10 per cent in any one
hand at that time, Mr. Cameron; I never contemplated that the 10 per cent would
be offered to them by the founding group; and I never contemplated that the
10 per cent would be offered in the course of negotiations of the character that
these negotiations took.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I find it rather difficult to
understand your position. I would like to ask you something else, Mr. Coyne. My
concern in this matter—and I am sure it is the concern of all the members of the
Committee—is not so much with the internal fight within your organization
but with the effect that the revelation of this struggle may have on publiC
confidence in financial institutions in Canada. As I am sure you know, I hold
no particular brief for the various types of financial institutions we have had
described to us and if I had my way I would abolish all of them tomorrow.
But, neverthless, they are part of the present financial structure of Canada
and I think we have to accept the fact that we must, as far as possible, main-
tain public confidence in them.

I would like to ask you this question, Mr. Coyne. Why did you consider it
necessary to, shall I say, withdraw the hem of you garment with such a flourish
of trumpets? Why did you have to have a press release announcing to the whole
world that you were resigning your position with these companies which togeth-
er hold the majority shares of the new bank? What was your purpose in doing
so? I ask you these questions because I am sure you must have realized that the
possible effect would be extremely damaging on the confidence of the public in
institutions which were the major shareholders of your bank. Why was it
necessary to do it in this way?

Mr. CoyNE: I gave the reason in my original statement, that I thought this
was a matter of urgent public concern and that the public should be informed on
it; and I say now that it would have heen improper and a conflict of duty
improperly resolved if I had not resigned from those companies in all the
circumstances which had arisen. I do not feel that directors should simply resign
quietly when they do not like something and not have anybody know that they
have resigned or have people wondering, perhaps, about the reasons for their
resignation, and possibly imputing entirely wrong reasons to that action which
could have been much more damaging.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I have no means of es-
timating what damage you may have done.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think I have done any damage.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): You may not have done
any.

Mr. CoyNE: No.
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Mr. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): But I think the danger
Wasg deﬁnitely there.

: Mr. Coyne: I think the damage would have been much greater if I had not
ONe what I did do. It would have been damage in that case to the public interest
and to the interests of the shareholders and others concerned.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Of the Bank of Western Canada.
Mr, CoyNE: And of the other companies, too.

for Mr. CamEeron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): That is all I have to ask
now,

m The CHAIRMAN: The next name on my list is Mr. Mackasey, unless he was
€rely attempting to ask a supplementary question.

. M., MAckasEY: That is all I was attempting to do. I did want to have Mr.
(I)v‘rmdlin identified a little better, Mr. Coyne. Was he an officer of the BIF group
T 'Was he in the employ of an American group?
Mr. Coyneg: He was identified and his name was given by Mr. Stevens, not
by me, I believe he is either President or Vice-President of Wellington Overseas
oTPoration which is a subsidiary probably of Wellington International Bank,
though I am not sure of that either, which, in turn, is controlled by British
International Finance.
Mr, MacrASEY: Mr. Coyne, one of the reasons for your bank—and it is a
very logical one—is that we need more Canadian controlled chartered banks in
Ahada, and the banks need more competition. Mr. Stevens inlfe.rred that_ there is
2 8reat lack of competition and, in fact, that there was a conspiracy against BIF
Y the Canadian chartered banks which was reflected in a greatly restricted line
Of credit to the BIF group. I suggest that you, as a director of the BIF, should
ave known about this form of discrimination by the other chartered banks.

Mr. CoyNE: I knew that Mr. Stevens had arranged some lines of credit and
haq tried to arrange others, and that certain changes were made in the lines of
credit he haq arranged. There were changes both up and down at various times.

€ bank that was not identified the other day at one time increased the credit
faf?llities available to these companies from a previous figure of $5 million to $10
lion, They later reduced it substantially. As to whethgr there was any
Conspiracy, I never believed that. Mr. Stevens used to complain about the banks
€0sing down on him because of the Bank of Western Canada; he used to
fomplain about the bond dealers having done things which he did not like; he
Sed to complain about a 1ot of people who he felt were causing difficulties. You
annot get into violent arguments with a man every time he expresses an
OPinion, or you might as well start writing letters to him. e
. Mr. Mackasey: But he did express his opinion. At least he was sincere in his
behef in that he did express his opinion openly to you.

Mr. CoyNE: There was never any opinion expressed, and I do not think he

®Xpressed it yesterday, that there was a conspiracy among the banks. I do not
Ink that was ever said.

Mr. MackASEY: It was certainly implied. I am not suggesting there was; I

Would just like to know if there was.
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Mr. CoyNE: I do not think that word was used.

Mr. MACKASEY: We are labouring under the handicap that we do not have
the transcript, which is no fault of the Committee. Certainly Mr. Stevens did
leave the impression with the Committee—and if anybody in the Committee
would like to contradict me I would accept their version of it—and I will not use
the word “conspiracy”—that all the Canadian chartered banks coincidentally,
from the moment it became apparent that the BIF group was interested in the
Bank of Western Canada, conveniently reduced his line of credit down to
$250,000.

Mr. CoyNE: I think that you are doing an injustice to what Mr. Stevens said
in that respect. I do not believe he said “from the moment that it became
apparent that BIF were interested in the Bank of Western Canada” because that
became apparent in December 1963, when an announcement was made. Then
there were applications to parliament, where the matter became very clear; and
during this period there were financial arrangements made and Mr. Stevens, on
two occasions, said to Parliamentary committees that he had adequate banking
arrangements, and that included up to last March 1966.

Mr. MAckASEY: The point I am getting at, Mr. Coyne, is that it would be an
awful dog in the manger attitude if the existent Canadian chartered banks were
to try to do anything to impede the progress of the western bank, either directly
or indirectly; indirectly by curtailing the activities of the BIF group, and this is
what has concerned me basically.

Mr. CoyNE: I am not sure that I agree that any institution such as BIF has a
right to expect that people must lend money to it. That could be affected by a lot

of circumstances. Perhaps they should carry on their affairs in such a way that
they do not depend on borrowed money or, at any rate, on bank borrowings.

Mr. MackaseY: Up to what date were you a director of the BIF group?

Mr. CoyNE: Until February 1-—of the BIF company itself.

Mr. MACKASEY: So you obviously expressed this opinion internally on differ-
ent occasions?

Mr. CoyNE: On different occasions, but it did not arise in quite that way, Mr.
Mackasey. -

The CHAIRMAN: Have you completed your questions, Mr. Mackasey?

The MACKASEY: Yes, I have, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: The next name I have on my list is Mr. Latulippe. Actually
he had signified his desire to be on the second round of questions the evening
before last.

Mr. LarLaMME: At this point, Mr. Chairman, I want to raise a point of
order. I would like to know if we are going to continue this kind of discussion for
the rest of the day. We already have had one full day of discussions which has
been very useful to us. However, we have before us the Canada Deposit Insur-
ance Corporation reference which is much more important than deciding who is
wrong and who is right in this internal dispute. I, for one, really believe that we
will not gain much if we continue in this way. In my view, that is not why we
are here.
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The CHARMAN: Mr. Laflamme, I think you have raised a point which
already has been alluded to on other occasions, both by other members of the
Committee and myself. I personally want to thank you for raising it again. I
S'C‘I_‘essed at the outset that we invited these gentlemen here because of what they
might have to say with respect to the responsibility given to us by Parliament
With respect to the legislation referred to us. It was within this rather limited
ambit that we wanted to hear from them and question them. While it may be
that many others here would like to continue this discussion on it for some
length—there are many aspects that might be of interest to probe into for other
reasons—I would invite the Committee to consider whether or not they feel we
have gone far enough with respect to getting information to assist us in our
deliberations imposed upon us by Parliament.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask just one
Question.

The CuatrRMAN: Before I get to that I want to make a suggestion. We have
the Minister of Finance with us; he has just arrived. The idea was that after we
had had some opportunity to hear from these two gentlemen we would invite
him to make any comments he felt he had in the light of the information that we
derived from questioning these people, and then we would invite him to continue
With us on the deposit insurance bill which has been referred to us, with a view
to attempting to complete our consideration of it and to report back to the House
before beginning and hopefully completing our clause-by-clause consideration of
the banking legislation.

Mr. LEBOE: On this point of order, Mr. Chairman, should not Mr. Latulippe
be allowed to proceed?

The CHAIRMAN: That is exactly what I was going to suggest. I was going to
Suggest that since Mr. Latulippe had, in fact, asked for an opportunity to ask
Some questions Tuesday evening, we should recognize Mr. Latulippe, and then
excuse both Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens and invite the Minister to appear before
us.

~ Mr. CoyNE: I understand that you will then be through with me. Is that
right, Mr. Chairman?

The CualRMAN: That appears to be the view of the Committee.

Mr. CoyNE: That is what I had hoped because when you asked me if I could
stay over until today I arranged to do so, but I have to leave in another hour.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask one question.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. McLean, I will recognize Mr. Latulippe first, followed
by yourself for your single question.

(Translation)
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe.

Mr. LATULIPPE: Mr. Chairman, I had many questions to ask, but since
Many members have asked many questions I had intended to ask, so as to not
Tepeat the same questions, I will just keep to the main questions of bank policy.
I gather, as do other members of the Committee, that the conflict between Mr.
Coyne and Mr. Stevens, or the BIF, stems from the December 16 meeting of the
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Board of Directors of Westbank. BIF and York Lambton Corporation would have
requested funds from Westbank. I think it is especially on that question that
there is misunderstanding, and if I refer to the main prineiples of banking, I find
that the Bank Act may prohibit a bank from lending to a director,
but it does not prohibit lending to an institution of which the bank
director is also a director. If a bank can create money at the rate of twelve to
one, it is for one’s own benefit and for the benefit of one’s companies that one
becomes a director. Is this not, therefore, a normal situation? Why should these
institutions and these gentlemen be prohibited—why not allow them all, all bank
directors, as is the case for all other banks in Canada, to benefit from the laws
and regulations and policies of banking? This is an example: The President of
the Royal Bank of Canada is also a director of more than twenty companies, very
important companies. Is he prohibited from lending to the Royal Bank or to
these corporations? When we were discussing the formation of the Bank of
Canada in 1934 in the Finance Committee of the day, it was shown that the
President of the Bank of Montreal, Sir Charles Gordon, was a director of
Dominion Textile and that the Bank of Montreal was lending five million dollars
do Dominion Textile. This is the same thing that these gentlemen are trying to
do. Other instance: On the same occasion, when the Bank of Canada was created
in 1934—Mr. Coyne is aware of this—it was proved that the Royal Bank was
lending to Consolidated Paper more than $14 million. A huge sum for the time.
The President, Sir Herbert Holt, was a director of Consolidated Paper.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe, perhaps you have given enough detail to
clarify your question. And the Committee would like to get an answer from our
witness if he thinks he can add anything to the ideas you have unfolded before
the Committee.

Mr. LATULIPPE: As a conclusion, Mr. Chairman, I think we should leave
Westbank lend money to the companies whose directors are also directors of a
bank. This goes on everywhere, and the privilege to create money twelve to one
would benefit them and their corporations, and not only their competitors. If the
bank allows $12 million to be loaned on the extent of $1 million, it is most
interesting for those who belong to a bank and for those who create banks. So, if
the law allows all other institutions to benefit from these privileges and to have
the privilege of creating credit twelve to one, it seems that this same advantage
should be allowed to other institutionswand they should be given the same
privileges as any other banking institution in Canada. Otherwise, the Act would
have to be changed.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Latulippe.

(English)
Mr. Coyne have you anything to tell us about these interesting questions?

Mr. CoynNE: I think the question was why the Bank of Western Canada
would not make large loans to its directors or their companies if other banks do
s0. One reason, perhaps, would be that the Bank of Western Canada will only be
making small loans. It does not have the resources to make very large loans and
for many years it will not have the ability to make large loans. But the main
reason, and the one which I have given here and in public is that Parliament was
told that loans would not be made by the Bank of Western Canada to any
companies in the British International Finance group.
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% Mr. GrEGOIRE: But the Committee is now expressing another opinion, Mr.
oyne.

Mr. CoynE: I have not heard it that way, Mr. Grégoire.
The CHAIRMAN: He means the members of the Committee.

. Mr. Coyne: I thought he was asking me for my answer to why I thought
this should not be done. Does that answer your question?

The CHaRMAN: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Coyne.

(Translation)
The CHAIRMAN: Do you have any more questions, Mr. Latulippe?
Mr. LaTuLippe: No, Sir.

(English)
The CHAIRMAN: Dr. McLean, you have a single question.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Yes, I have a single question. In his evidence Mr.
Stevens mentioned the name of a Mr. Bernard.

Mr. CoynE: Yes.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Is he an employee of the western bank?
Mr. CoynNE: Yes.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Who engaged him?

Mr. CoyNE: Mr. Cutts, the general manager.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): That is, the western bank engaged him?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Was he an employee of the BIF?

Mr. CoyNE: No.
Mr. McLEaN (Charlotte): He was not?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens for adgiing to our
already sizeable store of information which we hope to be able to bring to bear,
In short order, on our consideration of the banking legislation, with the hope that
it will be available to the public before the present law expires on April 1.

I would now invite the Minister of Finance to come forward.

Mr. SINCLAIR STEVENS (Chairman, Bank of Western Canada): Mr.‘Chair-
Mman, I was asked, immediately following the session last night, to clarify one
boint. I hope I have not misled the Committee in the sense that a represen.tatlve
from the Bank of Montreal asked me to clarify that that bank was not loaning us
any money at the present time. When I itemized the various panks, I was
indicating the banks that we presently were dealing, not necessarily the banks
that are loaning us money. The Bank of Montreal does handle clearing facilities
for us in one of our companies but they, in fact, are not loaning us money at the
Present time. I said that I would make that clear to the Committee today.

25702—5
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The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Stevens. Gentlemen, you may stand down
and follow the proceedings in a more relaxed manner in another part of the
room.

I have invited the Minister to come forward. I believe that the Committee
has agreed that we will hear from him first with respect to this issue in the light
of the information we have derived, following which we will begin our consider-
ation of the deposit insurance bill. I understand from the Inspector General that
the Superintendent of Insurance is not, as yet, with us and there are certain
amendments he may want to present to us. That being the case we may agree
that we would not being our actual consideration of the deposit insurance bill
until the afternoon session. I believe this would be more convenient to all
concerned.

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sharp, do you have any introductory comments to
make to us about this Westbank matter insofar as it may pertain to the legisla-
tive authority either of this Committee, Parliament or your own responsibilities
as Minister.

The Hon. M. SHARP (Minister of Finance): Mr. Chairman, I have no prelimi-
nary comments to make. I would be very happy to answer any question that the
members of the Committee may have arising out of the testimony given by Mr.
Coyne and Mr. Stevens.

The CHAIRMAN: I will ask the members to signify to me in the usual way. I
see that Mr. Mackasey has indicated his desire to ask a question. I hope the
others will not be shy so that we will not have any question as to who is being
recognized and when. I now see Mr. Cameron, followed by Mr. Fulton.

Mr. MAcCKASEY: I have one or two questions. Mr. Sharp, there has been
considerable reference made here to a Treasury Board order pertaining to the
Bank of Western Canada. At any time were you contacted directly for an
interpretation of what this Treasury Board order really meant?

Mr. SHARP: No, Mr. Chairman. As I said in the House of Commons, in reply
to similar questions yesterday, I volunteered some comments upon the meaning
of that order and about the conditions under which I might exercise my discre-
tion, but I was not asked for such an inter_;)retation.

Mr. MAckASEY: Would you like to volunteer those comments again, right
now?

Mr. SHARP: Yes. The terms of this order prohibit the Bank of Western
Canada, directly or indirectly, from making any of its funds available to any of
the preferred shareholders without the prior approval of the Minister of Finance.
The terms of the order make it clear, I believe, and if there is any doubt about it
I am clarifying the point now, that such approval was intended to be given only
under very special circumstances or very exceptional circumstances. If I were
asked—which I have not been—to approve an exception I would only give my
consent if I were satisfied that there was no risk of loss to the bank, either its
creditors or its shareholders.

Mr. MackaseY: Could you give us an example of a very exceptional circum-
stance?
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Mr. Suarp: May I give an additional explanation that may help to explain
Why there is any discretion in the order at all.

The terms of this order, of necessity, were not drawn to deal with a specific
10Wn transaction but designed to cover a wide range of possible situations that
might develop at some time in the future. In addition, the words “directly or
Indirectly” are included in the prohibition section. The result is that the order
Prohibits a much wider range of transactions than the statements of intention
Which were made in committee by the applicants for a charter. It was felt that
the language used might be found, on some occasions, to create a legal roadblack
to a transaction to which no reasonable objection could be taken, either because
of its nature or the fact that it was a very small transaction, and it seemed,
tl'lel’e'fore, desirable that there should be some element of flexibility in the
arrangements.

Mr. GrEGoIRE: May I ask a supplementary?

The CHaRMAN: Would you yield for a supplementary question, Mr.
ackasey?

Mr. Macgasey: Surely.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Sharp, you would then agree to any transactions between
the Bank of Western Canada and BIF under the condition—and you would have
to assure yourself of this—that there would be no loss for the shareholders or the
Clients of the bank? Would that be the only problem you would take into
Consideration?

Mr. SHARP: That is right. I want to make it clear, however, that the
Prohibition in the law to which there is some exception which I can grant, was
Intended, in fact, to prevent loans from the Bank of Western Canada to the
Preferred shareholders. That was the intent and that is the spirit in which the
order will be administered.

Mr. Mackasey: In other words, sir, if there was a change of }_xeart or a
change of policy by the directors of the majority shareholders or the dlrector:_s of
?he western bank, this safeguard is built in to protect the average small depositor
1 Canada who would buy shares in the western bank?

Mr. FuLton: Mr. Sharp, you used a word which I expect you would like
to correct, You said to preve’nt loans to preferred ‘“‘shareholders”—I think you
Meant preferred “subscribers”.

Mr. SHarp: Is that what they are called in the order, Mr. Fulton? Are they
called subscribers?

Mr. FuLTon: Yes.

Mr. SuARP: I am sorry; the word “subscribers” is in the order but “share-
holderg» they now are. They were then subscribers and they are now sharehold-
ers,

Mr. MackasEy: Mr. Chairman, I will leave this for your decision because I
M not sure that this is the appropriate time to make this comment. I was
Intrigued at the description of a transaction whereby financial institutions can
Obtain loans at the rate of 8 per cent, but I am not sure that this is the
aPpropriate time to bring it up. I will leave this decision in the hands of the

2570253
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Chairman and if he decides it is, I would like to get your view points on this type
of transaction. I do not know if you are familiar with it but Mr. Chairman is. Do
you think this is an appropriate time to ask this question, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: Certainly we are engaged in a general consideration of
matters which may assist us in reporting to the House on the Bank Act. This
transaction has awakened quite a bit of interest on the part of the Committee but
I think that we should, first, assure ourselves that Mr. Sharp is familiar with the
exact item we are discussing.

I believe that you were referring to the information given us by Mr.
Stevens, that his BIF group obtained funds from the chartered banks through
the sale and re-purchase of security in a way which he claims reflected the cost
of borrowing of 8 per cent. Have I summarized the—

Mr. MACKASEY: Yes; I am not concerned about the 8 per cent; I am
concerned about the fact that somewhere along the transaction these assets are
temporarily completely in the possession of the bank. I am not too concerned if
banks are involved, but I am just wondering about the propriety, or the wisdom,
in view of some of the problems we have had with financial institutions. I am not
referring to BIF, because Mr. Stevens assured us that his transactions had been
completed in both directions. I am a little concerned, however, about the wisdom
of this type of transaction when it takes place between groups such as the BIF
group and other organizations rather than between chartered banks.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, as Minister, I have a general rule that I do not
answer hypothetical questions.

Mr. MackAsEY: When they cease to be hypothetical you have to answer
them, sometimes unfairly.

Mr. SHARP: Yes; but I would like to see the transaction. As I understand it,
this was not in breach of the law in any way.

Mr. MACKASEY: I am being unfair to the BIF group, because I am not too
concerned about that particular transaction; but I am concerned about this
particular type of operation that I gather goes on.

The CHAIRMAN: May I interject at this time? I think it is quite in order to
ask Mr. Sharp, as you yourself have suggested, what are his views on the
transaction that actually took place in"so far as it may have contravened
government policy or government legislation. However, to ask him to deal with
hypothetical questions puts him in a position of having to contravene his own
rule of thumb, which I think is quite sound.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I have no intention of answering questions of a
hypothetical character. I say this to Mr. Mackasey as a friendly colleague in the
House of Commons.

Mr. MackAsSeEY: I hope that you do not interpret my questions as being
unfriendly. I am concerned about the average depositor, who does not buy bank
shares, but who puts his money in finanecial institutions, with which we have had
some unfortunate incidents, as you are aware.

You have also expressed your opinion, quite properly, that you fully intend,
as Minister of Finance, to close every possible loophole that makes these invest-
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mer}ts speculative. I consider that this could possibly be one type of transaction
against which the Canadian people should be safeguarded: FYE BT e

! I am not an expert in the field. May I just finish by asking if you would look
Into this specific transaction to see if it can be a potential source of danger to the
average depositor in an institution if it is applied more widely?

Mr. SHARP: To that question I will give an unequivocal Yes.

Mr. Mackasey: In view of that, I will gladly hand over the questioning to
Someone else.

The CHARMAN: I have on my list Mr. Cameron, followed by Mr. Fulton and
Mr. Monteith.

Mr. CamEeron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, Mr.
Mackasey has asked the questions that I was going to ask. However, there is one

that T would ask. I do not know if the Minister will call it hypothetical, but I do
not think it is, :

- In view of the developments that have taken place I was wondering if the
Minister is still happy at having included his discretionary powers in the
Teasury Board order? )

. Mr. SHARP: Yes, Mr. Chairman; if I had to do it over again, even after the
dlScussions that have taken place here, I would still include this discretionary
Power; because, as I said, the order was drawn up in a much more comprehen-
Slve way than even had been contemplated by the sponsors of this bank when
they applied for a charter.

We wanted to be sure that we did include all kinds of transactions, whether
they took place directly or indirectly; and that being so, since we could not
Orecast all the kinds of transactions that might occur, it seemed to us essential
at the Minister of Finance should be able to approve of transactions that had
No adverse effect, either upon the public interest or upon the seculjity of
€positors in that bank, or of its shareholders.

Mr. Camzrron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And is it only for those
five clauses of the Treasury Board order were drafted you considered that those
Consisted of undesirable transactions?

Mr. Suarp: I did.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): And it is only for t_hose
Undesirable transactions that you have discretionary powers to grant exemption?

Mr. SuARP: Yes; because the terms are so broad that to have prohibited
évery transaction of this kind, whether it took place directly or indirectly, might
ave imposed an undesirable restriction upon the activities of the bank. And, as I
Say, if I had to do it over again, notwithstanding the revelations, or the testimo-
1y, I would do the same thing again. I believe that it is in the public interest that,
€re should be some discretion.

Mr. CamEeroNn (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Thank you, that is all.

Mr. Furton: Mr. Sharp, the Bank of Western Canada now has a charter, of

Which the Treasury Board minute No. 658534, which has been referred to is a
Part? 3 p
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Mr. SHARP: You will recognize, sir, that this is made pursuant to the
charter—made in accordance with its terms.

Mr. FuLToN: And by the provisions of the Bank Act the bank has to operate
within the limits of the Treasury Board minute; because an order of this sort is
contemplated by the Bank Act.

Mr. SHARP: That is right.

Mr. FuLToN: My point is that, when issued, it becomes in effect a part of the
over-all charter, or limits, within which the bank can operate?

Mr. SHARP: I agree.

Mr. FuLTON: Have you had from the Inspector General, or have you heard,
as a result of the evidence given in this committee, any report which would
suggest to you that the Bank of Western Canada is operating outside of, or in
contravention of, its charter in the sense which I have used the word “charter”.

Mr. SHARP: No; the Inspector General of Banks has given me no such report.

Mr. FuLTOoN: As a result of reports to you of the evidence given here have
you any reason to believe that the bank is operating, or attempting to operate,
outside the limits of its charter?

Mr. SHARP: I can only answer the first part of the question. I have no
information that it was operating outside of the terms of its charter. Certainly if
it did attempt to do so those efforts would be frustrated. I have no reason to
believe that it is even attempting to do so.

Mr. FurToN: Have you heard, or had reported to you, with respect to the
evidence given in this committee, anything which, in your opinion, as the
responsible minister, calls for action by any public authority, including Parlia-
ment?

Mr. SHARP: I do not think, Mr. Chairman, that I would recommend, as a
result of any evidence reported to me, any action by Parliament. The Inspector
General of Banks, however, has taken some precautionary steps of which I
approved. Perhaps the committee might be interested in knowing what those are,
and I will ask the Inspector General of Banks to speak on this matter. He is
under a prohibition about talking in public about his activities, but I have
authorized him to make a statement. k:

The CHaRMAN: I think that is quite in order.
Mr. Scort: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

On the 24th of January, 1967 I had made a complete inspection of the books
and records of the Bank of Western Canada. I found the bank to be in a perfectly
sound financial condition.

Subsequent to that I made arrangements to receive a detailed weekly
report of the assets and liabilities of the bank, which I have been receiving and
which continue to indicate that the bank is in a perfectly sound financial
condition.

Following these statements by certain directors of the bank, indicating that
there was a serious difference of view on how the bank should operate, I
requested the president of the bank to confine the investment and reinvestment
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of the bank’s moneys to short-term government of Canada securities and depos-
its with chartered banks. This is, of course a short-term approach to the
Problem until this situation is clarified.

; I ft.1rther asked that any commitments on expenditures to be made during
this period should be restricted to the anticipated rate of earnings on the present
funds of the bank, again as a short-term approach.

Mr. FuLToNn: Mr. Sharp, you told us that nothing that you have heard would
lead you to make any recommendations to Parliament, or to this Committee, and
éVe now have a report of the precautionary measures taken by the Inspector

eneral.

What would be your answer to my suggestion to you that surely now the
most important thing for the Board of Directors of the bank is to solve these
Problems and get on with the operation of the bank as a bank serving western
Canada, while we turn our attention to other matters here?

Mr. SHARP: Without taking sides in this issue, Mr. Chairman, I am inclined
to agree. I believe that the most useful thing that could happen now would be for
(tilile Bank of Western Canada to begin operating and to settle its internal

Sputes.

I am very much interested, as a former westerner in having another
Chartered bank and I would like to see it owned as extensively as possible in
Western Canada. I am not, as Minister of Finance, in a position to recommend its
shares, however.

The CHAIRMAN: One way or another.

Mr. SHARP: One way or another. I do believe that it would be a useful
addition to the number of the chartered banks to have one that felt that it had a
Special place as a bank of western Canada, with a special interest in the problems
of that part of Canada.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr, Chairman, I do not know whether or not you will rule
“_lis hypothetical, but evidence was given by Mr. Stevens to the effect that con-
Sideration had been given at a meeting at some stage to whether or not it might
be advisable for the new bank to buy the assets of Simcoe Finance, I think it is
called, which has a consumer-loan business.

The evidence was that the discussion apparently hinged on whether or not
this would be a good business for the bank to be in. It had been suggested that
1t would be the nucleus of a consumer-owned business to be run by the bank,
Which most other banks do run.

I was wondering in an instance like this, if you would care to express an
Opinion on whether or not this would come within the terms of section 2(f) of
the Treasury Board minute as something that would be logical for the bank to
do, commencing business as it is?
by Mr. SuARp: Mr. Chairman, to some extent this is also a hypothetical ques-

ion.

Perhaps I could go as far as to say that it would not, I think, be contrary to
any sound principles of management for such a transaction to be approved. I
Would want to be satisfied, however, about the exact nature of the portfolio that
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was being taken over by the bank. The reason for my saying that I do not think’

it could be opposed in principle is that in some respects the other chartered
banks have been operating on this principle, when one considers the subsidiar-
ies that were established by the chartered banks to engage in mortgage lending

in advance of the approval of the enlarged powers of the banks that are now:

before us.

I understand, for example, that the Kinross Corporation was really estab-
lished by the bank that owns it for the purpose of getting some experience and
accumulating a portfolio that could, in due course, be taken over by the bank if
and when Parliament authorizes the banks to invest in conventional mortgages.

As a strict business proposition I would think that the Bank of Western
Canada would be wise, in terms of the interests of both the depositors and the
shareholders, to do some preparatory work of this kind in the hope, if not the
certainly, that such a transaction, namely the taking over by the Bank of
Western Canada of this portfolio, would be approved by the Minister; but I
cannot guarantee that such a transaction would be approved. I would want to be
satisfied.

Mr. MonTeITH: That is, on the price of the folio, and this sort of thing?

Mr. LaMBERT: Would you agree to the principle.

Mr. SHARP: The principle is certainly one that I would not rule out, on
principle.

Mr. MonTEITH: That is all, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. More (Regina City): Mr. Chairman, I have another question which I
do not think is hypothetical, T think it is direct. Do 'any of the prohibitions in

the Treasury Board order prevent any of the BIF group from using the Bank’
of Western Canada for clearing facilities? - Would this require ministerial

approval?

Mr. SHARP: I shall have to ask my expert adviser, the Inspector General of
Banks, to answer that.

Mr. More (Regina City): This question was raised, and I think it is a very
direct question.

-
Mr. SHARP: I am not sufficiently expert to answer that.

Mr. ScorT: I think that the only aspect of this that would be interfered with
by the present Treasury Board order would be the possibility that in acting as

clearing agent an overdraft might be created; that there might not be sufficient-

funds on deposit with the Bank of Western Canada to meet that clearing, and
that temporarily the bank would be in the position of extending credit. this, of
course, would come within the terms of the order, but as a service transaction it
would not seem to me to be banned.

Mr. More (Regina City): Is there a prohibition here against deposits by
any of these associated companies in the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. ScotT: No.
The CHAIRMAN: Do you have further questions Mr. More?
Mr. Mogre (Regina City): No, Mr. Chairman.
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] The CHAIRMAN: Are there further questions to the Minister on this par-
ticular aspect of our considerations, namely, the Bank of Western Canada?

Mr. Mackasey: I had one supplementary question that I thought might have
Come up on the question of the 10 per cent foreign ownership.

Would you like to state concisely your opinion of this particular transaction,
MI_‘. Sharp? Is there anything particularly wrong with the whole 10 per cent
being in the hands of one particular group in the United States?

~ Mr. SuaArp: It would certainly not be illegal. I would not like to recommend
it. And, I am sure, all members of this Committee would like to see Canadian
Banks owned by Canadians. However, it is well within the law.

Indeed, as the Committee knows, the rules will be somewhat modified if and
When the amendments to the Bank Act are approved, and I do not think that we
should apply a stricter rule to the Bank of Western Canada than we would apply
generally to other Canadian owned banks.

Mr. More (Regina City): This is a supplementary question. You have
heard Mr. Coyne’s proposal to the Committee that the restriction should be
Maintained at 10 per cent rather than increased to 25 per cent. Would you want
to give your view on that to the committee?

Mr. SuARP: I have not had any convincing arguments that there should be a
Special rule for the Bank of Western Canada.

The CHAIRMAN: We appear to have no further questions for the Minister.

Mr. GREGOIRE: In other words, in all this there is nothing wrong, legally or
financially?

i Mr. SHARP: I have not heard of any evidence given here that points to
llegality.

That is the only answer I can give.

Mr. GREGOIRE: No illegal or unsound transactions were mentioned here?

Mr. SHARP: You are asking another question now. I would not say that the
Royal Bank of Canada has not occasionally engaged in unsound lending prac-
tices, or any bank for that matter. The Royal Bank happens to be the bank I
bank with.

The CHAIRMAN: You are not referring to its relations with you, it seems.

. Mr. Suare: After all, I have been a customer of the Royal Bank for a long
time. I feel I can speak freely about it!

The CHATRMAN: Gentlemen, we appear to have completed our questioning of
the Minister on this issue.

I recommend that we recess till 3.45 p.m., at which time we will begin our
hearings on the deposit insurance bill. After hearing from the Minister and his
officials we will go on to the clause-by-clause consideration of it.

We will recess until 3.45 p.m.
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REPORTS TO THE HOUSE
FEBRUARY 10, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs has the
honour to present its

NINETEENTH REPORT

Your Committee has considered Bill C-261, An Act to establish the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation, and has agreed to report it with the following
amendments:

Clause 5
(a) Immediately after sub-clause 2, add the following:

“(3) A vacancy on the Board of Directors does not impair the right
of the remainder to act.”

“(4) Where the office of Chairman is vacant, the Minister may ap-
point, for a period not exceeding ninetty days, an acting Chairman who
shall, while so acting, be a member of the Board of Directors and have
and exercise all the powers of the Chairman.”

(b) Re-number present sub-clause (3) as sub-clause (5).

Clause 14
Strike out sub-clause (5) and substitute therefor the following:

“(5) This section shall come into force on a day to be fixed by
proclamation of the Governor in Council.”

Clause 17
Strike out sub-clause (2) and substitute the following therefor:
“(2) A contract of deposit insurance with a provincial institution
shall be evidenced by an instrument in writing.”

Clause 22 "
Strike out line 13 on page 10 and substitute therefor the following:
“Corporation may require; and the Corporation shall cause an exami-
nation of the affairs of the company to be made at least once in each such
year.”

Clause 36
Immediately after sub-clause (2), add the following:

“(3) In carrying out its functions under this Act, the Corporation
may, with the approval of the Minister, make use of the personnel,
facilities and services of the Department of Insurance and the Department
of Finance to any extent not incompatible, in the opinion of the Minister,
with the administration of those Departments.”

3194
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Clause 45
Delete clause 45.
Respectfully submitted,

OVIDE LAFLAMME,
Vice-Chairman.

FEBRUARY 14, 1967.

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs has the
honour to present its

TWENTIETH REPORT

On February 10, 1967, your Committee reported on Bill C-261, An Act to
establish the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation.

‘A copy of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence respecting this Bill
(Issue No. 46) is tabled.

Respectfully submitted,

HERB GRAY,
Chairman.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, February 9, 1967.
(94)
The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
4:05 p.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
Fulton, Gray, Laflamme, Latulippe, Lind, Macdonald (Rosedale), McLean
(Charlotte), Monteith, More (Regina City) (10)

Also present: Mr. Thompson.

In attendance: The Hon. Mitchell Sharp, Minister of Finance; Messrs. R.
Humphrys, Superintendent of Insurance; W. E. Scott, Inspector General of
Banks; and J. W. Ryan, Director of Legislation Section, Department of Justice.

The Committee proceeded to consideration of Bill C-261, An Act to establish
the Canada Insurance Corporation.

On clause 1

The Minister made an opening statement and was questioned. He was
assisted in answering questions by Messrs. Humphrys and Ryan.

At 6:05 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 8:00 p.m. this day.

EVENING SITTING
(95)

The Committee resumed at 8:20 p.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray,
presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Basford, Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Is-
lands), Chrétien, Davis, Fulton, Gilbert, Gray, Laflamme, Latulippe, Macdonald
(Rosedale), Mackasey, McLean (Charlotte), More (Regina City), Munro, Wahn
(15)

Also present: Mr. Thompson.
In attendance: The same as at the afternoon sitting.

On motion of Mr. Macdonald (Rosedale), seconded by Mr. Cameron
(Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),

Resolved,—That the Committee cause to be printed 1500 copies in English
and 700 in French of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence relating to Bill
C-261.
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Questioning of the Minister was resumed. He was assisted by Messrs.
Humphrys, Scott and Ryan.

Clause 1 was carried.
Clauses 2, 3 and 4 were carried. f i

On clause 5
On motion of Mr. Wahn, seconded by Mr. Macdonald (Rosedale),

Resolved,—That clause 5 be amended as follows: |
(a) Immediately after subclause (2), add the following: |

“(3) A vacancy on the Board of Directors does not impair the right of
the remainder to act.”

“(4) Where the office of Chairman is vacant, the Minister may
appoint, for a period not exceeding ninety days, an acting Chairman who
shall, while so acting, be a member of the Board of Directors and have and
exercise all the powers of the Chairman.”

(b) Re-number present subclause (3) as subclause (5).
The clause, as amended, was carried.
Clauses 6 to 13 inclusive were carried.

On clause 14

On motion of Mr. Wahn, seconded by Mr. Macdonald (Rosedale),

Resolved,—That clause 14 be amended by striking out subclause (5) and
substituting therefor the following:

“(5) This section shall come into force on a day to be fixed by
proclamation of the Governor in Council.”
The clause as amended was carried.
Clause 15 was carried.

On clause 16
Moved by Mr. Fulton, seconded by Mr. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The

Islands),
That clause 16 be amended as follows: *
1. By deleting paragraph (a);
2. By re-numbering paragraphs (b) and (c) as paragraphs (a) and (b)
respectively.
After discussion, and the question having been put, the proposed amend-
ment was negatived on the following division: Yeas, 6; Nays, 7.
Clause 16 was carried, on division.

On clause 17
On motion of Mr. Wahn, seconded by Mr. Macdonald (Rosedale),

Resolved,—That clause 17 be amended by striking out subclause (2) and Of‘
substituting the following therefor:
“(2) A contract of deposit insurance with a provincial institution
shall be evidenced by an instrument in writing.”
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Clause 17 was carried, as amended.
Clause 18 was carried.

On clause 19
\ Moved by Mr. Fulton, seconded by Mr. Monteith,

That paragraph (1) of clause 19 be amended by deleting sub-paragraph (b)
thereof and substituting therefor the following:

“(b) in the case of such deposits as are deposited with the member
institution as of the 30th day of April in that year and insured by the
Corporation

(i) one-thirtieth of one percent of the first fifty percent thereof;

(ii) one-fortieth of one percent of the next twenty-five percent
thereof;

(iii) one-fiftieth of one per cent thereafter.”

After discussion, the Committee agreed to postpone further consideration of
the amendment until the meeting of Friday, February 10th.

At 10:10 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 10:00 a.m., Friday, February
10, 1967.

FripAY, February 10, 1967.
(96)

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade ane Economic Affairs met at
10:00 a.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cameron (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands),
Chrétien, Davis, Fulton, Gray, Irvine, Laflamme, Macdonald (Rosedale),
Mackasey, McLean (Charlotte), More (Regina City) —(11)

Also present: Mr. Thompson.

In attendance: The Hon. Mitchell Sharp, Minister of Finance; Messrs. R.
Humphrys, Superintendent of Insurance; W. E. Scott, Inspector General of
Banks; and J. W. Ryan, Director of Legislation Section, Department of Justice.

The Committee resumed consideration of Bill C-261, An Act to establish the
Canada Insurance Corporation.

With the consent of the Committee, Mr. Fulton withdrew his proposed
amendment.

Clause 19 was carried.
Clauses 20 and 21 were carried.

On clause 22
On motion of Mr. Chrétien, seconded by Mr. Mackasey,

Resolved,—That clause 22 be amended by striking out line 13 on page 10
Substituting therefor the following:
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“Corporation may require; and the Corporation shall cause an exami-
nation of the affairs of the company to be made at least once in each such
year.”

The clause, as amended, was carried.
Clauses 23 to 35 inclusive were carried.

On clause 36
On motion of Mr. Chrétien, seconded by Mr. Mackasey,

Resolved,—That clause 36 be amended by adding the following immediately
after subclause (2):

“(3) In carrying out its functions under this Act, the Corporation
may, with the approval of the Minister, make use of the personnel,
facilities and services of the Department of Insurance and the Department
of Finance to any extent not incompatible, in the opinion of the Minister,
with the administration of those Departments.”

The clause was carried, as amended.
Clauses 37 to 44 were carried.

On clause 45
On motion of Mr. Chrétien, seconded by Mr. Mackasey,

Resolved,—That clause 45 be deleted.
The title and the Bill, as amended, were carried.
Ordered,—That the Chairman report the Bill, as amended, to the House.

The Minister thanked the Committee for giving priority of consideration to
the Bill.

At 10:40 a.m. the Committee adjourned until Tuesday, February 14, 1967, at
11:00 a.m.

Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

THURSDAY, February 9, 1967

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we are in a position to resume our meeting.

We are here this afternoon to hear evidence from the Minister of Finance,
the Inspector General of Banks and the Superintendent of Insurance, on the act
to establish the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation.

I think the best way to begin would be to invite the Minister and/or his
officials to make an opening statement, if he so sees fit, and then we will proceed
to our questioning.

Mr. SHARP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. May I thank you also for the way
in which you have responded to my suggestion of the other day that some
priority be given to this bill?

On February 3 in the House, on second reading of the bill, I gave a
description of its general purpose. Its primary objective, of course, is to ensure
the safety of the deposits of small investors who are usually not in a position to
judge for themselves the financial soundness of the institutions to which they
entrust their savings. Its second purpose is to provide a lender of last resort
facility for deposit accepting institutions, providing needed liquidity at times of
crisis. The third, and perhaps the most essential provision, is that institutions
taking advantage of the insurance will be subject to inspection. Those, Mr.
Chairman, are the general purposes of the bill that is before you.

In my remarks on February 3 I drew attention to the fact that the govern-
ment had changed its order of priorities with respect to the introduction and
passage of this bill. Originally, the government had felt that it should proceed in
a much more leisurely fashion to bring this legislation into existence.

As a result of our consultations with the provinces, however, it has been
made clear to us that the provinces—nine of the provinces at least—are happy
that we are introducing this legislation and have urged us to proceed as soon as
possible with its enactment, and in the House itself that attitude has been
supported on all sides.

One of the problems that arises is that even after the legislation does come
into effect procedure must be established for bringing institutions under insur-
ance. As far as federally inspected or federally controlled institutions are con-
cerned, there is no particular problem. We could, because of what we know about
these federally controlled or inspected institutions, bring them under insurance
without delay. In the ordinary course of events, however, it would have been,
perhaps, more prudent to have brought provincial institutions under insurance
only after they had been inspected. But, as I said in my speech on second
reading, it seems to us that it would be undesirable for federal institutions to be
insured earlier than insurance would be available to provincial institutions.
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So, to expedite making insurance available to provincial institutions, it is
contemplated that the corporation would be prepared to cover all the existing
deposit-accepting trust and loan companies of a province if the province con-
cerned so requested, even before the corporation has made an examination into
the affairs of the individual companies and ascertained whether they were
eligible for insurance.

Then, I went on to say:

The provinces will be expected in return to enter into appropriate
financial arrangements to ensure that any losses which occur as a result of
the deposit insurance scheme having become effective prior to inspection
will not become the obligation of those institutions which are in a sound
position and are contributing to the deposit insurance fund.

This, as I said, would simply be a recognition by the provinces of their responsi-
bility for provincially incorporated institutions prior to the application of fed-
eral deposit insurance.

I have written to the ministers of all the provinces bringing the bill to their
attention and also these remarks that I have just quoted.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Sharp. Gentlemen, I think it would be in
order now for us to begin our discussion with the Minister and, in so far as he
wishes, with the officials who are accompanying him. I might add that at the
witness table, in addition to the two gentlemen I have mentioned, is Mr. Ryan of
the Department of Justice.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, may I say that we have some minor amendments
to propose to the bill which is before you, but they are not matters of substance
and I think they can be left over until clause by clause discussion.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, may I suggest that we proceed in this fashion:
First, that we have our comments and questions of a more general nature on
clause 1, with detailed questions on the specific clauses unless, of course, the
Committee feels that it would be more conducive to careful and expeditious
study of the matter to try to deal with all the questioning in the same box, so to
speak. My only concern is to avoid what some members might consider repeti-
tion. Let us just attempt to have all our questioning at this general stage.
Certainly I will use my discretion if, during the calling of the clauses, there
seems to be repetitious questioning. Who would like to begin? I recognize Mr.
Cameron.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, I would
like to ask two questions. One is with regard to the provincial institutions in
British Columbia, for instance. We understand the premier is now going to make
it compulsory for them to enter the deposit insurance system. Will the corpora-
tion be obliged to accept all provincial institutions without inspection?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, the position is this: If the province will accept
responsibility for losses occurring before we have had an opportunity of inspect-
ing these institutions, we would comply with a request by them to bring their
institutions under insurance immediately. On the other hand, if the province did
not want to accept that responsibility, it would still be open to the province to
compel their institutions to be insured when we have had an opportunity of
inspecting them. There are two possible situations.

=
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Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I do not know whether
you are in a position to tell us, Mr. Sharp, but have any of the other provinces
indicated that they would like to follow the same course as British Columbia?

Mr. SHaRP: The Ontario minister, Mr. Rowntree, said in his speech when
lntroducmg this legislation, as I understood it—I have not seen the record—that
he was going to require all Ontario companies to join the federal scheme once it
is in effect because he believes this problem can be handled more efficiently on a
national basis than on a provincial basis.

However, there are really two separate possibilities here. There are two
kinds of laws that might be passed by a province. First, one that compels any
institution taking deposits to be federally insured. Second, to require all the
institutions incorporated in that province to be federally insured. Of course, I
cannot speak for either British Columbia or Ontario at the moment w1thout
having seen exactly what the spokesmen for those provinces said.

The CHAIRMAN: The next speaker is Mr. Laflamme, followed by Mr. Fulton.

Mr. LAFLAMME: Mr. Sharp, you have referred to letters you sent to every
Pbrovince regarding this bill. Will you tell us whether you received any answers
to those letters?

Mr. SHARP: There would not have been time to receive an answer.
Mr. LAFLAMME: I see.

Mr. FurtoN: I appreciate the necessity for and desirability of dealing with
this as expeditiously as possible but, as I said in the House—and as Mr. Lambert
has said—there are several provisions now in the bill which give rise to such
reservations that it is very difficult to co-operate with that request, but I will do
my best.

Mr. Sharp, you know our opinion that you could have done nearly all, if not
all, of this without making adherence by the provincial institutions voluntary. I
am not so much interested in that now, but I am interested in why you feel it
hecessary to go further and provide that they only can become a member
institution if the government of the province in which they are incorporated
consents.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, the reason for putting in the provision that the
institutions must have the approval of the province before making application is
to avoid any possible conflicts or disputes which would result in this legislation
not coming into effect. If we had asserted that our jurisdiction in this field
applies to provincial institutions and that had been challenged, then the legisla-
tion could be held up in the courts and not come into effect as quickly as I think
it should over as broad a range of companies as want to come in, or as the
Provinces give them permission to come in.

Mr. FuLToN: Remember the distinction I made; At the moment I am not
concerned about why you did not make it compulsory for these provincial
Corporations; I am only asking why you provided that the government of a
Province must consent. It is on that basis that I would put this further question:
Do you not agree that if you made it voluntary—you cannot compel them to
join—whether or not they were provincially incorporated, and regardless of the
Provincial regulations they may have to comply with, there would be no consti-
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tutional or legal obstacle to their becoming members of this scheme, which is set
up with unquestioned jurisdiction of the federal parliament and is then made
available to corporations all across Canada? Most of the provinces will then say:
“No, you cannot voluntarily subscribe?”’

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, the reason was an effort on our part to reduce
any possible conflicts to an absolute minimum. I am quite frank in saying that
we have reason to believe that the entry of the government into this field might
arouse some opposition. For example, a trust company in a province might wish
to take advantage of this scheme and its action might lead to conflict between the
federal and the provincial governments arising out of the federal government’s
offer to insure those deposits without the permission of the provincial govern-
ment. This was an effort on our part to reduce any possible conflicts to a
minimum and to invite the provinces to co-operate with us.

Mr. FurtoN: Do you not agree that by putting in that provision requiring
the consent of the provincial government before the adherence of a provincially
incorporated company to this federal scheme may become effective, you have, in
fact, admitted—indeed, created—an element of jurisdiction in the province
which they do not now have by giving them, in effect, a veto over the extent of
the operation of a federal scheme.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, the action of the province of Ontario today in
approving legislation in this field would seem to indicate with respect to provin-
cial companies that a province does have authority to put in an insurance scheme
on deposits. That would be my view as a horseback lawyer. Therefore, it seemed
to us better to proceed by agreement. Fortunately, in the case of Ontario, the
advantages of having a federal scheme have appealed to them and they are going
to require their companies, which might be insured temporarily under a provin-
cial scheme, to join the federal scheme. They agreed that this is a matter that
can be handled with greater advantage on a national basis than it could be on a
provincial basis. For example, in its proposed scheme the province of Ontario
would, in fact, be insuring deposits of Ontario companies in British Columbia.
Now, I do not know whether that could be challenged or not but certainly it is
not a normal activity of a provincial government; so, because of what I would
consider these overlapping powers, it seemed to me highly desirable that we
should proceed by agreement rather than to court conflict.

-

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Sharp, do I under-
stand you to suggest that the action contemplated by the Ontario government
establishes the right of a province to legislate in this field? You say yourself that
if, for instance, they insured the operations of companies in another province this
would be an unusual field for them to enter. Do they establish their right by
passing legislation of this sort? Should it be allowed to go unchallenged?

Mr. SHARP: Well, I hope, Mr. Chairman, that this will not be a practical
issue. The province of Ontario, as I understand the statements of the Ontario
minister, does not want Ontario to continue in this field because of the fact that
Ontario companies do operate outside the province of Ontario. It is not for me to
say whether the Ontario législation would be invalid in so far as it affected the
insurance of deposits outside the province of Ontario. Obviously, it is much more
efficient and much more in accord with the facts of the situation to have such
insurance provided on a federal basis. Certainly I would think that the province
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of Ontario would have the right to insure deposits within the province of Ontario
by Ontario companies.

Mr. FurTon: I want to follow that up. My objection to this is that I fear—to
use Mr, Cameron’s words—the federal parliament, by putting that provision for
consent in this legislation, will have established—or conceded, if you like—a
Jurisdiction which, in my humble submission, does not exist. Parliament will
have created a jurisdiction in the provinces, and you are going to have all sorts
of complications under similar situations and under this legislation in the future.

Indeed, I think it is a very serious question of whether the Ontario legisla-
tion, once this goes through, should not, indeed, be regarded as being inopera-
tive. Because here you are in the field of banking; the taking of deposits is
inescapably a part of the operation of banking over which federal parliament has
Jurisdiction. Perhaps there could be an argument that if the federal government
does not exercise its jurisdiction in that field the provinces have a right to
legislate under some other head, such as their authority over companies general-
ly, but my understanding of the legal authorities is that once the federal
government exercises its jurisdiction there can be no competing or conflicting
legislation in the province under whatever other head it may seek to act,
provided the federal government has acted within its jurisdiction. That does
seem to me to raise serious questions of propriety. I do not mean to suggest that
the Ontario government is doing something improper in the ordinary sense of
the word, but I mean improper in the constitutional and jurisdictional sense of
there being legislation on the Ontario statute books in this field when, at the
Same time, there is legislation on the federal statute books.

Mr. SHARP: Well, may I make this comment, because apparently I am not
privileged to ask questions, although in this case we have such a distinguished
member as a member of the Committee. Would this line of reasoning not lead to
the conclusion that the province had no authority to grant to its companies the
right to take deposits?

Mr. FuLToN: In the absence of a definition of banking, I would be inclined to
agree. I would not make a categorical assertion to the contrary but, once you
define banking to include the taking of deposits, then I doubt very much if the
Provinces would have the right to legislate in that field.

The province would still have the right to legislate with respect to incorpo-
ration of companies within the province under the general companies acts, as I
See it, and to provide whatever inspection in compliance with the making of
returns, and so on, they want. They could not legislate directly in the field of
deposit taking or deposit insurance.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I am not inclined to disagree with that statement.
The fact is that Parliament has not yet enacted—if it ever will—legislation in
relation to deposit taking institutions as such except what it is proposing to do
now for the insurance of deposits. Therefore, I was simply making the point that
the province now does have the power, I believe, to legislate with respect to its
Own companies on the taking of deposits which does not involve any conflict in
the law, and I would have thought that it also had authority at the present time
to insure those deposits if it so wishes.

Mr. FurLton: Yes, unil parliament acts to the contrary. But the federal
barliament has not only the right to legislate to the effect that all companies
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taking deposits are free to join our deposit insurance scheme. The federal
parliament has that right—

Mr. Suarp: That is right.

Mr. FuLToN:—and no province, in my view, could stop its companies from
joining that scheme because we are legislating in the field of deposits which, I
am satisfied, any court would hold as part of banking. But you go further than
that. Not only do you stop short and say that they may join if they wish, but you
go further and say that the province can stop them from joining if the province
wishes, thereby creating, as I say, a jurisdiction that does not exist in the
provinces.

Let me answer the other part of your concern, if I may. You said you feared
that if this were not put in, conflicts might arise and the legislation might be
challenged. I suggest to you, however, Mr. Sharp, that once this legislation went
through, if a provincially incorporated institution became a member institution
and applied, and its deposits were insured, that insurance would be in effect. It
would not cease to be in effect unless the province both challenged the legislation
and succeeded. If it did not succeed in its action in the courts in having it
declared unconstitutional or ultra vires to the federal parliament, the insurance
would continue to be in effect; so that I suggest that your fear for the efficacy
of the legislation, simply because the provinces might challenge it, is not well
founded.

Mr. SHARP: May I add one other point that has been brought to my attention
by my officials. That is, whatever may be the scope of federal jurisdiction over
banking under the British North America Act, it is not at all clear what forms of
deposit taking activities would be considered banking, and if we were to proceed
on the basis that we could only insure what would be regarded as deposits from
a banking point of view, then it would be impossible, in this legislation, to give
as broad a coverage to the insurance as we think is desirable and contained in
this bill. ;

In other words, in this legislation we are not purporting to legislate about
banking. We are establishing a system of deposit insurance, and whether all the
deposits that we will insure would be considered part of banking business is
quite a separate question.

Mr. FurLton: Well Mr. Sharp, I am afraitl I must take issue with you again. I
have not thought this aspect of it through; it had not occurred to me until you
just raised it, but if you are not legislating under the federal jurisdictional
heading of banking, I am again not satisfied. But I just cannot take this position
categorically because I had not thought about it until you raised it, but there
does not occur to me, at the moment, any head of federal jurisdiction that gives
you the authority to enact this legislation except the federal jurisdiction over
banking.

Mr. SHARP: I am informed by my legal advisers that this bill is within the
competence of Parliament.

Mr. Furton: Of coufse it is; there is no difference between us on that score
at all. But to be within the competence of parliament, it must be under one of the
established heads of federal jurisdiction and it seems to me that head is banking.
This bill rests soundly on the federal jurisdiction in the field of banking but, in
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my view, it contradicts in part, at least, the completeness of that jurisdiction by
recognizing the jurisdiction that does not exist in the province.

Mr. SuHARP: May I ask, Mr. Chairman, whether Mr. Ryan, who is here with
me and who has given some consideration to this point, might speak?

Mr. J. W. Ryan (Legislation Section, Department of Justice: On which
point, Mr. Chairman? With respect to the authorization of the province of
incorporation, I would like to point out a grey area that does exist.

The CHAIRMAN: Do not blame this on me.

Mr. Ryan: These provincial institutions would be incorporated under the
heading of a company with provincial objects. They would be authorized to
carry out certain activities, including the ones that we are concerned about here,
by their incorporating charter or their act, and they would also acquire in some
cases all of their powers from that act, charter, or statute, depending on that type
of jurisdiction they are in.

In some of these cases it may be beyond the powers of the company to take
out insurance or to come into this scheme. In that area paragraph (a) would
make provision for it; in other words you would not be dealing with a company
that possibly was unable to enter into this type of contract. That is one point that
I do not think has been canvassed yet as far as the authority of the province of
incorporation is concerned.

On the matter of jurisdiction, I suggest this also could be supported by the
fact that it is for the incorporation of a company with other than provincial
objects. I suggest the objects go far beyond those of the province.

Mr. FurTon: The objects of this legislation?
Mr. Ryan: Of this incorporation.
Mr. FurToN: Yes, I agree.

Mr. RyaN: So, you can support it on that basis as well as any others that
may be at hand.

Mr. Furton: This act is surely an act that is only under an undisputed head
of federal jurisdiction... I do not understand the application of the statement
that you have just made, Mr. Ryan.

. Mr. Ryan: The act proposes to establish a corporation, so it is an act for the
Incorporation of a company, and another justification for it is the incorporation
of a company with other than provincial objects.

Mr. Furton: I do not think we are on common ground here at all. I am not
Questioning the jurisdiction of the federal Parliament to enact this bill; far from
it. I say it has power to go much further than it goes in this bill. I am questioning
the propriety of this Parliament purporting to raise a provincial jurisdiction
under subsection (a) which, in my humble submission, does not exist under the
constitution.

Mr. Ryan: Mr. Chairman, the point I was trying to make on that matter is
that a provinecial trust company or loan company, or company carrying on that
business under a general act as may exist in some provinces, would acquire its
Corporate capacity from the province.

Mr. FurTon: Yes.
25714—2
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Mr. RyanN: Now the corporate capacity would have to extend to its being
able to contract in this connection.

Mr. FurToN: To make a contract for insurance with this Deposit Insurance
Corporation. Is that your point?

Mr. Ryan: Yes.

Mr. FuLToN: My answer to that is that if the company is in the business of
taking deposits and the federal parliament legislates as to Canada-wide require-
ments which must be met by all companies taking deposits, in my view that is
purely within the federal jurisdiction; the province could not stop its company
from entering into that contract.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, that is not what this bill is about. This bill is
about the insurance of deposits, not about the taking of deposits.

Mr. FurLTtoN: My point is that if you say that all companies who take
deposits are required to insure with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,
in my submission no provincial government or power exists to prevent a deposit-
taking corporation entering into a contract of insurance if it is made a require-
ment of the taking of deposits in Canada.

Mr, SuArRp: Yes that may be, Mr. Chairman, but that is not what this
legislation requires. We are not trying to go as far as that. Eventually that may
be an act of this Parliament, but it is not one that is before us for consideration
today.

Mr. FuLTon: I realize that and I tried to stay off the ground; there are other
grounds of difference between us. I think you should have made it mandatory,
but it is not, and we have not time to change the legislation in that respect. I am
seeking now to pursue my narrower, but very fundamental objection to this
subsection (a) giving the provinces the jurisdiction, which I do not believe they
have, and doing something which I do not think is necessary to the efficacy of
your scheme. As I said, if you leave it purely voluntary—that is the present
situation—and a provincially incorporated company takes advantage of that
voluntary opportunity and enters into a contract of insurance, in my view the
contract would be valid unless the legislation were to be successfully attacked.
And even while the court case might be proceeding the contract still exists and
the depositors are protected, unless the court should ultimately declare our
legislation ultra vires. I think neither you nor I feel there is the slightest pos-
sibility of this happening.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fulton, I will now ask Mr. Sharp or his officials to
answer your last comment and then, perhaps, I should give the floor to the next
person on my list, namely Mr. Macdonald.

Mr. SHARP: I think we had a good exchange on this; perhaps we can pursue
it later.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, could I put a series of questions
to Mr. Ryan, because I disagree fundamentally with Mr. Fulton’s view of the
law. Firstly, Mr. Ryan, surely it is the British North America Act rather than any
act of the federal or provincial government which decides who, ultimately, has
the right of jurisdiction. Neither the federal nor the provincial government can
alienate that right by any law.
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The CHAIRMAN: Do you agree with Mr. Macdonald’s assertion that it is a
question of constitutional law?

Mr. Ryan: I agree with that.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Ryan, the federal government has juris-
diction over chartered banks which are one form of deposit taking institution.
Is there any contest about that?

Mr. Ryan: There is no contest about banking or the incorporation of banks.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): The two federal statutes—the Trust Companies
Act and the Loan Companies Act, both of which provide for deposit taking
institutions—are equally within the competence of the federal government. Is
there any contest on that point?

Mr. RYAN: They are within the competence of the federal Parliament. I do
not know what the expression ‘“equally’” means.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Is there a question of the jurisdiction of the
federal parliament to pass those two acts and provide for that type of deposit
taking institutions.

Mr. Ryan: There is no question that I know of, Mr. Chairman, but I may
hesitate here and say that I am not sure that we are talking about the heading
of banking.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I agree with you there; I do not think they are
covered under the heading of banking, either. You say it is a grey area; I say it
may be a matter of sharp dispute.

A third type of deposit taking institution—if I may choose the laws of
Ontario, because that is my own province—may be authorized by the Ontario
statutes providing for Ontario trust companies or Ontario loan companies. Is
there a question of the validity of the provincial legislation as it applies to that
type of deposit taking institution?

Mr. RyaN: So far, this last type of business, Mr. Chairman, has been
Supported by the courts in Canada where it has been brought before them.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): So there is a legitimate provincial right.

Mr. Ryan: Yes, particularly in Manitoba. I think the case was mentioned
here during the course of your hearing.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): So, there is a legitimate provincial right to
legislate with respect to deposit taking institutions and that does not infringe
on the federal power for banking?

Mr. Ryan: In the existing circumstances that appears to be so.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): You mean in the existing state of the law as it
has been defined by the courts. The entire question of deposit taking, therefore,
falls within the two jurisdictions. This entire field is not exclusive federal
responsibility?

Mr. RyaN: At the present time, Mr. Chairman, both jurisdictions, if I can
distinguish between province and federal, are exercising their authority to

incorporate companies that have certain deposit taking powers.
2571423
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Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Is it also a legitime legal procedure for a
jurisdiction, which may not have the power, to delegate responsibility for this
area—not on a continuing basis, but so long as it extends the power—to an entity
created by the other level of government? I am thinking of the Prince Edward
Island potato market.

Mr. RYAN: Oh, yes, I know; you are thinking of delegation.

An hon. MEMBER: And his ear to a parliament.

The CHAIRMAN: The legislative body.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): I am talking in terms of an entity.
M. Ryan: Where there is concurrent jurisdiction.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): No, not necessarily; where there is no jurisdic-
tion whatsoever in the federal government.

Mr. RyaN: May I attempt to answer that, Mr. Chairman. So far that has
been done on a few occasions and, to the best of my knowledge, the recent efforts
to do it have not been upset—that is, where the federal Parliament has delegated
the exercise of some of its function to a body designated by the federal parlia-
ment.

The CHAIRMAN: Other than a legislative body.

Mr. Ryan: Yes, other than a legislative body, I have in mind the Motor
Vehicle Transport Act.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): So that, given a doubt as to the entire authority
over deposit taking institutions, if the provincial government by provincial
legislation delegated the authority to insure deposits by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation this, in effect, would be a valid delegation under the
constitution.

Mr. RYan: I am not sure, Mr. Chairman, that we are in delegation here so
much as this type of situation: The insurance of deposits can be considered in one
respect as a business and if you, as a province, authorize that particular type of
business, and there is no federal statute based on a federal head of jurisdiction
that prohibits it, I do not see why a province could not continue to exercise the
power to incorporate companies to insurerdeposits, even if it is a commercial
company. It is only incorporating a company for provincial objects; carrying on
a business in the province. Similarly, I think it is possible for the federal
Parliament to incorporate a company to carry on the same business. We are not
talking about defining deposits as being synonymous with banks; whether they
are or not, I do not know.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I gather from your responses and the look of
agony on your face that it is not easy to decide where the jurisdiction lies and,
given the legislative intention to do something about deposit insurance, there are
then two choices before you: either to put it in the courts and wait five years
until it is finally litigated, or to pass legislation which, with the consent of the
provinces, will cover the whole field. As Mr. Fulton says, the deposit insurance
legislation insuring deposits will be valid until it is declared not to be valid. Of
course, the people who may have been insured on it will not be too cheerful in
five years time if it is not valid. That should be to Mr. Sharp, and not to you.
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Mr. SHARP: I believe, Mr. Chairman, notwithstanding what I consider to be
the quite legitimate comments which Mr. Fulton has made, about the principle in
this bill, there are two things: first of all, this is the practical way of proceeding
now to get the maximum coverage with the least possibility of having our
legislation challenged and thereby depriving many institutions and many deposi-
tors of the benefits. Secondly, I do not believe the provision that we have put in
the act which requires these companies to get the approval of the provincial
government before it can enter the federal scheme will in any way jeopardize
the federal Parliament in deciding later how far it may want to extend its
jurisdiction in the field of banking. Those are my opinions and I say this with
respect.

Mr. FurLton: May I ask a supplementary question on this point? I think it is
germane. What do you do immediately if a province says: No, we do not consent.

Mr. SHARP: That is a decision that province must answer for.

Mr. FuLTon: This is surely leaving a very large gap—in my submission, an
Unnecessary gap—in the extent of your coverage. The objectives here we are all
agreed upon.

Mr. Suarp: This seems to me, Mr. Chairman, to be essentially a political
Problem. I have every reason to believe that at least nine of the provinces will
not only permit but will welcome the adherence of their companies to this
scheme. I do not know the position of the tenth.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Macdonald would you yield for a further supplemen-
tary question from Mr. Laflamme?

Mr. LarLaMME: I address this question to either Mr. Sharp or Mr. Ryan. It
d.eals with clause 16(a). I do not really see the purpose of having the authoriza-
tion from the province before provincially incorporated institutions take part in
the federal deposit insurance scheme. It reads:

The provincial institution is authorized—
Does a provincially incorporated institution really need the authorization
of the province to get into the scheme?

The CHAIRMAN: That is Mr. Fulton’s question.

_Mr. SHARP: I say that a decision by provincial governments not to permit
their companies to be insured is a decision they are taking with full knowledge
of the consequences.

Mr. LarLaMME: Can you foresee that those institutions who want to take
bart in our scheme may be federally incorporated?

Mr. SuARP: That could be.

Mr. MacponaLD (Rosedale): Mr. Sharp, may I just revert to a supplemen-
ta%‘y question asked by Mr. Fulton. He brought up the point that if a province
fails to consent, then the institutions under provinecial jurisdiction will not be
co}7*31‘ed and the objective will be defeated. The objective of the bill generally, I

ink, is to create confidence in investors in deposit taking institutions. Without
.he consent procedure, would the confidence of investors not equally be defeated
i the entire matter were put into litigation?

Mr. Suare: I believe so, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. MAcpONALD (Rosedale): So, you have a dividing in the road; you have
Mr. Fulton’s choice of litigation, or the choice in this bill of the consent procedure
whereby you avoid litigation?

Mr. SHARP: That is the general objective.

Mr. Furron: I do not think the two alternatives are equal, though.

An hon. MEMBER: At equal rates.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I would like my legal
colleagues to see if they could answer—

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): I think I still have the floor?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes, I assume you are yielding to Mr. Cameron.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I can see how a provincial
government could take the matter to court if this bill extended the compulsory
feature of deposit insurance to provincial institutions, but I cannot quite under-
stand how they could take the matter to court if it were merely made available
for provincial institutions to enter the scheme or not enter the scheme on their
own volition. How could this be taken to court? What would the provincial
government have to do in order to bring it before the courts?

Mr. SHARP: The provincial government, under those circumstances; might
challenge the federal government because of its resentment against the actions of
the federal Parliament in making this available, notwithstanding the wishes of
that provincial government that it did not want one of its companies to enter
the scheme.

Mr. FuLToN: What would it challenge in that case; the right of the federal
parliament to legislate?

Mr. SHARP: It might.
Mr. FuLTon: Or the validity of the contract?
Mr. SHARP: It might; it could do a number of things.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): If that is the case I think
we had better get at it as quickly as possiblg to get the matter settled. Personal-
ly, I cannot see the grounds on which a provincial government could institute
legal proceedings.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): Let me put it to you this way, Mr. Sharp:
Whether the jurisdiction be compulsory or optional, if the federal government,
in fact, has no jurisdiction to legislate, then the legislation will be equally
invalid.

Mr. SHARP: Yes.

Mr. MAacpoNaLD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, I would like to go on to clause
10 of the bill referring to provincial institutions, particularly focusing on the
wording—I have dropped some of the intermediate words—which reads as
follows:

...a company that carries on, ...the business of a loan company within
the meaning of the Loan Companies Act.
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Perhaps this question might better be addressed to Mr. Ryan. Is that reference
necessarily confined to companies incorporated under the equivalent provincial
statutes? For example, in the case of Ontario, does that wording extend beyond
the Ontario companies which are incorporated under the Ontario Loan Corpo-
rations Act?

Mr. RYAN: Mr. Chairman, the wording there is intended to go to the nature
of the business, and it is done by reference to the description of the business set
out in the two federal acts, the Trust Companies Act and the Loan Companies
Act. The business of a trust company is very, very lengthy and you have to
derive it from reading the Trust Companies Act.

M. MACDONALD (Rosedale): We are talking about deposit taking and I
notice that in this bill “deposit” means a deposit as defined by the by-laws of the
corporation. Do I understand that correctly?

Mr. Ryan: That is correct.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Therefore, taking an institution like Prudential
Finance, it would be within the competence of the corporation to define the notes
issued by that corporation as a form of deposit taking?

Mr. Ryan: Mr. Chairman, I do not think the business of these companies
would fit under the definition either of the Trust Companies Act of the Loan
Companies Act. One situation I believe does occur, Mr. Chairman, is the fact
that in a jurisdiction you may have neither a Trust Companies Act nor a Loan
Companies Act. You may be operating under the General Companies Act, or
Operating that type of business under a General Companies Act. It was in an
effort to define the type of business a provincial company was in that we bring
it under the definition of a provincial institution, and which this wording was
designed for.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): What about a financial company incorporated
under the General Corporations Act of Ontario as opposed to the Loan and Trust
Corporations Act?

Mr. HuMPHRYS (Superintendent, Department of Insurance): I do not think
such a company would be covered under this definition, Mr. Macdonald, because
the essential feature of a company that is doing the business described in the
Loan Companies Act is lending on the security of real estate mortgages. That is
not its exclusive lending or investing power but it is one of its principal functions
and such a company in Ontario, for example, would be under the Loan and Trust
Corporations Act of Ontario.

Mr. MAcCDONALD (Rosedale): Do you think a company would have to be
tapable of exercising all the powers conferred by the federal Loan Companies
Act before this legislation could apply?

Mr. RyAN: That is the intention, Mr. Macdonald.
Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Yours was the last name I had on my list at this stage. Are
there other members who have not had an opportunity on this round of ques-
tioning who wish to do so?

Mr. LArLaMME: I have another supplementary question to Mr. Ryan. Would
it not be possible not to go as far as Mr. Fulton wanted to go, but just say that
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this law is legal unless it is challenged? Just delete from clause 16 (a) the words:
...is authorized by the province of its incorporation. ..

and say:
the provincial institution voluntarily applies for deposit insurance.

Mr. FurTon: The law may be in conflict with policy here, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any members present who have not had an initial
opportunity to ask questions? If so, I will recognize them before we start again.

Mr. McLeEAN (Charlotte): If two large trust companies are incorporated in
province 10 and they have branches in provinces 7 and 8, and provinces 7 and 8
say, you must have your deposits insured, what happens if province 10 says, no?

Mr. SHARP: Presumably, then, that company would have great difficulty in
carrying on business in provinces 7 and 8.

Mr. FurTon: You could remove the difficulty very simply by striking out the
requirement for provincial consent. This is why you may have gaps, not only in
respect of the province in which the head office is situated but you may have
gaps all across Canada. I think this is very serious.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you have any further questions, Dr. McLean?
Mr. McLEAN: No, not at this time.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sharp, Dr. McLean raised a question which I raised
when we were questioning some of our witnesses from the public who appeared
in the course of our general discussions on the Bank Act. I was impressed by the
situation in California where, apparently, no branch of a non-resident bank can
operate there unless it is a member of the federal deposit insurance scheme.
Intriguingly enough, foreign branches cannot belong to the federal deposit
scheme so they cannot have foreign branches in California. I see now that, in
effect, Brtiish Columbia, perhaps influenced by their neighbour to the south, are
proposing something of this sort. Am I correct in that, Mr. Humphry? Would
their requirement with respect to provincial institutions apply only to those
incorporated under the British Columbia law, or any provincial institution
operating in British Columbia?

Mr. HumpHRYS: As far as I know, Mr. Chairman, their views so far ex-
pressed relate to institutions incorporated in"British Columbia, but I can say that
I have discussed this plan with a number of officials in various provinces and
some of them are interested in it from the point of view of requiring all
institutions that are transacting this type of business within their borders to be
insured under the plan.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not know if you are in a position to comment on this,
but do you think a province that required all of its own institutions to belong to
the federal scheme would permit branches of institutions from a province which
did not give this consent to operate in the initial province concerned?

Mr. HumpPHRYS: I do not think I should try to read the opinion of the
province. I think the views on that point might vary.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): There could be no argument from the jurisdic-
tion standpoint, but they could put that condition on other provincial institutions
coming into the province.

5
)
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Mr. HuMPHRYS: It is my understanding that a corporation incorporated in a
province may transact business in another province only wihh the consent of the
other province.

The CHAIRMAN: Are we in a position to begin another round of question-
ning? Mr. Fulton?

Mr. FuLTon: I would like to pass on to other questions because, as Mr. Sharp
said, we have had a good lively exchange—not altogether conclusive.

Would you explain to me why it was felt necessary or desirable to have the
provision that says where a provincially incorporated institution becomes a
member it will have a policy whereas, I gather, under the scheme with respect to
federally incorporated institutions they are just insured? Why not a policy in
both cases or, alternatively, straight insurance in both cases, once the adherence
to the scheme is effected?

Mr. SHARP: Could I ask Mr. Humphrys to deal with that question?

Mr. HuMpHRYS: The coverage is required by this statute for federally
incorporated institutions—they have no choice. With regard to provincially
incorporated institutions, it was not intended in this statute to compel them to
become insured and, therefore, there had to be some document issued to indicate
that they were covered, to record the fact of their having applied, been approved
and that the insurance is in effect. This was the basis of the concept of issuing a
policy.

Mr. FurTon: I appreciate the bankground distinction but I wondered why
the fact of application acceptance would not automatically bring into force the
insurance. Perhaps I am reading more into the word “policy” than was intended.
Maybe the fact of the acceptance of the application, a very simple document, is
intended to be discribed as a policy. It that right, or would it be a long
complicated policy?

Mr. HumpHRYS: It would be a document issued by the corporation to the
institution, not, I think, a long complicated document, essentially designed to
record the fact that it is insured and probably including by reference the act and
the by-laws.

Mr. Furton: In the House, Mr. Sharp, you answered a question of mine and
there was no time to go into any detailed discussion. It was a question in which I
but forward the suggestion that there might be considered a differential rate of
primium for some at least, if not all, federally incorporated institutions on whose
bart membership is compulsory, what I had in mind, as a background for this
Suggestion, is that certainly in the case of the chartered banks, which are the
biggest deposit holders—I think that general statement is right—their member-
ship is compulsory; they will be paying a very considerable amount—certainly
the major amount—of the premiums coming in, and yet they are certainly
amongst the safest, if not the safest, of the deposit taking institutions in Canada.
I think that you would be hitting them with a heavy enough burden for their
contribution to the efficacy of the scheme if you did make some differential in
rate. My alternative suggestion would be that if you felt you could not exempt or
give a different rate to a category of institutions like banks—which I would see
the federal trust companies criticizing—you might make your premium rate
dependent on the amount of deposits that are insured, and if it goes over, say $1
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billion, the rate is reduced somewhat, thus equalizing the extent of the burden
that will be carried. Could you elaborate on that, please or give your reasoning
in that respect.

Mr. SHARP: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I answered the first of Mr. Fulton’s questions
in the House when he put it to me. I did not think it would be equitable to have a
differential rate depending upon whether they were federally incorporated insti-
tutions or whether they were provincially incorporated institutions. I believe
that there are some provincially incorporated institutions that are just as sound
in their financial management as our federally incorporated institutions.

On the second point, we did give some considerable attention to the possibil-
ity of having a sort of a maximum absolute amount of premium. However, after
considering it at some length we came to the conclusion that while that might be
an innovation that could be considered after we had some experience, we should
begin with a flat rate. I believe that this question is worth later consideration
after the scheme is in effect. It may be that an institution which has a vast
amount of deposits should not be required to pay on the basis of the amount of
their deposits but rather than there should be some maximum amount that would
be charged to any single institution. However, we decided against that, finally, at
least at this stage.

Mr. Furron: You say that this will be open for consideration as experience
is accumulated. Iwould just like to make it clear that the reason I modified in my
question this afternoon, the form of my question to you in the House, is that I
realized that some provincially incorporated institutions are, as you said, as
soundly operated as the banks and that some of them would have very substan-
tial deposits. Therefore, it seems to me to put it on the basis of the amount of
deposits under insurance would be the more equitable approach, and you said
that would be considered.

Mr. THOMPSON: Could I ask a supplementary here, Mr. Fulton?
Mr. FuLTon: Yes, Mr. Thompson.

Mr. THOMPSON: In our discussions earlier I think the statement was made by
Mr. Rasminsky that the portion of business done by the near-banks amounted to
less than one per cent of the total amount of the banking business done. Now this
proportion probably does not carry in the same way into deposits. But we are
dealing only with federal institutions here, so it is the near-banks that will be
covered under this legislation, and they represent a very small proportion of the
total deposits in the banking institutions. I presume that the basic reason that we
are dealing with this bill at the present time is that we are concerned about the
near-banks, that we are not concerned about the banks nearly as much as we are
with the near-banks.

Mr. SHARP: May I interrupt here, Mr. Chairman, and say what I said when I
appeared before, that the usefulness of deposit insurance, even for such conserv-
atively and soundly administered institutions as the Montreal City and District
Savings Bank, was demonstrated. If deposit insurance had been in effect I do not
believe there would have heen any run on that bank.

Mr. THoMPSON: No, I am not questioning that point, Mr. Sharp, but follow-
ing up Mr. Fulton’s questions, do you not think it seems grossly unfair to be
assessing the banking institutions for what will be the vast proportion of the
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total aggregate premiums collected for the protection of those institutions that
are not in the banking category? Would you be good enough to leave it, as you
said, for further consideration. It seems to me to be inequitable.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, one of the purposes of this legislation is to
promote competition and if the introduction of deposit insurance has the result in
due course of strengthening the confidence of the public in these institutions that
are accepting deposits, other than banks, I would not consider that a great
calamity. I can understand the banks not being very enthusiastic about it but I
do believe that it is highly desirable that there should be a more competitive
system, and I would hope this would come about partly as a result of deposit
insurance, not because of the existence of the insurance so much as the fact that
there would be much more adequate inspection and supervision of these institu-
tions, and that they would grow. I would not consider it undesirable if these
institutions should grow relatively to the banks.

Mr. THOMPSON: I am not questioning your statement just now—

Mr. More (Regina City): Would you feel that you would like them to
become banks, in time?

Mr. THOMPSON: —nor am I questioning the ability of the banks to pay the
amount of the premium that they will be required to pay, but we would like to
think that our legislation is fair and just. Do you not think it would be possible
to have a sliding scale of premium without too much difficulty, which would be
more equitable to the larger institutions which are the banks?

Mr. SHARP: I do not rule this out as a possible development of the system. In
the United States, deposit insurance had a very desirable stabilizing effect on the
whole system of deposit-taking institutions which, of course, are subject to
different kinds of laws than ours are, but I would believe it would be very
difficult, if not impossible, to decide now what would be a more equitable sharing
of this burden by imposing some sort of a maximum limitation. In the meantime,
I believe that the general interest of the public is served by bringing the deposit
insurance into effect on a flat rate premium even if arguments can be made that
the banks are, to some extent, subsidizing their competition.

The CHAIRMAN: I think that we should give the floor to Mr. Fulton now.

Mr. FurLToN: Mr. Sharp, I have not heard you say that you would not be able
to institute an adequate and effective deposit insurance scheme even if you did
have a sliding scale at the outset.

Mr. SHARP: That is right.

Mr. FurLton: Therefore, I am questioning you as to why you do not have a
sliding scale at the outset?

Mr. SHARP: This is quite an arguable proposition and we gave quite a bit of
consideration to it before we introduced this legislation. We believed that since
we have not had any experience in Canada it would be better to begin with a flat
rate premium. It would be very difficult to justify anything else until there has
been some experience.

Mr. FurToN: Does that not mean that it will be established and be made to
run to your satisfaction by imposing upon the banks and some of the large trust
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companies, all of whom are sound, the heaviest burden with respect to deposit
insurance?

Mr. SHARP: I agree.

Mr. FuLToN: That does not seem to me to be really equitable but I do not
know whether or not we are going to be able to change your mind.

Mr. MoRrE (Regina City): Mr. Sharp, you say this is a matter which is argu-
able and which could be considered after experience. I am wondering about the
experience. I do not quite understand. These companies in respect of which we
are asking you about a difference in rates are, in the main, old, well established
firms. You have had inspections of them; you have knowledge of their opera-
tions; you have available knowledge now of what their operations over the years
has involved that would bring them into using your deposit insurance, so what
further experience do you need? All it means is that things that have happened
during the previous 10, 15 or 20 years of their operation are now going to be
more evident in the operation of deposit insurance. But, surely your knowledge
of their business indicates a basis now where you could consider a difference in
premiums.

Mr. SHARP: May I add one other consideration? I think it is desirable that we
should collect premiums at the beginning at a somewhat higher rate than we will
eventually have to collect them. It is provided in the bill that when the Deposit
Insurance Corporation has a sufficient reserve that premiums may be adjusted,
and that would seem to me to be a more appropriate time to consider whether a
differential rate should be in effect. Otherwise, if we were now to place a
maximum limitation upon the amount of total premium paid by an institution it
would take longer before we reached that position when we could reduce the
over-all rate upon all institutions.

Mr. Furton: I would prefer to see you do it on a sliding scale, not just a
maximum contribution, because all deposits are going to be insured. I think to
set the ceiling at $200 million of deposits, then a lower rate on the next $200
million and a lower rate on the next, and so on, would be more equitable than
just a flat maximum. You know what that would produce.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Humphrys has asked if he might make a comment.

Mr. HumpHRYS: There are two comments I would like to make. In the
scheme in the United States, they have charged a flat rate on all institutions from
the time it was started. In that plan they charged their premium rate on the
entire deposits of the institutions even though the insurance only extends up to a
maximum of, I think it is now, $15,000. This plan proposes to charge the rate
only on the deposits that are up to the insured limit. To that extent, therefore,
there will be a more equitable treatment for banks here than in the United
States’ plan because the chances of large deposits—over $20,000—are much
greater in the banks than in the other institutions.

Mr. FurLToNn: Did I understand you to say, Mr. Humphrys, that supposing
there is a deposit of $100,000 in a bank, the‘premium will only be paid on the
first $20,000 of that individual’s deposit?

Mr. HUMPHRYS: Yes, because the premium is on the deposit and the deposit
is to be defined.

~,
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Mzr. FurTon: It is just a matter of defining ‘“deposits”. It certainly does not
appear from the act—

Mr. HuMmPHRYS: It is on the total deposits that are insured.
Mr. THomPpsoN: Up to $20,000.
Mr. HuMmpHRYS: Whatever the definition says.

The CrHAIRMAN: Do you take into account the fluctuating deposits in the
course of a fiscal year?

Mr. HuMmPHRYS: The plan is to require the insured institutions to pay a
premium on the deposit balances calculated once a year at the end of April,
which would be paid in two instalments.

Mr. FurLTon: If they have $600 million on deposit at that time, they will not
necessarily be paying one-thirtieth of one per cent of $600 million?

Mr. HuMPHRYS: No.
Mr. FuLTtoNn: But only on as many accounts within that $600 million as—

Mr. HumpHRYS: They will eliminate the excess of any account that is over
$20,000.

Mr. FurLTon: I did not see it in the bill. I believe it is the amended definition.

Mr. HumMmpPHRYS: In section 19, Mr. Thompson, it states that the insured
institution will pay an annual premium equal to the greater of $500 or one-thir-
tieth of 1 per cent of the total amount of such deposits as are deposited with the
member institution on the 30th day of April and insured by the corporation; so
that it would only be the insured deposit.

Therefore, in practice, the institution would add up its deposits, eliminating
any excess over $20,000 in respect of each deposit, and then there would be a
further adjustment, we believe, in order to allow for the fact that in some
institutions one person might have a number of deposits. We would therefore
have to make a further adjustment—probably on an approximate basis—to
arrive as close as we can at a premium that is based on the insured deposits.

Mzr. More: Do I understand, Mr. Humphrys, that a depositor could operate
his account from May 1 to April 29 and be insured, and on April 29 take out his
money and then there would be no premium paid on the insurance protection
during that period. He could put it in again on May 1?

Mr. HuMmpHRYS: That is right; but the premium is calculated on the balances
once a year.

An hon. MEMBER: It has got to be somewhere.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: It is not likely, we think, that an institution would pay back
all its deposits at the end of April in order to reduce its premium.

Mr. SuARP: Well, Mr. Humphrys, perhaps you should have an unheralded
entrance.

Mr. Morg: Then I could ask for a compensating balance, or something, to
make up the premium; and the depositor might want his deposit back if he could
Save this charge.
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Mr. HumMmpHRYS: I think, also, that the problem of trying to determine the
probability of loss in an institution would be almost impossible. To grade the
premium by the chance of loss would mean that some institutions would be
paying zero, and the ones that need insurance would be paying the whole
premium, which would defeat the whole plan.

Mr. FurToN: I wonder if I could just finish up with three short questions?

I have not been able to appreciate the significance of subclause (5) of clause
19. Could you tell me what is the reason for its inclusion, and how would it
work? I can understand that if you find you have an adequate balance in your
own funds to insure everything, you can reduce premiums, but what is the
relationship of one-sixth of 1 per cent of the total amount of such deposits? What
are the mathematics of this?

Mr. HumpPHRYS: The premium is one-thirtieth of 1 per cent per annum.

Mr. FuLTON: Yes.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: One-sixth of 1 per cent represents five years’ premiums.
The idea is that after an institution has paid for five years, then, in effect, it
would not have to pay any more after that if its deposits remained level. As soon
as it had paid five years’ premiums, if its deposit balances were not thereafter
increasing, it would pay no more. If its deposits were increasing, however, it
would pay then one-sixth of 1 per cent on the increase in the deposit from year
to year.

Mz, FuLTon: One-sixth of 1 per cent, which is a great deal more than one-
thirtieth of 1 per cent.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: But only on the increase; so that, in effect, once an institu-
tion has a level deposit balance it would pay for five years, and then it would pay
no more.

Mr. FurToN: If its deposits increased it would pay one-sixth of 1 per cent—

Mr. HumpPHRYS: —for that one year.

Mr. FuLTtoN: —for that year; but—

Mr. HumMmPHRYS: Never more than one-thirtieth of 1 per cent of its total
insured deposits. »

Mr. Furton: I with we could get this record quicker, because I would like to
read that. I still do not understand it. You assure me that it has the effect of
relieving—

Mr. HumMmpPHRYS: Yes, indeed.

Mr. FurLToN: —and not of adding a heavier burden?

Mr. HuMPHRYS: In a major, well-established institution, where the deposits
perhaps are not increasing rapidly, this would mean that after five years its
premiums would drop very sharply; whereas, a new institution that is growing
up fairly rapidly would have to keep paying. It is a plan whereby the burden of
the premium could be relieved on the major institutions that are well-estab-
lished, but new institutions coming into the field, or institutions where their
insured deposits are increasing rapidly, would have to continue to pay. It effects
in fact, a more equitable distribution—

(
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Mr. FurTon: Would it not be the case, and is it not the expectation and the
hope, that as the economy expands, although some institutions may be growing
relatively more rapidly than others—especially new institutions—all the institu-
tions would have a steady expansion in the amount of their deposits, unless they
become dead not only from the neck up but the neck down?

Mr. HuMmPHRYS: I think that is the hope of all, Mr. Fulton, but this plan
would sharply reduce the premium in any institution that is not growing at a
rate that exceeds, I think, 25 per cent a year.

Mr. THOMPSON: You mean you are easing off on the level of deposits that are
constant—

Mr. HUMPHRYS: Yes.

Mr. THOMPSON: —and increasing on the five year term basis on the new
expansion.

Mr. FurTton: I am afraid my next question might again involve a lengthy
exchange, so may I defer?

: The CHAIRMAN: I recognize Mr. Thompson unless he was merely indicat-
ing—

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I was concerned about this premium thing,
but I have just a few questions on participation.

The CHAIRMAN: I just want to indicate to the Committee that my list

following yourself, Mr. Thompson, we have Dr. McLean, Mr. Latulippe, Mr.
Lind, and Mr. More.

Mr. THomPsoN: Immediately this legislation comes into effect it seems to me
'fhat it is going to place the presently chartered institutions, other than the banks,
In a very advantageous position competitively as far as confidence with deposi-
tors are concerned. Therefore, it seems to me it is going to be the natural
outcome that provincially-chartered institutions are going to want to come under
the deposit insurance coverage, particularly in those provinces where there
might not be a provincial law. So there will be pressure on individual institu-
tions, and there will also be pressure on provincial governments to bring
their provincially-chartered institutions under the legislation.

Is there adequate provision within the legislation to allow for provinces who
want to bring their institutions in through an act of legislation in their own
legislatures as part of this federal legislation? Is there adequate legislation? Is
there encouragement for the provinces to do that?

Mr. SHARP: There is great encouragement, I believe, in this legislation for
the provinces to give permission to their institutions to come in. The question of
Whether they should compel them, is another matter that would require legisla-
tion; but it would not require legislation for them to give permission to their
institutions.

Mr. THOMPSON: I can well imagine that some of the provinces, rather than to
Set up a similar type of deposit insurance themselves, will just choose to pass
legislation that will permit them to become part of this; am I correct that this
Would be an acceptable thing if provinces chose to do this.



3222 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS Feb.9,1967

Mr. SHARP: Yes; there are pressures, of course, upon the institutions them-
selves to come in, because apart altogether from the greater freedom that it
would probably give them to operate outside the provinces in which they are
incorporated, I would hope that a notice on their front door that they are insured
by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation will help them to survive in
competition with those who are in.

Mr. THOMPSON: I am concerned about making provision for those who
are not in to come in. Apart from the provincial governments requiring their
institutions to do this—which would require an act of legislation on their
part—what means would an individual, specific institution have of becoming
part of the corporation? Would they be required to take out a federal charter, or
would there be a basis of affiliation without that, as individual institutions?

Mr. SHARP: Perhaps I will let Mr. Humphrys answer that, since it is a little
technical.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: A provinecial institution could apply if it has the authoriza-
tion of its province. If it is in a financial position that is satisfactory to the
corporation, it would be insured as a provincial institution.

Mr. THOMPSON: Providing it had the permission of the—
Mr. HUMPHRYS: —province.

Mr. THOMPSON: I can also foresee that there will be many provincial
institutions which are sound institutions that would want to probably change
their charter to a federal charter.

Mr. HumpHRYS: I do not think this legislation would bear on that particular-
ly, Mr. Thompson.

Mr. THoMPSON: It would not be necessary.
Mr. HumpPHRYS: No.

Mr. THoMPSON: If they could get the permission they could do it without
taking out a federal charter.

Mr. HUMPHRYS: Yes.

Mr. THOMPSON: If they get permission fsom the province.

I think that covers the one point I wanted to cover, Mr. Chairman, except I
am not satisfied with the Minister’s answers in regard to this blanket set fee. I
am not going to argue it further, but I think there ought to be some way of
dealing with it more equitably than this does; although I appreciate the two
points that have come up since Mr. Fulton first raised it, because I think they are
relevant to it.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. McLean?

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): One of my questions is answered, because I
thought that the thirtieth of 1 per cent applied to all deposits. There is one
exception there, however, that is a deposit that is not payable in Canada, or in
Canadian currency. There are deposits in the Canadian banks and in American
banks.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, those are not insured.
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Mr. McLean (Charlotte): I see that they are not insured; but will they not
pay any premiums?

Mr. SHARP: If they are not insured they do not pay premiums.

The CHAIRMAN: Is this the same practice under the American scheme?

Mr. THoMPsON: The incentive, I think, would be to convert it, Mr, McLean.

The CHAIRMAN: If you do not have the information readily available, it
does not matter.

Do you have any further questions, Dr. McLean?

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): No, that is all I have.

(Translation)
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe? Do you have any questions to ask?

Mr. LATULIPPE: Yes, I have a few questions to ask. I would first like to ask
the Minister why this insurance is compulsory?

(English)
Mr. SHARP: It is compulsory for federal institutions.

(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: Is it because, since this insurance is compulsory, you expect
a certain depression in the future? Do you consider the institutions are not
strong enough? There are some institutions that are stronger than the Govern-
ment, so why make this insurance compulsory? If this insurance is good, surely
the people will take it; if not good, those who don’t need it won’t take it. I would
set up this insurance, but I would not make it compulsory. I think it should be
left up to the individual.

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, with this point I disagree. I believe it is very
much in the interests of Canada that the smaller depositor—and we are insuring
deposits up to only $20,000—should be insured.

It is very difficult for individuals to be able to judge the financial soundness
of these institutions, and as universal a system of deposit insurance as possible is
going to add not only to the feeling of confidence of the depositors, but also
contribute, I hope, to the general financial stability of the country.

(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: In this case, would it not be logical to insure the Govern-
ment’s debentures? Some of these are only listed at 80 and 58 cents. Some have
come down from 80 to 58 cents.

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, I can think of nothing safer than the securities of
the federal government. They will all be paid when they fall due. We have never
had any history in this country, fortunately, of our federal government’s ever
failing to meet its obligations. This is probably even safer than a deposit in a
Chartered bank.

25714—3
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(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: Some people of my riding are writing letters and asking me
why their debentures are only listed at 80 or 58 cents. They cannot understand it
at all, they are beginning to doubt the Government’s solvency. This is what I had
in mind when I asked my question.

The CHAIRMAN: Could you clarify your question? Is it the Government
which is not paying the entire market value?

Mr. LaTuLipPE: No, but being on the market instead of being worth 80 cents
or 58, people want to sell them at a better price because interest rates are going
up and if we increase interest rate these debentures are not being sold since they
have come down instead of going back up. Of course, we understand that the
Government will pay full amount when they are due, but these citizens will have
lost a certain amount in interest.

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, every time the rate of interest goes up the value
of fixed interest securities goes down. Similarly, when the rate of interest goes
down, as it has now been going down for a couple of months the value of these
securities has been going up.

(Translation)

Mr. LaTtuLippE: Now, I would like to point out to the Minister too that in our
economy we have several other types of companies which are doing business and
handle more capital than the ones you want to protect. There is no protection for
them under any law, or regulation of any kind, and they are going bankrupt.
They are losing millions, owe millions, but there is no insurance for them. But
for capital which is partially entered in the books, there will be insurance to
protect the books; but to protect the true wealth of the country, however, there
is nothing, no one is doing anything in this regard. I would ask the Minister if
he could not find some solution to this problem.

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Well, Mr. Chairman, if I could find a solution to the problem of
protecting a businessman against any possibility of failure, I would probably
have solved one of the great human problems. Every time we buy anything, or
invest in anything, we incur certain risks.

This legislation is intended to protect those people who are making deposits
in our banking and near-banking institutions, and I believe that this is a proper
extension of the role of government.

I doubt very much whether it would be possible for the federal government
to ensure the return of everyone’s investment in any sort of an institution.

(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: Perhaps in the future you might find a solution.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Latulippe, maybe you could help the Minister in this
regard.
(English)

Mr. Lind?
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Mr. Linp: Mr. Chairman and Mr. Sharp, I am going to look at this from
a rather different angle.

Will deposit insurance not encourage a more complete disclosure? When we
have full disclosure will this not create a greater confidence in our deposit-tak-
ing institutions?

Mr. SHARP: That is one of the prime objectives, Mr. Chairman.

I believe that we do need more adequate supervision of at least some of our
deposit-taking institutions, and I can think of no more effective way of doing this
at the present time than by the legislation that is before us.

Mr. Linp: Then our deposit insurance will give the man in the street the
more complete protection in our deposit-taking institutions that we would like to
create? Is that not the aim?

Mr. SuARP: That is right.
Mzr. Linp: Thank you.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. More?

Mr. More (Regina City): To follow up on Mr. Lind’s question, do I under-
stand, Mr. Sharp, that this bill will bring about more public disclosure than there
is now in the investigation and reports that are made to the Inspector General
and to Mr. Humphrys in his position, in regard to federally-incorporated compa-
nies?

Mr. SHARP: I have better ask Mr. Humphrys and Mr. Scott to speak on that
point, because my offhand view would be that as far as federal institutions are
concerned the procedures we now have are fairly adequate. I know that that is
So in the case of our chartered banks. I am not quite certain whether we do not
obtain certain extra powers of supervision over the non-banks.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: We do get complete information on federal institutions, and
we publish an annual report giving the details of their financial statements. At
the moment it is not planned to greatly expand the flow of information on those
institutions. But the corporation would be making an annual report on its own
affairs, and in that report some additional information might be disclosed.

Mr. More (Regina City): There is nothing in this bill requiring it?

Mr. HumPHRYS: No; this bill requires the corporation to make an annual
report.

In the case of provincial institutions it may be that there are some now who
make no public disclosure of their financial statements and financial position.

This procedure would help to achieve some increase in the amount of that
disclosure.

Mr. MoRre (Regina City): Only if they become members of this group.
Mr. HumMmPHRYS: Yes.

Mr. MoRre (Regina City): I thought, Mr. Sharp, that I ought to raise that,
because your answer to Mr. Lind indicated something that I had not seen at all. I
think that that answers the question.

Mr. SHARP: May I correct something? I did not think Mr. Lind was talking
about disclosure; he was talking about protection.
2571433
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Mr. MoRE (Regina City): He used the word “disclosure.”

Mr. SuARP: Well, I answered the question, or at least one of the questions, as
relating to the protection of depositors. It does improve the disclosure for those
companies that are provincially incorporated and over which we now have no
authority; and it certainly does improve the protection for the ordinary deposi-
tor.

M. MoRe (Regina City): I have no argument about that. Mr. Lind’s was a
combined question and you gave—and I say this without any criticism—what I
thought was an offhand answer. I wanted clarification.

I wonder if we could get any indication of the size deposit you expect to get?
You have a subscribed capital of $10 million; you have one-thirtieth of 1 p. 100
of the insured deposits as the premium; and you apparently have in mind
reserves built up on a five-year basis before these factors are reduced and
limited.

Before we had your bill and when there was just general discussion in the
Committee we asked—and the question is hypothetical, I agree—‘“Suppose
the deposit insurance bill that the Minister intends to present is on a
basis similar to that of the United States”. I understand the premium there is
one-thirty-fifth of 1 p. 100. However, I did not know until today that it is on all
deposits—insured, or otherwise. I think answers were given that it would cost
the chartered banks between $4 million and $5 million annually in premiums,
and that perhaps the cost to loan companies involved would be something of the
order of $2 million.

I am wondering, in view of the fact that it is one thirtieth of 1 p. 100 of
insured deposits only, if these figures are out of line, or if they are approxi-
mately correct even on this basis?

Mr. SHARP: I am advised that the estimate made by the banks is reasonably
close. We are not in the position, as yet, to know whether the premiums paid by
the other institutions would be accurate.

Mr. MoRE (Regina City): I think perhaps that the answers given were in
regard to federally incorporated companies that had a compulsory obligation.
Would that be approximately right for federally incorporated loan and trust
companies which are compelled to take this insurance?

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Humphrys is just looking at the figures.

Mr. HuMmpHRYS: Depending on the precise definition of “deposits”, it would
appear that federally-incorporated trust and loan companies would pay some-
thing less than $1 million.

Mr. More (Regina City): Something less than $1 million; and the banks
between $4 million and $5 million.

I want to put another question to you. About the compulsory feature of this
and the extension of it to the chartered banks and the federally-incorporated
companies. I have no doubt in my own mind that this is a group the experience
of which in the main, or'perhaps wholly, would indicate that they do not require
this deposit insurance. They are sound; their operations are conducted strictly
in accordance with the law; and the position of their depositors is without
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question. Would you agree that this is the situation with the federally-
incorporated companies that are put under this umbrella compulsorily?

Mr. SHARP: Well, Mr. Chairman, the question to bear in mind is that we are
hoping that there will be some new banks; and there may be some new federal
institutions—at least, we do not hope that, but it could be that there will be.
Certainly in the case of the chartered banks, we are hoping that new banks will
arise. This will help them in attracting deposits.

Mr. MoRre (Regina City): The new banks?

Mr. SHARP: Yes; if they are members of this federal insurance plan. I think
it is a good thing to encourage new banks to get started. Without reflecting in
any way upon the existing banks, I have made it quite clear in introducing the
banking legislation that I believe that there ought to be more competition in the
banking system.

Mr. MoRrE (Regina City): Well, I do not disagree with your argument, Mr.
Sharp, but I want to put the proposition to you that it seems to me—and I have
been in business and had competitors—that what you are asking the present
institutions to do is similar to asking a business that has provided its own capital
and spent its own funds on advertising and other means to establish itself as a
viable and sound business in the community to support a newcomer who enters
the field, and whose problems in establishing himself are too great for him to
face on his own, so that he can establish himself as a competitor. This is what
Seems to me to be the corollary here.

This is why I find it very hard to accept the flat rate premium idea. You are
butting under the umbrella, for the purpose of establishing a sound basis
throughout the whole system, established businesses and developing and new
entrants, and you demand that those who, from their own resources, have
established their position, must now bear the main brunt of providing the basis
for competition to come in and operate. I find it very difficult, Mr. Sharp, to
accept this in principle.

Mr. SHARP: Well, Mr. Chairman, there is another consideration involved
here and that is that it is very much in the interests of our sound, well-estab-
lished financial institutions that the general standards in this business be
raised.

I am quite sure that none of our chartered banks is anything but sorry if
there are unnecessary failures in institutions that are carrying on a similar kind
of business. It is very much in the interests of not only the general public but of
the banks themselves that our financial system should be stable; and that Canada
Sl_lould have a reputation for financial institutions, whether federally or provin-
Clally incorporated, that are run on sound lines.

I believe that the introduction of deposit insurance will underpin the whole
System to the benefit of the well-established institutions.

Mr. More (Regina City): You are talking about the benefit of complete
Confidence by the public with this I do not argue. However, I do argue about the
fact that you are asking the established companies, about whom there is no
Question, to pay too high a price to do this for their new competitors. This is the
boint that I think we are arguing, and I believe there is some general agreement,

r. Sharp, that this is so.
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Mr. SHaRP: I do not disagree that this question should be looked at again.
As I said in reply to Mr. Fulton, I think there is some validity to this argument.
I believe, however, that we should get this institution established, have some
experience, and then look at the question of equities. I think it is significant that
in the United States, even after all these years, they are still proceeding on the
basis of a flat premium.

Mr. More (Regina City): Of course they have a completely different system,
and I would suggest that there is a much greater risk involved in some of the
operations that function in their scheme.

I do not disagree too much with what you say, but I still find it very hard to
accept that as a matter of expediency—that is about the only word I can
use—you say that we go now with the flat rate.

I suggest, as I did earlier, that there is already in existence all the experi-
ence you need in regard to the present companies who are going to be compelled
to enter this scheme. You have complete data for years of operation of these
companies, which will cover any information you may want about the experience
of these companies.

What you are asking, in fact, is that they pay this price for the experience
you have to gain of provincial institutions and other parties who come into the
scheme and of whose operations you do not have full knowledge now.

This seems to me to be the point, but I will leave it at that because I see that
the Minister’s position is, I think, adamant. I appreciate that he does agree that
it is a matter of con51derat10n but not now.

The CHAIRMAN: I understand Mr. Monteith has one question. After that will
recess until later this evening.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Mr. Sharp, I do not know whether you will have this at your
finger tips but possibly Mr. Humphrys or Mr. Scott might have some idea.
Assuming, as we all hope, that there are no calls upon these funds, because of
some institution defaulting one way or another, what sort of reserve do you
expect to have by the end of about 5 years?

Mr. HumpHRYS: We have not made nay projection of that, Mr. Monteith.

Mr. MonTEITH: How much have yoy estimated that your operating ex-
penses will be, or have you got into that at all yet?

Mr. HumprHRYS: We really have not gone into that in detail. We hope that
the operating expenses will be extremely low and that we will not have to fall
back on the insurance.

Tf claims did arise and the corporation had to take over the duties of
liquidation, or receivership, there could be some substantial expense involved.

In the normal course the operating expense should not be large.

Mr. FuLToN: When you refer to “operating expense” are you using it in the
terms just of running this fund, of doing the accounting work with respect to
fund, or are you contemplating also the increase in inspection staff that will be
necessary because of the.expected, and hoped for, large number of institutions
that will come under it? Using “operating expenses” in that sense would your
answer still be the same?
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Mr. HumpHRYS: If it should develop that the corporation had to do a lot of
inspection services, then the expense could be substantial; but the federally-
incorporated institutions will continue to be inspected under existing legislation
in which the costs are charged back to the institutions.

For provincially-incorporated institutions, in some provinces they have, or
are instituting, extensive inspection and supervisory services, and we think it
would be possible for the corporation to make use of those services and the
reports that come from that supervisory service. Therefore, it may not be
necessary for the corporation itself to bear very extensive expenses for inspec-
tion.

However, it is very difficult to estimate at this point how much it would
have to absorb in that respect.

Mr. FuLTon: I have one further question, if Mr. Monteith is agreeable.

To the extent that additional inspection personnel are found to be necessary,
will these personnel be on the staff of the new deposit insurance corporation, or
Wwill you simply expand the services and personnel of the Inspector General of
Banks and your own inspection personnel? Will you have a third body of

inspectors, in other words, or will those other two do the work for the corpora-
tion?

Mr. HumMmpPHRYS: The way the bill is set up it is open to the corporation to
designate a person to do an inspection for it. The bill provides that for federal
institutions the existing pattern will be maintained; so that the corporation could
ask the Superintendent of Insurance to inspect the institutions on its behalf in a
Particular province, and to use the staff of the department; but it would be
expected that the expense thereby incurred would be charged back to the
corporation.

Mr. MoRE (Regina City): Who might then pass it on to the institution
that has been inspected?

Mr. HumpHRYS: No; there is no provision for a direct charge by the
Corporation for inspection of a member institution. The expenses would be
charged against the income of the corporation; and most of its income will, of
Course, arise from interest earned on the fund or the capital.

Mr. More (Regina City): Mr. Chairman, does this not then -create
8reater discrimination than was obvious from the flat rate? The federally-
Incorporated, compelled institutions have to pay the cost of these inspec-
tions, plus the flat rate. Do you now suggest that provincially-incorporat-
ed institutions coming under this scheme will have to pay only the flat fee,
and that the corporation will then pay the costs of the inspection? If so,
this is further discrimination, Mr. Sharp.

Mr. FuLtoN: Have we got the facts right?
Mr. HumpHRYS: Yes, the facts are right.

Mr. SHARP: This is a very minor increase in the burden upon these institu-
ti9ns and, as I say, they, too, benefit indirectly from the improved financial
?lllnate in which they are operating. They would prefer to have these institutions
Ispected and subject to adequate supervision. I am sure that this is their view. I
am also sure that they would prefer to have a different system of premiums.
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However, I think, everything considered, that it is not an undue burden on
these institutions, and that it is preferable to proceed in this way than to attempt
now to work out a much more sophisticated kind of premium system, pending
some experience with the plan.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I suggest that we recess until 8.00 p.m. and
continue our considerations then.

EVENING SITTING

The CHAIRMAN: We are now in a position to resume our meeting. The Clerk
feels that as a matter of procedure we should have a separate motion to print the
proceedings of the deposit insurance bill. That being the case, I would invite a
motion that we print the same number of copies of our proceedings on this
deposit insurance bill as we have for the banking bills.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I so move.
Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: I have had the Clerk distribute to members copies of the
amendments that the government is going to propose at the appropriate time in
the hope that members would have had a chance to study them before we get to
the actual stage of discussion. I think that when we recessed for supper we were
in a general round of questions and discussions on the act and I would ask
members whether they have any further questions or comments to exchange
with the Minister or his officials at this time?

Mr. FurTon: I have a question I would like to ask Mr. Ryan, but he is not
here at the moment and I will defer it until he comes back. I will ask Mr. Sharp a
question, which I indicated earlier may involve some exchange of views, but I
will try to keep it as short as possible.

I have on several occasions indicated my strong feeling—and I am speaking
personally here or as an individual member of Parliament—that it is desirable to
extend the umbrella of federal control, regulation and inspection as widely as
possible over institutions engaged in the field of financial business in Canada,
including what are generally described as finance and acceptance companies.
May I lay this premise or basis for my question. In the Bank Act we have the
means of inspection and control over the banks and, generally speaking, we have
a satisfactory system in so far as their reliability is concerned. Under the Trust
Companies Act and the Loan Companies act, we have by and large from this
point of view the same system with respect to companies in that field.

Mr. SHARP: Federally.

Mr. FurtoN: Federally incorporated. Under the deposit insurance legislation
now being considered we have a device which—although I have reservations—if
it works the way you think it will work, will have as one of its results, and I
think a very important result, further extension of this umbrella over provin-
cially incorporated companies carrying on business as defined in the federal loans
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and trust companies acts. However in my view there is still this one important
gap, and that is the finance and acceptance companies.

It is a fact that the failures which have given rise to very grave concern and
which, I think, have had widespread repercussions in the field of financial
institutions of Canada, have been on the part of two companies, Atlantic
Acceptance and Prudential Finance, which are the type of company that I would
refer to when I talk about finance and acceptance companies. As I see it, there is
nothing in your proposed legislation which covers them or brings them in any
way within the ambit of this federal umbrella. I have developed in the question-
ing of some of the witnesses before this Committee, including Mr. Rasminsky,
the idea of—and I am not claiming any great originality in it, but I have been
very much concerned with the prospect—making available to this kind of
ctompany, whether federally or provincially incorporated, what is called the
device to the lender of last resort, and I am told—and as far as the evidence
given here is concerned, it seems to substantiate it—is that they would be very
happy to have such a device available to them and that they would—at least,
this is my impression—be prepared to accept, as a condition of the availability
of that device or resort, a very considerable degree, indeed whatever degree
might be imposed of federal inspection and regulation.

In this bill before us, An Act to establish the Canada Deposit Insurance
Corporation, it is provided that besides being an insurer of deposit, the corpora-
tion will be a lender of last resort to those companies whose subscription or
adherence to the deposit insurance scheme is contemplated in this bill.

I am sorry about the long preface, but I wanted to ask you on the basis of
that position, your reaction to the possibility of extending this legislation so as to
make applicable the lender of last resort device on a voluntary basis—because
here I think the constitutional position is such that it would have to be volun-
tary, certainly with respect to provincially incorporated companies—to finance
and acceptance companies, thus completing the whole circle of federal coverage?

The CHAIRMAN: I think your question is of such important impact that the
Minister will consult with his officials. I say this because when the tapes are
being transcribed, the stenographers will not think we have adjourned for a
While.,

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, like Mr. Fulton, I have been concerned about the
adverse effect upon our financial reputation of the failure of Atlantic Acceptance
and Prudential Finance. I know that the provincial governments are similarly
concerned. I already have told the provincial ministers who met with me when
We were discussing with them the disclosure of the costs of consumer credit, and
also the Ministers of Finance whom I met just before Christmas in connection
With the pre-budget survey of economic prospects, that I intended to call a
Mmeeting of the provincial ministers to discuss with me the question of finance
Companies in particular, to which the response was very good. They were
obviously very interested.

There are two problems involved, it seems to me. First of all, there is not
Now any framework of legislation to govern the operations of finance companies
either at the federal or at the provincial level. One of the first steps that I would
take, in calling such a conference, would be to be sure that we had, to place
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before the provinces, a draft of a federal bill, which might serve as some sort of a
model for the regulation of these companies.

Mr. FuLToN: Federally incorporated?

Mr. SHARP: Federally incorporated finance companies. Thereafter the ques-
tion of having a rediscount or a lender of last resort privilege could be consid-
ered, and certainly I would like to see this considered as a possible method of
raising the standards of financial management of those companies. However, the
first step undoubtedly is to establish rules within which they are to operate and
these rules, I am told, do not exist at the present time. I think it is fair to say that
none of the 11 governments has legislated adequately in this field. Those are my
preliminary comments, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Furton: Do I understand the effect of what you are saying to be that
until we have devised a federal finance and acceptance companies act—I am just
giving it this title—under which the requirements for incorporation and the
regulation of the activities of such companies under federal charter would be
prescribed, that we would not even be in a position to suggest how they should
be regulated and inspected. Is this what you are saying?

Mr. SHARP: Not quite that. In none of the 11 jurisdictions do we think that
there is adequate legislation in relation to these companies. And you must have
some body of accepted rules before you can consider the extension to these
companies of the privilege of borrowing money in order to maintain or protect
their liquidity. That is why I said that the first step would be to discuss the
legislative regulation of these companies. For our part, we will place before that
conference draft legislation relating to federal companies which, after discussion,
we would place before Parliament; and we would hope that that model might be
suitable for the provinces in passing legislation governing the activities of their
finance and acceptance companies.

The second stage will come when we may consider the suggestion that Mr.
Fulton has made; to provide a form of liquidity for these institutions—not
institutions which have made bad investments but those who have borrowed
short and lent long, or whatever the reason may be—so that they could avoid
going into bankruptcy at the expense of the whole system. Mr. Chairman, I think
that is as far as I feel I can go at the moment. So little has been done in this field
to date that it would be premature to suggest that the first step would be the
establishment of an institution, a bank of last resort, or a facility of last resort.

Mr. FuLton: You are really saying that if you did that at the present time
you would hardly know what criteria should guide those who might then inspect
and see whether they were qualified to come under that umbrella. That is what
you are saying, is it not?

Mr. SHARP: That is what I am saying, yes.

Mr. FurtoN: Mr. Sharp, can you give us an indication of a time table. Are
you able to do that at the moment? I think this is quite urgent.

Mr. SHARP: The only point that I could make at this time is that I have been
urged by the provinces to ca}l a conference of this kind earlier than I had
originally intended. I would call it tomorrow if there were not so many other
things to do and if my officials were not engaged in getting this institution
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established and otherwise dealing with urgent problems. It is my intention to
call an early conference.

Mr. FurTtoN: You cannot give a guarantee, but is it your impression that
proceeding along these lines provincial governments generally would be pre-
pared to accept, once the groundwork is laid, an approach such as you and I have
been discussing?

Mr. SHARP: I have reason to think that the provinces would welcome such an
initiative on our part. One of them has mentioned this specific point about having
an institution of last resort. I do not know if Mr. Humphrys knows anything
more than that about the prospects.

The CHAIRMAN: I am wondering, Mr. Sharp—and perhaps I have been
somewhat lax as Chairman—whether we are straying somewhat afield from the
bill before us. Our position is somewhat different from our consideration of
banking legislation, since we are looking at the whole system as such. I think,
quite rightly, we took a very wide latitude in what we discussed. However, we
now are dealing with a specific bill. I do not mean to imply by my comment that
Mr. Fulton is not raising something which should be of concern to this Com-
mittee and to the country at large.

Mr. Furton: Mr. Chairman, I could relate it to the subject under discussion
by saying that I have been contemplating the possibility of drafting an amend-
ment to this bill which would extend the lender of last resort system. I think it
may be well beyond my capabilities, but it has been in my mind and it was
because we are dealing here with something which is a lender of last resort that I
Wwas asking these questions.

The CHAIRMAN: I can see the relevance, but I thought I should make this
comment.

Mr. MoRrE (Regina City): Mr. Chairman, we are not dealing with banking
legislation; we are dealing with an insurance bill to bring more confidence to our
financial markets.

Mr. MACKASEY: Perhaps we could settle this by discussion when Mr. Fulton’s
amendment is before us.

The CHAIRMAN: I am not suggesting that we should not proceed with this
discussion; I am just bringing this thought to the attention of the Committee.

Mr. FurToN: I was about concluded. In view of what Mr. Sharp has said, he
having all the resources of the federal government at his disposal and I have not,
while I appreciate this kind of discussion, I do not think I am apt to proceed with
my self-imposed task of drafting an amendment because it seems to me that Mr.
Sharp has the matter under urgent and active consideration and I would be
DPrepared to wait.

Mr. SHARP: May I just conclude this discussion, Mr. Chairman, by saying
that I do not think it would be desirable to give the Canada Deposit Insurance
Corporation authority to make loans to finance companies. I believe that the
Problem is a very different one and it might do damage to this institution to give
1t those additional responsibilities.

Mr. FurLtoN: If I have not exhausted my time, may I ask Mr. Ryan what I
hope will be just one question. Mr. Ryan, if the Minister will permit me to put
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this question to you—and I make that qualification because of the tenure of our
earlier discussion—have you been asked for, given or would be prepared to give
an opinion to the Committee as to whether Bill No. C-261 would still be within
the jurisdictional competence of the federal Parliament to enact if clause 16
were to be amended by the deletion of subclause (a)? I am not asking for policy.

Mr. RyaN: Do I have your permission?

Mr. SHARP: Certainly.

Mr. RYAN: Mr. Chairman, I think it would be, yes.
Mr. SHARP: I will take my chances like Mr. Fulton.

Mr. Ryan: I do not think that the removal of that paragraph would alter the
position of the bill at all, constitutionally.

Mr. FuLToN: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, I am finished.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): In line with what Mr.
Fulton said a moment ago about the lender of last resort, I was wondering, Mr.
Sharp, what the implications of subclause (a) of clause 11 are in that connection.
It says that the corporation may make loans or advances to member institutions.
Is this not somewhat on the same line that Mr. Fulton just spoke about?

Mr. SHARP: Yes. The purpose here is to give a lender of last resort facility to
trust and loan companies and other deposit-taking institutions.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): So the problem is that Mr.
Fulton was talking about institutions that are not deposit-taking institutions?

Mr. SHARP: That is it.

Mr. FurTon: Except, T think, that Mr. Rasminsky gave evidence that there
can be wide differences of interpretation as to what is or is not a deposit-tak-
ing institution. It is clear that the purpose of this bill is only to cover those
institutions which are of the trust and loan type, and I would not argue that the
kind of institution I have been talking about is readily identifiable to them. I was
talking about an extension to cover them.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Thompson is next, followed by Mr. Macdonald.

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I have ohe or two questions to ask either the
Minister or Mr. Humphrys. How soon after this bill becomes law would you
expect that the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation would become effective?

Mr. SHARP: Perhaps you could reframe that question and ask: “How soon
after it became law could it become effective?” and then perhaps Mr. Humphrys
could answer that question.

Mr. THOMPSON: All right. How quickly do you see the Corporation actually
extending its benefits to federally chartered institutions?

Mr. HumpHRYS: I would hesitate to name a specific number of days, but I
would think that it could come into operation very quickly after the bill becomes
law.

Mr. THOMPSON: One or two months?

Mr. HumPHRYS: I would think within a month, yes, easily.
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Mr. MoRre (Regina City): I take, from the amendment, that it would be 30
days.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: I would hope so. The problem would be to draft the bylaws,
have them approved by the Governor in Council and set up a minimum amount
of machinery to perform the functions. I think though with the help of the staff
of existing departments, that it could be put into operation quite quickly.

Mr. THOMPSON: My reason for raising this question—centres around the
thought of whether it would be your intention to recognize all of the institutions
involved simultaneously—which would mean that you would have to investigate
their financial position and this would take some time. There would be a
likelihood of it being inequitable unless recognition could be extended in the first
instance simultaneously.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, may I draw attention again to the remarks, that I
made on second reading of this bill when I dealt specifically with that question
I said at page 12621 of Hansard:

It would be undesirable for federal institutions to be insured earlier
than insurance would be available to provincial institutions. To expedite
making insurance available to provincial institutions it is contemplated
that the deposit insurance corporation would be prepared to cover all
the existing deposit accepting trust and loan companies of a province
if the province concerned so requested, even before the corporation has
made an examination into the affairs of the individual companies and
ascertained if they were eligible for insurance.

Mr. THOMPSON: That is on page 126217
Mr. SHARP: Yes.

Mr. THoMPSON: Well, this answers my other question. What I was going to
ask was, would there be sufficient time allowed for those provincially chartered
institutions who wish to come under the initial recognition to do so in the first
instance. I would assume from this statement that that would be your intention.

Mr. SHARP: That is the intention. We would like to bring the scheme into
effect over as wide an area as possible at the same time. If a province does not
want to make a request like that to us, which has some financial responsibilities
resting upon the provincial government, then they would simply tell their
companies that they could insure or must insure and the Corporation would
make an inspection, and after it was satisfied as to the financial management of
the deposit taking corporation it would cover it.

Mr. THOMPSON: In other words, you are prepared to extend coverage and if
more time was necessary for investigation this could be done afterwards. This
question comes as a result of inquiries that have come to me. Also, at this
Particular moment practically all of the legislatures are in session and it becomes
a very timely thing that they know this and that action be taken now so as to not
work unfair hardship on any institution as far as competition is concerned. I
think that is all, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. SHARP: I told the Committee, Mr. Chairman, as you will recall, that I
had written to all the provincial governments, enclosmg copies of my remarks on
Second reading of this bill.
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Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr, Chairman, I would like to revert to a line
of questioning that I was pursuing this afternoon; it refers to clause 2, subclause
(e), the definition of deposits. I think it is generally understood that what is
meant primarily by “deposit” is deposit into a savings account. I am not so
certain how far you would go with respect to other instruments issued by this
type of institution, guaranteed investment certificates and so on. I realize that
the way is left open to the Corporation to define what a deposit is but I wonder if
the Minister has anything definite in mind.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, this is an important question. I will try to be as
forthcoming as possible.

In my speech on second reading I made some general comments, and I said
this on February 3 at page 12622 of Hansard:

Except in the matter of the maximum size of deposit to be insured,
namely $20,000 it has been thought best to leave some room for flexibility
in the definition of insurable deposits. It is proposed, therefore, to define
the kinds of deposits eligible for insurance under the by-laws of the
corporation which will require the approval of the Governor in Council.
All the usual kinds of savings and current deposit accounts will be
insured. In addition, it is the intention to include special forms of term
and notice deposits and deposit-like instruments which are issued by some
institutions.

It may be desirable to ensure a clear, public understanding of what is
insured and what is not insured by bringing about some clarification in
the names used to describe certain deposit instruments. But so far as the
existing situation is concerned the intention is to go as far as possible to
make insurance available for all types of deposits and deposit-like instru-
ments provided only that they are not instruments clearly in the category
of securities rather than deposits.

I have been discussing this with my officials; they have suggested a general
framework within which we will probably operate, and I know that this is a
burden on Mr. Humphrys but I wonder if he might not describe in general terms
what we have in mind. I cannot commit the Governor in Council so Mr.
Humphrys will be talking in general about the kind of instruments that we think
should be insured now, and he will give some indication of the sort of changes
that might come about after we have insurance in effect to re-describe or
re-define the instruments.

Mr. HuMmPHRYS: The area that was being considered, as Mr. Sharp described,
was to define the deposit as to include three types. The first would be deposits
repayable on demand. These would include the type of instrument, the type of
receipts and deposits normally thought of as deposits; that is, deposited to a
running account with the receipt being acknowledged by an entry in a pass book
or an entry in the institution’s books. The second category would be deposits or
moneys received that are repayable on notice, the notice not to exceed five years.
The third category would be moneys received in exchange for an instrument that
promises to repay the moneys at a fixed date in the future, the fixed date not to
be more than five years from the date that the moneys were received.

In summary, on this plan deposits would be defined as demand deposits and
term deposits up to five years.

(
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After the plan comes into force it would be desirable that there be no
confusion in the minds of the public as to which types of moneys or obligations
are insured and which are not, so that we would propose some terminology that
would make it clear which obligations of an institution are insured, probably by
the use of the word ‘“deposit” on an instrument given as receipt for moneys. Of
course, the kind of moneys received and entered in a pass book would be insured
and they would be recognized as deposits in the ordinary sense.

With respect to obligations on the books of an institution at the time the act
comes into force, some expansion of this might have to be made to recognize the
fact that terminology used prior to the date this plan became effective would not
be quite as precise as we would want it to be after the insurance is effective.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): You would therefore give the word “deposit” a
secondary meaning, in the sense of the carrying out of the implications that are
insured under this act.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: Yes.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): And would permit its use otherwise in respect
of things of this kind.

Mr. HumPHRYS: I think it would be desirable to forbid its use on instru-
ments that are not insured, or at least if it is used to make sure that the
instrument is clearly marked “Not Insured”, so that there is no misunderstand-
Ing on the part of the holder.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): And if the particular instrument had anything
on it about security, it would not be covered by the insurance.

. Mr. HumMmPpHRYS: It was thought that if moneys are received in return for an
Instrument made payable to the bearer or an instrument that is clearly designed
to be a negotiable instrument that that would not be insured.

1 Mr. WaHN: Do you think there would be any resistance on the part of any
Institutions to mark non-insured instruments clearly to that effect—in other
Wwords, to have them mark in red, “This is not an insured instrument.” or “This
Security is not insured under the federal government Deposit Insurance Act.”
They might resist doing that, and yet insurance policies have marked in red, for
eéxample, something to this effect, “This policy contains a co-insurance clause”. I
Can see that some confusion could be caused if an institution secures public
Tecognition as one that is insured under this act, but if it is taking insured
deposits and issuing uninsured securities the public might be mislead unless
8reat care is taken to mark these instruments clearly.

Mr. HumpHRYS: I would not think that any institution would want to stamp
any of its instruments “not insured”. Personally, I think that the better course
Would be to avoid the use of the word “deposit” except on instruments that are
Insured.

Mr. WaAHN: You think that would be sufficient to avoid public confusion.

. Mr. HuMPHRYS: And to include the word “deposit” in some fashion on every
Insured instrument.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Perhaps this question should be addressed to
Mr. Scott. As a matter of interest, are the certificates which the chartered banks
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are currently issuing for payment over a longer period—that is, not on demand—
negotiable instruments?

Mr. W. E. Scott (Inspector General of Banks): I think that some of them
can be transferred and others cannot. I think it is a mixed bag.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Then, Mr. Humphrys, would the quality of
negotiability be an essential element in that type of instrument?

Mr. HumpHRYS: I think that perhaps it is not possible to give a precise
answer at the moment. It was thought that some instruments are issued clearly
for the purpose of trading in the investment market and that it would be
reasonably easy to identify them. But there are other instruments, such as
debentures issued by loan companies, that are not primarily issued as negotiable
instruments, although they may be traded, and there may be a limited market
for them. We would think that instruments like that, that are not essentially
issued for the purpose of investment trading, would be insured whereas the
other type would not. It may be that we would get into some problems on
borderline cases. These are some problems that will have to be worked out in the
actual circumstance.

Mr. MAcpONALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, may I put a question to Mr.
Ryan with respect to his answer to the final question by Mr. Fulton. I take it
that in the reply that he gave he felt that clause 16 (a) neither adds nor
subtracts from the rights accruing to your clients but that you were not offering
any opinion as to the probability of litigation.

Mr. Ryan: I was offering no comment on that point. I may clarify my reply,
if I may, Mr. Chairman, and add one more thing. I do not think that its inclusion
or removal affects the constitutional position as a matter of law.

Mr. MoORe (Regina City): It would not alienate any of the jurisdictions
by its inclusion?
Mr. RyaN: Not as a matter of law.

Mr. SHARP: This is a very important point, Mr. Chairman, because it had
been urged by Mr. Fulton, whether for political or legal reasons, I am not
certain.

Mr. More (Regina City): Let us keep zhis clean.
Mr. MAckASEY: Let us leave the legal reasons out of if.
Mr. FuLTon: Politics is clean.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Well, perhaps Mr. More could define for us
which he thinks is cleaner.

Mr. SHARP: Well, it had been urged by Mr. Fulton, at least I thought it had,
that the inclusion of such a provision would prejudice future rulings in relation
to the jurisdiction of parliament over banking. I gather from what Mr. Ryan has
said that he does not agree with you.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there other members who have questions at this time?

(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: Mr. Chairman,;I would have a comment to make on Clause
34. Reading this Clause I am struck by something which seems to be wrong. In
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all due deference to the Minister of Finance, I see that the Governor in Council
may authorize the Minister of Finance to advance, out of any unappropriated
moneys in the Consolidated Revenue Fund. .. It seems that it is wrong to ask that
the Minister of Finance be submitted to the authority of the Governor. There
seems to be something wrong in Clause 34. What do you think of it, Mr.
Minister?

(English)

Mr. SHARP: It is not often that I have a Member of Parliament who puts me
over the government; because I find the Governor in Council resists my efforts to
control it.

(Translation)
Mr. LaTurippe: I understand that this is the governor of the corporation.

The CHAIRMAN: No, it is not the governor of the corporation. It is the Gov-
ernor in Council, that is the Government, the Cabinet.

Mr. LaTuLippe: I thought it was the governor of the corporation.

The CHAIRMAN: This is a legal term which means the Cabinet.

Mr. LatuLippE: Now, “Consolidated Revenue Funds up to five hundred
million, to the corporation”. Why five hundred millions, Mr. Minister? What
would be the use of these five hundred million dollars advanced from the
Consolidated Revenue Fund?

(English)

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, this is for purposes of making loans to companies
that are insured in order to improve their liquidity. This is to meet the problems
that sometimes arise with these organizations when they borrow on short term
and lend for long periods and occasionally get into difficulty in meeting their
Maturing obligations.

_ This would enable the corporation to make advances to deposit-taking
Institutions to enable them to meet their obligations pending the maturity of
their investments.

(Translation)

Mr. LATULIPPE: Do you think that there will always be money in this Fund?
Should there not be any money left in the Consolidated Revenue Fund and
the Corporation applies for some. Would it have to wait in such cases?

(English)

Mr. SuARP: Well, Mr. Latulippe, I should not tell you that if I followed your
doctrine of Social Credit I would just print the money and make sure there was
€nough.

The CHAIRMAN: I think these discussions on monetary policy had better be
Teserved until we return to the Bank Act.

Mr. THoMPSoN: You are speaking to the Minister of Finance, I hope and not
to Mr. Latulippe.

The CHAIRMAN: I presume, Mr. Sharp, dealing with Mr. Latulippe’s point,
that the advances to be made under the clause are only in so far as the

25714—4
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Consolidated Revenue Fund is in funds to permit this to be done? That is your
point.

Mr. SHARP: Oh, yes. The Consolidated Revenue Fund has all the revenues,
taxation and borrowed money that the federal government has at its disposal,
and I do not think any circumstances would arise under which the Consolldated
Revenue Fund would run out of cash to meet its obligations.

(Translation)

Mr, LATULIPPE: If there is nothing left, the people are taxed.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, gentlemen, I think that I am in a position to ask: the
Committee whether clause 1 shall carry.

Clauses 1 and 2 agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Shall clause 3 carry? Did you have a question, Mr. Fulton?

Mr. Furton: I thought I had some comments somewhere on clause 3. Will
you give me one moment? No. I have no questions on clause 3.

Clauses 3 and 4 agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Shall clause 5 carry?
~An hon. MEMBER: We have an amendment here.
On clause 5—Board of Directors.
The CHAIRMAN: Oh, I beg your pardon.
Mr. FurToN: We have some amendments here.

The CHAIRMAN: Oh, I am sorry. I have them out of order.

Beforé completing our consideration of clause 5, I understand that 'the
government wishes to propose an amendment. It has been distributed.

Before pufting it forward I would like someone on the Committee to move
the amendment.
~_Mr. Furron: I am sorry, the first one I have of the papers distributed is
Clause 6. Did I miss one? :
The CHAIRMAN: It is clause 5. I actually had my copy out of order, as well.
Mr. WAHN: I so move. »
Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale); I second the motion.

That Bill C-261, An Act to establish the Canada Deposit
Insurance Corporation, be amended by striking out line 35 on
page 2 thereof and by substituting therefor the following:
Acting “(3) Where the office of Chairman is wvacant, the

St Minister may appoint, for'a period not exceeding ninety
days, an Acting Chairman who shall, while so acting, be
a member of the Board of Directors and have and exercise
all the powers of the Chairman.

Travelling (4) A member of the Board of Directors of the”

allowances. :

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps I should invite the officials and the MinisterA to
give us any brief explanation they may want to put before us, although I thmk
the amendment speaks for itself.
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Mr. HumpHRYS: Mr. Chairman, this amendment is designed to -enable the
Corporation to get into operation more quickly and to appoint a chairman for a
temporary period.

The CHAIRMAN: Shall the amendment carry?

Mzr. FurTon: This inserts a new provision, does it not?
Mr. HUMPHRYS: Yes.

Clause 5 as amended agreed to.

On Clause 6—Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: The government is also proposing an amendment by adding
after subclause (5) a new subclause (6).

Mr. THOMPSON: I do not have an amendment on 6.

The CHAIRMAN: Probably 1nadvertent1y they were not dlstrlbuted in com-
plete sets.
While they are being distributed, I will read the new proposed subclause
(6).
(6) A vacancy on the Board of Directors does not impair the mght of
the remainder to act.

Mr. Wahn, perhaps you could propose this amendment.
Mr. WAHN: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Furton: Mr. Chairman, I am sorry, but would you mind my suggesting
that this would be more appropriate as an addition to clause 5?7 Clause 5
constitutes the board, etc. and clause 6, it seems to me, is almost entirely
concerned with the office of chairman. Here, it seems to be, we are going back to
deal with the board.

Mr. WAHN: There is nothing in clause 6 dealing with the board.

Mr. SHARP: I am advised by our legal adviser that you have made a good
point. '

The CHAIRMAN: Shall we then revert to clause 5 and the motion moved by
Mr. Wahn, seconded by Mr. Macdonald with respect to this amendment be
deemed to be included under clause 5.

Mr. FuLTon: Subelause (5) of clause 5.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, and the amendment be such that it be changed to read
that after subclause (4) of clause (5)—

Mr. FuLton: —of clause 5, the following be added.

The CHAIRMAN: —the following be added; and this, of course, would be—
Mr. FurToN: Subclause (5). '
The CHAIRMAN: Subclause (5).

Mr. WanN: Would it not be better after subclause 2 of the present clause 5?
Clause 5(2) deals with absence and incapacity and this gives the right to those
Who are not absent or incapacitated. If we made it (3) and renumbered—

Mr. FuLTON: Yes.
25714—43
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Mr. WAHN: —the present 3, 4 and 5 it seems to me it would be more in
order.

The CHAIRMAN: We could do it that way as well. Mr. Ryan, do you have any
suggestion?

Mr. Ryan: Not as long as it is in, Mr. Chairman. It was a drafting oversight.
It is just one of these things.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. All right. Let us give this another try. We wish, in
effect, to propose that this subclause with regard to vacancy on the board of

directors be inserted immediately after subclause (2) of clause 5 and that it be,
therefore, (3) and that the other clauses following be renumbered (4) and (5).

Mr. Ryan: Right.

The CHAIRMAN: That is understood?
Clause 5 as further amended agreed to.
Clauses 6, 7, 8, and. 9 agreed to.

On clause 10—Provincial institutions.

Mr. THOoMPSON: All you are doing in clause 10 is defining a provincial
institution as compared to clause 9 which does the same for federal institutions?
Is that correct?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ryan, would you care to answer the question?

Mr. Ryan: Yes.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, could I dsk
a question now of, perhaps, Mr. Humphrys?

Is it possible that there may be some institutions that we might want to have
brought under this act that would not fall within the meaning of the Trust
Companies Act or the meaning of Loan Companies Act? Would there be any that
might be outside of these?

Mr. HUMPHREYS: Yes; financial investment companies.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): No; they would not be
depositors.

Mr. THOMPSON: I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that we might reword clause 10. It
is a very, very long cumbersome sentence which is finally completed, in the last
four words. Would it not be better to follow the pattern of clause 9 and say “For
purposes of this Act a provincial institution is (1)...” and begin that way? It has
only to do with grammatical structure. I struggled through this long sentence to
find it completed in the last four words.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ryan, would it be better to begin as you do in clause 9?

Mr. Ryan: It is not quite so easy in its grammatical structure because we are
using an enumeration, Mr. Chairman, in clause 9. If you start clause 10 that way
you have a bit of initial awkwardness—For the purpose of this Act, a provincial
institution is (1) an incorporated company that carries on under provincial...”
ete. ete. etc., and it appears as though you are saying what shall be a provincial
institution in a province, rather than—,

Mr. THomPsON: Well, I am reading it as a school teacher not as a lawyer, I

guess.
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The CHAIRMAN: There is nothing wrong with that. A lawyer has got to stay
in business. That is why you get these clauses.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): If you make it too simple,
they would be out of work.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: To answer Mr. Cameron’s question I think that this defines
the type of institution that we thought should be included in a plan such as this.
It may be that there are some types of institutions existing in a province that
are pretty close to this but perhaps do not fall under it. I do not think we can
really tell positively until we have had a complete survey of just what is
existing. In some provinces they may not be too sure about the powers of some
of the institutions that are in the financial intermediary business itself. There-
fore, some things may have to be worked as we get more information.

Mr. GiLBERT: Mr. Humphrys, what is a constating instrument?

Mr. HumpHRYS: Perhaps I should have Mr. Ryan answer that. It is a good
word. It is the document that creates the corporation, as I understand it.

Mr. RYaN: And which is publicly registered in some formal fashion.

As a matter of curiosity, it comes from the Insurance Act. Mr. Humphrys
should be familiar with it.

Mr. HuMmPHRYS: The federal Insurance Act.

Mr. Ryan: Yes, the federal Insurance Act.

The CHAIRMAN: Shall clause 10 carry?

Mr. LAFLAMME: Have we an amendment to clause 6 which we have missed?
The CHAIRMAN: No; we decided to insert it in clause 5.

Mr. LAFLAMME: All right.

Clause 10 agreed to.

On clause 11—Powers of Corporation.

Mr. FuLToN: May I raise one question.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. FurTon: In subclause (g) I wonder if the words “or by by-law’ should
be included?

An hon. MEMBER: What clause is that?
The CHAIRMAN: Subclause (g) of clause 11.
Mr. FULTON:

make or cause to be made such inspections of a member institution
as may be authorized under this Act or the policy of deposit insurance;

Frankly, in the later clauses I do not see very many specific requirements for

Inspection, and I am wondering, therefore, whether it was the intention to cover

{;hls by by-law. If so, I am wondering if we should specifically say ‘“or by
y-law?”,

Mr. HumMmpHRYS: I think there will be an amendment, Mr. Fulton, that bears
On that point and requires an annual inspection of every insured institution.
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Mr. FuLTON: Where are the amendments proposed?

The CHAIRMAN: Clause 22.

Mr. FuLToNn: That answers my question.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I am sorry, Mr. Chairman;
I wonder if I could refer to this again? I am revealing my ignorance.

... institution as may be authorized under this Act or the policy of
deposit insurance.

I do not quite understand what that means.

Surely everything that is going to be done in this must be done under the
authority of the Act?

Mr. Suarp: Well, it was pointed out, Mr. Chairman, that the federal com-
panies may not be issued with policies, so they are required to be insured.

Clause 11 agreed to.

On clause 12—Powers of directors and by-laws.

Mr. FUuLTON: Again by way of question only, I wonder whether it would be

desirable to add to sub clause (h) at the end thereof, the words: “and to provide
for the inspection thereof”.

The Board of Directors administer and may make bylaws to provide or as
following:

prescribing standards of sound busmess and financial practices for mem-
ber institutions;

and to provide for the inspection thereof.
Is that also covered by the proposed amendment?

The CHAIRMAN: The proposed amendment to clause 22 reads:

The Corporation may require; and the corporation shall cause an examina-
tion of the affairs of the company to be made at least one in each such
year.

Mr. FuLToN: At least once; so you may require, or shall cause, rather to be
made; and that would not have to be included in the bylaw, in your opinion.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not know if Mr. Ryan will agree but it may be that
subclause 1(a) and subclause 1(j) may be wide enough to cover making bylaws
with regard to inspections. I just throw this thought out for consideration.

Mr. Ryan: Well, the inspections, as such, are covered by clauses 21 and 22.
In the case of the federal companies it is prescribed by the statute. In the case of
the provincial companies it is bound up in the policy of deposit insurance which
in itself is in the form prescribed by the the bylaw.

Mr. More (Regina City): As the Corporation may require. ..
Mr. FurtoN: The Corporation is probably required by bylaw.

Mr. HumMmPHRYS: The idea is that the Corporation would have discretion to
make an examination whenever it wished, depending on the circumstances.

Mr. FuLTon: Would you not have to have a meeting of the directors each
time and direct that an examination be made?
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Mr. HumMmpHRYS: Well, not necessarily. The directors might, for example,
delegate a decision in that respect to the principal officer of the corporation.

Clauses 12 and 13 agreed to. !

On clause 14—Insuring Federal Institutions.

We have an amendment to clause 14. It is an amendment calling for the
striking out of the existing subclause (5) and the substituting of another sub-
clause reading:

This section shall come into force on a day to be fixed by proclamation of
the Governor-in-Council.

Perhaps I can have Mr. Ryan and Mr. Macdonald move the amendment
formally so that we have it before us. Are there any questions or explanations?

Mr. FurToN: Is this for the purpose the Minister has alluded to of bringing
the provincial institutions under from the earliest possible date?

Mr. HuMPHRYS: Yes; it also enables this plan to go into force as quickly as
can be managed without having to wait a minimum of thirty days.

The CHAIRMAN: Shall the amendment carry?
Clause 14 as amended agreed to.

Clause 15 agreed to.

On clause 16—Insurance of Provincial Institutions.

Mr. LAFLAMME: On this clause I would like to raise again what I think is a
really important question. I do not want to embarrass the Minister but, unless
the minister can give us the assurance, that any provincially-incorporated insti-
tution will not be vetoed by any provincial government saying No, I think that
the words

is authorized by the province of its incorporation
should be deleted.

I really think that we are creating difficulties for any provincial institution
that would be willing to enter into the federal scheme. By not removing those
words, any provincial government that wants to pass legislation forbidding any
provincial institution from entering into the federal scheme-should bear the
burden of that responsibility in the minds of the public and should freely allow
the provineial institutions to enter into the scheme if they wish to do so. Unless,
Mr. Minister, you can give that assurance, that no provincial government could
be in the position of just saying, “No, you will not enter,” I cannot see what is
the purpose of that clause saying that the provincial institution is authorized by,
if the provincial institution is authorized by the province of its incorporation.

I have really strong feelings about it. We live in a free country. We should
not forbid any provincial institution from entering into the federal scheme if
they wish to do so. If we delete those words and we have a provincial institution
that is forbidden entry into the federal scheme, then the provincial government
will have to bear, in the minds of the public, the burden of any such legislation.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Laflamme, this is only a point of clarification. I have
noted two points of view tonight. I have seen this happen previously in the
Fulton-Favreau formula, where both people claim they are right but for differ-
ent reasons.
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I sensed from Mr. Fulton’s remarks earlier that he was concerned about the
federal jurisdiction over banks being invaded by provincial governments, and I
sense a little in yours—and I can be wrong here—the fear that we are infringing
in provincial areas?

An hon. MEMBER: No, no; quite the contrary.

Mr. Mackasey: All right. However, in the meantime, while this government
is taking its responsibility, the provincial institutions have to wait for the
provincial government to make up its mind; whereas, if this clause is in effect a
particular institution in the province of Quebec can take the initiative and say,
“We want to take advantage of this particular Act,” and can then apply to the
provincial authorities for permission. Would this not force the issue that you are
concerned about?

Mr. LAFLAMME: If they say No, without legislation at all.

Mr. Mackasey: Well, if they say No, will this not be made just as much
public as if they do it by way of legislation?

Mr. LarLAMME: Well, then, what kind of authorization is required from any
provincial government?

Mr. MACKASEY: Perhaps Mr. Sharp can answer what, in his opinion, he
would consider to be official assent or authorization by a province for a particu-
lar provincial institution to take advantage of this Act?

Mr. Fuvuton: I would say it is a matter between the provincial government
and the applicant.

Mr. MACKASEY: You have not been promoted to minister yet. I want to get
this from the Minister. Mind you, if I were a promoter I would place you there
fast if there was an all-party coalition some day.

Mr. SHARP: I wanted to speak to this point which I understand is a matter
of some delicacy. I can understand the misgivings of members of the Committee.

The purpose of putting this clause in the bill was to create a climate of
co-operation with the provinces. It is our belief that if we do require the
institutions to go to the provincial government to get permission before they
apply we will then know that we will have the co-operation of the provincial
government in carrying out the intent of the legislation.

It may be, for example, that after inspecting some of these institutions we
may want the province to change its laws or its administration of the affairs of
these companies.

By making it quite clear in the legislation that we will not take on one of
these companies without the co-operation of the provincial government we
believe that we will, in fact, improve the climate of co-operation; otherwise we
would not have put it in.

As I say, I have every reason to believe that in nine provinces there will be
no question about it. In the tenth province, I am by no means pessimistic, and I
believe that the fact that we have invited their co-operation will improve the
chances of getting all their deposit-taking institutions under this law.

For us to say that we will insure these institutions, even if the province does
not give specific authority, will be to invite, we believe, a less co-operative
attitude.
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Now, this is purely a political consideration and I can only urge it upon the
Committee in that light.

Mr. MAcKASEY: What you are saying, Mr. Sharp, is that you are hoping by
this clause to obtain the most desirable form of protection for all Canadians, in
the particular case of Quebec, through co-operation rather than having a head-
on battle about who has jurisdiction over what.

In other words, the interest of Canadians would be best served if you could
arrive at the desired result through co-operation rather than through a legal
battle?

Mr. Suarp: May I add this other word by way of explanation? When we
originally spoke of this legislation, when I was discussing the Bank Act on
second reading, and, even later, when I introduced the resolution, it had been our
intention to give the provinces a much longer time to have a good look at the
provisions of this legislation. We had promised this to the provincial ministers
and to the provincial officials when we had informal discussions with them on the
matter.

For reasons that I think are compelling, we are moving ahead with this
legislation much more rapidly, and before there had been an opportunity for the
kind of discussion that under other circumstances I think is most desirable.
Therefore, I certainly do not want, by any action that we might take here, to
prejudice in anyway the success of this legislation. I do believe that if we were
now to remove that limitation it would not help to improve the climate of
co-operation.

Mr. GILBERT: Mr. Sharp, are you saying that nine provinces have indicated
their co-operation with regard to provincial institutions?

Mr. SHARP: I have not had personal contacts with the ministers, but my
officials have with the officials of those governments. The officials who had those
contacts are here and I think they will confirm that the attitude of nine of the
provinces is very co-operative.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions or discussion?

Mr. FurToN: I can see the Minister’s point. On the other hand, I can see very
real chaos developing here if we leave any doubt about the matter, because there
are important companies within the ambit of this bill, which are provincial
incorporations; and they do business all across Canada. They, and financial
institutions in general, as we have then now, would be, disrupted very severely
if they were unable to carry on their cross-country operations.

What situation do we have, therefore? If company “A” is doing business in
10 provinces, and 9 of those provinces—or any number of those provinces,
perhaps nine—were to say: No company may take a deposit in this province
unless that deposit is insured under the federal legislation”, but one province in
which the head office of that company is located were to say, “This company
may not subscribe to the federal deposit insurance scheme,” the branch offices
would either have to defy the authority of the province in which they are
carrying on business, or they would have to close them up.
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I wish the Minister could give us the assurance that Mr. Laflamme asked for.
I appreciate that we are having to move more quickly than had been the original
intention, as we have a dilemma here. As the resolution of the dilemma, though,
the one that I have referred to would be far more damaging over-all than the
to act in haste.

Personally, I do not think that that lack of co-operation will develop, if you
possibility of a lack of co-operation on the part of one province because we had
leave entirely up to the company whether it applies or not. You are not
compelling it to apply, but you are giving the veto here to any province with
respect to the operation of the federal scheme,

This is a scheme within federal jurisdiction, without question, and I find it, I
am afraid, impossible to allow such a proposal to pass without my utmost
resistance. I am not talking about the whole bill. I am talking about this
particular section. There is only one way that I can carry my resistance to the
utmost, as I see it. :

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, unless Mr. Sharp wants to comment on Mr.
Fulton’s observation, may I say that I can appreciate that this is a federal act,
and I certainly understand his very telling argument about an crganization that
does banking coast-to-coast; but I, as a Quebecer, am very aware, as is Mr.
Laflamme, of a broader aspect of the problem. Obviously, whether or not it is

fully established in Mr. Fulton’s opinion about what is federal and what is

provincial here, there is obviously in your mind, and in your officials’ minds, a
degree of uncertainty about who is right constitutionally.

You have put in this particular section to avoid what I might eall another
incident between the federal and provincial governments, which could, and in all
probability will, be resoleved through a series of conferences which normally
would have taken place before this bill become a reality. You do, intend to go
ahead, I understand; with these conferences, and if they are as'successful as you
anticipate then this clause (a) will no longer assume the same significance.

In the meantime, however, it does permit Parliament to go ahead with a
very desirable bill, and avoid another source of conflict between any prov-
inces—not necessarily Quebec—and the federa® government. Now, this, I feel, is
the philosophy behind the inclusion of this particular clause. I am quite willing
to agree to an amendment to remove it if somebody can convince me of the
desirability of creating the possibility of a head-on collision with a particular
province, which could jeopardize the whole bill.

Mr. FuLton: I would like to offer this possible compromise. I appreciate the
delicacy of the position.

I think it may preserve Mr. Sharp’s ability to negotiate, while preserving
our position, if we were to add as an amendment: “Provided however that the
operation of this section shall be reviewed by Parliament within six months”, or
something to that effect, so that we know the position.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you mean the whole section or as far as subclause (a) is
concerned? ;

Mr. FurroN: Well, I think it should be the whole of Clause 16—six months
after the act comes into force.
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Mr. CHRATIEN: But is it not always possible to change the law if we see that
there is something wrong with it?

Mr. FurTon: No private member can move—

Mr. CHRETIEN: But the government is concerned to have the law working
well. If there is some problem at that time we can change it.

Mr. FurTon: This is our last chance.
The CHAIRMAN: Order, please. Mr. Chrétien had the floor.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, I think I asked exactly the same
question, and the Minister’s reply is on the record.

Mr. SHARP; May I, Mr. Chairman, just read what I said on second reading on
this point. This is again at page 12621 of Hansard.

An hon. MEMBER: February 3?

Mr. SHARP: Yes.

I realize that by going ahead at once on this proposal we will not have
as full consultation with the provinces before the legislation comes into
effect as we had originally hoped to have. It is not intended that passage
of the legislation will close the door to further discussion with the
provinces, and I will continue to give serious consideration to any sugges-
tions that may be made. However, in the light of the views that have
been expressed in the house and in the committee which is considering
the bank bills, the government has reached the conclusion that we should
not delay the availability of deposit insurance while further discussions
with the provinces proceed.

'.I‘his is one of the main reasons for our being doubly careful not to create the
Impression that we are forcing some legislation ahead without regard to the
sensibilities of the provinces who may not have the same view of the constitution
that we have.

Mr. MACKASEY: You made the statement that you were pushing this bill in
hurry because of a possible adverse reaction at a provincial-federal conference.

The CHAIRMAN: I am sorry, Mr. Mackasey; Mr. Thompson has the floor.

Mr. THompsoN: We have only a couple of minutes, Mr. Chairman, and I
would say to Mr. Fulton: Supposing we agree with what is your basic thinking
behind this—I think I understand what it is—are we, the federal Parliament,
able to say to a provincial organization that has a provincial charter; “We will
take you whether you have the permission of the provincial government or not?”
I am just making a statement now. Can the created say to the creator, “Why
have you made me thus?”

It would be an impossible situation, and it seems to me that in such an event
the provincially-chartered institution that may not have the permission of its
bProvincial government that granted its charter to accept, or come under, the
coverage of this insurance would then only have the alternative of seeking a
federal charter.

Some hon. MEMBERS: That is right.
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Mr. THOoMPSON: This is why I was questioning this before. As long as this
law is open, and as long as the policy of the government is to encourage such to
come, then you are, by legitimate means, bringing about the very thing that you
believe is right, and which I would tend to agree with, which is the matter of
federal control and jurisdiction over financial institutions and financial policies?

Mr. More (Regina City): Does it not work the other way, too. If we do not
have this proviso in there then a provincial company, on a voluntary basis, is
free to come within ambit of the act. It does not stop the provincial authority
from vetoing it, and if they veto it then their alternative is to become federally
chartered.

Mr. THOMPSON: Yes, but how can a provincial institution become part of this
against the wishes of the government of that province, or the administration of
that province that granted its incorporation?

Mr. MoRre (Regina City): We are not aware that they are against it. All we
are doing is providing a door.

Mr. THOoMPSON: The door is there anyway, and it is a legitimate and a proper
door, I think.

Mr. FuLToN: I must say that my view is that what is involved here is the
surrender of a federal juristiction, and the purported creation of provincial
jurisdiction which is not conferred by the constituton. I do not care what
province it is. I object ot the inclusion of ths clause, even if the ten provinces
agree.

Mr. THOMPSON: Well, you saw what happened to the Fulton-Favreau for-
mula. You have not faced the facts.

Mr. FurtoN: There will be further discussion. We were seeking there an
amendment to the constitution. Here we are dealing with a power conferred by
the constitution which does not involve any amendment at all, in my submission.

Mr. THOMPSON: But as long as there is a provincially-chartered company, is
it within our authority to say to that organization, “We are going to lay down
what you should do”? "

Mr. FurToN: We are not; and I am not suggesting it. We are legislating if
my suggestion is adopted that in a field of undoubted federal jurisdiction—our
authority over banks and banking—institutions that take deposits in Canada
shall have available to them a federal deposit insurance scheme.

Mr. THOMPSON: But is not the way to do that—

Mr. FurTon: That is what I am suggesting we say; and I say that no
province has the jurisdiction to veto the voluntary entry of a provincially-
incorporated institution into such a scheme which is set up under our jurisdic-
tion.

Mr. SHARP: Mr. Chairman, may I offer just one comment on that. I do not
think this is quite the point. Our purpose in putting that in was to improve the
climate for co-operation. We want to have the co-operation of the provinces
in supervising these corporations. The provinces certainly have the power of

supervising those corporations—they are their own corporations—and we would
like to have them co-operating with us in doing that. Therefore, we put in this
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clause so that it would be clear that we were not going to do these things with-
out their specific approval.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Monteith wanted to raise a point of order.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Our time is running out very rapidly; we have about another
30 seconds. I notice we are scheduled to meet tomorrow morning at 9.30. This
does not give us too much opportunity to think about the matter. I am wondering
if we might meet on Monday evening? This would give both the Minister and the
officials time to think over the discussion that has taken place here.

Mr. FurtoN: I am sorry, it is impossible for me to be here on Monday
evening, or, indeed, on Tuesday.

Mr. SHARP: I would prefer, too, Mr. Chairman, to get this through. I would
like to have it before the Senate as soon as possible.

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, we have heard the pros and cons. Why not
let Mr. Fulton make a motion to remove clause (a) and see what the Committee
feels about it?

Mr. SHARP: What is the possibility of a meeting tomorrow morning?

The CHAIRMAN: Well, it is scheduled, but it is up to the committee; the
notices have been sent out.

Mr. FuLTon: I will make the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: You are moving that—

Mr. FurToN: I move that Clause 16 be amended as follows:
1. By deleting (a)
2. By renumbering paragraphs (b) and (c¢) as paragraph (a) and (b)
respectively.
The CHAIRMAN: Is there a seconder?
An hon. MEMBER: I do not know that it requires a seconder in a Committee.
The CHAIRMAN: You may be quite right.
Is there any further discussion? If not, I call for the question. All those in
favour? All those opposed? I declare the amendment lost.
Mr. THoMmPSON: I do not have the privilege of voting and that is why I am
not doing so.
: The CHAIRMAN: You are actually substituting for your regular member who
1s in Guelph.
Clause 16 agreed to on division.
On Clause 17: Form and contents

We have an amendment. We will again ask Mr. Wahn and Mr. Macdonald
to formally propose the amendment which involves striking out existing sub-
clause (2) and substituting another one.

Mr. WauN: I so move, that bill C-261, An Act to establish the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation, be amended by striking out subclause (2) of
clause 17 thereof and by substituting therefor the following:

“(2) A contract of deposit insurance with a provincial POHCiY 5
institution shall be evidenced by an instrument in writing.” RASEhRT:
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Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): I will second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: It would appear that this is just a simplification of the
existing subclause (2). Is that right, Mr. Ryan?

Mr. Ryan: That is right, Mr. Chairman. The reason for it is that there is a
desire to put into the contract some of the provisions of the bylaws and the
words after the third line in the present clause, would restrict that operation, so
they are being removed.

Clause 17 as amended agreed to.

Clause 18 agreed to. On Clause 19: Assessment of premium

Mr. FurLtoN: I have an amendment to offer on clause 19, Mr. Chairman. I
will read it just before we adjourn in case we cannot be here tomorrow: That
subclause (1) of clause 19 be amended by deleting paragraph (b) thereof, and
substituting therefore the following:

(b) In the case of such deposits as are deposited with the member
institution as of the 30th day of April in that year and insured by the
Corporation
(1) One thirtieth of 1 per cent on the first 50 per cent thereof.

(2) One fortieth of 1 per cent of the next 25 per cent thereof.

(3) One fiftieth of 1 per cent thereafter.
That would have the effect, for all institutions, that the first 50 per cent of their

insurable deposits would carry a rate of one thirtieth of 1 per cent; the next 25
per cent would carry a rate of one fortieth; and the final 25 per cent would carry

a rate of one fiftieth.
Mr. MonTEITH: I will second that.
The CuatrMmAN: I think that perhaps we should leave that. You can submit

that in the usual way to the clerk.
I would suggest that unless the Committee formally moves, we do not sit
tomorrow. However, if such motion is carried, I think we should adjourn till 9.30

tomorrow morning.

An hon. MEMBER: Perhaps we could come’back after the vote.

The CHAIRMAN: You can come back after the vote. I am agreeable to that
me. Is the Committee willing to come back after the vote?

Mr. THOMPSON: We cannot meet tomorrow afternoon.

The CHAIRMAN: I think many members have to meet commitments in their
own riding, and would probably have to get transportation.

Shall we meet at 10.00 a.m. tomorrow instead of 9.30 a.m.?

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.
The CHAIRMAN: We will adjourn until 10.00 a.m. tomorrow.

FripAYy, February 10, 1967.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I now call our meeting to order. Mr. Fulton has
asked to be recognized at the beginning.

Mr. FurTon: Mr. Chairman, since we recessed I have been thinking over the
amendment to clause 19 which I presented at the close of our meeting last night
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and I have come to the conclusion that it does not really have the effect that I
was seeking in proposing an amendment. I thought I had a good formula here.
However, I do not claim to be strong in mathematics and I have come to the
conclusion that really all it does is, in effect, to lower the rates for everybody
from one-thirtieth to somewhere around one-thirty-sixth of one per cent. I have
no information at my disposal to prove that a rate of one-thirty-sixth of one per
cent is a better, more equitable, or more adequate rate than one-thirtieth. I had
hoped, as the Committee will appreciate, to be able to introduce an amendment
which would relieve what I believe to be an inequitable share of the burden
borne by the institutions that least need deposit insurance. I have come to the
conclusion this does not do that, and I would like to ask the Committee for
permission to withdraw the amendment. Now, I think Mr. Cameron has some-
thing to say.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, I was rath-
er taken aback when I found in front of me this morning the amendment which
Mr. Fulton proposed, and my name put in as seconder.

The CHAIRMAN: I think it was Mr. Monteith.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes, Mr. Monteith. Miss
Ballantine confused this with the other amendment I seconded.

The CHAIRMAN: I think we have become such a closely-working team, even
to respecting differences of ideology and party philosophy, that—

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): This is too great an
affinity.

The CHAIRMAN: You think this is carrying things a little too far?

Mr. MACKASEY: Why is Mr. Cameron so appalled at the close affinity
between the two philosophies?

The CHAIRMAN: It is not that exactly. The point of the fact is that he did not
happen to second the amendment, and I think that should be noted.

Mr. FuLtoN: In common with Mr. Mackasey, at least we can say we each
had a philosophy.

Mr. CaAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Yes, that is a sharp dis-
tinction.

The CHAIRMAN: I think the Committee will accord Mr. Fulton the oppor-
tunity of withdrawing his amendment. I am sure he offered it in a constructive
spirit and even Einstein was not very good in mathematics, so we are all in good
company in that regard.

Are there further comments with respect to clause 19?

Clauses 19 and 21 inclusive agreed to.

On Clause 22—Provincial institutions

The CHAIRMAN: With respect to clause 22, we have an amendment. Perhaps
I can ask Mr. Chrétien to move it formally and Mr. Mackasey to second it so that
it will be before us. I believe we all have copies of the amendment. I will ask Mr.
Sharp or his officials to give us any comments or explanations they feel are
required to support it.
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Mr. CHRETIEN: I move that Bill C-261, An Act to establish the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation, be amended by striking out line 13 on page
10 thereof and by substituting therefor the following:

i “Corporation may require; and the Corporation shall cause an exami-
nation of the affairs of the company to be made at least once in each such
year.”

Mr. MACKASEY: I second the motion.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Scott, would you like to comment on this amendment?

Mr. W. E. Scorr (Inspector General of Banks, Department of Finance):
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The purpose of this amendment is just to make it
quite clear that the corporation must examine each provincial institution at least
once a year. Previously the institution was obliged to submit to inspection but
the corporation was not specifically made responsible for doing it.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there further comments or questions with respect to the
amendment? If not, I will ask if the amendment is carried.

Amendment agreed to.

Clause 22, as amended, agreed to.

On clause 23—Contents of examiner’s Report.
On clause 24—Reporting defects or breaches.

Mr. FurToN: With respect to clauses 23 and 24, if it is a federal institution
and the corporation finds on examination that it is following unsound business or
financial practices, then the corporation reports by registered mail to the presi-
dent or the chairman of the board of directors of the member institution. But it
does not seem to me, if the same finding is made with respect to a member
institution which is a provincial corporation, that there is any requirement to
report. I am wondering why there is a distinction.

Mr. R. HumpHRYS (Superintendent, Department of Insurance): Mr.
Chairman, the difference in approach here is that with respect to a federal
institution its membership in this corporation is required by law, so that it is not
within the power of the corporation to términate the insurance of a federal
institution. There were some limitations to the power of the corporation in
disciplining the federal institutions, so it was thought the corporation should
ensure that the directors of the member institution knew the views of the
corporation and then anything else that had to be done would be done pursuant
to the other governing legislation, having in mind the Inspector General of Banks
and the Superintendent of Insurance both would be on the board of directors of
the corporation. It would be presumed that they would know the views of the
corporation and, through the Minister of Finance, would apply the necessary
sanctions to rectify improper practices on the part of federal institutions.

In so far as provincial institutions that are members of the corporation are
concerned, the corporation would not have the power to force changes in their
practices. The ultimate discipline in that event would be to follow the procedure
discipline is the withdrawal of deposit insurance.

Mr. FuLToN: In this case you would report only to the provincial minister
concerned; you would not report directly to the directors of the corporation
concerned?
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Mr. HumpHRYS: The corporation certainly would be in correspondence and
close consultation with the member institution, but we were hesitant about the
powers of the deposit corporation to force the provinecial institution to even do
such things as lay correspondence before the board of directors.

Mr. FurLTon: I see.

Mr. SHARP: In other words, if I understand this. correctly, the ultimate
discipline is the withdrawal of deposit insurance.

Mr. FuLton: Well, it is bound to come to the directors of the member
institutions sooner or later even though the corporation does not report it
directly.

Mr. HuMPHRYS: That is correct.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions with respect to clauses 23
and 24? I gather that clauses 25, 26 and 27 go on to complete the scheme with
respect to provincial institutions.

Clauses 23 and 24 agreed to.

Clauses 25 to 35 inclusive agreed to.

On clause 36—Employment of staff.

The CHAIRMAN: An amendment is before you to add a new subclause (3). I
will ask Mr. Chrétien to move and Mr. Mackasey formally to second the
amendment so that it is before us.

Mr. CHRETIEN: I move that bill C-261, An Act to establish the Canada
Deposit Insurance Corporation, be amended by adding immediately after sub-
clause (2) of clause 36 thereof the following:

“(3) In carrying out its functions under this Act, the Corpora- Agreement

2 . S 1
tion may, with the approval of the Minister, make use of the person- s‘;ivices,

nel, facilities and services of the Department of Insurance and the
Department of Finance to any extent not incompatible, in the opinion
of the Minister, with the administration of those Departments.”

Mr. MACRASEY: I second the motion.
The CHAIRMAN: Are there any comments in support of this amendment
which you feel would be helpful?

Mr. HumpHRYS: The purpose of this amendment, Mr. Chairman, is to
clarify the power to use existing staff of the Department of Finance or the
Department of Insurance in connection with the affairs of the corporation.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there anything further you wish to say, gentlemen, about
this amendment.

Amendment agreed to.

Clause 36, as amended, agreed to.

On clause 37T—Application of other Acts

Mr. FurToN: How does the Aeronautics Act creep in there? -

Mr. J. W. Ryan (Legislation Section, Department of Justice): Under the
Aeronautics Act regulations there is provision for compensation for certain

public officials who are being carried by aircraft. It is necessary to make a
reference there to bring these regulations into play.

25714—5
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Mr. MACDONALD (Rosedale): Is it not because it is a blue sky law?

The CHAIRMAN: I suppose it is also because you do not want to leave the
affairs of any of these deposit taking institutions up in the air.

Clause 37 agreed to.

Clause 38 to 44 inclusive agreed to.

On Clause 45—Coming into force.

The CHAIRMAN: We will now have Mr. Chrétien move and Mr. Mackasey
formally second the amendment which is before us.

Mr. CHRETIEN: I move that Bill-261, An Act to establish the Canada Deposit
Insurance Corporation, be amended by striking out clause 45 thereof.

Mr. MACKASEY: I second the motion.
The CHAIRMAN: Do you wish to make any explanatory comments on this.

Mr. HumpPHRYS: The purpose was to enable the plan to come into force
quickly. If this is struck out the act will come into force as soon as it receives
royal assent, and then the provision affecting insurance of federal institutions
will come into effect on proclamation as soon as the corporation can be organ-
ized.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, if a provincial institution comes
under this act, operates under it and then withdraws how is the public going to
know?

Mr. HuMmPHRYS: The act requires the institution to notify all its depositors. If
it does not do so then the act empowers the corporation itself to publish such
public notice as it sees fit to draw attention to the matter.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you in a position to publish a notice in any event, or
must you wait until the depositors are informed? I know it is there; I just want
to make it clear that it is not necessary to wait until these institutions have
informed their depositors. &

Mr. HuMPHRYS: It is not necessary to wait.

Mr. FurtoN: Do I understand, then, that federally incorporated institutions
will be covered on a date to be determined by the Governor in Council, and
provincial institutions that apply in the proper manner and become members
will be covered as soon as their applications are accepted? There is no further
proclamation necessary there? It is your intention to cover them as soon as they
apply, leaving the inspection process, by necessity, to be carried out later. Is that
correct?

Mr. HumMmpHRYS: If the province concerned accepts the proposal that the
Minister made in that connection, the corporation would cover the provincial
institution as soon as it applied. But if the province does not want to follow that
course, then it would be covered as soon as the corporation has approved the
application and issued a policy or document evidencing the coverage.

Mr. Davis: I think I heard Mr. Humphrys say that this act would come into
effect just as soon as the corporation could be organized. Could we have some
idea when it might be possible to have it organized?
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Mr. HumpHRYS: As I mentioned last night, we hesitate to give a date. I think
that everyone intends to push on with the organization as quickly as possible. It
should be within a matter of weeks, anyway.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any further discussion, gentlemen, on this aspect. If
not, I will ask if the title shall carry.

Title agreed to.

For greater certainty, Mr. More, I will assume from the tenor of discussion
that it was the unanimous view of the Committee that the amendment to clause
45 be struck out.

This bill, as amended, is carried. I will ask the Clerk of the Committee to
Prepare a report as quickly as possible. I presume that it will be available for
Monday’s sitting? That being the case, if you wish to inform the House Leader
that it will be formally before the house at the opening of business Monday, it
Will be up to him and yourself to see how you should proceed.

Thank you, gentlemen, for giving us the opportunity to assist in what we
hope will strengthen the deposit taking institutions.

Before adjourning I think we should—

Mr. SuARp: I would like to say a word of appreciation to the Committee first
of all for giving priority to the consideration of this bill and for the very
_thorough examination of its main features. I was very much impressed by the
Informed comments of the members of this Committee. It shows that you
benefited from your long sojourn in the field of banking.

The CHAIRMAN: I might add, of course, that we probably benefited, as you
suggested, from hearing the views of many people both from the academic
Sphere and the financial sphere in our general hearings on banking and perhaps
We have been able to apply this information here.

I do want to take just a moment with respect to our procedure. I think it is
intended that we revert to our consideration of the banking legislation and it was
our idea that once we had finished hearing from the Minister of Finance we
Wwould begin our clause by clause discussion. Are we in agreement that we have
completed our questioning of the Minister of Finance with respect to the other
legislation as well?

Mr. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I have one question. I visualize that this
machinery will be put into action very quickly; much more quickly, probably,
than some of the provinces will be dealing with it, although most of the
legislatures are in session. I can visualise, therefore, that perhaps there will be a
Number of provincially chartered trust companies and finance companies who
are going to be seeking information and wanting to come under this immediate-
ly. I do not know just how to pose this question, but—

Mr. SHARP: May I clarify this, Mr. Chairman. Legislative action on the part
of the provincial legislatures to bring provincial companies under deposit insur-
ance will not be required. All that is required is the permission of the govern-
ment, so I do not anticipate any difficulties of that kind. If the province wants to
g0 further and require all institutions accepting deposits in the province to be
federally insured, that might require legislative action. But the scheme itself can
Come into effect very quickly and it can apply to any provincial institutions that
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the province wants it to apply to without requiring any legislation, as far as I am
aware.

Mr. THOMPSON: In the event that permission is not readily available to
institutions which do wish to come under, is the only way they can do so by
federal charter, brought about through an act of Parliament?

Mr. HuMPHRYS: If an institution seeks federal incorporation within this field
it must now be by a special act of Parliament.

Mr. THOMPSON: It must be?
Mr. HUMPHRYS: Yes.

Mr. THoMPsON: Which means it is a year off. I hope that as this goes through
the House, initiative will come on your part to inform the various provinces of
your own intentions to speed matters up and facilitate, I believe—if I read public
reaction correctly—the intense interest in it by many trust companies and
finance companies across the country who are not federally chartered.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen is there anything further on this? Reverting to
our brief procedural discussion, it was my understanding the consensus of the
Committee was that the Minister of Finance would be our last witness, following
which we would begin our clause by clause discussion. I assume we feel we have
completed our questioning of the minister with respect to the banking legisla-
tion.

Mr. FurTon: May I ask whether, as we go through it clause by clause, the
Minister could be here? I think we have only had two sittings with the Minister
here for general questioning. I know he has been very hard pressed, but it
would be helpful if he could be here as we review it clause by clause, because
there may be some amendments which raise matters of policy. Rather than comb
through it now as you have a lot more questions, that might be the more
convenient method.

Mr. SHARP: May I suggest to you, Mr. Chairman, that I would be very happy
to appear as often as I can before this Committee, but perhaps the questions of
policy arising in the clause by clause discussion might be set aside and consid-
ered, if possible, at a continuous session rather than requiring me to sit here
while more routine matters are under discussion.

Mr. MACKASEY: You suggested certain proposed amendments the other
evening. Will you be here when they are introduced?

Mr. SHARP: Yes, I could be.

The CHAIRMAN: I was going to suggest to the Committee that we invite the
officials immediately concerned to be with us for questioning; Mr. Scott, for
example, and Mr. Elderkin who still has the status as special consultant on these
matters, and so on, and I think they would be available to us as we consider this
bill in any event. Do you have a further comment on this aspect?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I was just going to say
that I hoped we would be able to comb out the sections on which we want
the Minister’s advice and as he suggests, we stand them until we accumulate
several. >
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Mr. Mogre (Regina City): Well, I think we all would agree with that, Mr.
Cameron. That makes sense. I was just going to ask whether we have copies of
all the proposed amendments the Minister has in mind?

. 'The CHAIRMAN: So far we have only one; the others were stated by the
Minister in principle. I presume they are being prepared now.

Mr. SHARP: There will be amendments from Mr. Elderkin, or one of my
other officials, to carry out the intent of the changes I suggested.

Mr. More (Regina City): Well, what I was getting at is whether it is going
tQ be done in the same manner as amendments for this bill, where they were
given to us en bloc. It might colour some of our thinking in regard to other
clauses.

Mr. SHARP: Well I have already seen 51 changes, that are being proposed,
according to Mr. Elderkin, and I believe that those are now available. With
regard to the amendments that I have suggested, I gave one to the Committee
Which has been discussed at some length. Then there are amendments relating to
two other matters, but they require consequential changes in a number of places.

Mr. More (Regina City): Well this is what I had in mind; could they be
made available too? We might get into an argument about a clause when the
amendment might clear the air; if we do not have it we are wasting time.

Mr. SHARP: I am told by Mr. Scott that they will be available on Monday.

Mr. MoRre (Regina City): This would be the complete amendments that you
Now have in mind? You have no further considerations in view of the evidence
8lven?

Mr. Suarp: I will not give a categorical answer to that question. There are
One or two points upon which I still want to reserve my judgment. Thank you.

The CHAIRMAN: That brings me to the next point. Do we wish to begin our
clause by clause discussion on Monday evening?

Mr. MoRre (Regina City): No. I suggest we start on Tuesday.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, I think that is sensible. That leads me to the final point
_I wish to raise with you and that is whether or not this consideration should be
in camera. I had advanced informally to the Steering Committee, now that it is a
qeﬁnite motion, the thought that it could be open. I have looked into this matter
Since mentioning it, and I believe it is not obligatory—it is a matter of procedure
for committees. Generally, I have found they sat in camera where they are
actually writing a report which was a statement of opinion or fact; for example,
the interim report of the Prices Committee and where they considered an actual
bill. Tn some cases this consideration has been open; in some cases it has been
closed to the public but a transcript of the discussions has been taken and
Published. I am not saying this is a precedent, but we have just considered an
important piece of government legislation in open session here, and perhaps it
has been useful for all concerned to see this discussion.

Mr. THOMPSON: There is no point why a clause by clause discussion should
be in camera, is there? After all, the focus of attention has moved downstairs to

Defence; it is no longer here.
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The CHAIRMAN: I could be wrong in this, but it is my personal opinion that
by having this discussion open to the press and the public it may have some
positive limiting effect on discussion in the House. I am not saying definitely that
it will, but it may help to air things in a way they might otherwise not be aired
in the House. Perhaps I am wrong in this. I just advance this thought.

Mr. MoRe (Regina City): Frankly, I cannot see any reason why it should not
be open, and if we come to a position where we feel we are involved . in
something that might be—

The CHAIRMAN: We can move into closed executive session.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I would think, Mr.
Chairman, after the entertainment record we have set we shall find that we are
actually sitting in camera.

The CHAIRMAN: We will adjourn until Tuesday at 11 o’clock.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TuESDAY, February 14, 1967
(97)

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
11:15 a.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Chrétien, Clermont, Flemming, Gilbert, Gray,
Irvine, Laflamme, Lambert, Latulippe, Leboe, Macdonald (Rosedale), McLean
(Charlotte), Monteith, Saltsman, Wahn—(15)

Also present: Mr. Addison.

In attendance: Mr. C. F. Eldérkin, Special Adviser, Department of Finance;
Dr. P. M. Ollivier, Parliamentary Counsel.

It was agreed to suspend the meeting called for 3:45 p.m. this day in order
that the members might be present in the House for the debate on Bill C-261.

The Committee then proceeded to clause by clause study of Bill C-222, An
Act respecting Banks and Banking.

On motion of Mr. Clermont, seconded by Mr. Chrétien,

Resolved,—That the following clauses and schedules are passed en bloc:

Clauses: 3, 5, 7, 8, 9, 15, 16, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 27, 30, 32, 34, 37, 38, 40,, 41, 42,
43, 58, 59, 61, 62, 66, 67, 68, 70, 71, 73, 74, 78, 79, 80, 81, 94, 95, 98, 99, 100, 102,
104, 105, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, 114, 115, 116, 118, 119, 120, 121, 123,

125, 126, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 135, 136, 140, 141, 142, 143, 144,
146, 147, 148, 149, 152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 159, 160, 161.

Schedules: B, R and S.

On clause 1

Messrs. Elderkin and Ollivier were questioned.

At 12:00 noon the Vice-Chairman took the Chair and at 12:15 p.m. the
Chairman resumed the Chair.

Clause 1 was allowed to stand.

Clause 2 was carried.

On clause 4

On motion of Mr. Clermont, seconded by Mr. Chrétien,

Resolved,—That clause 4 be amended by striking out the clause and sub-
Stituting the following therefor:

“4. This Act applies to each bank named in Schedule A and does not apply to
any other bank.” : |
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The clause was carried, as amended.

On clause 6
On motion of Mr. Clermont,; seconded by Mr. Chrétien,
Resolved,—That clause 6 be amended by striking out the clause and sub-
stituting the following therefor:
" “6. Subject to this Act,

(a) if Parliament sits on at least twenty days during the month of
of June, 1977, the bank may carry on the business of banking. until
the first day of July, 1977, and no longer, and

(b) if Parliament does not sit on at least twenty days during the month
of June, 1977, the bank may carry on the business of banking until

' the sixtieth sitting day of Parliament next thereafter, and no
longer.”

Clause 6 was carried, as amended.

On clause 10
Mr. Elderkin was questioned, and the clause was carried.

On clause 11

On motion of Mr. Clermont, seconded by Mr. Chrétien,

Resolved,—That clause 11 be amended by striking out lines 43 and 44 on

page 7 and substituting therefor the following:

“scription, give his post office address, and this shall appear in the stock
books in connec-"

The clause was carried, as amended.

On clause 12

On motion of Mr. Clermont, seconded by Mr. Chrétien,

Resolved,
That clause 12 be amended .
(1) by striking out line 